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Corporate Profile
NGILE

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (‘Hanhua Financial’,
‘“Hanhua” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries
named as the “Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”) (Stock Code: 3903)
is the first inclusive financial institution in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC” or “China”) listed in Hong Kong that has
integrated two major businesses of credit guarantee and small
and medium-sized enterprise (“SME”) lending.

Hanhua currently holds licenses in areas of banking, internet loan,
leasing, guarantee, factoring, investment, financial exchange and
others. Based on our 12-year operating experience, professional
team, well-established risk control technology and abundant
funds, we provide one-stop integrated financial services to SMEs
and individuals.

Our business segment of corporate financial services includes
guarantee, leasing, factoring, bills and investment, which
provide full life-cycle investment and financing services to SMEs
throughout the country. Our strategic partners include well-known
enterprises such as China Construction Bank (B2 :#%#R17) ,
Postal Savings Bank of China (FREIE#R77), The People’s
Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited, China Merchants
Bank (#®$817), Bank of Tianjin (X#24$877), Haier CEE),
NetEase (#85 ) and Kingdee (&%) . Our financial services for
individuals include consumer finance, operating finance, wealth
management, investment and wealth management, internet
insurance, internet small loan and insurance.

With the vision of “Establishing a Chinese model for inclusive
finance in the world” and through the strategies of “Partnership
finance, Platform finance, Eco-finance”, we are committed to
build a symbiotic credit subject based on traditional mainstream
financial form of “Bank + Securities + Insurance”. Besides, by
virtue of a “Double-aspect financial services group” serving
both SMEs and individuals, we are dedicated to form an eco-
finance services model with coordinated development for three
platforms of “Equity + Debt + Transaction”. We have endeavored
to promote the in-depth integration between financial capital
and industrial capital in order to achieve synchronous upgrade in
economic ecology, social ecology and natural ecology.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Dayong (Vice Chairman)
(Appointed on 13 March 2016)

Mr. Cui Weilan
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Mr. Tu Jianhua
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Mr. Liu Bolin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Bai Qinxian
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu
Mr. Qian Shizheng
Mr. Ng Leung Sing
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Li Ruping

Ms. Qin Yong (Appointed on 13 March 2016)
Mr. Zhou Daoxue (Retired on 12 March 2016)
Mr. Chen Zhonghua

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Qian Shizheng (Independent Non-executive Director) (Head)
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
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Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (Independent Non-executive Director) (Head)
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Corporate Information
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STRATEGIC INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Executive Director) (Head)

Mr. Wang Dayong (Executive Director)
(Appointed on 13 March 2016)

Mr. Tu Jianhua (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Zhou Xinyu (Non-executive Director)
(Retired on 12 March 2016)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Executive Director) (Head)
Mr. Cui Weilan (Executive Director)
Mr. Duan Xiaohua (Non-executive Director)

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Ren Weidong
Ms. Lai Siu Kuen (FCIS, FCS)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman and Executive Director)

Ms. Lai Siu Kuen (Joint Company Secretary)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

6-9, Building 2, 11 East Honghu Road
Yubei District

Chongaing

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

36/F, Tower Two

Times Square, 1 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong
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HEAD OFFICES IN THE PRC

1st Floor, Building A, No. 2 Fortune Tower
No. 15 Caifu Avenue

Chongaing

PRC

and

13th Floor, East Tower, World Financial Center
No. 1 East Third Ring Middle Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation (Headquarters)
No. 25 Financial Street

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC
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Corporate Information
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China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)
No. 7088 Shennan Boulevard

Futian District

Shenzhen

Guangdong Province

PRC

Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)

No. 3 Financial Street

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

China CITIC Bank Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)

Building C, Fuhua Plaza, No. 8 Chaoyangmen North Street
Dongcheng District

Beijing

PRC

AUDITOR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY

(AS TO HONG KONG AND UNITED STATES LAW)

Jones Day

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.hanhua.com

STOCK CODE

3903
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Summary of Accounting Data and Financial Indicators

DI BENBBEESRE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) ® (& BB RN UARE TS THIR)

% Increase/

(decrease)
of the
current year
compared
with the
same
period
2016 2015 last year 2014 2013 2012
KELEF
20165 2015 B OR) % 2014 2013F  2012%
Operating results RExA
Operating income BERA 1,479.8 17520 (155 20008 15767  1,1433
- Net guarantee and consulting fee income  — Rk EAEZFUHA 755.4 765.0 (1.9) 958.3 913.1 7845
— Net interest and handling fee income ~FERFEEFUA 724.4 987.0 26.6)  1,042.5 663.6 358.8
(Reversal)/Provisions for guarantee losses R £ (8m),/
ROEREEEES (39.7) (110.9) (64.2) 72.1 149.0 517
Impairment losses BERMERRE 372.9 5155 (27.7) 4317 294.4 130.1
Operating expenses BETH 802.7 893.4 (10.2) 851.2 703.9 356.4
Net profit B 2835 352.1 (19.5) 507.4 356.7 517.8
— Net profit attributable to shareholders of —SBR AR FRELH
the Company AR 241.7 303.0 (20.2) 432.0 279.7 199.3
Profitability indicators BRIgENEE
Return on average total assets'! THRBERRE 1.8% 2.7% (0.9%) 4.9% 5.2% 10.8%
Return on average shareholder equity® TR RERDHRE 3.8% 4.7% (0.9%) 7.8% 9.0% 22.9%
Cost to income ratio® NN 52.1% 46.3% 5.8% 37.7% 39.8% 26.2%
Scale indicators REEE
Total assets BEBE 17,0827  13,961.0 224 119383 86280 49679
- Total cash and cash equivalents -ERES BT 35120  2,803.9 253 2,531.1 940.5 254.4
- Total restricted bank deposits -FHERESDE 1,051.9  1,400.1 (249) 21245 22932  2,207.2
- Gross loans and advances to customers —EMERRBTAE 8,014.7  7,470.1 73 62860 47774 20456
Total liabilities BESE 9,603.6  6,515.5 474 43619  3,169.6 24599
Owner’s Equity FEEER 7,479.1 74455 05 75764 54584 25080
Notes: -

M Net profit divided by average balance of total assets as at the

beginning and end of the year.

@ Net profit divided by average balance of total equity as at the

beginning and end of the year.

©®  Operating expenses after deducting tax and surcharges divided by

operating income.

@ To facilitate comparison, some historical figures are restated on new

calculation basis or logic.
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Financial Highlights

B HME

The financial information set out in this annual report was
prepared on a consolidated basis according to the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”). Unless otherwise
stated, the financial information of the Group is expressed in RMB

million.

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated)

(BRABEBIN AARBEETLIIR)

REEREMBMEERTIAG HEER
REBMBREEAN(ERAUBREE
Al RE - B BERIN ARENRITEE
HIAAREBETIR

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HILLEE
2016 2015
20165 20154

% of net % of net
fee and fee and
interest interest
Amount income Amount income
EFEE WFEFEE

T8 RABKA
%

EH RAEBHA
%

Operating results
Net guarantee and

ERREREFRA

consulting fee income 755.4 51.0 765.0 43.7
Net interest and handling fee income  #I|8 & FE & FWA 724.4 49.0 987.0 56.3
Net fee and interest income FFEEBRANERA 1,479.8 100.0 1,752.0 100.0
Other revenue HaA 34.7 2.3 34.0 1.9
Reversal for guarantee losses EEEREEERES 39.7 2.7 110.9 6.3
Impairment losses EEREEX (372.9) (25.1) (515.5) (29.3)
Operating expenses EEY (802.7) (54.2) (893.4) (51.0)
Net foreign exchange gain b 55 = 1.1 0.1 - -
Other net expenses Hih % F5E (2.5) (0.2) (1.7) 0.1)
Share of profits of associate B ERE W 0.6 - - -
Profit before taxation 81 FE 377.8 25.6 486.3 27.8
Income tax FTig %t (94.3) (6.4) (134.2) (7.7)
Net profit R 283.5 19.2 352.1 20.1

Although the Group made less provision for impairment of its
asset portfolio and business and management fees relating to
its daily operations were decreasing, both its net profit and net
profit margin (net profit/net fee and interest income) were on
a downward trend in 2016 due to the decreasing net fee and

interest income.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, the net profit of the
Group was RMB283.5 million, representing a decrease of
RMB68.6 million or 19.5% compared with RMB352.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the net profit margin of the Group was 19.2%,
0.9 percentage points lower than 20.1% for the year ended 31
December 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the net fee and interest
income of the Group was RMB1,479.8 million in total, down by
15.5% as compared with RMB1,752.0 million for the year 2015.
The decrease was mainly because of the 1.3% decrease in net
guarantee and consulting fee income in the credit guarantee
business and 26.6% decrease in net interest and handling fee
income in SME lending business. Among others:

e In 2016, the net guarantee and consulting fee income in the
credit guarantee business was RMB755.4 million in total,
decreased RMB9.6 million or 1.3%, as compared with that
amount of RMB765.0 million for the year 2015. Since 2015,
downward pressure on the macro-economy intensified and
the credit default risk of some SME customers increased.
In view of this, the Group proactively made adjustments
to its business exploration model and the structure of
its credit guarantee business, during the period of which
the Group gradually and proactively withdrew from the
business customers with comparatively high risks so as to
reduce payment amounts due to default. The Group also
progressively changed its model to expand customer base
and business coverage, initiatively marketed core customers
with relatively high credit qualifications, and developed
standardized products to cater for the financing needs from
both upstream and downstream enterprises, especially its
core customers, thereby vigorously developed the supply
chain business model. Meanwhile, the Group appropriately
employed other business tools such as entrusted loans,
transfer of accounts receivable and bill discount to meet
the financing needs of numerous SMEs. As no significant
income was forthwith derived from new customers, the
aforesaid business adjustments resulted in a declining
trend for outstanding balance of the traditional financing
guarantee business and net guarantee and consulting fee
income. The balance for traditional financing guarantee
(including bank financing guarantee and other non-bank
financing guarantee) declined by RMB2,793.9 million or
23.8% from RMB11,719.0 million as at 31 December 2015
to RMB8,925.1 million as at 31 December 2016, accounting
for 22.0% of the guaranteed amount.

Financial Highlights
B HEE
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Financial Highlights
B HEE

On the other hand, the Group continuously enhanced
promotion on bond guarantee business with lower credit
risks to offset the decrease in income from the traditional
financing guarantee business, thereby facilitating the credit
guarantee business to achieve a smooth transformation.
With such adjustments in the structure of the business, the
outstanding bond guarantee business increased by 299.8%
from RMB5,065.0 million as at 31 December 2015 to
RMB20,250.0 million as at 31 December 2016, accounting
for 49.8% of the guaranteed amount.

In 2016, the net interest and handling fee income of the
Group was RMB724.4 million, representing a decrease of
RMB262.6 million or 26.6% as compared with RMB987.0
million in 2015. The decrease in net interest and handling
fee income was mainly because of the decrease of RMB99.7
million in interest and handling fee income and an increase of
RMB162.9 million in interest and commission expense.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAR
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In order to further secure customers with high credit ratings, the
Group has progressively made minor downward adjustments
to its pricing since 2015. As a result, the average rate of return
for SME loan business declined from 17.7% in 2015 to 15.0%
in 2016. At the same time, the Group continuously promoted
the issue of loans and increased relevant issue size. The SME
loans increased by RMB544.6 million or 7.3% from RMB7,470.1
million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB8,014.7 million as at
31 December 2016. The Group proactively made strategic
transformation and adjustment in 2016 with “Diversifying model,
upgrading and transformation” as overall business strategy
and explored consumer finance and platform finance business
when upgrading traditional micro and small business. Through
online and offline cross-field integration, the Group established
standard, concentrated and diversified business model, further
expanded customer access channel and provided comprehensive
financial service for small and micro-enterprises and individual
clients. Following such adjustment to our business model and
the transformation and upgrading, the traditional outstanding
balance of the Group’s traditional micro and small loan business
recorded a gradually decline since the beginning of 2016, while
new business segments were still at the cultivation stage in the
first half of 2016, and thus generated only insignificant revenue
until the second half of 2016 when rapid growth was recorded.
Such “Rise after decline” business deployment model resulted in
the increase in the monthly average outstanding balance of SME
loan assets (including “Micro and small loans” and “Entrusted
loans”, the same hereinafter) of RMB103.2 million or 1.6% from
RMB6,321.0 million in 2015 to RMB6,424.2 million in 2016.
Since the decline in the average rate of returns for the SME
loan business has exceeded the growth of the average balance
of loan business, the total interest and handling fee income of
the loan assets in 2016 was RMB962.6 million, with a decrease
by RMB155.3 million or 13.9% as compared with RMB1,117.9
million in 2015.

Financial Highlights
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Financial Highlights
B HEE

In 2016, the growth of the Group’s factoring business and finance
leasing business led to a significant increase in the relevant
interest and handling fee income. The interest and handling fee
income of the Group in the factoring business and finance lease
business was RMB70.1 million in total, increase by RMB54.2
million or 340.9% as compared with RMB15.9 million in 2015.

In 2016, the interest and commission expense of the Group
was RMB388.7 million, which increased by RMB162.9 million or
72.1% as compared with RMB225.8 million in 2015. As financial
institutions including banks gradually tightened their direct lending
to SMEs, the Group progressively increased funds acquired from
other channels, and utilized the same to carry out business in
the form of provision of loans to SMEs, aiming at catering for
the financing needs of SMEs which met the conditions set for
credit extension. Expenditures associated with interest on bonds,
interest on borrowings from banks and non-bank institutions as
well as commission paid to agents gradually increased due to the
timing mismatch between the consumption of funds for business
development and one-off borrowings from external parties.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROARAR
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Impairment losses for receivables for default payments and
other credit assets decreased from RMB515.5 million in 2015
to RMB372.9 million in 2016, representing a decrease of
RMB142.6 million or 27.7%. Since the beginning of 2015,
the Group has proactively optimized its business structure,
comprehensively adjusted its credit-granting policy, and fully
enhanced its marketing management and post-guarantee
management, with increased frequency and efforts in post-
guarantee management. As for defaulting customers, the
Group stepped up management on collaterals. Meanwhile,
the Group further raised all staff’'s awareness of risk
management by fully implementing the administrative
rules for distribution of performance-based bonus after
the “Discharge of risk responsibility”. Given the short term
(mainly within 18 months) of loans and credit guarantees
provided by the Group to its customers, the aforesaid
measures led to gradually reduced credit risk exposure of
the Group’s overall asset portfolio, and relevant effectiveness
was fully achieved in 2015 and 2016, as evidenced by the
declining provision for impairment of its assets.

Excluding the impact of “Share-based payment” and
“Taxes and surcharges”, the total “Operating expenses”
used in daily operation and management in 2016 would be
RMB714.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB16.4
million or 2.2% as compared with RMB730.5 million in 2015.
In 2016, the Group continuously strengthened cost control
and optimized resource allocation, resulting in a continuous
decrease in operating expenses.

Financial Highlights
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYH

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Director(s)”) of Hanhua Financial, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Company from 1 January 2016 up to 31
December 2016.

In 2016, the government aggressively promoted the structural
reform of supply side against the backdrop of China’s “new
normal” economy. By active withdrawal from industries with
excess production capacity, adjustment of organizational
structure, product mix and marketing channels, Hanhua Financial
substantially improved its business scale, assets quality, risk
control capability and competitive strength. We hope this will
facilitate the rebound of our operating results in 2017.

Apart from making effective improvement on business layout and
assets quality, we have made the following major achievements in
2016:

1. Substantial breakthrough in financial license strategy.
In 2016, Hanhua Financial achieved unprecedented
breakthrough in its financial license strategy by obtaining
the first major license for mainstream financial service
as the establishment of Chongging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd
(“Fumin Bank”) was approved. The jointly operated securities
company, which was established by Hanhua Financial
as the promotor, has filed an application with the China
Securities Regulatory Commission. The Company intended
to enhance its comprehensive business capability exploring
new business and profit drivers through the jointly operated
securities company in collaboration with its existing financial
business resources. The financial license strategy of Hanhua
Financial can greatly enhance its market creditability, lower
its financing costs and boost its capability in integrated
financial services.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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2. Improved asset quality. According to our review and
research, Hanhua Financial made the right decision to
deliberately withdraw from industries with excess production
capacity and certain poorly-managed traditional enterprises.
In hindsight, the Group has avoided “landmines” through
proactive, prudent and flexible risk management, as projects
from which we exited faced huge challenges afterwards.
After two years of efforts, Hanhua has basically completed
its risk management and assets reorganization for the
current cycle, creating sufficient space for the next stage of
development.

3. Significantly optimized business structure. A year of hard
work in 2016 has paid off for the partnership cluster
segment, being one of Hanhua’s two major segments, which
comprises guarantee, leasing and factoring businesses
and has accomplished the transformation of its business
model from “passive” to “active” and from “subordinated”
to “dominant”. The change of business model not only
revolutionized the traditional sales and cooperation modes,
but also sharply reduced reliance on banking channels. As
a result, fund guarantee, bond guarantee and other capital
market businesses became the new sources of growth.
Meanwhile, the credit segment focusing on micro and small
loan business has vigorously promoted the standardization of
products and procedures, leading to substantially improved
per capita efficiency.

Looking into 2017, we are of the view that the domestic economy
will continue to be under pressure, with possibly slower growth,
but still within the reasonable range, in GDP for the whole
year. More proactive and effective fiscal policy and a moderate
monetary policy are expected to be in place, and liquidity is
expected to be more subsided as compared with 2016. Hanhua
will continue to push forward its financial license strategy,
optimization asset strategy and other established strategies,
thereby laying down a solid foundation for its future rapid and
healthy development.

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BN WD

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
CREDIT GUARANTEE BUSINESS
Business expansion and product development strategies

The following table sets forth the crucial business indicators of the
guarantee business of the Group for the years indicated:

FRERER
IR K dn 7 R

TRFIINFARFEAKEZRERER
XBNBERIBER:

For the year ended 31 December

M12A318
2016 2015 Change
20164 2015%F 23
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BREBFEHREIN UARBBEETIIR) 28 Ea %
Guarantee and consulting EREEHBRA 755.4 765.0 (1.3)
fee income
Product distribution of ERHBERER
guarantee balances o
Traditonal financing guarantee EHEE R 8,925.1 11,719.0 (23.8)
Bond guarantee BEHER 20,250.0 5,065.0 299.8
Financing guarantee BERRBRE D 29,175.1 16,784.0 73.8
balance subtotal
Re-guarantee BEREBSH 10,000.0 - -
Outstanding traditional financing ERBERRETHRE 8,875.1 11,719.0 (24.3)
guarantee liability
Outstanding bond guarantee liability &% &R & T4 5 10,300.0 5,065.0 103.4
Financing guarantee liability MERRETHE 19,175.1 16,784.0 14.2
Non-financing guarantees IEFE EIR 11,455.8 9,198.8 24.5
— Guarantee of capital —RAE S ER 8,255.2 7,375.7 11.9
preservation funds
Guaranteed balance total ERETHRES 30,630.9 25,082.8 17.9

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA



Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of the development of the guarantee business, the
Group adhered to the principles of compliant operations and
“protection and suppression”, and effectively integrated the
macroeconomic control policies and industry policies of the
government to develop the guarantee business in a prudent,
steady and appropriate manner. In 2016, the guarantee and
consulting fee income from credit guarantee business was
RMB755.4 million, remaining stable as compared with that in
2015. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s outstanding credit
guarantee balance (excluding the amount of RMB10.00 billion
which was transferred out from the re-guarantee business) was
RMB30,630.9 million, representing an increase of RMB4,648.1
million or 17.9% as compared with RMB25,982.8 million as at 31
December 2015. This was mainly due to the rapid development of
the bond guarantee business.

The Group kept improving product portfolio based on the
macroeconomic environment, market conditions and the
demands for business development in the future, to provide
more diversified product support for business marketing. At the
same time, the Group revised and optimized some of the existing
products to meet market changes, and continuously improved
product popularity and competitiveness. In addition, the Group
will continue with product innovation. Such strategies will promote
constant improvement in the Group’s business product portfolio.
The Group’s guarantee products include providing guarantee
for direct financing and sale under repurchase agreement
transactions through bank and other financing channels; providing
guarantees for bonds issued on the stock exchange market,
inter-bank markets and other channels; providing performance
guarantee for capital preservation fund products managed by
mutual fund management companies, and other forms of non-
financing guarantees such as engineering contract guarantee and
attachment guarantee.
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Traditonal financing guarantee business

The Group always remains committed to its mission of
“Serving SMEs and individuals”. The Group strives to provide
services to SMEs which meet relevant credit qualifications.
Since 2015, downward pressure on the domestic economy
intensified and the credit default risk of SME customers
generally increased. Therefore, since 2015, the Group has
gradually eliminated some high-risk customers in an active
manner to reduce default payments. Further, the Group also
progressively changed its model in expanding customer base
and business coverage and introduced initiative marketing
measures targeting at core customers with relatively high
credit qualifications. Moreover, the Group based on “Core
enterprises” to design integrated financial service solutions
for the upstream and downstream enterprises of such core
enterprises by capitalizing on their marketing networks and
financing channels and whereby developed standardized
credit guarantee products to cater for the financing needs
from both upstream and downstream enterprises, especially
its core customers, thereby vigorously developing the
supply chain business model. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group has entered into strategic cooperation agreements
with more than 30 core enterprises to provide integrated
financial service solutions for their upstream and downstream
enterprises. Meanwhile, the Group developed customized
products for the enterprises with special recruitment
demands in special industry in line with their industrial
characteristics. For example, we developed short-term credit
products and engineering construction guarantee products
for construction enterprises in construction industry which
intend to participate into a tender. As such, the Group’s
business model has been gradually changed from that
targeting at “Single customer” to the present “Supply chain
finance” model.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAR

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although the aforesaid business achieved rapid development
in the second half of 2016, from the overall perspective, the
nurturing of new customer base and the promotion of new
business model still posed lagged effect on the contribution
to guarantee and consulting fee income. Meanwhile, the
Group catered for the financing needs of numerous SMEs by
reasonably employing other business tools such as entrusted
loans, transfer of accounts receivables, bill discount. As at
31 December 2016, the balance of the Group’s traditional
financing guarantee business (including bank financing
guarantee and other non-bank financing guarantee) was
RMB8,925.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB2,793.9
million or 23.8% as compared with RMB11,719.0 million as
at 31 December 2015.
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Bond guarantee

The Central People’'s Government made it clear in the 2015
Government Work Report “to vigorously develop inclusive
finance to enable all market players to share the benefits of
financial services”, followed by the publication of the “Plans
for Promoting the Development of Inclusive Finance (2016-
2020)” by the Central People’s Government in January
2016. Meanwhile, efforts would be made to accelerate
the establishment of a multi-level capital market to make
investment a theme of steady growth in the future. Against
this backdrop, the Group further pushed for transformation
and upgrading of the business model and continued its
business development strategy that focused on “Asset
quality as the core, customer demand as the centre,
partnership finance as the concept and product innovation
as the carrier” for creating a symbiotic eco-financial service
circle. The Group teamed up with industrial clusters to set up
“A guarantee fund, a debt fund, an investment and buyout
fund and an industrial development fund” for linking up all
connectable resources and integrating various aspects of
the industry chain to achieve a winwin situation by means
of “structured finance and closed operation”. On this basis,
by continuously enhancing its capital strength as well as
its brand and creditability on the capital market, the Group
provided credit guarantees for “special yield bonds and
support bonds for small and micro enterprises” issued by
local governments and financing platforms. The Group took
this as an opportunity to deliver comprehensive financial
service solutions to the SMEs on its chain that utilized funds
for investment, thereby enabling the Group to switch from
the role as a traditional “Credit market” service provider
to the role as a “Capital + Credit” market comprehensive
service provider.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2016, Hanhua Guarantee Corporation Limited, mainly
engaged in financing guarantee services of the Group,
received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Dagong Global Credit Rating Co., Ltd., and
from Pengyuan Credit Rating Co., Ltd. and Shanghai
Brilliance Credit Rating & Investors Service Co., Ltd.
respectively.

According to the regulatory requirements set by the relevant
regulatory authorities, the risk multiplier of the financing
guarantee business is capped at 10 times of the net assets
amounts. For a long time, the risk multiplier of the Group’s
financing guarantee business ranges from 4.5 to 5.0, far
below the cap set by the relevant regulatory authorities.
Therefore, in 2016, the Group provided guarantee services
to bonds issued by financing entities with good credit history
in open markets by appropriately drawing upon long idle
business resources and capitalizing on the influence of
Group’s brand in the capital market. Despite the relatively
low fee rate of such business, the overall scale is large
and the guarantee expenses for the next few years can be
received on a one-off basis upon successful issue of bonds.
The increased revenue generated from such business largely
offset the decreased revenue from our traditional financing
guarantee business, providing support to the smooth
transition and transformation of the Group’s business. In
2016, the Group provided guarantees to a total of bonds
of RMB20.25 billion issued by 24 customers. At the same
time, the Group collaborated with third-party re-guarantee
companies in transferring out a total of bond guarantee
projects in value of RMB9.95 billion for re-guarantee
purpose to diversify relevant risks. As at 31 December
2016, Outstanding bond guarantee liability of the Group was
RMB10,300.0 million, representing an increase of RMB5.23
billion or 103.4% as compared with RMB5.07 billion as at 31
December 2015.
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Non-financing Guarantee

The Group offers non-financing guarantees in the Group’s
credit guarantee business whereby the Group act as
guarantor to promise to pay one party (i.e. the obligor) a
certain amount if another party, (i.e. the principal), fails to
meet certain obligations, (such as fulfilling the terms of a
contract). To reduce the Group’s credit risks, the Group
requires business owners or controlling persons of the
principal to provide counter-guarantees, which make them
jointly and severally liable together with the principal when
the Group incurs a loss. The non-financing guarantee
products mainly include capital preservation fund guarantee,
engineering contract guarantee and litigation guarantee.

The Group considers the provision of non-financing
guarantees can enhance the efficiency of capital utilization as
such business is not subject to any net asset leverage ratio
requirements in our financing guarantee business.

The Group began to engage in guarantee business for capital
preservation funds in 2014. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group provided services to 9 fund products managed by 5
fund management companies, with outstanding guarantee
liability of RMB8.26 billion.

Capital preservation public funds are fund products offered
for public subscription which guarantee the return of principal
at the maturity date and are managed through various capital
preservation investment strategies. Under this new guarantee
product, the Group typically guarantees the payment of
any shortfall between the net asset value of a particular
capital preservation public fund at its maturity date and its
principal value when initially launched. Capital preservation
funds utilize interest or an extremely small proportion of
assets to conduct high risk investments, while the majority
of assets are used for fixed return investments, which means
the value of the fund will not be lower than its guaranteed
price regardless of the market decline in which the fund
is invested, thereby achieving capital preservation (i.e. the
Constant Proportion Portfolio Insurance (CPPI) investment
strategy). In terms of the entire capital preservation fund
market, there is not a single fund that was unable to preserve
its capital at the maturity date.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In the meantime, the Group assisted a number of
construction and engineering construction enterprises which
met certain qualifications in their business expansion by
issuing “Bid bonds, performance bonds and prepayment
bonds” to them. As at 31 December 2016, the balance of
these non-financing guarantee businesses were RMB2,691.9
million, representing an increase of RMB1,482.6 million or
122.6% as compared with RMB1,209.3 million as at 31
December 2015.

Risk management strategies 2 B R B

TRENARFERAEBERERERS

HERRRESER:

The following table sets forth the major asset quality indicators of
the SME lending business of the Group as at the years indicated:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LLEE

2016 2015 Change
20164 20154 =

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BREBEEAEIN MARBBEETIIR) 28 Ea %
Default rate” REZRO 1.6% 1.9% (0.3)
Default payments EHNZ 386.0 489.5 21.1)
Guarantees released BB ER 23,467.7 25,685.3 (8.6)
Provision rate® BiE=E 1.1% 1.5% (0.4)
Provisions for guarantee losses BREBEEES 350.6 390.3 (10.2)
Total outstanding guarantees BIERREE 30,630.9 25,982.8 17.9

balance
Loss ratio® BREO 0.9% 1.5% (0.6)
Impairment losses for receivables  JEUKE A

for default payments BEREERK 213.7 376.2 (43.2)
Guarantees released TR R AR 23,467.7 25,685.3 (8.6)
Recovery rate® ] Uy b =@ 40.4% 16.5% 23.9
Recovered amount o & 5 156.0 81.0 92.6
Default payments [ERONNEN 386.0 489.5 21.1)
Leverage ratio® BERBRKEHO 4.8 4.4 0.4
Financing guarantee liability EEERE TR 19,175.1 16,784.0 14.2
Net assets of the credit EREREBIEE

guarantee business 4,035.2 3,841.5 5.0
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED T

Notes:

Default payments made on default borrower’s behalf divided by
guarantee released.

Provisions for guarantee losses divided by the balance of the
outstanding guarantees. The provision rate indicates the level of
reserve we set aside for our guarantee portfolio.

Impairment losses for receivables for default payments divided by
guarantee released.

Recovered amount divided by default payments made on default
borrower’s behalf.

The outstanding balance of financing guarantees divided by net
assets of our credit guarantee business.

Since 2015, the Group has been conforming to the trend in

economic development and population concentration, following

the national strategy-oriented approach for regional development

and improving the plan for the differential distribution of regional

assets. The Group always continues to apply the general

principles of risk management that aim to “Focus on quality and

seek progress while maintaining stability; adjust the structure

and enhance quality and efficiency; manage by classification and

engage in bottom-line thinking; and optimize models and carry

out transformation and upgrading”.

Focus on quality and seek progress while maintaining
stability: We conduct thorough investigation and
evaluation of existing customers, strengthen post-guarantee
management, increase the frequency and strength of post-
guarantee management, guard against and mitigate risk at
earlier stage, enhance support to customers who performed
their obligations, in order to reduce the default risk of
customers to the greatest extent. For new customers, in the
market survey phase, we raise the threshold of credits for
customers, and strengthen the extent of on-site investigation
and management of uncertain risks. Meanwhile, the Group
further raised all staff’s awareness of risk management by
fully implementing the administrative rules for distribution of
performance-based bonus after the “discharge of guarantee
liabilities”.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Adjust the structure and enhance quality and
efficiency: We preferred to select the consumer industry
that has a nature of certain growth and the manufacturing
of clear emerging market spaces. Meanwhile, the Group
are determined to withdraw from the surplus industry with
relatively high inventory pressure as well as the industry
with low efficiency of resource allocation. We vigorously
developed new product offerings in various fields covering
the capital market, property finance, construction finance
and supply chain finance as well as loans to rural areas
(ZBMME) . In 2015 and 2016, the Group withdrew its
investment from a total of 4,700 customers and progressively
exited from the real estate industry, the metal smelting
industry and other high-risk industries.

Manage by classification and engage in bottom-
line thinking: Based on new and existing inventories, we
controlled the differences in the number of old and new
financial institutions, and set up portfolio quota control by
customer, product, industry and other dimensions, and
continued to strengthen whole-process management based
on the principles of authenticity.

Optimize models and carry out transformation and
upgrading: We converted the single-customer credit risk
assessment and credit policy into a supply chain financial
model based on “core enterprises and core products”;
executed guidance programmes for specific businesses;
continued to implement the scheme on “one policy for one
place and differentiated management”; and advanced risk
management policies, guidelines and initiatives forward
to product design, customer selection and process
management.
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The total amount of default payments paid on behalf of
default customers of the Group was RMB386.0 million
in 2016, representing a decrease of RMB103.5 million or
21.1% as compared with RMB489.5 million in 2015. The
overall default rate of the Group shows the quality of the
Group’s guarantee portfolio. In 2016, the Group’s default
rate was 1.6%, representing a decrease of 0.3 percentage
points as compared with 1.9% in 2015. The decrease was
mainly because that the Group conducted a comprehensive
screening review of existing customers and enhanced
post-guarantee management as well as the corresponding
management frequency and efforts, Meanwhile, the Group
further raised all staff’s awareness of risk management by
fully implementing the administrative rules for distribution of
performance-based bonus after the “discharge of guarantee
liabilities”. Given the short term (mainly within 18 months)
of loans and credit guarantees provided by the Group to its
customers, the aforesaid measures led to gradually reduced
credit risk exposure of the Group’s overall asset portfolio,
and relevant effectiveness was fully achieved in 2015 and
2016, as evidenced by the declining provision for impairment
of its assets.

As at 31 December 2016, the original amount of the Group’s
receivables for default payments was RMB1,373.1 million,
corresponding to the balance of impairment provisions at
RMB743.8 million. As at 31 December 2016, the provision
rate (allowance for default payment receivables/receivable
for default payments) was 54.2%, representing a downward
trend as compared with 57.1% as at 31 December 2015.
The Group made evaluation on withdrawal possibility of
receivables for default payments mainly based on the reverse
mortgage provided by borrowers, and compared possible
withdrawal amount with the amount of default payments to
incorporate the balance into the impairment losses of the
current period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For customers that defaulted, the Group stepped up
management on collateral and appropriation of non-
performing assets so as to rapidly recoup funds. In 2016,
the Group recovered RMB156.0 million from defaulting
customers; thanks to the Group’s effective management, the
recovery rate of credit guarantee business improved from
16.5% in 2015 to 40.4% in 2016.

The provision rate of the Group’s credit guarantee business
is used to calculate the provision for potential losses based
on our total guaranteed balance. Given the increasing
downward pressure on the domestic economy, the Group
still adopted prudent accounting estimate strategy. As at
31 December 2016, the provision rate of the Group’s credit
guarantee business was 1.1%, representing a decline of
0.4 percentage points as compared with 1.5% as at 31
December 2015. The decrease was mainly because the
proportion of bond guarantee and guarantee for capital
preservation funds whose credit risks are relatively low to the
total product portfolio rose from 47.9% as at 31 December
2015 to 60.6% as at 31 December 2016, which made
potential risk of credit guarantee portfolios have changed.

As at 31 December 2016, net assets of credit guarantee
business was RMB4,035.2 million, representing an increase
of RMB1983.7 million or 5.0% as compared with RMB3,841.5
million as at 31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group’s financing guarantee balance was RMB19,175.1
million, representing an increase of RMB2,391.1 million or
14.2% as compared with RMB16,784.0 million as at 31
December 2015. Therefore, the leverage ratio was 4.8 as at
31 December 2016 (as at 31 December 2015: 4.4).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWED

Distribution of collateral for guarantee business

The following table sets forth the distribution of the collateral of
the Group’s outstanding guarantee business (excluding capital
preservation fund guarantees) as at the dates indicated:

BREBNEEFRND M

TR AR B HMBRRAESERN
BEREGERNNEERY D HBER:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2016 2015
2016 2015%F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBEFEHEIN UARBEETIIR) 28 14548 88 % Ea] 15 48 58 %
Unsecured guarantee EIRRER 11,061.8 49.4 8,562.1 46.0
Secured guarantee BHEFER 11,313.9 50.6 10,045.0 54.0
- Land and buildings —THREF 6,515.7 29.2 5,944.9 31.9
— Accounts receivable and — [ UL BR 3R R iR i 4,798.2 21.4 4,100.1 22.1
equity interests
Total &5t 22,375.7 100.0 18,607.1 100.0

As there was greater downward pressure on macro-economy,
the Group proactively adjusted the structure of our guarantee
business and curtailed and exited from the high-risk sectors
such as real estate industry in an orderly manner. In respect
of traditional financing guarantee business, we continuously
enhanced the management of guarantees and increased the
proportion of guarantees in the overall credit granted, thereby
reducing our credit risk exposure in single customers. However,
for the supply-chain integrated financial service solution which
is based on the “Cash flow, information stream” and targets at
“Core enterprises”, the Group was still adherent to operating
principle of “Trust, Simplicity, Happiness” to serve customers
with higher efficiency. For the bond guarantee business and
capital preservation fund business with lower credit risks, their
proportions in the whole product portfolios increased to 60.6%
as at 31 December 2016 from 47.9% as at 31 December
2015, which led to changes in the potential risks of the credit
guarantee portfolio, thereby reducing the credit guarantee
risk. The unsecured guarantee projects are mainly related to
capital preservation fund guarantees and supply-chain finance
guarantees..
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWmED

BREBNTEDIM

Industry distribution of the guarantee business

The following table sets forth the industry distribution of the TRETARERARRESTESMIE

guarantee business as at the dates indicated: W
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREEFHIIN RAREEETLIIR) 8 BB TRE IS AREE%
Capital preservation RAESER 8,255.2 27.0 7,375.7 28.4

fund guarantees
Construction industry BREE 7,353.7 24.0 6,254.4 24.0
Household goods RE 3,872.9 12.6 2,007.9 7.7
Commercial services HE 3,370.6 11.0 3,637.8 14.0
Public facilities investment and NHEEEEHEEIR 3,230.0 10.5 925.0 3.6

management
Manufacturing and BERMIZE 2,938.7 9.6 3,797.1 14.7

processing industry
Others HAb 1,609.8 5.3 1,984.9 7.6
Total &t 30,630.9 100.0% 25,982.8 100.0

We persisted with the concept of “Industry diversification”
to avoid over reliance on a single industry. Also, in order to
effectively diversify risk, our credit guarantee business focused
on the principle of “Catering to the livelihood of people and
providing concrete services to SMEs”, to provide active support
for the development of SMEs. In 2016, the guarantees business
mainly concentrated in the capital preservation fund guarantee,
construction industry, the household goods, commercial services,
public facilities investment and management, manufacturing and
processing industry and other industries, which accounted for
27.0%, 24.0%, 12.6%, 11.0%, 10.5%, 9.6% and 5.3% of the
guarantee business of the Group respectively. There was no over-
reliance on a single industry and the situation remained relatively
stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BN WD

Distribution of guarantees by risk exposure

The following table sets forth the distribution of outstanding
guarantee balances by risk exposure as at the dates indicated:

ZEBRBOE T WIEREED

TR AR B BRE i O &80 # 5E
REEHRBED M

As at 31 December

M12831H
2016 2015
20165 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBAEZIHEIN UARBEFBETLIIR) T8  hEEY% Ea 1548 58 %
Up to RMB3 million 0ZEAREIEETT 2,435.5 8.0 2,278.5 8.8
Over RMB3 million to ARBESHBIILA L
RMBS5 million EARBSAEETT 1,669.5 5.5 2,434.3 9.4
Over RMB5 million to ARESHEITU E
RMB10 million EAREI0BETT 2,200.6 7.2 2,989.8 11.5
Over RMB10 million to AREEA0EE LU L
RMB30 million EARBI0EET 2,714.8 8.9 3,130.7 12.0
Over RMB30 million AREEI0EE T L 21,610.5 70.4 15,149.5 58.3
Total &5t 30,630.9 100.0 25,082.8 100.0

As the Group continued to focus on the cooperation with quality
SME customers, it also enhanced cooperation with quality
companies such as “Top 100 Companies”, industry leading
companies and government institutions. As at 31 December
2016, outstanding balance for SME customers with a guaranteed
amount below RMB10 million was RMB6,305.6 million,
accounting for 20.7% of the outstanding guarantee balance,
representing a decline of 9.0 percentage points as compared
with the proportion as at 31 December 2015. The decrease was
mainly because the growing of new customer group and the
promotion of new business model lag behind in the transformation
and upgrading of business model. For single projects with
amounts exceeding RMB10 million, 76.3% were guarantees
provided for bonds issue and capital preservation funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the distribution of the remaining
maturity of the guarantee business as at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

TREFI PR B EE R E TSR R 2 AR
BB :

As at 31 December

12A31H
2016 2015
20164 20154

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBEFTHEN UARETELIIR) & 14 48 85 % Ea 15 48 58 %
Due within six months 61E A LA R 5,429.2 17.7 6,190.3 23.8
Due over six months up to 6 A A E=14

12 months 7,645.0 25.0 10,140.2 39.0
Due over one year up to 1F A EZE2F

two years 5,966.9 19.5 4,449.3 17.2
Due over two years up to 2F LA FE3F

three years 837.1 2.7 656.9 2.5
Due over three years 3F L F 10,752.7 35.1 4,546.1 17.5
Total ast 30,630.9 100.0  25,982.8 100.0

The Group focuses on providing short-term guarantees to
minimize our risk exposure. As at 31 December 2016, the
percentage of outstanding guarantee liabilities with a period of
over 1 year increased significantly as compared with that as at
31 December 2015 mainly due to the increase in the percentage
of outstanding bond guarantee liability. Among the projects with
a guarantee period of over 1 year, 84.3% of the projects are the
guarantee provided by the Group for bonds issue and capital
preservation funds. The bond guarantee projects fall due in a
term of not more than 7 years, for most of them, issuers began to
settle the principal in batches from the third year. In the terms of
individual bond balance, the outstanding guarantee liabilities will
demonstrate a dropping trend.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BN WD

Channel establishment

The Group continued to reinforce the establishment of
cooperation channels with various financial institutions and have
entered into Strategic Cooperation Agreements with various
banks and financial service companies for broader development
of guarantee business. In 2016, the Group kept strengthening
liguidity management, maintained good solvency and won
support from many financial institutions. As at 31 December
2016, the Group has cooperated with 60 banks and was granted
over RMB40.0 billion of credit. The Group has also cooperated
with more than 40 non-bank financial institutions, and was
granted over RMB20 billion of credit. Of which, 7 new institutions
were newly added in 2016, acquiring new credit up to RMB2.3
billion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the top ten credit granting banks:

BEEERWED T

TREFAT TR RERT:

Item Cooperating bank Credit granting method Amount of credit granted
5 SERTT BEAR REHEE
1 China Construction Bank Total credit RMB4.0 billion
BERRT BEERE R1EARB40E
2 Chongging Rural Commercial Bank Independent credit RMB4.0 billion
BERNEERT B R R1EARB40E
3 Postal Savings Bank of China Total credit RMB2.4 billion
B ED IR T BEERE BEARB24E
4 Bank of Tianjin Total credit RMBZ2.0 billion
RAERIT BEERE RiEARB20ME
5 Bank of Ningxia Independent credit RMB1.5 billion
EERTT B R BREARBI5E
6 Bank of Chongging Total credit RMB1.0 billion
BERIT BEERE RiEARBI0E
7 Shanghai Pudong Development Bank  Total credit RMB1.0 billion
R IRTT BEERE RiEARBI0E
8 Shenyang Rural Commercial bank Independent credit RMB1.0 billion
EG R EERTT B R RiEARBI0E
9 Xi’an bank Independent credit RMB1.0 billion
P RT BURE RiEARBI0E
10 Nanjing bank Independent credit RMBO.7 billion
A RIRTT B R BREARBTE

THRBHA (R - (13 HREBE N
B - bR R £ IR B 3
Pl T ARG

By constantly expanding cooperation channels, the Group
recorded a stable development of the guarantee business,
providing favorable conditions for the growth of the scale of the
guarantee business of the Group.

Annual Report 2016
L P



Management Discussion and Analysis

B WD

Market coverage

The Group’s credit guarantee network, consisting of 4 credit
guarantee subsidiaries and 26 credit guarantee branch offices,
has provided credit guarantee business in 22 regions/provinces
across China, including Chongqging, Sichuan, Yunnan, Hubei,
Shaanxi, Gansu, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Beijing, Tianjin,
Hebei, Shandong, Jiangsu, Shanghai, Anhui, Hunan, Guizhou,
Guangxi, Guangdong, Fujian and Zhejiang.

The following table sets forth the Group’s guarantee amounts by
geographical regions as for the dates indicated:

TEEE

REEEBAR(E B ERKE QB k26K
ERERD THBAKNERERBHRN
hE22ME R, A R ERERER
BREEE - W - E/ 4 BRAE-HE
ERETEMEE AR RE AL I
R I LB 2@ #Hm &M EA-
BER - BEMTL -

TREHINAR B AEBE LB
DERTE:

As at 31 December

12831H
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBAEZHEN UARBEFETIIR) TH  hEE% Ear 15 4B BE %
Beijing bl 8,323.9 27.2 9,364.9 36.0
Chongging HE 4,122.4 13.5 6,845.2 26.4
Jiangsu JLER 3,951.7 12.9 3,565.1 13.7
Liaoning gl 3,004.3 9.8 2,190.2 8.4
Hunan ilEa] 2,048.8 6.7 365.4 1.4
Liaoning B 1,718.7 5.6 1,611.5 6.2
Others H ity 7,461.1 24.3 2,040.5 7.9
Total At 30,630.9 100.0 25,982.8 100.0

With our gradual brand building in the domestic capital market,
we began to vigorously develop guarantee business in the bond
market. In 2016, we began to conduct debt guarantee business
in areas including Suzhou, Sichuan and Hunan where our
outstanding guarantee liabilities experienced growth.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MICRO AND SMALL LOANS BUSINESS

Micro and small loan business products

At present, the Group provides services to the customers
through subsidiaries established in Chongqging, Chengdu, Tianjin,
Shenyang, Nanning, Changchun, Xi’an, Kunming, Guiyang,
Nanjing, Harbin and Shenzhen. The small loan companies in
Chongging, Sichuan, Shenyang and Harbin have acquired the
qualification for internet lending. This has broken the previous
regional restriction. The Group now has the qualification for
lending in all regions across the mainland China, which is
beneficial to the further expansion of credit loan business of the
Group.

Since 2015, due to the growing downward pressure on Chinese
economy and complicated economic conditions, the credit
default risk of some SME customers increased. Under such
circumstances, in 2016, the Group proactively made strategic
transformation and adjustment under the overall business
strategy of “diversifying model, upgrading and transformation”
and explored consumer finance and platform finance business
when upgrading traditional micro and small business. Through
online and off-line cross-field integration, the Group established
standard, concentrated and diversified business model, further
expanded customer access channel and provided comprehensive
financial service for small and micro— enterprises and individual
clients. As at 31 December 2016, the platform finance platform
and the consumer finance platform business of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1.67 billion, representing 31.0%
of the total outstanding balance of loans, delivering initial success
of the adjusted business model.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWED

Following the adjustment of the business model and its
transformation and upgrading, the outstanding balance of the
Group’s traditional micro and small loan business recorded
a gradually decline trend, through the cultivation and market
development in the first half of 2016, new business segments
entered into a rapid development trend in the second half of
2016, which led to an increase trend in the outstanding balance
of SME lending. As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding
balance of the micro and small loans was RMB5,375.2 million,
representing an increase of RMB997.7 million, or 22.8%, as
compared with RMB4,377.5 million as at 31 December 2015.
Therefore, the gearing ratio of the micro and small loan business
as at 31 December 2016 (outstanding balance of the micro and
small loans/paid-in capital of the micro and small loan business)
was 1.6 (as at 31 December 2015:1.4).

The Group offers various micro and small loan products with
different and flexible terms that suit different customers. In 2016,
the Group’s principal micro and small loan products newly
launched include the following:

e Fangjie Loan: it is a secured small loan product. Its
target customer is the individual that provide real estate as
mortgage. Principal of this loan product ranges between
RMBO0.1 million and RMB3.0 million, and the expiry date is
between 1 and 36 months;

e Lexiang Jin: it is an unsecured micro loan product. Its target
customers are official employees of national administrative
organizations or units, public schools or hospitals and
listed companies, and those individuals that have housing
mortgage, social security, retirement fund and fixed salary in
banking card. Principal of this loan product generally ranges
between RMB10,000 and RMB500,000, and its expiry date
is 1 to 36 months;

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

e Yun Car Loan: it is a small secured loan product. Its target
customers are individuals who have intention to buy new
and used cars. Principal of such product generally ranges
between RMBO0.03 million to RMBO0.8 million. Its expiry date
is 12 to 36 months;

e Pingtai Loan: it is a small loan product. Its target
customers are the small and micro companies or individual
consumers. Pingtai Loan will usually involve external
partners. Participation method includes the external partners
assisting us on marketing, providing historical operation and
consumption records of customers and assist in controlling
of risk. Principal of such loan product generally ranges
between RMB0.001 million to RMBO0.3 million. Its expiry date
is 0.4 to 36 months;

° Loan on Fast Moving Consumer Goods: it is a small
loan product. Its target customers are the national agents
of famous fast moving consumer goods brand. Principal of
such loan product generally ranges between RMB0.06 million
to RMB2.0 million. Its expiry date is 1 to 12 months.

The following table sets forth the capital base and outstanding
balances of the micro and small loan business as at the dates
indicated:

BEEERWED T

e EHHE: ABEH/|EERER- R
BEHEARBHE  —FEMEA It
HERAE—BNRARBI0BLE
AR H80.08 L BIH B N 12536
& A

s FARE: RIHEXRER RBHEA
PEEESBEABEE-FEE—R
HWENSEIEREN2E 28T
BIEBRINDEIER N SR EEET
B IREEPE LA BB
B EHERE WERERAS —
BN FARE0ABITEARKI0.08
7T EIERE N F0.45)361E A ¢

o WHE: BIBERER BREHEA
MEPFEREET2ERER - LE
RE@AE BN T ARK6.08TE
AR #200.08 7T B8 H M F13212
@A -

TREINRPRABHNHEREFTNE R
AR MAREER:

As at 31 December

12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015
(REBEFHIN UARBEETIIR) 20164 20154
Paid-in capital of the micro and INEBEREBREWE R 3,450.0 3,150.0
small loan business
Outstanding balance of micro and NRE FRERER 5,375.2 4,377.5
small loans
Leverage ratio EIR & 1.6 1.4

As at 31 December 2016, the capital base of the Group’s micro
and small loans business was RMB3.45 billion, representing an
increase of RMBO0.3 billion or 9.5% as compared with RMB3.15
billion as at 31 December 2015.

R2016F 128310 AEB/NMERER
BB ARER B ARKEI45ETT 20155
12A31AEARER AREI15ETIEMA
R¥3.0f87T  1189.5% °
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The following table sets forth the average interest and handling
fee rate of the micro and small loan business as for the periods
indicated:

TRUFIAFRER M REB T
HERFEEE:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2016 2015 Change

20165F 20154 )

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %

(BRBBEEAEN UARBBEETLIR) 28 Ea %
Micro and small loans PNRERK

Interest and handling fee income FMERFEBRA 597.3 685.5 (12.9)

Average outstanding balance of NNRE SR A RREER 4,057.2 4,171.6 (2.7)

micro and small loans
Average interest and handling FF B R FEE K 14.7% 16.4% (1.7)

fee rate

In 2016, the interest and handling fee rate of the Group’s micro
and small loan business was RMB597.3 million, representing
a decrease of RMB88.2 million or 12.9% as compared with
RMB685.5 million in 2015. The decrease in interest and handling
fee income was mainly due to the decrease in both average
interest and handling fee rate of micro and small loans and its
monthly average outstanding balance.

The interest and handling fee rates of the Group’s micro and
small loans depend on various factors, including credit and
category of the borrower, whether the loan is secured, and the
quality of the collateral and the maturity date of the loan. In
response to the call from the government to practically alleviate
the problem of expensive financing facing SMEs, the Group under
the circumstance of continuous declining in external financing
cost lowered fee rates of the micro and small loan business.
Meanwhile, the Group proactively adjusted the type of micro
and small loan business, expand the consumer loan business,
commercial paper pledge loan business and commercial bill
discount business with relatively lower credit risks and fee rates.
In 2016, the interest and handling fee rate of the Group’s micro
and small loan business ranged from 11.0% to 21.6%. which
showed a slight decline of around 5% in pricing strategy in 2015.
The aforesaid measures led to 14.7% of the average interest and
handling fee rate of the micro and small loan business, which
showed a declined trend as compared with 16.4% in 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2016, the Group’s average outstanding balance of micro
and small loans was 4,057.2 million, which showed a slight
decline trend as compared with RMB4,171.6 million in 2015.
The decrease of the average balance of the micro and small
loan business was mainly because the Group proactively made
strategic transformation and adjustment in 2016 with “Diversifying
model, upgrading and transformation” as overall business strategy
and explored consumer finance and platform finance business
when upgrading traditional micro and small business. Through
online and off-line cross-field integration, the Group established
standard, concentrated and diversified business model, further
expanded customer access channel and provided comprehensive
financial service for small and micro— enterprises and individual
clients. Following such adjustment to the business model and
the transformation and upgrading, the outstanding balance of
the Group’s traditional micro and small loan business recorded a
gradually declined trend since the beginning of 2016, while new
business segments were still at the cultivation stage in the first
half of 2016, and thus generated only insignificant revenue until
the second half of 2016 when rapid growth thereof commenced.
As a result of such “Rise after decline” business deployment
model, the monthly average balance of the micro and small loan
assets amounted to RMB4,057.2 million in 2016, representing a
slight decrease as compared with that of 2015.

The following table sets forth the distribution of guarantee
methods of the micro and small loan business as for the dates
indicated:

BEEERWED T

20165 AKEB/NHMERABABKBEARA
R¥4,057 28 87w 8201550 AR
4171.6E BT 2B TREES - NRER
¥BATHBETREIERAALAER
2016F A (2= HAAR]| REBKE
R EIRE TSR R FEA T
RESIHMEBNRE BRAIREES
MANTFECRHES BREGLRTERR
& EEREEL SR ZTEHEBE
XN E—PHERRERE  B/MIEEMNE
ABFPRBGESBRY - EHEXAR AR
REBAARESANEREH/ NNHERED
HMEE2016FVIHIR 2B P NRES |
R EBIRILIE2016%F £ FHENE
BH BAEK/) 20166 N EF AR
EARRERLED ERAKES] %
R PE R FB2016F NI EZEEE A
FHHEAEAREL057.2HE T 82015
FAEHYHRBE/NIETFED:

TREIINXFRB B/ NMIEREBRE S
ADMER:

As at 31 December

12A31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBAEFTHEN UARBEBTETIIR) TEE  1hEE% LB (HAEEE%
Credit loan ERER 1,840.9 34.2 1,442.6 33.0
Guaranteed loans REERK 3,015.5 56.1 2,513.2 57.4
- Guaranteed by intra-group —HmEBEARRIME
Guarantors R AR 851.6 15.8 972.8 22.2
— Guaranteed by non-related ~HBYE=F
Parties ERAER 2,163.9 40.3 1,540.4 35.2
Secured loans BEAER 518.8 9.7 421.7 9.6
Total &5t 5,375.2 100.0 4,377.5 100.0
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Due to healthy business policies, as at 31 December 2016,
the distribution of guarantee methods of the micro and small
loan business remained stable as compared with that as at 31
December 2015.

Structure of the micro and small loans business

The micro and small loans business developed moderately. As
at 31 December 2016, balance of the micro and small loans
business reached RMB5,375.2 million, representing an increase
of RMB997.7 million or 22.8% as compared with RMB4,377.5
million as at 31 December 2015.

The following table sets forth the industry distribution of the micro
and small loans business as for the dates indicated:

ENREMNEBHX

' R2016F12 A 31

B /MIEREBORED XD MERE

201512 A1 B RIFBEE -

PMRERERBER

J

Ti‘%zﬁ']

MEREBERBUATE - H2016512 A 31

N E R ER SRR ER AR KS5,375.2
E%E’ﬁ2015¢12ﬂ31 HeAFE AR
4,377 5B BTG MARKI7T.7THETT - 15
1§22.8% °

oS

As at 31 December

KA B H R E R ER T

12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREEFHIN UARBEETIR) 8 1HAEE% TEE IGAEER %
Personal consumption loans BABEER 1,668.7 31.0 - -
Wholesale and retail fHERETE 1,898.0 35.3 2,336.7 53.4
Manufacturing and processing RERMIE 739.1 13.8 910.1 20.8
Construction BEE 519.0 9.7 518.2 11.8
Household goods e 109.2 2.0 69.5 1.6
Others E A 441.2 8.2 543.0 12.4
&5t 5,375.2 100.0 4,377.5 100.0

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of industry structure of the micro and small loans
business, the Group focused on the principle of “catering to
the livelihoods of people and providing concrete services to
SME” to provide active support for the the financing needs of
SMEs and individual customers. In 2016, the Group proactively
made strategic transformation and adjustment with “Diversifying
model through upgrading and transformation” as overall
business strategy and explored consumer finance and platform
finance business when upgrading traditional micro and small
business. Through online and off-line cross-field integration,
the Group established standard, concentrated and diversified
business model, further expanded customer access channel
and provided comprehensive financial service for small and
micro— enterprises and individual clients. As at 31 December
2016, the platform finance platform and the consumer finance
platform business of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB1.67 billion, representing 31.0% of the total outstanding
balance of loans, delivering initial success of the adjusted
business model. Excluding the consumer loan business. Except
the personal consumption loans, the traditional micro and small
loans business was mainly concentrated on the wholesale and
retail, manufacturing and processing, construction, household
goods and other industries, which account for 35.3%, 13.8%,
9.7%, 2.0% and 8.2% respectively of the micro and small loans
business of the Group.

BEEERWED T

TN HEREBNTREERE L NEBRE
BB RA A EEINES BE
FHNEIFRPEEREREAZESHA
RET o AEE2016F WA [LFHE - A
FHR | AR RS TEIRETERS S AL Y
B EEAARES/ N REBORE  ER
MEEESCHANFTESMER BRARE
BTEAREG BEEEL SRt -Z2x
IEWEBRN - E—PHEEEERE B/D
MEEMAAZEPRELEESBRE &
£2016F12H31H A5 E T &SRl KB
BEoRTe¥BNBENARKI6TEL
G E FERER1.0%  EBEXNFENEK
M-BREHBEEREL ERIMEREL
TEIHETEZRRMBERTE BB RN
T BEEX GERHMITE HBEE
B/ E R EKHSE5.3% 183.8%9.7%
2.0%/8.2% °
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the business
exposure of micro and small loans as for the dates indicated:

TREFIRFRBE/NMIEREBRAD
(DI

As at 31 December

128318
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBRAEFBHEIN UAREBEILIR) T 1 45 38 % Ea 15 42 B8 %
Up to RMB100,000 0= ARE10E T 1,505.1 28.0 174.6 4.0
Over RMB100,000 to ARB10OBTTA LR
RMB500,000 ANRE508 T 1,020.5 19.0 1,216.5 27.8
Over RMB500,000 to ARBS0E T LR
RMB1 million ARB1EE T 897.4 16.7 787.6 18.0
Over RMB1 million to ARB1BELA LR
RMB3 million ARBIHE T 804.5 15.0 1,156.5 26.4
Over RMB3 million ARBIBEEITLA L 1,147.7 21.3 1,042.3 23.8
&5t 5,375.2 100.0 4.377.5 100.0

The Group devoted its efforts to serving quality SME and vast
individual customers. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
outstanding balance of micro and small loans of customers with
loans under RMB3 million was RMB4,227.5 million, accounting
for 78.7% of the outstanding balance, representing a slight
increase of 2.5 percentage points as compared with 76.2% as
at 31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
outstanding balance of micro and small loans of customers with
loans under RMBO0.1 million was RMB1,505.1 million, accounting
for 28.0% of the outstanding balance, representing a substantial
growth of 24.0 percentage points as compared with 4.0% as
at 31 December 2015. The additions of outstanding balance of
such loans were mainly derived from the collaboration between
the Group and internet finance and consumer finance platforms
in 2016, through which the Group provided individual customers
with individually insignificant loans in its consumer credit business
by taking advantage of the consumer scenarios they provided.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the outstanding TEREIARTBRZEWEE S NEE
balance of micro and small loans by geographical region as for HEREE DM
the dates indicated:

As at 31 December

12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREEFHIIN AAREEETLIR) 28  HEE% TR IGAEEE%
Chongging E£F 2,010.8 37.4 1,788.2 40.9
Chengdu B AR 1,181.4 22.0 748.8 17.2
Harbin BERE 936.8 17.4 123.4 2.8
Shenyang &S 376.8 7.0 320.2 7.3
Nanning A 294.0 5.5 305.5 7.0
Tianjin RE 213.6 4.0 264.7 6.0
Shenzhen el 147.6 2.7 - -
Nanjing B2 133.6 2.5 167.4 3.8
Guiyang &5 74.4 1.4 153.1 3.5
Xi'an [iik:S 4.9 0.1 260.3 5.9
Kunming = 0.5 - 194.4 4.4
Changchun r&H 0.8 - 51.5 1.2
Total &5t 5,375.2 100.0 4,377.5 100.0

The small loan companies in Chongging, Sichuan, Shenyang UREE - M) %G BEREN/ ) BER

and Harbin have acquired the qualification for internet lending. NAIBEES [EBERE ]| ME® Bt
Therefore, the scale of the small loan business of above LA B E B/ N E R EEREY BB AIE
mentioned regions has an substantial increase. As the business ERER -BR ERER/NEERR A
operations of the aforesaid four small loan companies have KSR G ANEBE B S
broken through geographical constraints, the Group planned to R B EEN=FEERLQA#
de-registered the three small loan companies located in Xi’an, 1758 LAEBEFEBEER.

Kunming and Changchun, respectively, aiming at utilizing the
existing capital in a rational manner.

Annual Report 2016
“E-AEFERS

43



44

Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWED

Customer base

In 2016, the Group cooperated with a total of 12 internet
finance and consumer finance platforms to carry out consumer
loan business. The number of customers served was around
270,000, and the outstanding balance of loans was approximately
RMB1.67 billion. On this basis, the per capita outstanding
balance of loans amounted to approximately RMB5,000.0.
Excluding the consumer credit business, the Group served a total
of approximately 10,000 small and micro loan customers.

ERER

R20164F - AN B KT 1218 B B R & R
FHETRMFERIFRRBEBEEXY
RBZFHENRTEL  ERBRBEHA
RE16.7R T ADERBBHR/ARE
50000t BEHBEEXRK AEEXHX
R NMEEREPBBHO/IESR-

Maturity of business EBREeREE A
The following table indicates remaining maturity of the outstanding TREBIRFTR BN EE R BREFR T
balance of micro and small loans as at the dates indicated: BHER
As at 31 December
128331H
2016 2015
201645 20154

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBAEZHEMN UARBEFBETIIR) T8 hEE% Ea 15 42 58 %
Due within three months 31E A A 2 &1 1,742.2 32.4 1,665.0 38.0
Due between three months and 3% 61& A 2 A

six months 1,553.1 28.9 1,309.1 29.9
Due between six months and 61 A 214 2 5

one year 1,390.3 25.9 1,363.9 31.2
Due after than a year 14 1% BI| 51 689.6 12.8 39.5 0.9

&5t 5,375.2 100.0 4,377.5 100.0

The Group focuses on providing short-term loans to minimize the
Group’s risk exposure and accelerate liquidity and, as a result,
substantially all of the Group’s loans have a maturity of within
one year. The additions of loans with a maturity of over one year
were mainly consumer loans, including loans for consumption
of second-hand vehicles, household appliances, education and
learning and tourism.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Entrusted loans

We also provide entrusted loans to fulfill the demands of
customers of receiving short-term financing and relatively large
amount loans (mainly small-to-medium loans between RMBO0.5
million to RMB50.0 million) within a short period of time.

In the entrusted loan business, the Group’s guarantee subsidiary
and asset management company use their own funds to
commence business of transfer and repurchase of loan benefit
rights and reinvesting in the entrusted loan business. The
entrusted loan business is also one of the Group’s liquidity
management measures, whereby the Group is able to actively
adjust the size of entrusted loan portfolio and manage the funds
available.

The Group acts as the principal in entrusted loan arrangements
and deposit capital in intermediary banks, which will lend the
relevant amounts to the ultimate borrowers. After receiving the
principal and interest of the loan, the intermediary bank will return
the relevant amounts to the Group.

The following table sets forth the main operating data of the
entrusted loan business of the Company as for the periods
indicated:

BEEERWED T

EHER

AEEERHEAETAREEFPFER
FRAESENRERINSHABRAER
ERX(EENMRARBOSEETEARK
50.0B & THFPREEF)MFER-

RAERERERBASEERBB AR
MAHEARES UREEEEQAMNMA
HEAESYRRER N #EREORER
BRABEZEBRREREZTEREBLH
BeXB ZREREBHLEAKER

MHERER — BUAKEREBREE
BRBELZAEESECNRBE R H#E
REg-

AEBELEZRAERLHTNRTEA K
SEAFNBRITHFEAES BAPNRT
BARKBAEE THREBRA -RKIE
REAERANBE FNRTEKERER
RERAEE -

TREVRAREERARBDREERER
MERLEHE:

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2016 2015 Change
20165 20154 k)
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BREBEEHEIN UARBBEETLIIR) 28 Ea %
Entrusted loans EXEX
Interest and handling MERFEBRA 365.3 432.4 (15.5)
fee income
Monthly average balance of ZAERAF YT 2,367.0 2,149.4 10.1
entrusted loans
Average interest and FHFERFEEX 15.4% 20.1% 4.7)
handling fee rate
Outstanding balance REEHTE 2,639.5 3,092.6 (14.7)
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In 2016, the interest and handling fee income generated by
the Group’s entrusted loan business was RMB365.3 million,
representing a decrease of 15.5% or RMB67.1 million as
compared with that of 2015. The decrease was mainly because
the decline rate of average interest and handling fee rate of
entrusted loan business is larger than the growth rate of average
balance. The average entrusted loans balance increased from
RMB2,149.4 million in 2015 to RMB2,367.0 million in 2016,
representing a growth of 10.1%. However in 2016, the average
interest and handling fee rate of the Group’s entrusted loan was
15.4%, showed a downward trend as compared with 20.1% in
2015. The decrease was mainly because we enhanced the credit
review standard for new customers in the credit phase, raised
the access standards for customers, selected customers with
lower risks and higher quality, the price strategy of the Group fell
accordingly.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s entrusted loans balance
was RMB2,639.5 million, representing a decrease of 14.7% or
RMB453.1 million as compared with the balance of RMB3,092.6
million as at 31 December 2015. This decrease was mainly due
to under the increasing downward pressure on the economy, the
Group proactively adjusted its business structure by investing
capital into receivables for factoring business which has lower risk
and relatively considerable returns.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Distribution of the scale of entrusted loans ZRERRES M

The following table sets forth the distribution of business TEREFAARERATRESHRO D MHIE

exposure as at the dates indicated: o
As at 31 December
12831H
2016 2015
20164 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBAEZHEIN UAREFBETLIIR) T8 1hEE% ol 145 A8 B8 %
Up to RMB5 million AR®EOE
AR 5008 7T 153.7 5.8 256.1 8.3
Over RMB5 million to AREES008B LA L&
RMB10 million AR H1,0008 7T 186.3 7.1 346.6 11.2
Over RMB10 million to AR#A1,0008 T EE
RMB30 million A R#3,0008 7T 827.1 31.3 1,056.8 34.2
Over RMB30 million to ARB3,0008 LA EE
RMB50 million AR #5,0008 7T 587.4 22.3 811.5 26.2
Over RMB50 million AR5 0008 LA B 885.0 33.5 621.6 20.1
Total &5t 2,639.5 100.0 3,092.6 100.0
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The following table sets forth the remaining maturity of entrusted
loans as at the dates indicated:

TREINR PR BB ERFEE AR 2 H
EEEPIE

As at 31 December

12831H
2016 2015
20164 20154

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBAEZHEN UARBEFETIIR) E ] 1548 55 % Ear 15 4B BE %
Due within three months 3{E A A E & 1,032.3 39.1 785.7 25.3
Due between three months and ~ 3Z61E A I i

six months 314.2 11.9 889.2 28.8
Due between six months and 61E A &= 14 5 i

one year 1,088.0 41.2 1,028.3 33.3
Due after one year 145 1% 3 87 205.0 7.8 389.4 12.6
Total &5 2,639.5 100.0 3,092.6 100.0

The Group focuses on providing short-term entrusted loans
to minimize the risk exposure and, as a result, majority of the
Group’s entrusted loans has a maturity of less than one year.

Provisions for loan losses

For the SME lending business, the Group adopted a risk
categorization method for loans according to the Guideline
for Loan Credit Risk Classification promulgated by the China
Banking Regulatory Commission to monitor the risk of the loans
and advances portfolio. Loans and advances are classified into
five categories: normal, special concern, substandard, doubtful
and loss according to the risk, of which the last three categories
are deemed as impaired loans and advances. When one or
more events have occurred proving the existence of objective
impairment evidence, and that a loss may be incurred, the loan
and advance is classified as impaired loans and advances.
Provisions for impairment losses of impaired loans and advances
will be assessed as part of a portfolio or individually according to
circumstances.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The core definitions of each loan category are as follows:

Normal:

Special concern:

Substandard:

Doubtful:

Loss:

The borrower can fulfill the terms of the loan,
and there is insufficient reason to doubt the
principal and interest of the loan cannot be
repaid in full on time.

Although the borrower is currently able to
repay the principal and interest of the loan,
there exist some factors which may have an
adverse effect on the repayment.

There is an apparent problem in the
repayment ability of the borrower who is
unable to repay the principal and interest of
the loan in full with its normal income. Some
losses may be incurred even if the guarantee
is exercised.

The borrower is unable to repay the principal
and interest of the loan in full. Relatively big
losses will be incurred even if the guarantee
is exercised.

After taking all possible measures or all
necessary legal proceedings by us, the
interest and principal cannot be recovered
or only an extremely small portion can be
recovered.

The Group regularly review the quality of individual significant

financial assets. For assets for which an allowance for impairment

loss is provided individually, the amount is determined after

assessing the incurred loss at the balance sheet date on a case-

by-case basis. In making such assessments, the Group considers

the value of collateral held and expected future cash flows from

the asset.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEWED

The following table sets forth the major asset quality indicators of TERHENAMTABBARRTRPNEEER
EBNEIBEELREEZ:

the SME lending business as at the dates indicated:

As at 31 December

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015
(REBEFHIN MARBEETLIIR) 20164 20154
Impaired loan ratio REE KR 3.3% 3.0%
- Micro and small loans —/NMEE 3.0% 3.7%
- Entrusted loans —ZEEX 3.7% 2.2%
Outstanding balance of impaired loans WEERERRE 260.9 227.5
- Micro and small loans —/NMEE 163.6 159.8
- Entrusted loans —ZEEX 97.3 67.7
Outstanding balance of loans B e 8,014.7 7,470.1
— Micro and small loans —/NMIE R 5,375.2 4,377.5
- Entrusted loans —EEEX 2,639.5 3,092.6
Provision coverage rate BEEEX 149.2% 146.1%
- Micro and small loans —/NMUE K 173.5% 150.9%
- Entrusted loans —LREX 108.4% 134.7%
Allowance for impairment losses B IO EEE 389.3 332.3
- Micro and small loans —/NMEER 283.8 241.1
- Entrusted loans —ZAEX 105.5 91.2
Outstanding balance of impaired loans BEE SRR 260.9 227.5
- Micro and small loans —/NMEER 163.6 159.8
- Entrusted loans —LREX 97.3 67.7
Provision rate BE=E 4.9% 4.4%
- Micro and small loans —/NMREFK 5.3% 5.5%
- Entrusted loans —ZEX 4.0% 2.9%

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although the downward pressure on the domestic economy
intensified, the Group improved slightly the quality of our credit
assets by easing pressures of the non-performing assets through
enhanced disposal of non-performing loans and other measures
such as write-off. In 2016, the Group wrote off loans totaling
RMB106.6 million (2015: RMB65.7 million).

At the same time, the Group proactively adjusted the type of
micro and small loan business, expanded its consumer loan
business, commercial bill discount business and commercial
paper pledged loan business with relatively low risks, leading
to a slight improvement in the quality of the Group’s credit
assets as at 31 December 2016 as compared with that as at 31
December 2015. The impaired loans ratio of the Group’s small
and micro loans dropped from 3.7% as at 31 December 2015 to
3.0% as at 31 December 2016. In 2016, the Group conducted
a comprehensive screening review on existing customers and
enhanced the management of collaterals. The Group also
strengthened safeguards in respect of customers default. As for
new customers, the Group enhanced its approval standards in
granting credits and raised the threshold of credits for customers
so as to strengthen on-site investigation of customers’ risk of
uncertainties. With the above-mentioned risk control measures
in place, the assets quality of the new entrusted loans in 2016
improved significantly as compared with the previous years. The
drop of the impaired loans ratio of small and micro loans and the
increase in the impaired loans ratio of entrusted loans have jointly
led to the increase of the impaired loans ratio of SME lending from
3.0% as at 31 December 2015 to 3.3% as at 31 December 2016.

In 2016, the Group continued to adopt prudent accounting
estimates and considered the changes in loan quality. Overall
provision coverage rate went up from 146.1% as at 31 December
2015 to 149.2% as at 31 December 2016, and the provision rate
went up from 4.4% as at 31 December 2015 to 4.9% as at 31
December 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEWED T

Internet Financial Services

At the beginning of 2015, the Group established an internet
financial group. Our internet financial business and our traditional
financial business complemented each other and developed
together as an integrated group. Currently, we provide services
to clients through “Hanhua Yun”,
platform.

our asset information services

“Hanhua Yun”, our asset information services platform

“Hanhua Yun” platform (www.hanhuayun.com) is the first financial
asset information services platform with a focus on inclusive
finance in the PRC developed and independently operated
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. “Hanhua Yun”
provides open, transparent, safe and highly effective financial
asset information services for financial service institutions with
strong overall competitiveness. By utilizing professional division
of labor and the principle of complimentary advantages,
Yun” platform can increase information sharing and information
flow among financial institutions, bringing a positive effect to the
enhancement of the value and expansion of inclusive financial
services and reconstruction of the value chain of inclusive finance
transactions.

“Hanhua

“Hanhua Yun” leverages on the credit technology and risk control
system developed through our 10-year dedication to developing
inclusive finance and a nationwide offline service network. The
platform conducts stringent assessment on the financial service
institution partners and select institutions with competitive
strength, standardized operations and sound management
capabilities. All financial institutions can conveniently, efficiently
and continuously issue or receive various types of quality asset
information and professional value-added services. On “Hanhua
Yun” platform, financers can continuously and steadily receive
capital at a reasonable cost from various financing channels.
Investors can obtain safer and better investment opportunities.
The problem of asymmetric information exists between financial
institutions and between financiers and investors can then be
minimized by “Hanhua Yun” while the platform can effectively
lower the borrowing risk and financing cost, and enhance
the efficiency of internet investment and financing, ultimately
benefitting financers and investors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Currently, the core services that “Hanhua Yun” provides include
account management, asset information management and asset
information matching services. We will develop value-added
services such as asset evaluation and rating, supporting services
to product design and asset-backed securities products in the
future. Currently, we provide matching services for transactions
through our dedicated channel. We will develop various types of
services such as online bids and online auction.

“Hanhua Yun”platform was launched on 28 December 2014. As
at 31 December 2016, “Hanhua Yun” platform had 85 institutional
partners. In 2016, the aggregate amount of matched transactions
was RMB17.2 billion.

Insurance Sales

Zhongli Insurance Sales Limited* (R R EEFR A F))
(“Zhongli Insurance”), a nationwide institution approved by the
China Insurance Regulatory Commission to specialize in insurance
sales, is qualified to act as an agent of insurance products sales
and engaging in internet insurance sales across China. In 2015,
the Company completed the acquisition of Zhongli Insurance
through its wholly owned subsidiary Hanhua Internet Finance
Service (Shenzhen) Limited* (% B Ei A © &R ORI BR
A@]) . As at 31 December 2016, Zhongli Insurance established
business relationship with over 50 property and life insurance
companies both at home and abroad, and it reached cooperation
intention with over 60 internet platforms to explore project
development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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“Zhangzhongbao 360", an internet insurance brand of Hanhua
Financial, is being operated by Zhongli Insurance. Upholding
the operating philosophy of “easy insurance and happy life”,
“Zhangzhongbao 360", as a platform that is fully backed by
Hanhua Financial’s advantages in terms of comprehensive
inclusive financial service resources, makes breakthroughs in
insurance service concept, service mode and service medium.
The platform is committed to providing micro-and-small
enterprises and their associated groups, as well as entrepreneurs
and their families, with inclusive insurance services that focus
on venture support and improvement of people’s livelihood.
The platform meticulously designs elaborate and professional
insurance products to take care of customers’ every need,
and it features a case-by-case, customized and mobile service
mode, which brings more transparent, simplified, practical and
convenient services to customers.

In 2016, Zhongli Insurance has accumulatively accepted 9,559
policies and covered 9,559 customers.

Financial Factoring

Chongqging Changjiang Financial Factoring Co., Ltd.
(“Changjiang Factoring”) is the first professional company
engaging in financial factoring business with approval from
financial regulatory authorities in China. It provides integrated
services of financial factoring, bill factoring, commercial factoring,
re-factoring, lease factoring and international factoring on internet
platform.

Changjiang Factoring provides financial solutions to the
existing clients. Meanwhile, it strives to promote collaboration
and consolidation of the industrial chain and facilitate orderly
development of corporations with innovative and comprehensive
financial solutions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2016, Changjiang Factoring has realized aggregated
transactions of RMB6.96 billion. As at 31 December 2016,
Changjiang Factoring has a balance of receivables for factoring
business of RMBO0.6 billion and 245 existing projects, and
achieved profit before taxation of RMB30.5 million.

Capital Investment and Management

In early 2015, the Group started to engage in capital investment
and management business. The Group worked together with
external organizations that serve SMEs to raise capital by way of
funds. We provide small capital investment services to leading
SMEs in their respective industries with stable operating and
management teams and positive growth prospect.

In 2016, the Group have successfully established 6 funds with
raised funds of RMB700.0 million in total, by cooperating with
other external investors.

Finance leasing

In the second half of 2015, the Group established the leasing
business group in Tianjin, mainly serving fields encouraged by
the state such as automobile, healthcare, energy saving and
environment protection, education, people’s livelihood and high-
end manufacturing, through flexible service modes including
leaseback, direct leasing, vendor leasing and operating lease.
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Since commencement of the leasing business in November 2015,
the leasing group has made various innovation and breakthrough
in the investment projects in the leasing industry, and will continue
to provide to clients the solutions for capacity expansion and
upgrading and asset-liability structure optimization in a specialized
and characteristic way. Meanwhile, it will assist its partners to
achieve long-term sustainable development.

In 2016, the finance leasing business of the Group has
outstanding advances of RMB330.0 million in total.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Company persisted with the principle of integrating
information technology with business strategies information
technology and formulated the informatization planning of the
Group, optimized the management structure of information
technology, established information technology infrastructure
and important information systems according to the business
strategies of the Company, ensuring the stable operations of
information systems and providing strong support for the control
and business innovation of the Group.

Information Technology Management

An informatization establishment leadership team has been set
up among senior management to coordinate and monitor major
decisions and projects, creating a normalized decision making
mechanism for informatization establishment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Informatization Planning

Based on the existing informatization plans, the Group will
push forward the formulation of a dynamic plan which clearly
defines that the focus for 2016 to 2017 should be placed on
the establishment of platforms including credit and consumption
finance business platform, partnership cluster business
platform, data analysis and management platform, private cloud
infrastructure platform, with the view to supporting strategic
implementation and reinforcing control and operating efficiency of
the Company.

The brand new credit business platform will provide more flexible
product allocation and optimization to business loans granted
to micro and small enterprises, leading to improving efficiency
and shortened business cycle. The innovative consumption
financial system will, through collaboration with various internet
platforms, provide loans to cater for different consumers and
consumer demands. The partnership cluster business platform
will be developed into a comprehensive unified platform with
fully integrated numerous business models such as guarantees,
leasing and factoring. The data analysis and management
platform will be established based on data warehouse and data
market, and will carry out comprehensive analysis and multi-
dimensional mining of information resources by employing in-
memory Bl analysis tools. The Company’s optimization and
construction of various systems will set higher requirements
for IT infrastructure and environment, and the private cloud
infrastructure platform will share the computing resource pooal,
network resource pool and storage resource pool using virtual
technology, thereby providing fundamental resources to various
system platforms in a more flexible, safer and more efficient
manner.

A number of risk control platforms including security access
system, data security system, basic environment and application
monitoring system will be introduced to optimize our risk
monitoring and prevention mechanisms, so as to improve
information security of relevant systems.
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Establishment of Information Systems

In 2016, the Company has stepped up the building of the
information system in accordance with the needs of the Group’s
management activities, business development and innovation.

In order to be in line with the development strategy of finance
business of our partners, we actively cooperated with technology
companies in the financial industry, guided the re-engineering of
the partnership cluster business platform of the Company based
on the best industrial practice of such technology companies,
and set our goal of upgrading our business system from a single
business of financing guarantee to a system platform integrating
the guarantee, leasing and factoring businesses by conducting
analysis according to the overall demands.

In order to be in line with the development strategy of our credit
business, an established market system and management
philosophy were introduced to build a brand new credit business
platform and consumption finance platform. Meanwhile, the
Company established a business docking system according
to the internet finance environment to promote the business
collaboration and automation with business partners. Specifically,
the Company and 12 business partners have jointly established
an internet credit cooperative economic circle, laying down a solid
foundation for the rapid development of its business partner base
and expansion of business channels.

The SAS data analysis platform was introduced to improve the
Company’s business data analysis capability so as to provide
accurate basis in a quick manner for decision-making of the
Company’s business strategy, and serves as a powerful tool for
subsequent data mining. In addition, ESB enterprise data bus was
introduced to formulate management and monitoring mechanisms
for the data transmission between systems within the Company
and those between the Company and its business partners,
and the relevant data interface specification was established as
a basis for subsequent construction and management of data
interface.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Establishment of Information Technology Infrastructure

In 2016, the infrastructure platform was optimized to supplement
new servers, network equipment and storage resources, and
expand the resources such as the memory and storage of
the existing infrastructure platform equipment, catering for
the development need of the Company’s business platform.
While strengthening the risk control over its hardware including
jumpserver equipment, anti-spam gateway and Security audit
equipment, we further optimized our network resources and
security assurance mechanism to improve the efficiency and
security of information transmission. In addition, with the feasibility
analysis of establishing a private cloud infrastructure platform
completed, the relevant construction work has been initiated.

Information Technology Management Capabilities

In 2016, based on the theory of software development
lifecycle, we refined the process of the approval, requirement,
design, development, testing and control during operation and
maintenance of IT projects, supplemented relevant operating
rules, and improved the management practice for software
system variations and configuration, thereby enhancing the
quality and efficiency of system implementation, operation and
maintenance and effectively reducing the unnecessary cost of
waste.

The approving workflow platform was employed to optimize our
IT resource approval process including account opening, network
port opening and permission assignment, so that proper basis is
maintained for each application of IT resources and thus relevant
non-compliant operation is avoided.

BEEERWED T

FEENMRERRERR

2016F W AR EMEEFTAETREE
b HMEFHRER BESE THE
B RNERAEERTARENT T
ZER MERRAEBTARETR R -ER
ERBRRE RUPEAET L2EIRE
SEHRBREENER L E—SELB
MEARNZ2REES RAEEEHN
BMEMZE2H - TAALBEERERTES
WA TSN BB FLEEEMEEFE
BRI

FERNREERE

20165  ERXHAMHELEENERY
EEMBEEMNIE FR Rt FHEA
A EREERNEEREET T B
THEANEERS RSTETHHFRR
MEBFHEEEEERE EMEFRRE
Bt Ko 5B M EY B MR - B RO D T A b
ZHRARE -

FABHRT A B ERRNE 8%
HOME RRHESTARSIRE &
BTG T R 6 I8 G 8 T 16 i 438 408
o

Annual Report 2016
—E-AEEERE

59



60

Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWED

Overall management work of human resources

Talents are the most valuable assets of Hanhua Financial,
and serve as the inexhaustible driving force to the flourishing
development of Hanhua. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
the total number of employees of the Group was 1874, all of
whom served in Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Company attaches great importance to the construction,
publicity and implementation of its corporate culture and cares
for employees’ physical and mental health, and a corporate
culture focusing on the theme of “trust, simplicity and Share” has
hence been established with its constant development and long-
term accumulation. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company planned and organized a series of staff caring, cultural
and health-related activities including the aromatherapy lecture
made on Women’s Day, Liver Protection Day activities, micro-
health (&5 ) , essay contest in celebration of the Company’s
12th anniversary of establishment and photography contest in
celebration of the Chung Yeung Festival, which improved the
corporate image and enhanced the sense of happiness of the
employees.

In terms of employees’ career development, we completed
the construction of our “Dual channel” (being professional
sequence and management sequence) during the year, which
clearly sets out the talent standards for each rank and position
in the professional sequence and helps employees to develop
a clear understanding of their personal development direction.
Meanwhile, through diversification of our talent reserve, Hanhua's
talent pool has been established to improve our echeloned
building of talents.

In terms of compensation performance, following the introduction
of the performance and competency assessment indicators
last year, we implemented the whole-process performance
management this year. With the three working procedures
in place, namely goal setting, mid-term review and annual
assessment, which cover activities throughout the year, the
Company’s goals, strategies and work priorities for the year
are divided and assigned to each post, thereby enhancing the
correlation and alignment between organizational goals and
individual goals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Meanwhile, by establishing the “Dual channel” career
development path and implementing dynamic assessment on
“people, post and pay”, we ensure the conferring of employees’
positions and ranks is matched with their personal performance
and contribution, and we help employees to develop a clear
understanding of the individual qualifications and goals required
by the organizational development and recognize that the
Company’s better performance and their remuneration increment
can be achieved with their own improved performance.

In terms of staff development, the Company strengthened
the popularity of business knowledge and skills upgrading,
and increased training and development of middle-to-senior
employees, optimized the management training framework and
courses, introduced E-learning system to develop a “mixed
learning” model through a combination of face-to-face teaching,
online learning, mobile learning and other means, thereby
creating a benevolent culture and atmosphere which respects
knowledge and talent and attaches importance to the growth and
development of employees.

At the same time, the Company continuously optimized the
human resources informatization system, and launched the
employee self-service platform while improving its established
data and workflow systems, allowing employees to access their
personal information, leave and attendance records, breakdown
of remuneration and benefits and other functions through self-
service inquiry. The information sharing platform was used
to facilitate timely, accurate and easy information sharing
and exchanges between the Company and its employees,
thus reducing communication costs and improving employee
satisfaction.

Relevant basic data

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of employees of the
Group was 1,874.

According to academic qualification: undergraduate and above:
1,532, accounting for 81.8%; post-secondary education and
below: 342, accounting for 18.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operation analysis of segments

The contribution of our internet finance, capital investment and
management, financial factoring and finance lease business to the
operation of the Group was relatively small, therefore, the analysis
on which is not included herein. For more information on the key
operation data of these segments, please refer to pages 52 to 56

of this report.

The following table sets forth the segment information of credit
guarantee and micro and small loan business for the year ended

31 December 2016:

Bt %5 B B8

DEEEBR D

BRMALL BN

o
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AEBENEHBELH EXARERER
CRRERMEMEEBHAEENKLE
E D BLEEBRDITEL
THEREESIE EELES BN EEL
M%Fm%ﬁ$ﬁ%%@ﬁ 56 & Fr it A

TREYAEBEHZ2016F12 318 EF
EERERMNMNMIERELDELE:

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12B318LLEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
% of net % of net
fee and fee and
interest interest
income income
hFFE 1FEFE
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount ERFIE Amount B R FI.E
(BREBFEIN UARBEETLIIR) & KA % o WA %
Credit Guarantee ERER
Net guarantee and BRREEAEFRA
consulting fee income 755.4 51.0 765.0 43.7
Net interest and FMEMFEBEFKRA
handling fee income 316.1 21.4 3741 21.4
Subtotal INEt 1,071.5 72.4 1,139.1 65.1
Micro and small loan NEER
Net interest and FMBEMFEBZEHRA
handling fee income 459.9 31.1 605.6 34.6
Subtotal Nt 459.9 31.1 605.6 34.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth our profit and profit margin by
business segments in 2016:

BEEERWED T

TR AEEN2016FRER D A& S
) 7188 Je M =

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(REBEFHIN UARBEETIIR) 20164 20154 25 (%)
Segment profit pal= D
Credit guarantee business EREREB 428.6 403.9 6.1
Micro and small loan business NRERER 232.2 334.6 (30.6)
Profit margin by segment 53 BB ) 2
Credit guarantee business ERERER 40.0% 35.5% 4.5
Micro and small loan business NRERET 50.5% 55.3% (4.8)
Credit Guarantee Business Segment: EREREB I

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the income of credit
guarantee segment of the Group was RMB1,071.5 million,
which decreased by RMB67.6 million or 5.9% as compared to
RMB1,139.1 million in 2015. The income of credit guarantee
segment decreased due to falling net interest and handling fee
income from entrusted loans released from credit guarantee
business. Meanwhile, the Group greatly developed debt
guarantee business, the rise of income from which has offset the
fall of income from traditional financing guarantees.
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ARNERBEFEREL  ZHEBAN EA—
ERELEBERREBRRAL T -

Annual Report 2016
—E-AEEERE

63



64
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BERENWED

The interest and handling fee income of the entrusted loan
business decreased is mainly because the decline rate of average
interest and handling fee rate of entrusted loan business is larger
than the growth rate of average balance. The average entrusted
loans balance increased from RMB2,149.4 million in 2015 to
RMB2,367.0 million in 2016, representing a growth of 10.1%.
However in 2016, the average interest and handling fee rate of the
Group’s entrusted loan was 15.4%, showed a downward trend as
compared with 20.1% in 2015. The decrease was mainly because
we enhanced the credit review standard for new customers in the
credit phase, raised the access standards for customers, selected
customers with lower risks, the price strategy of the Group fell
accordingly.

At the same time, the profit of credit guarantee business segment
of the Group was RMB428.6 million, representing an increase
of RMB24.7 million or 6.1% as compared with that of 2015. In
2016, the profit margin of credit guarantee business segment of
the Group was 40.0%, representing an increase of 4.5 percentage
point as compared with 35.5% in 2015. The profit of credit
guarantee business segment showed an increase trend, which
was mainly because of the decrease of impairment losses arising
from the segment portfolio. Since the beginning of 2015, the
Group has comprehensively adjusted its credit-granting policy,
proactively optimized its business structure, fully enhanced its
marketing management and post-guarantee management with
increased frequency and efforts in post-guarantee management.
As for defaulting customers, the Group stepped up management
on collaterals. Meanwhile, the Group further raised all staff’s
awareness of risk management by fully implementing the
administrative rules for distribution of performance-based bonus
after the “discharge of guarantee liabilities”. Given the short
term (mainly within 18 months) of loans and credit guarantees
provided by the Group to its customers, the aforesaid measures
led to gradually reduced credit risk exposure of the Group’s
overall asset portfolio, and relevant effectiveness was fully
achieved in 2015 and 2016, as evidenced by the declining
provision for impairment of its assets. In 2016, impairment losses
of the business segment were RMB297.3 million, representing
a decrease of 31.1% or RMB134.5 million as compared with
RMB431.8 million in 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For more details on the credit guarantee business of the Group,
please refer to pages 16 to 34 of this report.

Micro and Small Loan Business Segment:

In 2016, net interest and handling fee income of the Group micro
and small loan business was RMB459.9 million, representing
a decrease of RMB145.7 million or 24.1% from RMB605.6
million in 2015. Also in 2016, the profit of the micro and small
loan business segment of the Group was RMB232.2 million,
representing a decrease of RMB102.4 million or 30.6% as
compared with RMB334.6 million in 2015.

The decrease in revenue and profit of the micro and small loan
business segment was mainly attributed to joint influence of
decreased interest and handling fee income and increased
interest and handling fee expenditure. The fall of interest and
handling fee of micro and small loan business was caused by
falling average yield rate and average balance. In 2016, the
average interest and handling fee rate of micro and small loan
business was 14.7%, 1.7 percentage points lower than 16.4%
in 2015. In 2016, the monthly average balance of the micro
and small loan business was RMB4,057.2 million, representing
a decrease of RMB114.4 million or 2.7% as compared with
RMB4,171.6 million in 2015. The decrease of the average balance
of the micro and small loan business was mainly because the
Group proactively made strategic transformation and adjustment
in 2016 with “diversifying model, upgrading and transformation”
as overall business strategy and explored consumer finance
and platform finance business when upgrading traditional micro
and small business. Through online and off-line cross-field
integration, the Group established standard, concentrated and
diversified business model, further expanded customer access
channel and provided comprehensive financial service for small
and micro-enterprises and individual clients. Following such
adjustment to the business model and the transformation and
upgrading, the outstanding balance of the Group’s traditional
micro and small loan business recorded a gradually declined
since the beginning of 2016, while new business segments were
still at the cultivation stage in the first half of 2016, and entered
into a rapid development trend in the second half of 2016, thus
comprehensively generated slight decline in the average balance
of the micro and small loan business in 2016.
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In response to the call from the government to practically alleviate
the problem of “expensive financing” facing SMEs, the Group
actively lowered fee rates of the micro and small loan business
with the circumstances of continuous declining on external
financing cost. At the same time, the Group proactively adjusted
business species of its micro and small loan business in 2016,
increasing consumer loans, commercial discounted bills and
pledged loan business of commercial bills of which the default
risks are relatively lower. In 2016, the range of the interest and
handling fee rate of micro and small loan business was between
11.0% to 21.6%, which showed a slight decline of around 5%
in price strategy in 2015. The above measures led to a declining
trend in the average interest and handling fee rate of micro and
small loan business from 16.4% in 2015 to 14.7% in 2016.

In 2016, the Group raised a total of RMB2.26 billion through
external institutional investors, which was used to invest in
qualified small and micro enterprises and individuals. These funds
were drawn at one time and started to accrue interest, but the
business was launched on the market gradually through some
rules and progress, which made the efficiency of capital use not
ideal and increased the interest expenditure. The increase of
interest expenditure also has impact on the fall of net interest and
handling fee income of micro and small loan business.

In 2016, the profit margin of micro and small loan business of
the Group was 50.5%, representing a decline of 4.8 percentage
points as compared with 55.3% in 2015.

For more details on the Group’s credit SME lending business
segment, please refer to pages 35 to 51 of this report.
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SELECTED ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED HESHABERER
INCOME STATE MENT

Net guarantee and consulting fee income EREBHAEFHWA

The following table sets forth the guarantee and consulting fee TRE:FAEER2016FEEREI D HE
income of the Group by products for 2016: REEABRNA

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFHIN UARBEETTIITR) 20164 20154 25 (%)

Guarantee and consulting fee REUTE&EHN

income from EREREHEWRA
Traditional financing guarantee BEHmE ER 473.8 699.6 (32.3)
Bond guarantee BEHER 250.9 52.0 382.5

Financing guarantee business RMERRELK DG
subtotal 724.7 751.6 (3.6)
Non-financing guarantee FEEL & IR 34.3 15.3 124.2

Guarantee and consulting fee ERREABRA NG

income subtotal 759.0 766.9 (1.0)
Less: Re-guarantee expenses B BERER (3.6) (1.9) 89.5
Net guarantee and consulting EREEREBFRA

fee income 755.4 765.0 (1.3)
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In 2016, the net guarantee and consulting fee income of the
Group was RMB755.4 million, which decreased by RMB9.6
million or 1.3% as compared with the RMB765.0 million in 2015,
of which:

e In 2016, the guarantee and consulting fee income generated
from our traditional financing guarantee business was
RMB473.8 million, representing a decrease of RMB225.8
million or 32.3% as compared with that in 2015. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the Group’s active
adjustment of business structure since 2015, due to
intensifying downward pressure on macro-economy and
increasing risks of defaults of SMEs. At the same time,
the Group met the financing demands of SMEs through
reasonable use of other business tools, including entrusted
loans, transfer of trade receivables and bill discounting. Such
move cut the guarantee and consulting fee income from
financing guarantee business while interest income from
factoring business such as bill discount and transfer of trade
receivables experienced faster growth.

e In 2016, the guarantee and consulting fee income generated
from the Group’s bond guarantee business was RMB250.9
million, up by RMB198.9 million or 382.5% as compared
with that in 2015. The increase was mainly attributable to
the utilization of the Group’s growing brand reputation and
proactive adjustment of the Group’s operating strategies to
expand the Group’s guarantee business for capital market
bond issuances with relatively lower credit risk. In 2016, the
Group provided guarantees for 24 bonds with amount of
RMB20,250.0 million in total;

e In 2016, the income generated from the Group’s non-
financing guarantee businesses was RMB34.3 million, up
by RMB19.0 million or 124.2% as compared with that in
2015. The increase was caused by the adjustment of the
Group’s operating strategies and stepped up marketing on
capital preservation fund and other non-financing guarantee
products with lower credit risks.
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Net interest and handling fee income

The following table sets forth the Group’s interest and handling

fee income by products in 2016:

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEERWED T

MNERFEBEFERA

TREFI A EBR2016F L Em D B
ERFEBRARMA:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEEAIN UARBAETLIIR) 20164 20154 5 (%)
Interest and handling fee REUATEENFE

income from EFEEBERA
Loans and advances to customers  EE N E K &2 FE 962.6 1,117.9 (13.9)
—Micro and small loan business —INMEE R 597.3 685.5 (12.9)
—Entrusted Loans —ZEEXR 365.3 432.4 (15.5)
Financial Factoring & BRIE 56.5 12.4 355.6
Cash at banks RITF R 50.7 49.3 2.8
Restricted bank deposits FHERRE R 16.9 21.6 (21.8)
Finance lease MEHEE 13.6 3.5 288.6
Internet finance BE @R 12.8 8.1 58.0
Total interest and handling MEBRFEBRAEE

fee income 1,113.1 1,212.8 (8.2)
Interest and commission REUTEENFE

expenses from RFEELH
Debts securities issued JERTES (190.7) (61.3) 211.1
Financial assets sold under BEXOEe/mEE

repurchase agreements (80.0) (104.5) (23.4)
Borrowings from banks and HRITRIFRITHIBER

non-bank institutions (75.7) (38.1) 98.7
Commission paid to agents FEBRMASH (42.3) (21.9) 93.2
Total interest and commission MEBRFEELEE

fee expenses (388.7) (225.8) 72.1
Net interest and handling fee income F| 8 & F 4 &% It A 724.4 987.0 (26.6)
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In 2016, the net interest and handling fee income of the Group
was RMB724.4 million, down by RMB262.6 million or 26.6%
from the RMB987.0 million of 2015. The decline was mainly
attributable to the decrease in interest and handling fee income of
micro and small loan and entrusted loans as well as the increase
in interest and commission fee expenses, of which:

° In 2016, the interest and handling fee income from the
Group’s micro and small loan business was RMB597.3
million, down by RMB88.2 million or 12.9% compared with
that in 2015. The decline was mainly due to the decrease
in the average return of micro and small loan business as
well as the decrease in the average balance. In 2016, the
average interest and handling fee rate of micro and small
loan business was 14.7% (2015: 16.4%). In 2016, the
monthly average balance of micro and small loan business
was RMB4,057.2 million, representing a decrease of
RMB114.4 million or 2.7% compared to RMB4,171.6 million
in 2015. The decrease of the average monthly balance of
the micro and small loan business was mainly because
the Group proactively made strategic transformation and
adjustment in 2016 with “Diversifying model, upgrading
and transformation” as overall business strategy and
explored consumer finance and platform finance business
when upgrading traditional micro and small loan business.
Through online and off-line cross-field integration, the
Group established standard, concentrated and diversified
business model, further expanded customer access channel
and provided comprehensive financial service for small and
micro— enterprises and individual clients. Following such
adjustment to the business model and the transformation
and upgrading, the outstanding balance of the Group’s
traditional micro and small loan business recorded a
gradually declining trend since the first half of 2016, while
new business segments were still at the cultivation stage in
the first half of 2016, and thus generated only insignificant
revenue until the second half of 2016 when rapid growth
was recorded. Such “rise after decline” business deployment
model resulted in the slight decrease trend in the monthly
average balance of the micro and small loan assets;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The decline in the average return of micro and small loan
business is mainly because that, with declining external
financing cost and in response to the call from the
government to practically alleviate the problem of expensive
financing facing SMEs, the Group actively lowered fee rates
of the micro and small loan business. At the same time, the
Group proactively adjusted business species of credit loan
business in 2016, increasing consumer loans, commercial
bill discount and pledged loan business of commercial bill
whose default risks are relatively lower. The above measures
led to a declining trend in the average interest and handling
fee rate of micro and small loan business. In 2016, the range
of the interest and handling fee rate of micro and small loan
business was between 11.0% to 21.6%, which showed a
slight declining of around 5% in price strategy in 2015;

In 2016, the interest and handling fee income of the Group’s
entrusted loan business was RMB365.3 million, representing
a decrease of RMB67.1 million or 15.5% as compared with
that in 2015. The decrease is mainly because the decline rate
of average interest and handling fee rate of entrusted loan
business is larger than the growth rate of average balance.
The average entrusted loans balance was RMB2,367.0
million in 2016, representing an increase of RMB217.6 million
or 10.1% as compared with RMB2,149.4 million in 2015.
In 2016, the average interest and handling fee rate of the
Group’s entrusted loan was 15.4%, showed a downward
trend as compared with 20.1% in 2015. The decrease was
mainly because under the increasing downward pressure on
the economy, the Group enhanced the credit review standard
for new customers in the credit phase, raised the access
standards for customers, selected customers with lower
risks, the price strategy of the Group fell accordingly;
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In 2016, the interest income from the bank deposits of the
Group and related interest income from the restricted bank
deposits of the Group were RMB67.6 million, which has
not been a significant change as compared with that in
2015. The Group continued to adopt of more flexible cash
management strategies and investment in time deposits
and capital preservation wealth management products with
relatively higher returns on the prerequisite of maintaining
sufficient liquidity, so as to improve the efficiency of the use
of capitals;

In 2016, the interest and handling fee income in the financial
factoring business of the Group was RMB56.5 million, which
was mainly attributable to the factoring services income from
the financial factoring business segments;

In 2016, the interest and handling fee income in the finance
leasing business of the Group was RMB13.6 million, which
was mainly attributable to the finance leasing income from
the finance leasing business segments; and

In 2016, the handling fee and commission income in the
internet financing business of the Group was RMB12.8
million, which was mainly generated from the Group’s
service of online information disclosure of capital and asset
transactions and successful transaction matching;

In 2016, the interest and commission expense of the Group
was RMB388.7 million, which increased by RMB162.9 million
or 72.1% as compared with 2016, of which:

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2016, the interest expense on the bonds of the Group was
RMB190.7 million, representing an increase of RMB129.4
million or 211.1% as compared with RMB129.4 million in
2015. The increase was mainly due to the increase of the
debt securities issued balance from RMB2,382.2 million
as at 31 December 2015 to RMB3,655.3 million as at 31
December 2016. Thereinto, interest expenditure generated in
2015 from RMB2.4 billion worth of corporate bonds issued in
June and November of 2015 by the Group was not for a full
fiscal year, while that in 2016 was the interest expenditure for
a full fiscal year.

In addition, the Group has transferred RMB1,460.0 million
of micro loans to structured entities in 2016, and then the
structured entities issued asset-backed securities (“the
Products”) to investors. At the same time, the group held
all the interests of subordinated tranches of the Products
and provided guarantee for the senior tranches with priority
sequence parts. As the group has retained nearly all the risks
and rewards of these category of asset the relevant financial
assets did not qualify for the derecognition of financial
assets, thus the Group continued to recognise the above
assets and listed the RMB1.26 billion of transfer fee received
in the “asset-backed securities payable”, and incorporated
the interest expenditure generated into the interest
expenditure of the Group’s consolidated income statement.

In 2016, the borrowings interest expense from banks and
non-bank institutions of the Group was RMB75.7 million,
representing an increase of RMB37.6 million or 98.7% as
compared with that in 2015, which was mainly due to the
bank interest-bearing borrowings balance increased from
RMB300.0 million as at 31 December 2015 to RMB1,205.9
million as at 31 December 2016. In August 2016, the
Group’s subordinate small-loan company cooperated with
institutional investors to have raised RMB1 billion of funds,
which was specially invested in qualified small and micro
enterprises and individuals. The above funds will be mature
on 31 December 2020.
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In 2016, the handling fee and commission of the Group
was RMB42.3 million, representing an increase of RMB20.4
million or 93.2% as compared with that in 2015. The growth
mainly came from expenses paid to the third-party settlement
channels for carrying out various business.

Other revenue

2016  AEBFEEBRAEIH
BARBA2 3B E T R2016F R
AR®E204B 8T - 151893.2% - K
FTERERHARSHEEBRTEXNG
FEoHEEBENBRAXL -

HAi WA

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BRBABEFTAEIMN UARBEHETIIR) 20164 20154 5 (%)
Government subsidies and BT 8 B M B MR i

tax refund 15.6 26.4 (40.9)
Investment income & W= 8.5 - -
Rental income LN 7.2 3.4 111.8
Others HAth 3.4 4.2 (19.0)
Total &5t 34.7 34.0 2.1

The following table sets forth our income from other businesses in
2016:

In 2016, income from other businesses of the Group was
RMB34.7 million, mainly including government grants, tax returns,
investment income and rental income, of which, investment
income mainly came from dividend of investment projects of the
Group’s capital management business, and rental income mainly
came from leasing the Group’s debt-offseting assets and idle
housing properties to the third party.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Reversal for guarantee losses

Provisions for guarantee losses are estimated mainly based on the
growth of the Group’s guarantee portfolio and past experience
for enough provisions for credit guarantee business. In 2016, the
reversal for guarantee losses of the Group was RMB39.7 million.

Provision rate reflects the Group’s reserve level for possible
compensation risks of its guarantee portfolios. Provision rate
equals to provisions for guarantee losses divided by risk
responsibility balance of guarantee business at the end of
the period. As at 31 December 2016, the provision rate of
the Group’s credit guarantee business was 1.1% (1.5% at
31 December 2015). The decline of provision rate was mainly
because the proportion of bond guarantee and guarantee for
capital preservation funds whose credit risks are relatively low to
the total product portfolio rose from 47.9% as at 31 December
2015 to 60.6% as at 31 December 2016, which changed
potential risk of credit guarantee portfolios.

Impairment losses

The following table sets forth impairment losses in 2016:

BEEERWED T
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For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFRIN UARBEETTIITR) 20164 20154 25 (%)
Impairment losses for receivables  FEUREZH

for default payments BEREERK 213.7 376.2 (43.2)
Impairment losses for loans and BHER LB R

advances to customers BERMBEEL 149.1 138.9 7.3
Impairment losses for receivables — JEWRIEZ M E E

for factoring business VIRIER=ES 7.3 0.4 1,725.0
Impairment losses for receivables Ut gt & T & 7K

for Finance lease business REE KR 2.8 - -
Total &3t 372.9 515.5 (27.7)
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In 2016, the impairment losses of the Group were RMB372.9
million, representing a decrease of RMB142.6 million or 27.7% as
compared with RMB515.5 million in 2015, of which:

Impairment losses for receivables for default payments decreased
from RMB376.2 million in 2015 to RMB213.7 million in 2016,
which is mainly because that the Group enhanced post-guarantee
management as well as the corresponding management
frequency and efforts, and stepped up collateral management
for customers that defaulted. At the same time, the Group fully
promoted the management method of paying performance
bonuses after the guarantee liabilities are lifted among all business
staff to further enhance risk management awareness of all staff.
The period of the Group’s loans and credit guarantee business
to clients is short (mainly within 18 months), which made credit
risk exposure of the Group’s total asset portfolio gradually fall
and totally released during the period of 2015 to 2016. In 2016,
the Group paid RMB386.0 million on behalf of the customers
for the actual defaults payments, representing a decrease
of RMB103.5 million or 21.1% as compared with RMB489.5
million in 2015, which led to the downward trend of impairment
provision for receivables for default payments. At 31 December
2016, the original amount of the Group’s receivables for default
payments was RMB1,373.1 million, corresponding to the balance
of impairment provisions at RMB743.8 million. The provision
rate (allowance for default payment receivables/receivable for
default payment) fell slightly by 2.9 percentage points to 54.2%,
compared with 57.1% at 31 December 2015, which may be
relevant to the Group’s sufficient mortgage from client default,
raised mortgage rate and accelerated handling process. The
Group made evaluation on withdrawal possibility of receivables for
default payments mainly based on the reverse mortgage provided
by borrowers, and compared possible withdrawal amount with the
amount of default payments to incorporate the balance into the
impairment losses of the current period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment losses of the micro and small loans and
entrusted loans increased from RMB138.9 million in 2015
to RMB149.1 million in 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the impaired loans balance of the Group
was RMB260.9 million, representing an increase of RMB33.4
million or 14.7% as compared with RMB227.5 million in
2015. In 2016, the Group continued to adopt prudent
accounting estimates and considered the changes in loan
quality, and increased provision ratio on impairment losses.
As at 31 December 2016, the provision rate of SME lending
was 4.9%, representing an increase of 0.5 percentage points
as compared with 4.4% as at 31 December 2015. The risk
resistance capabilities were further increased;

In 2016, impairment losses for receivables for factoring
business was RMB7.3 million, which is mainly due to the
putting aside provisions based on portfolio benchmark for
receivables for factoring business. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the balance of the receivables for factoring
business of the Group was RMB594.6 million, representing
an increase of RMB376.6 million or 172.8% as compared
with RMB218.0 million as at 31 December 2015; and
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e In 2016, impairment losses for finance lease receivables was o
RMB2.8 million, which is mainly due to the provision made
for finance lease receivables on a collective basis. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the balance of the finance
lease receivables of the Group was RMB279.2 million,
representing an increase of RMB209.5 million or 300.6% as
compared with RMB69.7 million as at 31 December 2015;

720164 + FE U B E 7 & A B E R
BIELAAARB2SEEL FERY
FEM B E TR E IR RS FTIRBMEBAT
BB £2016F12831H NEE &
KrtEHERERTEAARK279.28
B0 ®2015F12A31 HE W R E T
EREHBEARBE.7EHEE L #E M
AR#209.58 & 7T #E18300.6% :

For details regarding the asset quality of the guarantee business BREREREBNIMEREBHNEE

and the micro and small loan business, please refer to the section EE m2HAmEG [EKiRi] Z5E16
pages 16 to 51 headed “Business Overview” in this report. BE518 -

Operating expenses EEXH

The following table sets forth operating expenses in 2016: TR ANEBP2016FENEES L

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBFTHAEIN UARBBEETIIR) 28 15t % Eax] 1 %
Staff costs BT H# 425.7 53.0 451.5 50.5
- Non-cash share-based —UREREER
Payment & > A~ 56.4 7.0 81.1 9.1
Taxes and surcharges i K B hn 32.2 4.0 81.8 9.2
Operating lease charges FEREHEER
in respect of buildings 88.8 11.1 90.5 10.1
Depreciation and EREHEMAZ
amortization expenses 43.9 5.5 31.6 3.5
Others H A 212.1 26.4 238.0 26.7
Total &% 802.7 100.0 893.4 100.0

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2016, the operating expenses of the Group reached RMB802.7
million, representing a decrease of RMB90.7 million or 10.2%
compared with RMB893.4 million in 2015. The increase was
mainly because that the Group continued to adopt optimization
management measures to control expenses which led to the small
decrease of total operating expenses. Moreover, the proportion of
varying items of expenses to total operating expenses remained
stable without drastic fluctuations, of which:

1. Without considering employee compensation generated
from equity-settled share-based payment. In 2016, total
staff cost of the Group was RMB369.3 million, a slight
decrease as compared with RMB370.4 million in 2015. In
2016, the Group constantly optimized its personnel structure
to cope with continuously rising business demand. As at
31 December 2016, the number of staff of the Group was
1,874, representing a decrease of 21.6% as compared with
2,389 as at 31 December 2015; and

2. In 2016, without considering employee compensation, the
other operating expense was RMB377.0 million, representing
a decrease of RMB64.9 or 14.7% in 2015. The decrease
was mainly because (i) policy of “to replace business tax
with value-added tax” caused the fall of business tax and
other surcharges. Moreover, falling taxable income including
guarantee and consulting fee income, interest and handling
fee income etc. also made contribution to the reduction of
tax, as well as (ii) the decrease of business and entertainment
expense, advertising expense and travelling expenses etc. by
RMB10.3 million.
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SELECTED ITEMS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The following table sets forth the summary extracted from our
consolidated cash flow statement in 2016:

HREMHRERERER

TR A EER2016FNEHELRE
REFERE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A81BLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(REAFEN UARBEETIIR) 20165 2015% 8 (%)
Net cash generated from/(used in) LEEBMES,/ (FR)H

operating activities Re 58 34.4 (793.2) (104.3)
Net cash used in investing activities REZYMANBR S FRA (1,252.9) (166.6) 652.0
Net cash generated from EERYMEANRSFE

financing activities 1,925.5 1,232.6 56.2
Net increase in cash and ERESIEINFHE

cash equivalents 707.0 272.8 159.2
Cash and cash equivalents FUEKES BT

at the beginning of the year 2,803.9 2,531.1 10.8
Change in exchange rate [ & 5) 1.1 - -
Cash and cash equivalents FREVESHE

at the end of the year 3,512.0 2,803.9 25.3

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

In 2016, net cash generated from operating activities was
RMB34.4 million, of which mainly include:

1. The Group’s guarantee and consulting fee received from the
credit guarantee business was RMB1,005.8 million;

2.  The Group’s interest and handling fee income received from
the SME lending business was RMB896.9 million;

3. The increase of the Group’s loans and advances to
customers granted by the SME lending business was
RMB643.1 million;

4. The Group’s staff costs and related insurance and benefit
expenses paid were RMB373.4 million; and

5. The Group’s enterprise income tax, business tax and
surcharges paid were RMB233.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Net cash used in investing activities

In 2016, net cash used in investing activities was RMB1,252.9
million, of which mainly include:

1. RMB74.7 million was used to purchase fixed assets and

intangible assets;

2. RMB924.8 million was used to invest in affiliated enterprises;

3. RMB379.1 million was used to invest other activities;

4., RMB13.7 million was used to purchase minority equity

interests; and

5. RMB130.0 million was received from investments.

Net cash generated from financing activities

In 2016, net cash generated from financing activities was

RMB1,925.5 million, of which mainly include:

1. Net cash raised from corporate bond issuance in 2016 was
RMB1,269.2 million;

2. There was a net increase of RMB685.7 million in funds raised
from borrowings from banking financial institutions and other

non-banking financial institutions;

3. RMB279.1 million of dividend was paid; and

4. RMB349.6 million of interest on borrowings was paid.
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SELECTED ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following table sets forth a summary of the Group’s assets

BRSO BRRKRIEAR

TR ARERFARAMNEERAR

and liabilities as at the dates indicated: BE -
As at 31 December
M12A31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFAN DARBEETIIT) 20164 20154 28)(%)
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EEEe 3,512.0 2,803.9 25.3
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES 1,051.9 1,400.1 (24.9)
Trade and other receivables JRE LS % L b s 3R0E 1,551.5 1,262.2 22.9
Receivables for factoring business FEU R B 3K 594.6 218.0 172.8
Loans and advances to customers BREFRREK 7,625.4 7,137.8 6.8
Finance lease receivables JE YR & T & 279.2 69.7 300.6
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE 333.5 106.9 212.0
Repossessed assets HEEE 248.5 94.8 162.1
Property, plant and equipment mE BB REE 434.5 432.7 0.4
Intangible assets BLAE 6.2 4.2 47.6
Interest in associates RERERE -BEhE 985.5 60.0 1,542.5
Interest in joint ventures RERERE -SE0%E 20.0 10.0 100.0
Goodwill EkS 11.2 11.2 -
Deferred tax assets EXEMEHEE 428.7 349.5 22.7
Total assets HWEE 17,082.7 13,961.0 22.4
Liabilities =R
Interest-bearing borrowings ATEER 1,205.9 300.0 302.0
Financial assets sold under BEHEESHEE

repurchase agreement 1,168.3 1,388.5 (15.9)
Deferred income RIBETEES 639.4 385.8 65.7
Provisions for guarantee losses EREEEES 350.6 390.3 (10.2)
Customer pledged deposits FARES 17.2 27.1 (36.5)
Accruals and other payables JE &t Ko E At FE A5 3R 2,381.3 1,498.1 59.0
Current tax liabilities BHMEHAE 185.6 143.5 29.3
Debt securities issued ENES 3,655.3 2,382.2 53.4
Total liabilities HwaE 9,603.6 6,515.5 47.4
Net assets EERE 7,479.1 7,445.5 0.5

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Cash and cash equivalents

The following table sets forth the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents as at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

ERES

TR AKERFAIREHNEEES:

As at 31 December

MW12831H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BRSEFTREIN UARBEBETIITR) 20164 20154 B E)(%)
Cash in hand EFRE 0.1 0.1
Cash at banks RITFER 3,511.9 2,803.8 25.3
Total &t 3,512.0 2,803.9 25.3

Cash and cash equivalents include the Group’s cash in hand
and cash at banks. As at 31 December 2016, the balance
of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents was RMB3,512.0
million, representing an increase of RMB708.1 million or 25.3%
as compared with RMB2,803.9 as at 31 December 2015. In
2016, the Group cooperated with other financial institutions for
borrowings, issued asset securitization products to raise capitals.
The Group also adopted flexible cash management strategies
to fulfil the requirements of liquidity management. Both of these
factors caused the balance of case and case equivalents to rise.

ERESTEORAEEEFTR RIET
TR -MR2016F12A831H AEBEEE
S8 A ARSI 51208 8T BK2015%F
12A31EB%EARK2803.988 L K
ARM708. 18 BT - 11825.3% © 742016
FASEHEAMSRERSIERESE
BMEEF BTEEXHESFEEEE A

BAEERNETZENR S EIERME
mEREEEESR K —HARATERE
SEEESHRBE LA
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Restricted bank deposits

The following table sets forth the Group’s restricted bank deposits
as at the dates indicated:

FHERRES

TREJIAEERN PR A BT HERRE
5 & HY B AT

As at 31 December

M12H318

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFBIN UARBAETTIIR) 20164 20154 EE) (%)
Security deposit RESD 786.0 840.0 (6.4)
Cash deposits or certificates of BEEHNETREER

deposit for fully secured bank IS T AR GFERE

financing guarantees 265.9 560.1 (62.5)
Total &5t 1,051.9 1,400.1 (24.9)

The Group strived to maintain positive relationships with
cooperating financial institutions, and make security deposits
according to a certain ratio of the actual guarantee amount
(between 0 and 20%) as the basis of carrying out our obligation.
Except for the security deposits required for bank financing
guarantee services, the Group holds no liability to pay other
cooperative organization with deposits.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and other receivables

The trade and other receivables of the Group mainly consist of
default payment receivables of our credit guarantee business,
various forms of prepayments and interest receivable. The
following table sets forth the trade and other receivables of the
Group as at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

FEE W J% L i P WL R R

AEEEELEMEEGRAEEIZBEANE
EEREREBHNERUENONT 2B
R TE S FRORIA SRR B o TR #HI A
SER PR B HIEY FE U K E At FE R IR
B4R :

As at 31 December

M12A31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(REBEFHIN UARBEETIIR) 20164 20154 5 (%)
Receivable for default payments FEUWE AN 1,373.1 1,143.0 20.1
Trade receivable JFE U5 BR 3R 8.6 4.8 79.2
Less: allowance for default S PR A RS

payment receivables (743.8) (652.3) 14.0
Subtotal NEE 637.9 495.5 28.7
Interest receivables JE W R B, 153.6 115.9 32.5
Other prepayments, deposits and B FERFKIE - #H & &

other receivables H b JE W FRIB 760.0 650.8 16.8
Subtotal NEE 913.6 766.7 19.2
Total wt 1,551.5 1,262.2 22.9

As at 31 December 2016, the default payment receivables
was RMB1,373.1 million, representing an increase of 20.1% as
compared with RMB1,143.0 million as at 31 December 2015. In
2016, the Group paid RMB386.0 million on behalf of defaulting
customers, representing a decrease of RMB103.5 million or
21.1% as compared with RMB489.5 million in 2015.

MR20165F 124310  EUE NN KB E A
ARM1,373.1BE L ®20155F12A31H
BN RBREARK1,143.08 & 7T
IR 520.1% ° 2016%F - AEE ki A&
HNEFPEFTRELELSTAARY386.08
BT B2015F 25 R{E2BARKE489.5

i —

BELBA103.58E T EiE21.1% °
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In 2016, we continued to reinforce the measures and frequency
of risk management measures targeting guarantee customers,
strengthened management of guarantors before, during and after
granting guarantees, and stepped up the management of counter
guarantees and collaterals and the collection of default payments.
In 2016, the accumulated cash collected from default customers
was RMB156.0 million;

As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding balance of default
payment receivables was RMB1,373.1 million, and the
corresponding provisions was RMB743.8 million, overall provision
rate was 54.2%, which fell slightly by 2.9 percentage points
compared with the overall provision rate of 57.1% as at 31
December 2015. This was mainly attributable to the Group’s
receipt of sufficient collateral from defaulting customers, which
raised the collateral rate and expedited the disposal process;
we made evaluation on withdrawal possibility of receivables for
default payments mainly based on the reverse mortgage provided
by borrowers, and compared possible withdrawal amount with the
amount of default payments to incorporate the balance into the
impairment losses of the current period.

As at 31 December 2016, other prepayments, deposits and other
receivables was RMB760.0 million, representing an increase
of RMB109.2 million or 16.8% as compared with RMB650.8
million as at 31 December 2015. It was mainly attributable to the
receivables of RMB98.0 million generated from the transfer of
relevant creditor’s right in 2016.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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20165  AEEFBEMEHEEREF B
[B b E IR MEASEE - {ERAT R - RIE
FEREEERAMBEEIR - I H1oE R HE
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20165 - A B ARG HENTE PR EYIR
& ARB156.088 7T

M20165F12A31H  BWE NN HBEAR
ARBA1373 188t HENEBESHE
BARBITISSEHE L BERBEFSRA
54.2% E2015F 12 A1 A B EF & X
571%/NE T2 BB EBRAE
ERENRFERDMNERY TR KE
WRIZS  WHINRESERZAEC: KM E
W AB KB AL ) [ U PT RE T IR 5T A
FERBERAREOREIFERET
WA e R e EMREERNERSEE
TR BEBFAZHEERBEBK -

R2016F12A31H KM EMNKE - HE
R EAMEWFIENSREAARKE760.08 2
U0 8201512 431 H # % A R #650.8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RECEIVABLES FOR FACTORING BUSINESS

The following table sets forth the Group’s receivables for factoring
business as at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

P& W 4R 32 3R

TR A EE R AR A H A B U R IE

= .
A

As at 31 December

R12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREBEFHIN UARBEETIIR) 20164 20154 &) (%)
Receivables for factoring business [ W 4R 3 X 594.6 218.0 172.8
Total A&t 594.6 218.0 172.8

Since 2015, traditional financial institutions generally lacked
confidence in small and medium-sized enterprises and gradually
lowered capital input in these enterprises. However, there is still
financing demand of small and medium-sized enterprises which
meet qualifications and with strong tolerance to credit risks in
the market. The Group reasonably used the business tool of
transfer of accounts receivable and discounted bills to meet
financing demand of these enterprises. In 2016, accumulative
receivables for factoring business amounted to RMB6.96 billion.
As at 31 December 2016, receivables for factoring business
for the factoring service the Group provided for the clients was
RMB594.6 million, representing an increase of RMB376.6 million
or 172.8% as compared with that in 2015.

B2015FMn SR mEEyh/
TRMEEL BLREHFPNEENE
SRWM-EMIE L FEER  ERRRE
Eeehpoamp N EENREFKINARE
F-AEBEEBEFABRRKERERZ Z&
BRIRE—¥KTE UWmBERBIDDE
B R E T Ko R20165  (RIBE M 253
5 A AR EEE9.6187T - A20165F 12 A 31
A RNEBEAME P R E KR FIRERR
HBEEMERRERHRIE S ARES4.6
BEIT R2015F 1 R376.6 B & T ' L8
172.8% °
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Loans and advances to customers

The following table sets forth the Group’s loans and advances to
customer by product as at the dates indicated:

BHERRBR

TRENAEERT A BREREDH
BRER MR

As at 31 December

M128318

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BRBSABEFEIN UARBEHETIIR) 20164 20154 B8 (%)
Micro and small loans MEE R 5,375.2 4,377.5 22.8
Entrusted loans ZEER 2,639.5 3,092.6 (14.7)
Gross loans and advances BEREFRBHEEE

tocustomers 8,014.7 7,470.1 7.3
Allowances for impairment losses B s (B E & (389.3) (332.3) 17.2
Net loans and advances to BRHNERRBTEE

customers 7,625.4 7,137.8 6.8
The Group’s loans and advances to customers reflect in the total REFBBRRERLNBD AR AEFBE R

balance of our loan portfolio (including micro and small loans
and entrusted loans). As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s
loans and advances granted to customers was RMB8,014.7
million, representing an increase of RMB544.6 million or 7.3%
as compared with RMB7,470.1 million as at 31 December
2015. This was attributable to the Group’s cooperation with
other financial institutions for borrowings, issuance of asset
securitization products to raise capitals and increase of the
capital base. The Group also cooperated with internet finance
and consumer finance platforms, to expand customer access
channels.

The Group focused on providing short-term loans to minimize
the risk exposure of the Group and, as a result, a majority of the
Group’s loans and advances to customers have a maturity of less
than one year.

For more details regarding loans, please refer to “Business
Overview” section of this report on pages 35 to 51.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance lease receivables

The following table sets forth the Group’s finance lease
receivables as at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

FE W b & AR 'K

TREHNAKERAHR BN ELREE

e

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREZBEREIN LARBBETIIR) 20164 20154 B8 (%)
Finance lease receivables JE UL B B A E 3K 279.2 69.7 300.6
Total &%t 279.2 69.7 300.6

As at 31 December 2016, the finance lease receivable generated
from the finance lease services we provided for our clients were
RMB279.2 million, representing an increase of RMB209.5 million
or 300.6% as compared with that in 2015.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The following table sets forth the Group’s available-for-sale
financial assets as at the dates indicated:

R2016F  AEBEMEFREREREE
IREEEMERRERERBREAARE
279.28 & 7T ' B2015F 1 & A R #209.5
BE T 1E18300.6% °

THEEEREE

TRV AEENRAREHNAIHEES
BEE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFRIIN AAREEETIR) 20164 20154 &) (%)
Unlisted equity investments JEFTRERE 153.3 91.1 68.3
Listed equity investments FHRERE 145.1 - -
Wealth management products I8 B B O 35.1 15.8 122.2
Total &3t 333.5 106.9 212.0

The unlisted equity investments were made by the Group on
non-listed entities (independent third party companies). As
at 31 December 2016, the Group’s new added listed equity
investments were RMB145.1 million.

LR ERESAEERENIELTA
Al (B E=F7Ra) 12016912731
B RNEBEMZRE FTMRERLEARK
145 1B & T °
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In 2016, the Group continued to enhance capital management,
and invested a small amount of short-term idle capital in
wealth management products of capital preservation issued
by commercial banks on the prerequisite of fulfilling liquidity
requirements to raise the utilization efficiency of capital.

Repossessed assets

The following table sets forth the repossessed assets of the
Group as at the dates indicated:

R20165F AEBEFEMRESERE &
mERDEFTRKOAET AKEGLE
MHHEESRENBRBITRITHRAKN
DEMER UWRSESEMAUE-
BEEEE

TR ASERAIRBHNEEEE:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BRBSABEFTAEIMN UARBHETIIR) 20164 20154 B8 (%)
House and buildings B EREEY 220.4 94.8 132.5
Others A 28.1 - -
Total &5t 248.5 94.8 162.1

The repossessed assets of the Group were all houses and
buildings recovered from defaulting clients. In 2016, the balance
of the repossessed assets was RMB248.5 million, representing
an increase of RMB153.7 million or 162.1% as compared with
RMB94.8 million in 2015. For customers that default, the Group
formulated scientific recovery measures, and improved the team’s
enthusiasm for recovery through strict assessment management,
which made the debt-offsetting assets withdrawn in 2016 rise
sharply.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Interest in associates

The following table sets forth the Group’s interest in associates as
at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

REBRERE-BEDLHE

TR BT ER R AR IR
A-WELE:

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BRIBEFZHEIN UAREFBETLIIR) 20164 20154 HE)(%)
Interest in associates EERERE -
B D2 985.5 60.0 1,542.5
Total &5t 985.5 60.0 1,542.5

In 2016, the Group established Fumin Bank with 6 institutions.
The Group injected RMB900.0 million into Fumin Bank, for an
equity share of 30%. Upon completion of capital contribution, the
Company became the largest shareholder of Chongging Fumin
Bank. Since the Group activity exerts great influence on Fumin
Bank, the Group will incorporate Fumin Bank as an associate
based on equity method. Fumin Bank has formally started
business in August 2016.

Interest in joint ventures

The following table sets forth the Group’s interest in joint venture
as at the dates indicated:

PR2016%F » 7N 5% [B] S35 N6 14 18 2k [F] 3 2
RILBRPIT ARBAAREOETY
ERBTEATHE ARFAEERRITH
P #E Lb 518 S B A H930% @ STERR L B 1R
ARABBRBFITHE - KABR - BRA
SEHERRITEABMNEAZE A&
BHEERRBITERBEEERBEDE
EITRE - ERIBITELNR20165F8 AR A

RUBRERE-SELHE

TR HL52 £ BRA R B 8 ) R AR
A-nEny:

As at 31 December

R12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(REBEFHIN UARBEETIIR) 20164 20154 & 5)(%)
Interest in joint ventures REIRERE -
AEDE 20.0 10.0 100.0
Total st 20.0 10.0 100.0
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In 2016, the Group established joint ventures with another
company with each member holding 50% of equity. Above joint
venture operated particular projects in close end with capital as
the linkage and business entry point.

Interest-bearing borrowings
As at 31 December 2016, total interest-bearing borrowings of the

Group were RMB1,205.9 million. The following table sets forth the
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings as at the dates indicated:

122016 - Zii’i@ﬁiﬁi\{‘@ﬁ?ﬁk*/\““
Al L B & (550% - B A& E B EE
ZERATER] Bl - f@z%%i‘%tﬂki
B-BRHFTHRENHEANERE

—|',|_,~1E| TA

R2016F12A31H AE BT BER4ALEE
BARE1 205088 NRETAEE
RETR B BRI B IS FRAR 48 -

As at 31 December

R12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BEEFBIN UAREEELIIR) 20164 20154 = 5)(%)
Bank borrowings RITEX
— Secured by properties of — DAZN & E W 5 K 4T
the Group 61.0 81.0 (24.7)
- Unsecured — 144.9 139.0 4.2
Subtotal NEF 205.9 220.0 (6.4)
Other borrowings HAnE 1,000.0 80.0 1,150.0
Total &3t 1,205.9 300.0 302.0

The following table sets forth the maturities of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings as at the dates indicated:

TREINAEER PR B R ERNE
BHA:

As at 31 December

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEHBEIN UARBEETIIR) 20164 20154 25 (%)
Within 1 year or on demand EREEIIFUANRN 61.0 219.0 (72.1)
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEE2F AR 2.0 81.0 (97.5)
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FB5F A 1,142.9 - -
1,205.9 300.0 302.0

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2016, bank borrowings in the amount of
RMB61.0 million were secured by the Group’s buildings held for
own use. The aggregate carrying value of the secured properties
amounted to RMB191.0 million (2015: RMB198.0 million) as at 31
December 2016.

In 2016, the Group's subordinate small-loan company cooperated
with institutional investors to have raised RMB1.0 billion of
funds, which was specially invested in qualified small and micro
enterprises and individuals. The above funds will be mature on 31
December 2020.

As financing channel sources gradually expanded, our bank
interest-bearing borrowings balance gradually decreased. In
2016, all the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings have been
repaid before the actual due dates, and there are no records of
default. On 31 December 2016, the annual interest rate of our
outstanding interest-bearing borrowings ranged between 2.09%
and 6.5%.

For more detailed discussion on the interest rate risk of the
Group, please refer to note 36(b) to the financial statements.

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreement

The following table sets forth the Group’s financial assets sold
under repurchase agreement as at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

R2016F12A31H &8 A ARK61.08
BILMRITERALAEEFEERWEE
AR A2016F 12831 - EWMMEY
BREEEAEARE191.08 &8 T (20155 :
ARB198.088TT) °

20165 A B TB/NEER A B HikiE
BEEAE HRESEARKI00ETES
EHEBENFEERO P DD EME
A FiltE € ¥ HR2020F12 A31H E|H -

HMARMERBRRESME REBIRT
FTEERBREEE DS T -R2016F - A&
EAEM SEFTHIRER R HEEH 5
2 BIEE - A0 48 E o] 32 49 50 6% ° 1A2016%F
12A318  AEBEREET EERNEF
R AR2.09% 26.5% 2 [E °

BRAASENERAREFENTR &
B 81 75 ¥ 5% MY £36 (0) °

W

BEHEREEMEE

TRENAEERATEHNELRES
BMEE:

As at 31 December

M12831H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFAEIN UARBEETTIITR) 20164 20154 25 (%)
Benefit rights of loans and BB T N B IR S
advances to customers 1,168.3 1,388.5 (15.9)
Total st 1,168.3 1,388.5 (15.9)

As at 31 December 2016, the balance of the Group’s benefit
rights of loans and advances to customers was RMB1,168.3
million, representing a decrease of RMB220.2 million or 15.9%
as compared with that as at 31 December 2015. It was mainly
attributed to the borrowings and asset-backed securities bond
issuing that reduced the financial assets sold under repurchase
agreement.

R2016F12831H AEFBEHODE S
BMEERBBEAARE1168.3B8 T
#®2015F12A318 T AR 22026 &
JC FRIEA15.9% =B R AREBRBIEN
METEEZHFLEFBRES RLT
ENEECHMEERE -
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Provisions for guarantee losses

The following table sets forth the provisions for guarantee losses

of the Group as at the dates indicated:

EREEEES

TREJIAEEN PR A BEREEER
T HYBA AT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFHIN UARBBEETIIT) 20164 20154 EE) (%)
Provisions for guarantee losses BREEEES 350.6 390.3 (10.2)
Total =i 350.6 390.3 (10.2)

On 31 December 2016, the Group’s provisions for guarantee
losses was RMB350.6 million, representing a decrease of
RMB39.7 million or 10.2% as compared with that in 2015. Of
which:

As at 31 December 2016, the balance of the guarantee
liabilities was RMB30,630.9 million, representing an
increase of RMB4,648.1 million or 17.9% as compared with
RMB25,982.8 million as at 31 December 2015. Although
the balance of overall risk responsibility grew, the credit
guarantee business risk portfolio showed a downward trend,
mainly because the proportion of debt guarantee, guarantee
for capital preservation funds and construction performance
guarantee whose credit risks are relatively low to the balance
of overall risk responsibility is growing.

As at 31 December 2016, the outstanding balance of bond
guarantee business and capital preservation fund guarantee
business was RMB18,555.2 million, representing an increase
of RMB6,114.5 million or 49.1% as compared with that as
at 31 December 2015. The proportion of bond guarantee
business and capital preservation fund guarantee business to
credit guaranteed balance had increased to 60.6% as at 31
December 2016 (As at 31 December 2015: 47.9%).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

R2016F12 A31H » NE B E(R XK R IE
REEEHESHRBLHAREI06BET:

W20156F TR ARKITEBE T FiE
10.2% o E A :

o 2016 12A31H EREXHTEE
AR #30,630.98 & 7t ' 82015%12
AB1HEREBFRARK25082.8
ABETHEMAREA6481H BT %
IBAR17.9% BREELEBRETHE
ZRRREY BEAEREBRARA
AETREZ FELEARKRER
WESERES REAESER I8
BARREXEBEERBRRETHE
B LE 5 7E 38 A1 o

2016F12 8310 ' EHEREBH MR
TESEREBHNEREEHREAA
R#18,555.2H & 7L #2015 12 8
31 AERARFEEINARES 114588
T EIEIEA9.1%  EBEHFIERER
MRARAESEREBERE AHREN
ERAEREBEREAHKENLA L
FZ=20164F12 A31H #960.6% (2015
F12A31H :47.9%) °



Management Discussion and Analysis

The aggregate default payment made and default rates for default
customers in 2016 declined as compared with that in 2015.
Meanwhile, due to the change in the risks of guarantee business
products portfolio, the provision rate had declined from 1.5% as
at 31 December 2015 to 1.1% as at 31 December 2016.

Accruals and other payables

The following table sets forth the Group’s accruals and other
payables as at the dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

R2016FMEREBRFTRESEMNRE
KE2015F AL BT N B R BRI’
REBERMEAMBGARERREEES B
SEREBEERBEER20155F12A31H
#91.5% T~ ZE2016F12 H31 B AI1.1% ©

FE ST B2 HL 4t FEAF 3K

TREIASER AR AR REMRE
BEGLEEE

As at 31 December

M12A318

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BRBEFAN UAREBETIIR) 20164 2015%F B8 (%)
Accrued staff cost FE AT B T B 85.7 89.8 (4.6)
Interest payables FE R B 75.6 82.6 (8.5)
Other interest-bearing liabilities HmEEE 1,763.6 914.2 92.9
Other payables H A & A5t 3K 373.1 234.3 59.2
Subtotal /NEE 2,298.0 1,320.9 74.0
Value-added tax and other FET IS E T &

surcharges payable EAb M hn & 4.7 19.1 (75.4)
Withholding individual income B FIBE A FTIS TR

tax payable 3.8 - -
Receipts in advance TEURBRE 3K 74.8 158.1 (52.7)
Total G 2,381.3 1,498.1 59.0

On 31 December 2016, the Group’s accruals and other
payables balance was RMB2,381.3 million, representing an
increase of RMB883.2 million or 59.0% as compared with
that on 31 December 2015. Of which: on 31 December 2016,
other interest-bearing liabilities were RMB1,763.6 million, which
increased by RMB849.4 million as compared with that on 31
December 2015. The increase was mainly attributable to the
following reasons:

MR2016F12H31H  NE B fEET R E AbfE
e A AREE2,8381.36 8T 2015
F12A31AE AR KEB83.2H B w - &
®59.0% ° £ & : 2016F 128310 H
it EaES®REAARK1,763.68ETT
B2015F12A31HE N A R#840.46 8
TOERFEREBERUTAIE:
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As at 31 December 2016, other payables of the Group
included interests of limited liability partners of RMB640.0
million in the partnerships which were consolidated by
the Group, representing an increase of RMB340.0 million
as compared with RMB300.0 million as at 31 December
2015.

The Group transferred parts of its assets to independent
third parties in the form of benefit rights of assets,
however, the Group has guaranteed the investors with
certain principal and return, and therefore we consolidated
this business and accounted it as “accruals and other
payables”. As at 31 December 2016, the balance of these
businesses was RMB1,120.0 million, representing an
increase of RMB510.0 million as compared with RMB610.0
million as at 31 December 2015.

Debts securities issued

The following table sets forth the Group’s debts securities issued
as at the dates indicated:

. R2016F 12831 H » A& B E i+
BEBETBEEAHNERER AL
aRTCERZENRRARKG4E
JLE2015F 12 A31H AR #3.08
T ERARBILAET

. AEBMBILEZHUNEERZE
EEFAEETOHEE BEAEHE
M & B R R AR I &R B GRS
Eit it B = BMAS T EE -
WIE [FEET REMBER K] ZE R
2016412 A31H &tfﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ/\

R¥11.2(8 7T #2015F12831H
aiiﬁiﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%ﬂ TR
ARESAEBT

EMAES

TREIIAEER AR B HBENEFHRA
A

As at 31 December

M12831H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(RBHEHI WARBEETIIR) 20165 2015% 28 (%)
Fixed rate corporate bonds maturing 202046 A B HIH) & F FI =

in June 2020 NEEH 1,491.4 1,489.1 0.2
Fixed rate corporate bonds maturing 2019411 A B ER R & F FI &

in November 2019 REESH 894.7 893.1 0.2
Assets backed securities payable — BEYEHEE—

senior tranches By 1,269.2 _ _
Total &t 3,655.3 2,382.2 53.4
The Group issued bonds respectively in June 2015 and AL BER2015F6 A M1 ABBEITAA
November 2015 for RMB1,500.0 million and RMB900.0 milion.  BEHFDBISERE S ARBI1SEITRARE
The coupon rates are 6.1% and 5.6%. The raised fund was mainly offL REFR D HIES.1%/%5.6% B
used for entrusted loans in subsidiaries, assisting the subsidiaries TERAREMBARINZEETR  HHH
in debt repayment to other financial institutions and replenishment EERCREBES A TEEEES-

of working capital.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In 2016, the Group has transferred RMB1,460.00 million of micro
loans to structured entities, and then the structured entities
issued asset-backed securities (the “Products”) to investors. At
the same time, the Group held all the interests of subordinated
tranches of the Products and provided guarantee for the senior
tranches with priority sequence parts. As the Group has retained
nearly all the risks and rewards of these transferred micro loans,
the relevant financial assets did not qualify for the derecognition
of financial assets, thus the Group continued to recognise the
above assets in the balance sheet and the transfer fee received
amounted to RMB1.26 billion was presented under “asset-backed
securities payable”.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, our gearing
ratio (representing the total balance of interest-bearing borrowings
and financial assets sold under repurchase agreement and debts
securities issued, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity attributable to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholder(s)”)) was 36.8% and 18.7% respectively. In 2016,
the Group’s subordinate small-loan company raised an aggregate
of RMB2.26 billion of funds from specific institutional investors
through borrowing and asset securitization, which caused the
increase of liabilities and gearing ratio.

Capital expenditures

The following table sets forth our capital expenditures for the
dates indicated:

BEEERWED T

20166 AREE G ARM14.6E TH /)
BEFEILEBLLIE BhEBLLE
BAKEERTEEIRER([ERD)
RANASEREZEDRE BRI A
REFMEELIEFBOREER - ARA
SERBTEHFDEEINLT2HRAR
AR HEESRMEET MR IEEREN
G ANAEBBEECEERBERTR
REMEE WHWHOARE126ET
BENERNEEIBESPII R

EERER

R2016F12A31H Kk2015F12H31H -
EEABEX (AFEER BHELEEHE
ERENEFEHREEREEES KU
RAFRE ([RE]) E(hE=425E) D5
#336.8% 8 18.7% ° 120164F - AEE T /&
B NEERAT RS EHEEBREADBR
BEFRREEFHF LORAEEESES
ARB2GETL BEHEARERBREESR
B -

BEAXRBX

TREIRARERARNEEREAF X :

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BILLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFHIIN UAREEETIR) 20164 20154 FB) (%)
Capital expenditures =¥ NGE 74.7 77.0 (3.0)

The Group’s capital expenditures mainly consist of actual long-
term rental paid in the process of business expansion and setting
up new business outlets, and expenses incurred for the purchase
of information technology equipment and systems and vehicles.

AEEEARXTIZEREEBERIER
PEHARBETERINOERNES B
ENERRMREMES URBERE
HIFASZ ©
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGAT IONS

Capital commitments
The following table sets forth the Group’s capital commitments

for acquisition of fixed assets, mainly property, equipment and
vehicles, as at the dates indicated:

EXAERERGNER

BARESE

TREFIN PR B HA & B 5 WOE B E
BE(XE2RME REMAE)WNEARE

s

As at 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(REAEFHIN LARBEETIIR) 20164 20154 8 (%)
Commitments in respect of purchase U B [& 7 & & FT/E 1Y
of fixed assets — contracted for AE-DEY 1.0 7.8 (87.2)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s future business growth
and expansion of sales network were basically completed, with
the amount of capital commitment decreased.

Operating lease commitments

The Group leases a proportion of our office properties from
third party guarantors under non-cancellable operating leases.
The following table sets forth the Group’s future minimum lease
payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at
the dates indicated:

R2016F 12 A31 B AREB AR ERKIE R
NEERNIBRERNTR  EARAKES
B D e

REBERE
AEERBEIATHBEECEHEERE =77
RAEELOWAEYE - TREIINA

REMASERENAIRIEEERERN
B R R KA E S AR

As at 31 December

M12H31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2016 2015 (%) Change
(BREEFHIIN AAREEETIIR) 20164 20154 &) (%)
Due within one year —FUAR(BHE—F)

(including one year) 87.4 77.8 12.3
Due after one year —FHE=FUR

but within three years (BE=%)

(including three years) 66.1 118.0 (44.0)
Due after three years ZFPAE 2.5 9.8 (74.5)
Total &5t 156.0 205.6 (24.1)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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On 31 December 2016, the decrease of the Group’s operating REBR2016F 12 431 B A48 & M E A iE

lease commitments were mainly related to business sectors and TREZEEBRRE CEELFERR
operating network constantly employing management measures AR E B EIEEE-

of cost optimization.
Intra-group liabilities EEANFIERE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s guaranteed the following MR2016F12H31H RS EE #KE A A
liabilities of certain members of the Group: MATEERRRRIEHER:

1. an aggregate of RMB1,000.0 million of borrowings to specific 1 AREB/NYERWEB QR METEHKE
institutions by our micro and small loan subsidiaries; mfE K425 AR #1,000.0B8 87T

2. an aggregate of RMB1,269.1 million of issuing asset 2 AEB/NRERMEB ARG RS TEEE

securitization products to specific institutions and accounted BITMEERESFLERTET A TER
it as “debts securities issued” by our micro and small loan BRFIZE BEARKE1200188
subsidiaries; JC

3. an aggregate of RMB676.9 million of selling the benefit rights 3 KAEBIHEFMBAR BEEER

of loans under repurchase agreements by the Group’s micro MEBAR €BMREARMEMNER
and small loan, asset management subsidiaries and financial WaEENEER 5 BEARE676.9
factoring company. ER-ak

As at 31 December 2016, none of the liabilities of the Group's M2016F12A31H  AEBEEAERNE
credit guarantee subsidiaries were guaranteed by other entities AANBENERAEERNEME BN
within the Group. R o
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As the credit guarantee subsidiaries did not raise any capital
from other legal entities within the Group and since each of
these credit guarantee subsidiaries is a limited liability company
under the PRC laws, the Company is only liable for a credit
guarantee subsidiary’s debts to the extent of the Group’s
equity contribution. Accordingly, the Group’s obligations under
outstanding guarantees will not adversely affect the business and
operations of other entities within the Group should any of the
Group’s credit guarantee subsidiaries fail to meet their contingent
liabilities under outstanding guarantees.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s credit guarantee
subsidiaries provided guarantee liabilities at a balance of
RMB851.6 million (31 December 2015: RMB972.8 million) for
the micro and small loans granted by the Group’s micro and
small loan subsidiaries. In the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, the Group accounted such loans granted by micro
and small loan subsidiaries as loans and advances to customers
in order to avoid double counting and exaggerating the overall
amount of credit risk taken by the Group, and then did not include
the above amounts into the calculation of the credit guarantee
balance of the Group. In case of liquidation and bankruptcy
of credit guarantee subsidiaries, such loan will no longer be
guaranteed and those subsidiaries will bear much higher potential
credit risks. As the amount for each case guaranteed by the
Group’s credit guarantee subsidiaries is relatively small and
dispersed, the Group believes that it would not materially affect
the business and operations of the Group’s other subsidiaries if
any of these micro and small loans are no longer be guaranteed
by the Group’s credit guarantee subsidiaries.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
HMESEROARAR

HRERERNBARRAASRERNEM
FERERBRAEMNES mREERERIE
RAY/PEZEZRBETNAREERT
Hit AR BEH —REBERIE LR
BEHAERET (UAKERELERR)
i 35 AN S BHE IS ME R B A P REEE
TERREEERATHHBERE A&
ERREEERATNECHEIEHAR
BETHEMERNEBMEEERNTRT

@,
=

20165124310 - AE B R ERNE
NEIRAERNUEFRME R TR
HMEZRENERETHEAEARES51.6
BEL (2015612A318 : AR¥972.88
Bn) EAEBEEHUBHREY AEE
ERNMIERNB AR EROZEEE
FEIEBRMERRBREER AGSE
BB S ANEEEEERRARRES
B WA Ll & EEMARE B S B EF
EREEET R o WS MBS R ERKTE R R
ERIWE ZEEFETHERER MA
EE)EEFMNBARGERIERMNERL
ERRAR BRAEEEFEHERKERF
BROBERBEEESHER) LRS-
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Off-balance sheet arrangements

The following table sets forth the outstanding guarantee liabilities
of the Group’s credit guarantee subsidiaries:

BEEERWED T

BERBRIZH

TRIVRAE B{E B ERN BB AGER
ERETHEES:

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2016 2015 B8 (%)
20164 20154 (%) Change
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount
(BREBEEHEIIN MARBBEETIIR) Kok ] B HE
Traditional financing guarantees B E ER 8,925.1 11,719.0 (23.8)
Bond guarantees BEHER 20,250.0 5,065.0 299.8
Financing guarantee BMEEAGHE /N
balance subtotal 29,175.1 16,784.0 73.8
Re-guarantee BEREBIH (10,000.0) - -
Outstanding traditional BERMERRETHRSE
financing guarantee liability 8,875.1 11,719.0 (24.3)
Outstanding bond guarantee liability {& 2 & {& & (L &858 10,300.0 5,065.0 103.4
Financing guarantee liability ml B R E R 19,175.1 16,784.0 14.2
Non-financing guarantees FEREER 11,455.8 9,198.8 24.5
- Guarantee of capital —RARESER
preservation funds 8,255.2 7,375.7 11.9
Guaranteed balance total EREESREST 30,630.9 25,982.8 17.9
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CAPITAL FRAMEWORK, LIQUIDITY AND
CAPITAL RESOURCES

Capital framework

As at 31 December 2016, the share capital of the Group was
RMB4,600.0 million, comprised of 3,430,000,000 domestic
shares (the “Domestic Share(s)”) and 1,170,000,000 H shares (the
“H Share(s)”), with the face value per share of RMB1.00.

For more information about capital management policy, please
refer to note 33 to the financial statements.

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group has funded our working capital and other capital
requirements primarily by equity contribution from shareholders,
bank borrowings, cash flows generated from operations and net
proceeds from the IPO. The liquidity and capital requirements
of the Group are primarily related to granting micro and
small loans and entrusted loans, making default payments,
maintaining security deposits at banks and other working capital
requirements.

In 2016, the Group has transferred RMB1,460.00 million of micro
loans to structured entities, and then the structured entities
issued asset-backed securities (“the Products”) to investors. At
the same time, the group held all the interests of subordinated
tranches of the Products and provided guarantee for the senior
tranches with priority sequence parts. As the group has retained
nearly all the risks and rewards of these transferred micro loans,
the relevant financial assets did not qualify for the derecognition of
financial assets, thus the Group continued to recognise the above
assets and received transfer fees of RMB1.26 billion which were
mainly used to re-offer loans to qualified small and medium-sized
enterprises and individuals.

As at 31 December 2016, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group were RMB3,512.0 million. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group did not use any financial instruments
for hedging purpose.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts business transactions principally in RMB and
is therefore not exposed to material foreign exchange risks.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2016, the total outstanding borrowings of
the Group amounted to RMB6,029.5 million, among which the
borrowings with fixed interest rate amounted to RMB5,825.6
million.

Major investment

In 2016, the Group co-established Fumin Bank with 6 other
domestic institutions. The Company invested RMB900.0 million
in the bank, with the equity ratio to registered capital at 30%.
After the capital contribution, the Company became the largest
shareholder of Fumin Bank. The bank has formally started
business in August 2016. As at 31 December 2016, the total
asset of Fumin Bank was RMB7.43 billion.

Major acquisition and disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
undertook two acquisitions. The Company purchased 3.33%
minority shares of subsidiary Heilongjiang Hanhua Internet Small-
Loan Co., Ltd. through its wholly-owned subsidiary Chongging
Hanhua Asset Management Co., Ltd. After the acquisition, the
Company had 100% shares of the latter. The Company directly
purchased 1% share of its subsidiary Chongging Changjiang
Financial Factoring Co., Ltd. After the acquisition, the Company
held 91% shares of the latter.

BEEERWED T

S BE & Bex i OO

AEEETZUAARBETEEHERS B
Itk 3 48 T B B8 K 9 BEE LB

&%

R2016%F 128318  REE KB E ERE
HAARKG6,020588 70 EFREEMNE
EREAARES825.6BETT

EARE

#20164F AN R B H3% O R 8 L [F] 25 8
BRI BERIRT ARBIAARBIOETLY
ERIBITETLE ARATERBITH
P& LE UL s & AN H930% » SERK ) B 1& AR
ARAABRBITNE KRR -BRIRIT
B R2016F8 A 14 IE =\ & 2 - & £2016
F12A31H ERVITEEBLEHOARE
74.3187T ¢

EXABBRYEE

HE2016F12A31BEFREA AR AI#
TRMARRE - BBREENBAREERE
BEERERARKEMNBARZE LY
EOHRA)BEREREAATVHERR
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BN WED T

The Company confirms that the above acquisitions did not
constitute any connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules,
all of the applicate percentage ratios in respect of the above
acquisitions are below 5%.

Except as disclosed above, the Group, its associates and joint
ventures had no other material acquisition and disposal for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Pledge of assets

The Group’s buildings with the balance of RMB191.0 million as
at 31 December 2016, were pledged as collateral under loan
agreements with commercial banks.

Contingent liabilities

Except for the off-balance sheet arrangements disclosed on page

101, the Group had no other significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2016.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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PROSPECTS

In 2016, Hanhua Financial has effectively improved its business
structure, assets quality and service model through determined
efforts in business transformation and upgrading, thereby
providing favorable conditions for future explosive development.

In 2017, Hanhua Financial will further enhance business
performance by capitalizing on better branding, creditability,
assets quality and capabilities as a result of the above efforts.
It will continue to penetrate mainstream finance business and
establish the innovative “One core, two wings” financial platform
to create synergy between all sectors. By building a leading
one-stop financial services platform for small and medium-
sized enterprises and micro-enterprises in China, the Group is
positioned to gain unique competitive strengths. To this end, we
will work along the following directions:

1. In 2017, Hanhua Financial will strive to obtain licenses
for mainstream finance businesses, including securities,
insurance and financial assets management services.
We expect such licenses to continuously enhance our
comprehensive strengths in serving small and medium-sized
enterprises and micro-enterprises, while helping us to attract
higher quality strategic partners and clients.

2. We will establish the customer-oriented and innovative
“One core, two wings” financial platform with mainstream
financial institutions as the “core” of symbiotic credit loan
business, and the two clusters targeting small and medium-
sized enterprises and individual clients respectively as
the “two wings”. The platform will be developed into an
eco-financial service system that integrates services in
the three main areas of “Equity, debt and transaction”.
Through differentiation of products and services, Hanhua
Financial is able to provide comprehensive, professional
and efficient bespoke services to clients at different stages
of development. Leveraging the leading position in micro
loan business, Hanhua Financial is set to enter the personal
finance market in 2017.

BEEERWED T
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B EE S B IB2016F ERR M) IS E A
T BEBBHHRETEGNERLERE &
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3. Great efforts will be made to establish the synergic model
for all segments: We aim at promoting synergy between
business segments and units through joint product
development, cross selling, innovation and platform building
for full integration of capital and assets as well as sharing
of customers’ information. In 2016, the “Small front-end
+ Big platform” structure has proven to be effective in
enhancing professional level and customer satisfaction of
our services. Under such backdrop, Hanhua Financial will
carry on strengthening platform products, risk control and
sales service capabilities of front-end in 2017. It will also
create a mechanism that facilitates collaboration between the
“investment, guarantee, equity and debt” businesses, so that
it can boost return on capital and per capita efficiency by
providing more diverse products and professional services.

The above initiatives complement each other to improve the
operation quality and core competitiveness of Hanhua Financial.
We plan to enhance our capability and creditability by entering
into the mainstream financial sector, develop a full-cycle product
and service chain for small and medium-sized enterprises and
micro-enterprises through the “Three Major Platforms”, and realize
the concept of “One-stop financial services” as we promote
synergy between business segments. At the same time, the
one-stop and full-cycle ecosystem model will forge long term
cooperation between Hanhua Financial and its clients, where they
can achieve “Mutual development, sharing and win-win results”.
It will also be the Group’s “distinctive leverage” and “line of
defense” for effectively competing in the future financial service
business.

In 2017, Hanhua Financial will adhere to its existing strategic plan
and tap into new markets such as unique towns and mainstream
financial businesses. While it actively fosters internal synergy and
develops new service model, it will also promote team enthusiasm
and competitiveness through innovative mechanism, thereby
laying a solid foundation for the Group’s rapid and steady growth
in the next five to ten years.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the members of the Board are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang' (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Dayong (Vice Chairman)
(Appointed on 13 March 2016)

Mr. Cui Weilan?

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua'
Mr. Duan Xiaohua®
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang'
Ms. Liu Tingrong'
Ms. Wang Fangfei'
Mr. Feng Yongxiang'
Mr. Zhou Xinyu
(Appointed on 17 June 2013, resigned on 12 March 2016)

Mr. Liu Bolin®

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Qinxian'

Mr. Deng Zhaoyu'
Mr. Qian Shizheng?®
Mr. Ng Leung Sing?®
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin®
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RARERH EFFKBHIINT :

HITES

REHELE(EER)
FREXE (FESER)

(R2016F3 13 &)
B BRI 5T A2

FUTES

IRERE S A

ERBE I S A0

25 Ht

BT LR 2+

FTEFRELL

I AHE A

BAFFEE
(R2013F6A17THEE -
R2016F3 128 R E)

2IE TR A48

BAFHTES

Bk E A
SRR AT
B A
REBRAE
R A2

Annual Report 2016
—zxregge 107



108

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EEESENSAREEE

Notes:

1 Appointed on 13 March 2013 initially and then appointed/re-
elected as a member of the second session of the Board at the first
extraordinary general meeting in 2016 of the Company held on 3
March 2016. The appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March
2016.

2 Appointed on 27 May 2015 initially and then appointed/re-elected
as a member of the second session of the Board at the first
extraordinary general meeting in 2016 of the Company held on 3
March 2016. The appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March
2016.

3 Appointed on 17 June 2013 initially and then appointed/re-elected
as a member of the second session of the Board at the first
extraordinary general meeting in 2016 of the Company held on 3
March 2016. The appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March
2016.

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 52, has been the chairman of the
Board, an executive Director and the president of the Company
since March 2013. He joined the Group in August 2004. He has
been the chairman of the board of directors of Hanhua Guarantee
Corporation Limited since August 2009. He also served as the
president of Hanhua Guarantee Corporation Limited from August
2009 to April 2015, and the president of Hanhua Guarantee Co.,
Ltd. from August 2004 to August 2009.

Mr. Zhang has been working in the Group since the Company’s
establishment in 2004. Mr. Zhang plays a pivotal role in the senior
management team. He is highly devoted to the establishment and
management of the Company’s business operations, commercial
decisions and strategic plan of the development of the Group.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Zhang has been the chairman of the board of supervisors of
Loncin Motor Co. Ltd. since October 2010. He also held various
positions in China Merchants Bank, a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600036)
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 03968), from
November 1999 to August 2004,
manager of the risk management department of Chongging

including the deputy general

Branch and the general manager of the bank department. He
served as the deputy general manager of the credit investigation
department of Chongging Branch of China CITIC Bank
Corporation Limited from October 1998 to October 1999, he also
served in various positions in Liaoning Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, a company whose shares are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601398) and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01398), from August
1988 to September 1998.

Mr. Zhang has been the vice president of Chongging SME
Credit Guarantee Association (EEMH /N EEHBERBZ)
since 2005, he acted as a member of the third committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”)
of Chongging from December 2007 to January 2013, he has
been the vice president of Chongqging New Class Professional
Union (EE T #1 28 ) and the expert in auditing and consulting
of China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises ( #F Bl &
NEERE
member of Economy Committee of China Federation of Industry
& Commerce (2B TRE 4 ZEZ 5 € ) in November 2010. He
has been the vice chairman of the first council of China Micro-
Credit Institution Association (& B /N5 {5 & # 1% 5
2011 to 2016, currently the vice chairman of China Microfinance
Association (FEI/NEERAFIHBE),
executive committee of Chongqging Industrial and Commercial
Union (EEE ™ T & B ) since 2012. He has been the vice
chairman of China Financial Guarantee Association (1 B g &
R %€ ) since January 2013, a member of fourth committee
of CPPCC of Chongging since 2013, the working advisor of the
People’s Government of Shenyang City of the PRC from October,
2015 to October 2016, and has been the intelligence expert of
the People’s Government of Shenyang City of the PRC since

) since 2008. He was elected as the tenth session

) from

and a member of the

October 2015. He has also been the chairman of Chongging
Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. since August 2016.
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EEESENSAREERE

Mr. Zhang was honored successively as the Leader for the SME
Credit Guarantee Companies in China (f B /N1 % {5 42
RHE) in 2009, “New Class-first Top Professional Talent of
Chongaing”(#TEE-EF BHE +1E® 4 ) in 2010, The Third
Commendation Meeting of Excellent Constructors to Socialism
with Chinese Characteristics of Chongqing City (EETWE =&
EBEEFEFEMt@FRFEERE)In 2011, the “Person of the
Year in Micro-credit Industry of China’( R Bl/NEEEEEAY)
in 2011, one of the “Top Ten Economic Figures in Chongging”
(EBRTHAFEELEAY)in 2008 and 2011, one of the “Top
Ten Business People in Chongging”(+ X817 ) , one of the 2015
Annual Brand Entrepreneur (20155 € RIEH® %% ), one of the
2015 and 2016 Annual Chinese Excellent Inclusive Financier
(2015 2016 FEFEHF B E RS FHZ ) and one of the “Top Ten
Person of the Year in Micro Finance in 2016”.

Mr. Zhang obtained his college diploma in finance from Shenyang
Television University (&[5 M EFER K2 ) in July 1992 and
his EMBA degree from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business in September 2011. He was accredited as a PRC lawyer
by Ministry of Justice of the PRC in July 1996 and obtained the
intermediate level of financial qualification from Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic of China
in October 1997.

Mr. Zhang resigned as the president of the Company on 28
March 2016, and remains as the Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director with effect from 28 March 2016.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Dayong, aged 50, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013 and has been the vice-chairman of
the Board and an executive Director of the Company since March
2016. Mr. Wang joined the Group in October 2006 and held
various positions, including chief credit marketing officer and vice
president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang held various positions in
China Securities Co., Ltd. from September 1998, including
the general manager of innovation business department of
investment banking headquarters. Prior to that, he had worked
at the Planning Department of Liaoning Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited from July 1988 to September
1998. Mr. Wang served as the director of Shandong Financial
Assets Exchange Co., Ltd. (IR &@MEEX HFTAR AT ) since
September 2015.

Mr. Wang obtained his master’s degree in international finance
from the department of international economics of Liaoning
University in July 1998 and EMBA degree jointly held by National
Taiwan University and Fudan University in 2015. He is also
accredited as a senior economist by the Appraisal and Approval
Committee for Professional & Technical Competence of the
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.

Mr. Wang resigned as the vice president of the Company on 19
April 2016, and remains as the Vice Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director with effect from 19 April 2016.
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Mr. Cui Weilan, aged 45, has been the executive president of
the Company since March 2015, an executive Director of the
Company since May 2015 and the president of the Company
since March 2016. Mr. Cui joined the Group in June 2006 and
served in various positions, including vice president, chief legal
officer and secretary of the board of directors. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Cui had been a practicing solicitor of Hebei Jimin
Law Firm (Al dE B R ZRDFEH A7) from 1999 to 2006 and had
worked for Hebei Management Cadre College of Political Science
and Law OA b BUEE 2 8 55268 ) (currently known as Hebei
Professional College of Political Science and Law (5] 4t B 3% B 2
ERT ) ) from July 1995 to March 2007.

Mr. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from the department
of political of Southwest Normal University (currently known as
Southwest University (FAm A 2)) in June 1995. He is also
accredited as a practicing solicitor by the Ministry of Justice of
the PRC and as an associate professor in law by Hebei Title
Reform Leadership Committee Bureau (Al 4t B 78 otk & 48 & /)
#8) . He completed the postgraduate program in economic law
from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in September 2003
and obtained his MBA degree from China Europe International
Business School ( F EIEIFR T &6t ) in September 2012,

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua, aged 53, has been a non-executive Director of
the Company since March 2013.

Mr. Tu has been the chairman of the board of directors of Loncin
Holdings previously, in the period from January 2003 to June
2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013. He has been
the director of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd. (BZBEBE HRMHER
‘A &]) since October 2010, a company whose shares have been
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 603766)
since August 2012.

Mr. Tu served as the non-executive director of Chongging Rural
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3618), from
June 2008 to December 2011. He served as the chairman of
the board of directors of Locin Group from February 1996 to
December 2013, a director of the board of Locin Group since
December 2013 and a director of Loncin Holding Co., Ltd. since
December 2013. He served as the chairman of USUM Investment
Group Co., Ltd. CaigiE LB DB R Q7)) since April 2014
and has served as an executive director and chairman of the
board of Chiho-Tiande Group Limited since April 2015.

Mr. Tu acted as the deputy to the 11th and the 12th National
People’s Congress, the deputy to the Second, the Third and the
Fourth Chongaging Municipal People’s Congress and a member
of the Finance Committee of the Fourth Chongging Municipal
People’s Congress, an executive committee member of All-China
Federation of Industry & Commerce (& B T Ht) , the vice
chairman of Chongqging Federation of Industry and Commerce
(EEMIAE) and the vice president of Chongging Enterprise
Confederation (EE M XM E &

Mr. Tu is the cousin of Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (one of our non-executive
Directors). Mr. Tu is one of our controlling shareholders.
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Mr. Duan Xiaohua, aged 42, joined the Group in June 2013 as a
non-executive Director of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Duan served as the chief financial
officer of Loncin Holdings from February 2012 to October 2012,
the chief financial officer and the director of Shanghai Fenghwa
Group Co., ( /B2 % (£E)KRHAERDF]), a company whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
600615) since October 2012.

Mr. Duan worked for Chengdu Fudi Property Co., Ltd. ( Ak #3178 it
EE AR Q7)) from March 2008 to March 2012 and held various
positions, including financial manager, vice financial president and
financial president. From June 2007 to February 2008, he worked
for Hutchison Whampoa Property (Xi’an) Co., Ltd. ( F 52 & 5 i &
(FAZ) B A A]) . He also worked for Chongging Taiji Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd (EE KB EEF R A ) from July 1998 to May
2007, a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600129). Mr. Duan has served as a non-
executive director of USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. (J81 75 #%
EEBRMD AR AT ) since April 2014, and has served as a non-
executive director of Chongging Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd.
since August 2014,

Mr. Duan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 1998 and
obtained his master’'s degree in business administration from
Chongaing University in 2006. Mr. Duan was accredited as an
accountant and a certified internal auditor.
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Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, aged 38, has been a non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in
August 2009 and has been a director of Hanhua Guarantee since
then with a non-executive role.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu served as the general manager
of Chongging Maohua Technology Co., Ltd. ( EEKEREERA
7]) from October 2003 to August 2009.

Ms. Liu obtained her bachelor’'s degree in economics from Saint
Petersburg State Polytechnical University in Russia in December
2008. Ms. Liu Jiaoyang is the cousin of Mr. Tu Jianhua (one of our
non-executive Directors).

Ms. Liu Tingrong, aged 42, has been a non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in
March 2011 and served as a director of Hanhua Guarantee with a
non-executive role.

Ms. Liu has been working for Chongging Taizheng Mining
Resources Development Co., Ltd. (EEREREELRFHEEGR
A\ ) since September 1996 and become the assistant to the
chairman of board of directors since November 2007.

Ms. Wang Fangfei, aged 30, has been a non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in
November 2010 and held various positions, including the project
manager and chief reviewing managers of business management
section and general management section of Hanhua Guarantee.

Ms. Wang holds 55% of the equity interests of Chongging Jiulong
Investment Co., Ltd. (EE LR EBR A A), one of the
minority shareholders of the Company, and has also been the
legal representative of Chongging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd.
since April 2011.

Ms. Wang obtained her master’'s degree from Sheffield Hallam
University in October 2009, majoring in international business and
management. She obtained her junior college degree in business
administration from Chongqging University in July 2006.
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Mr. Feng Yongxiang, aged 46, has been a non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the Group
in August 2009 and has been a director of Hanhua Guarantee
since then with a non-executive role.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Feng has been the general
manager of Chongging Puzhao Hengyi Investment Co., Ltd. (&
EEIKEZFILEABR AT ), one of the minority shareholders of
our Company, since February 2010. He worked for Chongging
Yayu Business and Commerce Development Co., Ltd. (EE
R N A)) as a deputy general manager from May 2005
to January 2010. He worked as the senior relationship manager
of the Chongging branch of China Minsheng Banking Corp.,
Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600016) and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 01988), from July 2003 to May 2005.
He served as the senior relationship manager of the Chongqing
branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.,
a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600000), from March 2000 to July 20083.
He worked for Yangjiaping Sub-branch of China Construction
Bank Corporation, a company whose shares are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601939) and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0939), from July 1991 to
February 2000.
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Mr. Zhou Xinyu, aged 45, joined the Group in June 2013 as a
non-executive Director of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has been the assistant to
general manager of Hua Rong Securities Company Limited (%
BB E R AR AT ) since January 2013. From June 2008 to
November 2012, he worked at Guosen Securities Co., Ltd. (Bl{5
FBHERMH AR QG ) . From January 2008 to May 2008, he served
as the deputy general manager of the capital market department
of Hua Rong Securities Company Limited (ZE g B 5D AR A
7]) . He also previously served as the senior deputy manager of
the investment department of China Huarong Asset Management
Corporation (I ZERMEEEIEQF]) .

Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’'s degree in engineering
mechanics from Xi’an Jiaotong University in July 1993 and
obtained his master’s degree in economics (majoring in finance)
from Central University of Finance and Economics in March 2001.
He obtained his doctorate degree in economics (majoring in
domestic economy) from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in
July 2006. Mr. Zhou obtained the qualification of senior economist
from the senior assessment committee of China Huarong Asset
Management Corporation in December 2006.

Mr. Zhou retired as a non-executive Director of the Company on
12 March 2016.

Mr. Liu Bolin, aged 31, joined the Group in June 2013 as a non-
executive Director of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Liu has been the general manager of Sichuan Hongrun
Trading Co., Ltd. (P9I 3AEEE AR A F]), one of the minority
shareholders of the Company, since March 20183.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from Shenzhen University in June 2006 and obtained his master’s
degree in accounting from the State University of New York at
Binghamton in December 2008.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bai Qinxian, aged 76, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined
the Group in August 2009 and has been an independent non-
executive director of Hanhua Guarantee since then.

Mr. Bai has served in various domestic committees and societies,
including the member of the applied economics discipline
appraisal group of the Fourth and Fifth Session of Academic
Degree Commission of the State Council, the permanent member
of China Society for Finance and Banking (B4 F2£€ ), and
the permanent member of China International Finance Society ( #
B <R E22), and has been the director of the International
Finance Institute of the University (%2 X 2R & @A ITFT) .
Mr. Bai is currently the professor and the doctoral supervisor
in finance and policy finance of Liaoning University and an
independent non-executive director of Sinvo Capital Group Co.,

Lid. (FPREAREBBRAA) .

Mr. Bai was accredited as an academic leader of applied
economics at the first level and an expert who is eligible to enjoy
the special allowance of the State Council.

Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, aged 70, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined
the Group in August 2009 and has been an independent non-
executive director of Hanhua Guarantee since then.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Deng held various positions at
People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited ( & B A {%
A% A F)) (currently known as the People’s Insurance Company
(Group) of China Limited), a company whose shares are listed on
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01339), including the
deputy general manager during the period from December 2001
to August 2006. Mr. Deng also served as the chairman of the
board of supervisors of PICC Property and Casualty Co., Ltd.,
a company whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 02328), from July 2003 to October 2006.
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Mr. Qian Shizheng, aged 64, joined the Group in June 2013
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Qian had served as the deputy director
of the Accounting Department of Fudan University. He worked
at Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0363),
from January 1998 to April 2012 and held various positions,
including deputy chief executive officer and executive director.
He also served as the vice-chairman of Haitong Securities Co.,
Ltd. From July 2007 to July 2010 and from May 2011 to March
2013, the shares of which are listed on both the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600837) and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 6837), and the director of Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank and Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0563).

He was previously an independent non-executive director of
Lonking Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3339), Zoomlion Heavy
Industry Science & Technology Co., Ltd., the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000157)
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1157), and
Shanghai Yaohua Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd., the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
600819). He has been an independent non-executive director of
Jingrui Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1862) since October
2013, currently an independent director of Shanghai Chengtou
Holding Co., Ltd, an independent director of Shanghai Lujiazui
Finance & Trade Zone Development Co., Ltd., an independent
non-executive director of Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1528) and an independent director of
Shanghai Laiyifen Holding Limited.

Mr. Qian obtained his bachelor’s degree in accountancy from
Shanghai Institute of Finance and Economics (currently known as
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics) in July 1983 and
doctor’s degree in management science and engineering from
Fudan University in July 2001.
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EEESENSAREEE

Mr. Ng Leung Sing, aged 67, joined the Group in June 2013 as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Ng is currently a director of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Trustees Limited, the director of the BOCHK Charitable
Foundation and the director of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited. He is also an independent non-executive
director of MTR Corporation Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
0066), an independent non-executive director of Smartone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited whose shares are listed
on Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 0315) and Nine
Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2689). Mr. Ng
resigned as the vice chairman of the Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited on 27 March 2017.

Mr. Ng is currently a member to various boards and committees,
including the Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th, 11th and 12th
National People’s Congress of the PRC, the member of the 5th
Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, the chairperson of the Banking Industry Training Advisory
Committee of the Education Bureau, the honorary president of
Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong, the honorary advisor of the
Hong Kong Chi Tung Association Ltd.

Mr. Yuan Xiaobin, aged 47, joined the Group in June 2013 as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Yuan has been a member of the standing committee of
Chongqing People’s Congress since January 2013. He has also
been the vice president of Chongqging Friendship Association for
Non-Party Intellectuals since September 2012, the vice chairman
of the Revolutionary Committee of Chongging Municipal since
July 2012, and the arbitrator of the China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission since May 2011.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAR

REERRBEERERT (FB)ETER
RAEE PREBZREESEST FE
RBEESFERQAAES FEEBERA
A(ZARRONREBEZMET (KK
5% 0066) ) B IFNITES  BIFEE
MEEARAA (ZARBRMDREBER
Fr B (B8R  0315) ) B IEHMITE
FREAE(ER)BRAA (ZAAIRKR
MREBE R LM (7R :2689) )
W IFITES - RIEER2017F3H27H
HESEREBTRESE

RALRAKETTRAAGLREZEER
K BEETE FH-ERFT-_E2E
ARRERARGERAR BEFIITHER
FREEERE HERRITETER
JEAEEETR BARTERGRE
R BEEERMETFAEGRERM-

RAMWHRE  4TH - R2013F6 A INAARE
EEARRARBIYIEMITES-

REABH0IBF1ARETEEMAKRNE
BEE B01209 A RETEEFNLE
BEBRegAgR B201267ARELR
BEEMZAEEE  B2011F58BETH
REBHHMBEEGHHE -



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Yuan had been an independent director of Jinke Property
Group Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 000656), and has become the
special supervisor of Chongqging People’s Government since
May 2008. He also has been a part-time professor at Southwest
University of Politics and Law since December 2006 and the
director and the chairman of the Board of Zhonghao Law Firm
since 1997. He is currently the deputy director of Finance and
Securities and Insurance Special Committee of All China Lawyers
Association (RE2EZAMpeemEFLFRBREXZEE), an
arbitrator of Shanghai International Trade Arbitration Centre, an
independent director of Changjiang Securities Company Limited
(RIBARMDBEMRAA), and an independent director of
Changan Auto Finance Co., Ltd. (EE/RES/RAR A A]) .

Mr. Yuan had also been a Legislative Assessment Expert from
June 2008 to January 2013, a consultant of the Decision Advisory
Committee of Chongging People’s Government from December
2008 to December 2010.

Mr. Yuan holds the honorary title of the “Outstanding Specialists
with Remarkable Contributions to Chongging City” awarded
by the Chongging Municipal Party Committee and Chongging
People’s Government in September 2009, “Top Ten Outstanding
Professionals” awarded by the United Work Front Department in
February 2010, “National Outstanding Lawyer” awarded by the
Chinese Lawyer’s Association in December 2011 and “Chongging
Top Ten Innovative Person of Year 2011” in February 2012.

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from Southwest
College of Politics and Law (currently known as Southwest
University of Politics and Law) in June 1991, and his EMBA
degree from Chongqing University in June 2013. Mr. Yuan was
accredited as a Class A lawyer by Chongging Judicial Bureau in
January 2010.
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EEESENSAREEE

SUPERVISORS

As at the date of this report, the members of the board of
supervisors (the “supervisor(s)”) (the “Board of Supervisors”)
are as follows:

Mr. Li Ruping* (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
Ms. Qin Yong (Appointed on 13 March 2016)
Mr. Zhou Daoxue
(Appointed on 13 March 2013, retired on 12 March 2016)

Mr. Chen Zhonghua®

Notes:

4 Appointed on 13 March 2013 initially and then appointed/re-elected
as a member of the second session of the Board of Supervisors at
the first extraordinary general meeting in 2016 of the Company held
on 3 March 2016. The appointment/re-election took effect on 13
March 2016.

5 Appointed on 13 March 2013 initially and then appointed/re-elected
as a member of the second session of the Board of Supervisors at
the meeting of employee representatives of the Company held on 2
March 2016. The appointment/re-election took effect on 13 March
2016.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Li Ruping, aged 60, has been the chairman of Board of
Supervisors of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2004 and served in various positions, including
vice president, president and director. He has been the chairman
of the Board of Supervisors of Hanhua Guarantee since August
2009.

Prior to that, Mr. Li had been holding various positions in Loncin
Group and its subsidiaries from October 1998 to August 2004,
including the chief accountant of Loncin Holdings and the director
of finance department of Chongging Loncin Industry (Group) Co.,
Ltd (EEEETE (£8) AR A7) and Chongging Construction
Loncin Motorcycle Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (EEZREEERSE
FEBRALA]) .

Mr. Li obtained his junior college diploma in industrial
accountancy from Sichuan Radio and TV University (P9)I| E& &
RAREZ)in July 1986. Mr. Li is accredited as a senior accountant
by Chongqging Municipal People’s Government.

Ms. Qin Yong, aged 46, has been a supervisor of the Company
since March 2016. She joined the Group in September 2004. She
is the deputy general manager of the finance department of the
Group and the manager of the finance department of Chongqging
Huitai Investment Co., Ltd.

Prior to that, Ms. Qin was the financial director of the finance
office of Sichuan Jianghua Machinery Plant (P0)I|;T E# #2828 )
from August 1991 to August 2004.

Ms. Qin graduated from Sichuan Institute of Light Industry ( P4 )l|
/L TEP7T) in July 1991, majoring in finance management. She
obtained the Certificate of National Accountants in March 1999.
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EEESENSAREERE

Mr. Zhou Daoxue, aged 52, has been a supervisor of the
Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in August 2009
as a supervisor of Hanhua Guarantee.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has been the chairman of the
board of directors of Chongging Yujiang Die-casting Co., Ltd (&
BT E AR A A)) since December 1999. Mr. Zhou was the
president of Chongaing Yujiang Die-casting Plant ( & & j# /T E &
i ) from December 1991 to November 1999.

Mr. Zhou retired as a supervisor of the Company on 12 March
2016.

Mr. Chen Zhonghua, aged 42, has been a supervisor of the
Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in January
2005 and held various positions, including the deputy general
manager of the strategy development department and general
manager of the information and technology department. In
addition, he has been a supervisor of Hanhua Guarantee since
August 2009, and the standing deputy general manager of
Sichuan Micro-credit and deputy general manager of Sichuan
Hanhua since January 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen
worked for the Chongging Wanzhou branch of Bank of China as a
risk assessment officer of risk management department.

Mr. Chen obtained his junior college degree in finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics ( 78 Bf &8 X
E) in June 1995. He graduated from Chongging Technology and
Business University (EE T AZ)in June 2005, majoring in
accounting.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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EEESheAREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, the members of senior management

are as follows:

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(Appointed on 13 March 2013,
resigned on 28 March 2016, and remains as
the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of
the Company)

Mr. Wang Dayong
(Appointed on 13 March 2013,
resigned on 19 April 2016, and remains as
the Vice Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of
the Company)

Mr. Cui Weilan
(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan
(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Yan Dong
(Appointed on 13 March 2013,
resigned on 9 August 2016)

Mr. Luo Xiaobo

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Ms. Li Jing

(Appointed on 27 August 2014)
Mr. Wang Feng

(Appointed on 10 July 2015)
Mr. Yuan Guoli

(Appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Ren Weidong

(Appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Lin Ting

(Appointed on 1 July 2013,

resigned on 30 December 2016)

Mr. Wang Yan

(Appointed on 12 July 2016)

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 52, details about Mr. Zhang’s

biography are set out in page 108 of this report.

Mr. Wang Dayong, aged 50, details about Mr. Wang Dayong’s

biography are set out in page 111 of this report.
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EEESENSAREERE

Mr. Cui Weilan, aged 45, details about Mr. Cui’s biography are
set out in page 112 of this report.

Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan, aged 42, has been the vice president of
the Company since March 2013. He is in charge of the guarantee
business of the Company. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 2008
and held various positions, including chief financial officer. He has
also been the vice president of Hanhua Guarantee since January
2013, and is currently the president of Hanhua Guarantee.

From March 1999 to December 2004 and May 2007 to February
2008, Mr. Zhou served in various positions in Loncin Group and
its subsidiaries, including the deputy general manager of strategy
improvement department and the assistant manager of domestic
business operation department of Chongqging Loncin Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd. (EEEZ T % (5£B)BMR2AF), the assistant
to general manager of Hunan Jinlong Guangyang Motorcycle Co.,
Ltd. CGHm ShEE 5 EEHE AR A R)) and the vice president of
Chonggaing Jinlong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (EE YERIF %
BB R~ 5]) . He worked for Tibet New Zhufeng Motorcycle Co.,
Ltd. (PR BRI EEFEE B R /AR ) as the deputy general manager
from September 2005 to April 2007.

Mr. Zhou obtained his junior college degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in June 1995.
He is currently studying an EMBA degree at Guanghua School of
Management of Peking University.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Yan Dong, aged 47, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013. Mr. Yan joined the Group in May
2006 and held various positions, including deputy general
manager of risk management department and vice president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yan served in various positions
in Chongging Branch of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. from
October 2000 to April 20086, including the deputy general
manager of the corporate banking department. He worked at
Chongaging Branch of China Construction Bank Corporation from
July 1991 to September 2000.

Mr. Yan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in engineering from
Sichuan Industrial College (Il T2 2 Fx) (currently known
as Xihua University (FEZERKE)) in July 1991. He obtained his
EMBA degree from Guanghua School of Management of Peking
University in January 2013.

Mr. Yan resigned as the vice president of the Company on 9
August 2016 with effective from the same day.

Mr. Luo Xiaobo, aged 37, has been the vice president of
the Company since March 2013. Mr. Luo joined the Group in
November 2004 and held various positions, including chief
operating officer. He has also been the vice president of Hanhua
Guarantee from January 2013 to April 2015.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo worked for Chongqging Huifeng
Property Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd (EEE L EHE L &
EFFEAREMLAE) from June 2004 to October 2004 and
Chongging Boma Property Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd. ( & E $H15
ERE T #FFEER AR ) from July 2002 to June 2004.

Mr. Luo obtained his bachelor’'s degree in mechanical design
and manufacturing and business administration from Southwest
Agricultural University (78 & 2% K 2) (currently known as
Southwest University (FER AEZ) ) in July 2002. He is currently
studying an EMBA degree at School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University.
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Ms. Li Jing, aged 46, has been the vice president of the
Company since August 2014. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Li was the translator and secretary to the director general of
Far Eastern Leasing Co., Ltd. (RERMEHR A A]), the sales
manager of Hitachi Electric ( B iZ & 8% ) Beijing office, the
assistant to the representative of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation ({¥ /& 8 7) Shenyang representative office, the
human resources director of Genpact (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (f51{A
# (KiE)AMR2AT) and the senior vice president of the human
resources department of BMW Brilliance Automotive Ltd.

Ms. Li graduated from the foreign language department of
Liaoning University majored in Japanese in 1992. She is
currently studying an EMBA degree at School of Economics and
Management of Tsinghua University.

Mr. Wang Feng, aged 48, has been the vice president of the
Company since July 2015. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang
served as the marketing director of Minsheng Financial Leasing
Co., Lld(REE£ BB E KD B 2AA) from November 2007
to June 2015, the deputy general manager of New Century
International Leasing Co., Ltd (Fitt A BB A EBR QA A)
from December 2001 to November 2007, the general manager
assistant of the Beijing Liaison Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(I REHHEE BB AR A A)) from November 1999 to December
2001, the senior manager of Huadao International Investment Co.,
Ltd. (FEEBEEHRE AR A F) from October 1995 to September
1997, and the manager of China National Technical import &
export Corporation (F BI#fii # H 0 422 7] ) from October 1991
to October 1995.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in international trade
from Beijing International Studies University in July 1991, and
obtained his master’s degree in finance from Imperial College
London in July 1998.

Mr. Yuan Guoli, aged 47, has been the vice president of the
Company since January 2016. He joined the Group in October
2006 and had served as the marketing director of Hanhua
Guarantee, the deputy general manager and general manager
of Liaoning Hanhua and the marketing director of the Company
successively.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yuan worked for the Liaoning office
of China Huarong Asset Management Corporation from March
2000 to September 2006. From August 1991 to February 2000,
he worked for the industrial credit department and asset risk
management department of Liaoning branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited.

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial economics
from the Department of Industrial Management of Liaoning
University in July 1991. He is currently studying an EMBA degree
at Guanghua School of Management of Peking University.

Mr. Ren Weidong, aged 39, has been the financial director and
general manager of capital finance department of our Company
since March 2013. He is in charge of capital finance headquarters
and administrative office of our Company. Mr. Ren joined the
Group in February 2009 and had served as the general manager
of the finance headquarters of Hanhua Guarantee. He has been
the Board secretary of the Company since September 2015.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ren served as the manager of
financing department of Duke Seals (Chongging) Ltd. (EE 7
SEZEHAR AR ) from October 2005 to January 2009. He
served in various positions in Loncin Group and its subsidiaries
from July 2000 to May 2005, including the head of the financial
section of Hunan Jinlong Guangyang Motorcycle Co., Ltd (5
SR NPBERBEAFMRAQA), the head of the financial section of
Chonggaing Jinlong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (EE YE R %
B AR /2 7)) and the head of the financial section and accountant
of Chongaqing Jinlong Motorcycle Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (EES)
BEEEERERRAF) .

Mr. Ren obtained his bachelor’s degree in auditing from Hangzhou
Institute of Electronics and Engineering (1M & F L 2 25%)
(currently known as Hangzhou Dianzi University (1 )1 & F&H% K
) in July 1999. He is currently studying the EMBA program in
Guanghua School of Management of Peking University. He was
also accredited as a junior accountant in May 2000 by Ministry
of Finance of the People’s Republic of China. He was admitted
as an affiliated member of The Association of International
Accountants in April 2008.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EEESENSAREERE

Mr. Lin Ting, aged 44, has been the operating director and
general manager of the operating management department of the
Company since July 2013, and has been the investor relations
director and general manager of the investor relations department
of the Company since January 2015. Mr. Lin joined the Group in
July 2012 and served as the deputy general manager of credit
market department and general manager of operating department
of Hanhua Guarantee.

Mr. Lin resigned as the investor relations officer and the general
manager of investor relations department of the Company on 30
December 2016 with effective from the same day.

Mr. Wang Yan, aged 46, has been the strategic cooperation
director of the Company since July 2016. Mr. Wang joined the
Group in April 2014 and served as the deputy general manager
and general manager in the general manager’s office of Beijing
branch office during 2014, he has also been the vice president of
Hanhua Guarantee Corporation Limited since April 2015.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang has been the chairman of the
board of Rizhao Yuanfang Property Co., Ltd. (BBREH B %A
fR A @] ) from January 2013 to January 2014, the deputy general
manager of Rizhao Steel Holding Co., Ltd. ( B BRI #E R AR A
7)) from January 2003 to January 2012, and the chairman of the
board of Hengshui Jinghua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(BKREFMWERZEBRAF) from January 1997 to January
2002.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Beijing Forestry University in July 2003.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
three executive Directors, seven non-executive Directors and five
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has adopted
the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code (“Corporate Governance Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). For the year ended
31 December 2016, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions except for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual (as further detailed in the paragraph headed “Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer” below).

Since 28 March 2016, the chairman of the Board ceased to be
the president of the Company, the Company has complied with
the Code Provision A.2.1.

TEERHRE

RE

B

B

RAT—EBNEFEKFEREER R
AMARMES LR RRERRN
B o RARERH EECH=-RRTE
E L RERTESURAEBILIENTT
EFEK -EZTZDIRMNET R E
FEMAR ([ EmRA) WEx+mARr i
XERTR ([EEERTA])TAIEX
([=rBIfE3X]) - EZ=2016F 12 A31HILF
€ AR AR B SPSF RGBS R
NEA2 MG (ZBEREERERITBAE 2
BBAEIHABETGEHERE - ALTET)RI
(E#E— 2 BEREEHNAT [ EERITHE
#Hl—8) o

E2016F3H28HE KRB EFERTHIE
EARRNRBR 2B AAFE BT
G EA2.11E

Annual Report 2016
—E-NEEERE

131



132

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring our
business and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the first session of
the Board has established five Board committees, including the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination and
remuneration committee (the “Nomination and Remuneration
Committee”), the strategic investment committee (the “Strategic
Investment Committee”), the executive committee (the
“‘Executive Committee”) and the risk management committee
(the “Risk Management Committee”). With the appointment
of the second session of the Board become effective on 13
March 2016, the second session of the Board has cancelled its
Executive Committee and has established four Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Strategic Investment Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and they
have carried out duties in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of three executive
Directors, seven non-executive Directors and five independent
non-executive Directors.

Details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All' Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial,
business family or other material/relevant relationship among the
members of the Board, except that Mr. Tu Jianhua is a cousin of
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, both are non-executive Directors.
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SEERHE

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

A summary of training received by the Directors for the year

ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Name of Directors

EEHSR

ABREEEXRE

FrEESENEE2016F12A31H ILFE#E
ZEIIERMAT

Attending Training Contents
BEIEIRA

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
Mr. Cui Weilan
Mr. Wang Dayong
(Appointed on 13 March 2016)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tu Jianhua
Mr. Duan Xiaohua
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang
Ms. Liu Tingrong
Ms. Wang Fangfei
Mr. Feng Yongxiang
Mr. Zhou Xinyu
(Retired on 12 March 2016)
Mr. Liu Bolin

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bai Qinxian
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu
Mr. Qian Shizheng
Mr. Ng Leung Sing
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin

Notes:
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(72016F3A13H & 1)
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B H+
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B ¥ F 5k A&
(72016F3A12HEE)
ZIEREE

BIIHITESE:

B K5 5 A&

HEREE

B A
REBEAE

W EE

A:  Trainings on corporate governance of listed companies, directors’

duties and the relevant matters organized by the Stock Exchange or

securities regulatory authorities;

B:  Special training, seminars, forums and conferences on topics such

as economics, finance and corporate management;

C: Reading materials related to requirements on corporate governance,

directors’ duties and internal control and risk management, etc.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. For the year ended 27 March 2016, Mr.
Zhang Guoxiang (“Mr. Zhang”) performed both of the roles of
chairman and president of the Group. Taking into account that
Mr. Zhang has been serving in the Group since its establishment
in 2004, the key role of Mr. Zhang in the senior management
team, as well as his high commitment to the setting up and
management of the business operation and business decision
of the Company and the strategic development plans of the
Group, the Board considered that the roles of chairman and
chief executive being performed by Mr. Zhang enables more
effective and efficient overall business planning, decision making
and implementation thereof by the Group. The Board is of the
opinion that it is in the best interests of the Group for Mr. Zhang to
assume the dual roles of chairman and chief executive.

Since 28 March 2016, Mr. Zhang ceased to be the president
of the Company, the Company has complied with the Code
Provision A.2.1.

Appointment, Change and Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), the Directors shall be elected
at the general meetings for a term of no more than three years,
and may be re-elected and re-appointed upon the expiry of such
term. The Company has implemented an effective mechanism
regarding the appointment of new Director. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will first discuss the matters in relation
to the appointment of new Director, and then present to the Board
as proposals, which will be subject to the approval at the general
meeting.
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On 3 March 2016, the resolutions for the election of the second
session of the Board and the Board of Supervisors were
approved at the first extraordinary general meeting in 2016. Mr.
Zhou Xinyu, one of the non-executive Directors, retired as an
non-executive Director. Mr. Wang Dayong was appointed as
an executive Director of the second session of the Board. Mr.
Zhou Daoxue retired as a shareholder representative supervisor
of the Company. Ms. Qin Yong was appointed as a shareholder
representative supervisor of the second session of the Board of
Supervisors of the Company. The appointment of the second
session of the Board and the Board of Supervisors became
effective on 13 March 2016. For details, please refer to the
relevant details in the circular dated 17 January 2016 and in the
announcement dated 3 March 2016 of the Company.

The Company has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with each of the Directors (including non-executive
Directors) and the Supervisors. The service contracts and the
letters of appointment are for a term of three years.

Regular Board Meetings

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board should
hold no less than four regular meetings annually, to be convened
by the chairman of the Board. Notices of not less than fourteen
days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with the opportunities to attend and include matters in
the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, the meeting notice, the agenda
and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or committee members within reasonable timeframe to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings.
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Meetings of the Board shall be held only if more than half of the
Directors are present, except for when the Board is considering
the matters of connected transaction as provided for under the
Articles of Association.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will be
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable timeframe after the date on

which the meeting is held.

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these

12 Board meetings

meetings is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors
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Attendance/Number of Board

HE BRTZESEEERY

BEEpgA
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang oR B 5 A4
Mr. Cui Weilan EREELLE
Mr.Wang Dayong EFREBEAE
(Appointed on 13 March 2016) (R2016F3 138 &£ )
Mr. Tu Jianhua RIBESRAE
Mr. Duan Xiaohua ERBEZEST A
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 25 H 2+
Ms. Liu Tingrong s+
Ms. Wang Fangfei FERELT
Mr. Feng Yongxiang RS KR ST A
Mr. Liu Bolin ZIEREE
Mr. Bai Qinxian Sk
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu HPEmLE
Mr. Qian Shizheng SR A
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REBEAE
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin N e
Mr. Zhou Xinyu AR FRE
(Retired on 12 March 2016) (H2016F3A12H E(T)

12/12
12/12
11/11

11/12
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12/12
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For the year ended 31 December 2016, 2 general meetings of the
Company was held and the attendance of the individual Directors
at the meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors

HZE2016F12A31 B ILFEHM > KA A
BRITOABRERAG - ERIEEHFEREKR
HBERER TR :

Attendance/Number of Board

BEERR HE BRBITZRERGRE
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang o B #E ST A 2/2
Mr. Cui Weilan EfHRETE 2/2
Mr. Wang Dayong FRERAE 1/1
(Appointed on 13 March 2016) (2016313 &)
Mr. Tu Jianhua REBERAE 2/2
Mr. Duan Xiachua ERBEEE A 2/2
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang Bl e 2/2
Ms. Liu Tingrong B3+ 2/2
Ms. Wang Fangfei FHELZLT 2/2
Mr. Feng Yongxiang A& 2/2
Mr. Zhou Xinyu B FEE 1/1
(Retired on 12 March 2016) (R2016F3A12HEE)
Mr. Liu Bolin RER A& 2/2
Mr. Bai Qinxian HREEE 2/2
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu B R R 5E & 2/2
Mr. Qian Shizheng Bt I ST A 2/2
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REERE 2/2
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin AW LA 2/2

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of
practice for carrying out securities transactions by the Company’s
Directors and supervisors. Having made specific enquiry with
all the Directors and supervisors, they have confirmed their
compliance with the relevant standards stipulated in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Duties performed by the Board and management

The Board shall report to the general meeting and exercise the
following powers, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and
are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

()  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(i) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements
(where applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
Directors; and

(vy To review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors
and senior management of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

The details of the senior management are disclosed in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in
this report.

Remuneration paid to the senior management (including three
Executive Director) for the year ended 31 December 2016 is as
follows:

EEREREEENTM
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Remuneration Range (RMB) Number of People

140

FMEE (ARMY) AR
2,000,000 and over 2,000,000 2,000,0007T & A 4
1,000,000 to 1,999,999 1,000,0007T £ 1,999,9997C 6
Below 1,000,000 1,000,0007C A 2

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance in respect of
legal action against its Directors.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee
comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Qian Shizheng
(independent non-executive Director), Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (non-
executive Director) and Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (independent non-
executive Director). Mr. Qian Shizheng is currently the chairman of
the Audit Committee.
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The main responsibility of the Audit Committee is to facilitate
the communication, supervision and verification in respect of
the Company’s internal and external auditing. Its main functions
and powers are, including but not limited to, proposing the
appointment or replacement of the external auditors, considering
and making suggestions on their remunerations, resignation
or dismissal; overseeing the Company’s internal audit system
and its implementation, and reviewing the group’s financial
and accounting policies and practices; auditing the financial
information of the Company and its disclosure; reviewing the
Company’s financial monitoring, internal monitoring and risk
management systems, auditing material connected transactions,
ensuring that the management has fulfilled its duties to establish
an effective internal control system; examining the Letter of Audit
Description provided by the external auditors to the management,
any material queries raised by the auditors to the management
in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
monitoring systems and the management’s response; and
formulating whistle-blowing policies and systems, etc.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 4 meetings of the
Audit Committee were held. The matters under discussion and
examination included:

1. The resolution regarding the annual financial report (draft) of
the Company for the year 2015;

2. The resolution regarding the annual report (draft) of the
Company for the year 2015;

3. The resolution regarding the internal control report (draft) of
the Company for the year 2015;

4.  The resolution regarding the re-appointment of the auditor of
the Company;
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5. The resolution regarding the reviewed consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the six months ended 30
June 2016 and the review report of the consolidated financial
statements;

6. The interim report (draft) and the announcement of interim
results (draft) of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2016; and

7. The resolution of considering and approving the description
of the internal control related matters of the Company.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members is set out in the
table below:

5 BARNARQFEZE20165F6A30H I61H
AEEBONAMHUBRERE HIS
HEREBHRENZR

6 BERARFBZE201656H30H LL61H
AR RERE (EfR) kxS

AE(ER)INZER R

~

AREAARNRRBERNAMEN RS
HHFANZER -

BEEFZBEREBELFEEHRNBRERT

Attendance/Number of

Name Audit Committee meetings held

g
"A BETZEFZEETERINE
Mr. Qian Shizheng B BEE 4/4
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2 H L+ 4/4
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin W ERE 4/4

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr.
Deng Zhaoyu (independent non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang (Chairman and executive Director) and Mr. Bai Qinxian
(independent non-executive Director). Currently, Mr. Deng Zhaoyu
is currently the chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The main responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board to formulate the recruitment
procedures and assessment standards for Directors and
senior management of the Company and conduct preliminary
assessment on the qualifications and conditions of candidates
to be appointed within its area of competence; study and
formulate the remuneration plans, performance appraisal systems
and incentive schemes of Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company, make suggestions to the Board
and supervise the implementation of plans and systems.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 2 meetings of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held. The matters
under discussion and examination included:

1. The resolution regarding the nomination of Mr. Li Xuan as
Vice President candidate (deputy general manager) of the
Company; and

2. The resolution regarding the nomination of Mr. Wang Xinhan
as Director of Operations of the Company.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will put forward the
above matters to the Board for approval in due course.

The attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:

TEERHRE

RARFHEZEENTIERERBHES
EREARRER SMEEASNELE
2 Fr AR ZE - S B AE AE B0 (BB AR A1
HETNSEZ BRI MREES EEM
ARASRERAENTFMIR EXE
RHEAREBT R NEESROER
VEBEHRAHNENENR -

REEFMHEZE SN EMBELE RN
P R R X R A UL AT BB

HZE2016F12A31H ILFEHIMH 2L A
FMEEe BTN eE LR LE
ENABFEWOT:

1 BRRERFHSLQABEAL (BlAR
EMREANZER K

2 MRERIFEAARELRERE
INCEES

RARFHEZEEHESENFHIERE
FEgERALFE-

REEFMEBGKE L EEROERE
RT%:

Attendance/Number of

Audit Committee meetings held
HE
EETREEFMESTEIANH

Name

#

Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BB LE
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang ofk B4 55 A
Mr. Bai Qinxian Bk kA

2/2
2/2
2/2
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversification of the Board
is beneficial for enhancing the performance of the Company.
Therefore, the Company has established the “Policy on
Diversification of Members of the Board” to ensure that when
determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider the diversification of members of the Board from various
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
All appointments to the Board shall follow the principle of
meritocracy, taking into account objectively the benefits of
diversification of members of the Board when considering the
candidates. The candidates of the Board are selected based on a
range of diversified perspectives, including but not limited to age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will disclose the
composition of the Board annually in the “Corporate Governance
Report” and monitor the implementation of the policy. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review the policy
when appropriate to ensure the effectiveness of the policy.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will discuss any
amendment that may need to make and make recommendations
to the Board for approval.

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Strategic Investment
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang (Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Tu Jianhua (non-
executive Director) and Mr. Wang Dayong (Deputy chairman and
executive Director). Currently, Mr. Zhang is the chairman of the
Strategic Investment Committee.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The primary responsibilities of the Strategic Investment
Committee are to examine and advise the Board on our long-term
development strategies and major investment decisions.

The written terms of reference of the Strategic Investment
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 1 meeting of the
Strategic Investment Committee was held. The matters under
discussion and examination included:

1. The resolution regarding the establishment of Chongging
Fumin Bank Co., Ltd.

The attendance of the Strategic Investment Committee members
is set out in the table below:

TEERHRE

BRREZBENTIERAER/YARAR
HERBBEMEARERFETHRILR
ExeRbEE-

B ER B E MBI R E NI
R AR R4 AT B B o
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T

Attendance/Number of
Strategic Investment
Committee meetings held
HES
CETEMREZESEINH

Name

i

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang ofk B #F 5t A
Mr. Tu Jianhua REELE
Mr. Zhou Xinyu B F A

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

With the appointment of the second session of the Board become

effective on 13 March 2016, the Executive Committee has been
cancelled.

1/1
1/1
1/1
HITZEE®
RE_EEFEE 2 T6B2016F3A13H

£
A BBUERITEE G-
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THE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Risk Management
Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang (Chairman and executive Director), Mr. Cui Weilan
(Executive Director), Mr. Duan Xiaohua (Non-executive Director).
Currently, Mr. Zhang is the chairman of the Executive Committee.

According to the “Rules of Procedures of the Risk Management
Committee of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.”, the primary
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are to
provide professional advice to the Board or making decisions on
professional matters according to the authority of the Board in
relation to the risk management.

The Risk Management Committee categorizes and streamlines
the risk items potentially arising from operation of the Company,
including strategic risks, financial risks, operational risks and legal
risks, and assigns the duties of monitoring, initial assessment,
formulating risk response strategy, implementation of strategy and
alert of risk to different functions and departments.

The Risk Management Committee worked with the Audit
Committee and internal audit department to perform full
evaluation on the construction and implementation of internal
control system as well as the effectiveness of the risk
management system of the Company in 2016.

The written terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, 1 meeting of the Risk
Management Committee was held. The matters under discussion
and examination included:

1. The resolution regarding the review of “Factoring Business
Operations Manual” and a series of factoring business
management measures.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The attendance record of the Risk Management Committee
members is set out in the table below:

CRERBE

RREEZEERELFERNBEREAR

Attendance/Number of
Risk Management
Committee meeting held

HE

Name

HH

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang ofk B #F 52 A
Mr. Cui Weilan ERRLE
Mr. Duan Xiaohua BRESLAE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of
the Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash
flows.

The senior management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the
Board to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s
financial statements, which are put to the Board for approval.
The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 221 to 224 of this report.

EETEAREEZSESEARY
1/7
1/7
1/7
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CHANGES OF MEMBERS OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Followed the trend of economic development, centered on the
core development concept of Partnership Finance and kept
adjusting our strategic layout, the Company has promoted the
businesses under each business group of the Company as well as
the reforming and upgrading of the management mode, and has
improved our comprehensive financial service capability. As at the
date of this report, the Company has adjusted the appointment of
senior management of Hanhua Financial, which are as follows:

Since 28 March 2016, the chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang, ceased to be the president of the Company and
remains as the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director;
the executive Director and executive president, Mr. Cui Weilan
was appointed as the president of the Company; the deputy
chairman of the Board, Mr. Wang Dayong, ceased to be the vice
president of the Company and remains as the deputy chairman
of the Board and an executive Director; the former marketing
director, Mr. Yuan Guoli, has been appointed as the vice president
of the Company and ceased to be the marketing director of the
Company.

In July 2016, the former vice president of the guarantee group,
Mr. Wang Yan, has been appointed as the strategic cooperation
director of the Company.

In August 2016, the former vice president of the Company, Mr.
Yan Dong, ceased to be the vice president of the Company and
appointed as the deputy governor of Chongging Fumin Bank Co.,
Ltd which company owned by the Company.

In December 2016, the former investor relations officer of the
Company, Mr. Lin Ting, resigned as the investor relations officer.

As at the date of this report, details of the Senior Management are
set out under the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibilities in relation to monitoring
the risk management and internal control system of the
Company. It also performs supervision and annual inspection on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system through the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee on an annual basis.

The Board has set up the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for providing professional advice on risk management
to the Board and making decisions on professional matters in
relation to risk management under the authorization of the Board.
The Risk Management Committee categorizes and streamlines
the strategic risks, financial risks, operational risks and legal
risks which potentially arise from operation of the Company, and
assigns the duties of monitoring, initial assessment, formulating
risk response strategy, implementation of strategy and alert of
risk to different functions and departments. These functions and
departments will then carry out initial risk information collection
and risk assessment, while the internal control and audit
department and the senior management of the Company will
supervise and improve the risk management, and report to the
Risk Management Committee as necessary.
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Based on the business nature of the Group, the Company
established the risk management special committee at
the subsidiary level, which focused on the management of
business risks such as operational risks under the supervision
of the Risk Management Committee of the Board. The risk
management special committee has three tiers and six regional
risk review centres, which substantially optimize and reform
the control procedures of credit risks, operational risks and
legal compliance risks according to the principles of separation
of front, middle and back offices and effective supervision
and control. The risk management special committee also
formulates regulatory documents such as the standard operating
procedure and measures for managing operational risks, with
a view to establishing an internal control and risk management
system covering our whole business process. The business
department collects raw information on risk and conducts
risk assessment; the risk management department formulates
business risk strategy and raise business risk resolutions; and
the internal control and audit department and the management
of the Company are responsible for relevant supervision and
improvement work, and, where necessary, report to the Risk
Management Committee.

We carry out communication in a timely manner regarding the
identified major internal control flaws and prudently assess
potential risks. The responsible department shall propose relevant
corrective actions and obtain approval from the management prior
to the implementation. The management and the internal control
and audit department monitor the implementation status and
ensure timely and proper remediation of relevant monitoring flaws.

The Group has formulated the policies and procedures for
handling and disclosing inside information, which are set out
in the section headed “Management of Inside Information and
Insiders” of the Administrative Rules for Information Disclosure
of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. ( ¢B#FE LMD AR A
SEWEEEPE) ). The information to be disclosed shall be
duly reviewed and approved by the Board to ensure that insider
information is updated, accurate, adequate and effective, and
shall be closely monitored after disclosure.
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The Board has set up the Audit Committee, which is responsible
for reviewing the Company’s internal control, ensuring that the
management has fulfilled its duties to establish an effective
internal control system, and proactively or, as delegated by the
Board, conducting analysis of key investigation findings and the
management’s response in relation to relevant internal control
issues.

The Company has established the internal control and audit
department at its headquarters, which performs independent
auditing work under the direction of the Audit Committee
under the Board, conducts independent examination and
review on all operational and management activities of the
Company, and comprehensively assesses the system building
and implementation particulars regarding the Company’s
internal control, and supervises and reviews the effectiveness
of internal control. The Company continues to streamline and
improve its internal control in accordance with the requirements
of the relevant laws and regulations in order to prevent risk. It
has gradually established various rules and policies regarding
corporate management, business operations, daily management
and other related rules. The existing policies basically cover
the existing operating bodies, management departments and
various business processes and operation procedures, providing
reasonable protection for preventing all kinds of risks.

The Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee,
in collaboration with the Company’s internal control and audit
department, have carried out a comprehensive assessment
and review on the effectiveness of the system building and
implementation particulars of the Company’s internal control
and the effectiveness of its risk management system for 2016.
The Company considers that those systems are effective and
adequate. Such review shall be performed at least once each year
and shall cover relevant year(s).
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total remuneration
paid or payable to the Company’s auditors, KPMG and other
accounting firms, for audit and audit related services amounted
to a total of RMB3.95 million, and amounts paid for non-auditing
services amounted to RMB1.98 million, totaling RMB5.93 million.

An analysis on the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG and
remuneration paid or payable to other accounting firms for the
provision of annual auditing services to subsidiaries is as follows:

Services by the Auditors

BB ET =

HZE2016F12A31B L F & BxE M
HAB RS B AT BN T AR R A
EEHSTMES R EMETMESH
NENEREAARBI05EE T B IEX
HRGEENARE1IBEETL a1 AA
R¥5983HE8 L.

AT T 8 R BN & 8 S AT LS 4R
T

Amount (RMB)

REMREER SHE(ARY)
Auditing services: ZE R

Annual auditing services FEZERS 3,950,000
Non-auditing services: FEZERT -

Other audit related services EMEHHBEN RS 1,980,000
Total 4“5t 5,930,000

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The joint company secretaries of the Company is responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Mr. Ren
Weidong was appointed as one of our joint company secretaries
of the Company on 18 September 2015.
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In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engaged Ms. Lai Siu Kuen, a senior
manager of KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial
service provider), as another joint company secretary to assist
Mr. Ren to discharge his duties as company secretary of the
Company. The primary corporate contact person at the Company
is Ms. Peng Ying, the general manager of investor relations of the
Company.

Mr. Ren and Ms. Lai have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2016.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
STAKEHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders and stakeholders are essential for enhancing
investor relations and understanding of the Group’s business,
performance and strategies. The Company also recognises
the importance of timely and nonselective disclosure of the
Company’s information, which will enable shareholders and
investors to make informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity
for shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the Board
Committee of the Company will attend the annual general meeting
to answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditors of the
Company will also attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
contents of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of auditors.
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The Company has maintained continuous close relationship
with stakeholders, including customers, employees, suppliers,
regulatory authorities and the public. The Company devoted
to balance the opinions and interests of the stakeholders
through constructive communication, so as to set the long-term
development direction for the Company and the regions where
our business operates.

Taking Haier Electronics, the major strategic cooperation
customer of the Company’s supply chain financial business, as
an example. Established in 1984, Haier Electronics is one of the
world’s largest manufactures of household electronic appliances
and has a large number of distributors in China. Since 2012,
Haier Finance Co., Ltd. has established business relationship with
Hanhua Guarantee, a subsidiary of the Company, for the provision
of supply chain financial services to distributors of the distribution
channel of Haier Group, and has maintained such business
cooperation for over five years. Despite the close relationship with
Haier Group, Shell Oil and other major customers, the Company
holds a firm position on adopting the same credit requirements
as other customers and makes provision according to industry
regulations. The Company is aware that the risks in cooperating
with major customers mainly arise from their operating risks,
hence it does not fully rely on the credit of the major customers,
rather, it applies strict screening on SME borrowers through credit
rating system so as to diversify the operating risks of its major
clients.

The Company has actively promoted relations with the investors
and the communication with those persons in the investment
sector. The Board has dedicated to provide the shareholders
with clear and comprehensive information about the Group by
publishing notices, announcements, circulars as well as interim
and annual reports. The latest version of the Company’s Articles
of Association has been published on our Company’s website
(www.hanhua.com) and the Stock Exchange website, respectively.
Shareholders and stakeholders can log in our Company’s website
and acquired more information about the Group on the “Investor
Relations” page.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at the general meetings
of the Company, including the election of individual Directors, for
review and approve.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a
timely manner after each general meeting.

CONVENING AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

According to Article 64(3) of the Articles of Association, when
an extraordinary general meeting is requested in writing by a
shareholder individually or shareholders collectively holding at
least 10% (inclusive of 10%) of the outstanding shares with voting
rights of the Company, the Board shall convene an extraordinary
general meeting within two months.

According to Article 67 of the Articles of Association, when the
Company is to hold an annual general meeting, shareholder(s)
holding at least 3% (inclusive of 3%) of the shares of the
Company with voting rights shall have the right to put forward
temporary proposals in writing to the Company, and the Company
shall list the issues in the temporary proposal that fall within the
scope of responsibility of the general meeting in the meeting
agenda. The temporary proposal submitted by the shareholder
shall be subject to the following conditions:

1. the contents shall not contravene any requirements of laws
and regulations, and shall fall with the business scope of the
Company and the scope of responsibilities of the general
meeting;
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CRERRE

2. the proposal shall cover a clear subject with specific issues
to be resolved; and

3. the proposal shall be in writing and submitted or delivered to
the Board 10 days before the general meeting takes place.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
candidate nomination procedures for Directors are available on
the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could email their enquiries to
pengying@hanhua.com or mail their enquiries in writing to the
Company’s head office in Beijing, the PRC at 13/F, East Tower,
World Financial Center, No. 1 East Third Ring Middle Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The report is the first annual report on environment, society and
governance by Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (referred to
as the “Company”; together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
(Stock Code: 3903). This report was prepared primarily according
to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”,
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. This report covers the work
in the financial year ended 31 December, 2016 (the “Reporting
Period”) and unless otherwise specified, including all companies
within the Group, which aims to introduce to the shareholders of
the Company the work on the aspects of the environment, society
and governance. Please also refer to the Corporate Governance
Report in the Annual Report of 2016 for details of corporate
governance of the Company.

As an inclusive financial institution committed to offering
comprehensive financial services, we are deeply convinced that
corporate social responsibility is closely linked with our business
decision. By adhering to operation of sustainable development in
economic, social and environmental aspects, we aim to safeguard
investor’s interests and provide valuable service to the society.

In 2016, the Company conducted a comprehensive materiality
assessment to identify the Company’s business impact at the
economic, environmental and social levels and topics receiving
attention from investors. We identified 11 important issues in this
assessment, which have been stated in this report:
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REHERERHRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In compliance with regulations in The Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and
The Securities and Futures and Companies Legislation
(Uncertified Securities Market Amendment) Ordinance
2015, the Company actively practices measures to improve
environmental management while encouraging staff to
reduce pollution and waste during work to minimize the
impact of Company business as well as provided products
and service on the environment.

As the Company operates mainly in office, it is committed to
minimizing office work’s impact on environment by means of
environmental protection measures in offices, including:

° Encouraging staff to save paper, adopt duplex
printing, reuse single-sided printing documents as
much as possible, apply waste paper of print error for
reimbursement paper and reduce paper consumption as
much as possible.

e Using LED and reduce energy consumption resulted
from lighting; setting different on-off time for roof
advertisement according to differences in summer
and winter; uniformly make technical treatment
for wintertime and summertime opening time and
temperature setting; requesting staff to turn off air
conditioners and lights when leaving if offices or meeting
rooms are not occupied to minimize electrical energy
consumption and emission of greenhouse gas.

e Trying to arrange telephone conference instead of face-
to-face meeting. The Company’s institutions are all
over China, so lots of meetings and staff trainings are
requested in work; the form of telephone conference
effectively reduces site layout due to face-to-face
meeting as well as transportation and accommodation
for off-site staff.
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e Advocating food conservation and halt to wastage,
appointing special people to supervise staff dinning in
canteen and adopting proper punishing measures on
those wasting food.

At the same time of endeavoring to implement the above
environmental protection measures, the Company actively
promotes Office Automation (OA) and realizes the launch
of OA system in 2016 in order to regulate Company’s
fundamental management procedures, assisting in cutting
Company cost, greatly reducing office procedures and office
time while saving office supplies of paper and pens as well
as reducing time cost and financial cost for the Company.
On the other hand, the system facilitates communication
between staff and superiors, smoothes information feedback
and emphasizes its advantage under the condition of lots of
branch offices all over China, thus providing a stage for staff
to elaborate their wisdom and initiative.

As at 31 December, 2016, the Company’s major
environmental data (covering Chongging Headquarters
region, not including other branches in Mainland China and
institutions in Hong Kong region) are as follows:

(Important ~ Total Volume of Sewage 12,941.7m?®
Issue 1) Discharge

(Important  Total Volume of Solid Waste 400 m3
Issue 2) Discharge

(Important  Electricity Consumption 1,149.445

Issue 3) kilowatt/hour

Water Consumption 12,941.7m?

Office Paper Consumption 2.1315 tons

Notes: Company’s sewage emission volume equals to the water
volume shown in the received water fee bill.

Because of the Company’s business property, the
Company is not aware of any major production of
harmful wastes.
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The Company will continue to devote itself to implementing
measures of energy saving, wastes recycle and reuse as
well as office automation while actively practicing other
environmental protection measures.

SOCIETY

The Company values talents and has been devoted
to absorbing and retaining the best talents for its own
sustainable growth. By way of valuing and treating staff
as equals, safeguarding their rights and offering them
opportunities of training and development, the Company
gives the full and best play to them.

1. Employment and Work Routine:
(1) Employment. (Important Issue 4)
As at 31 December 2016, the Company had
employed 1,874 staff in Chongging headquarters,
Hong Kong and all subsidiaries in Mainland China.

Region distribution:

Region Distribution

Region Percentage
Hong Kong 0.2%
Mainland China 99.8%
In total 100%

Age distribution:

Age Distribution

Age Percentage
20-29 36.0%
30-39 52.9%
40-49 9.7%
>50 1.4%
In total 100.0%
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In strict compliance with laws and regulations of
The Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China,
The Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China, The Law of Safeguarding Women’s
Interests and Rights of the People’s Republic of
China and Employment Ordinance practiced in
Hong Kong, China, the Company upholds the
principle of equality between genders and employs
women employees who take up about 44% of
the total number of staff. The Company treats
employees equally and has never influenced their
recruitment, treatment, promotion, etc. because of
their nation, race, nationality, religion, age, sexual
orientation, political party, marital status and other
social identities.

The Company has strictly complying with
national and regional laws and regulations during
recruitment activity, equally treating each candidate
and has never influenced his/her employment
due to his/her nation, race, nationality, gender,
religious belief, age, sex orientation, political party,
marital status and other social identities. The
establishment of labor relations has all been based
on legality, fairness and equal negotiation.

When terminating labor relations, the Company
has strictly executing related national and
local regulations. For resignation requested
by employees, the Company negotiates with
employees and respects their decision, and
proceeds with labor contract termination,
labor contract termination upon negotiation,
dismission and other procedures in accordance
with regulations. For discharge resulting from
employee violating laws, regulations and discipline,
the Company implements the discharge within
the scope allowed by laws and regulations while
referring to regulations stipulated in the “Employee
Manual”.
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In 2016, the Company made great efforts to
establish “double channels” of professional order
and management order, released “Tentative Method
for Position and Rank Management” and “Tentative
Method for Staff Promotion Management”,
designed diversified promotion channels for staff
to provide them with systematic guarantee and
satisfied the development need of professional
technique talents and management talents.

The Company has set up lawful, complying,
objective and fair comprehensive salary system
to guarantee that an employee’s salary matches
with his/her contributed values. The Company
fixes employee salary based on agreement with
the employee upon equal negotiation, which is
higher than the minimum salary standard regulated
by laws in the local place, and offers performance
salary according to employee’s performance. The
Company invests human resources cost equal to its
profit performance to ensure win-win and equality
between company gains and staff interests.

The Company has improved its welfare system: we
provide social insurance and housing accumulation
fund to employees and provide them with social
guaranteeing treatment according to laws;
moreover, the Company offers integrated welfare
projects: health check, commercial insurance,
working years allowance, work lunch or subsidy,
etc., and presents part of welfare projects to their
families.
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(2) Health and Safety (Important Issue 5)

The Company has always attached importance to
employee’s occupational health and safety, so it
complies with laws and regulations, including the
“Labor Law of the People's Republic of China”,
“Labor Contract Law of the People's Republic
of China” and “Implementation Regulations of
Labor Contract Law of the People's Republic of
China”, establishes and maintains safe, healthy
and humanistic office environment to guarantee
employee’s interests and rights.

In 2016, there was no work-related death or work-
related injury of staff at the workplace.

According to requirements of national and regional
governments, the Company practices a working
hour system of no more than 8 working hours
every day and no more than 40 hours every week.
Meanwhile, based on the principle of staff work-
life balance, we safeguard their reasonable holiday
rights and interests and provide them with all kinds
of vocations and holidays: public off-days, statutory
holidays, annual leave, marital leave, maternity
leave and paternity leave, nursing leave, funeral
leave, sick leave, absence leave, work-related injury
leave, etc.
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The Company highly values the construction
and promotion of corporate culture, cares about
employee’s physical and psychological health and
attaches increasing importance to enterprise’s
cultural accumulation as it develops and grows.
Currently, the Company has upgraded its corporate
culture to focus on “credibility, simplicity and
sharing”. In 2016, the Company’s human resources
head office elaborately planned and organized 8th
March International Women’s Day Aromatherapy
Lecture, “Liver Caring Day” activity, Health
Ambassador Selection, WeChat Health Knowledge
Push, the Double Ninth Festival Photography Match
and other activities of employee caring, culture and
health. At the same time, all branches in China
also conducted characteristic enterprise cultural
activities based on actual needs.

At the 12th anniversary of the Company’s
establishment, the Labor Union, Human Resources
Department and Brand Department as well as
office formed a project team and jointly planned
and organized seven large events, which were
essay competition, blessings video collection
and release, 12-day Online Team Running Match,
Offline Running Match on 23rd July, brand all-
round upgrading, etc. Moreover, on 28th July,
with the issue of “Return to Zero and Make
New Achievements Again”, a letter to all staff by
Chairman Zhang Guoxiang, all business groups and
branches in China conducted simple yet grandeur
anniversary celebration activities. This series of
activities not only boosted the enterprise brand
image but perfectly combined enterprise with life to
enhance staff’'s happiness.
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(3) Development and Training (Important Issue 6)

As the exemplary model of inclusive finance
in China, the Company highly values staff
development and self transcendence while
continuously improving staff's professional
competitiveness and comprehensive quality. It
has always been our belief that: staff is the very
core “assets” of enterprise and talent training and
development is the “driving force” to sustainable
development.

In 2016, by adhering to the concept of “creating
value for enterprise and facilitating staff
development”, the Company’s training work
closely considered the actual need of each
business group’s strategic development. As
a result, it developed new training model with
remarkable performance. The training work focused
on business personnel ability improvement,
management officer leadership improvement, new
staff training, online learning system establishment
and operation, etc., the overall training mechanism,
system, platform and management mechanism
has grown more sophisticated and mature. The
past year of 2016 witnessed 531 training classes
(including online and offline classes), 31,643
people receiving training and 2,039 days of
training time, once again setting a new record
of training coverage rate and per capita training
hour. Meanwhile, the Company selected and sent
over 30 people from key business functions and
core management team to participate in cross-
field/transnational exchange, go to international
and domestic well-known colleges and institutions
to further their study, covering strategy, reform,
innovation, organization design, etc., so as to equip
key talents with international outlook and cutting-
edge information and skills.
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(4) Labor Code: (Important Issue 7)

The Company strictly complies with the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention of
Juvenile”, “Special Rules on the Labor Protection
of Female Employees” and other laws and
regulations, as well as the local labor code and
ordinance where employees are located, including
the “Implementation Regulations on the Labor
Protection of Female Employees of Chongging”,
conforms to the national and regional regulations
in recruitment and staff administration, treats all
staff fairly and equally, applies no discrimination
policy and never refuses to recruit infectious
pathogen carriers out of their sickness. Before the
establishment of employment relations, we ensure
strict identity screening and have never had any
case of hiring minors (child labor). The relations
between the Company and employees is one
featured fairness equality; whether or not working
in the Company is allowed or forbidden by laws
and the employee’s voluntary choice.
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RELERERRE

Operation Practice

(1) Supply Chain Management (Important Issue 8)

The Company maintains cooperation relations with
many suppliers who provide all kinds of goods,
equipment, materials and services. Suppliers of
the Company must responsibly operate business
in compliance with our environment, society and
governance principles.

In terms of office supplies procurement, the
Company combines online and offline procurement,
strictly controls process and chooses the best after
adopting the principle of comparing different prices.
The establishment of equal, harmonious, mutual-
trust cooperation relations with suppliers can assist
the Company in managing potential environmental
and social risks and improving operation efficiency
as well.

In 2016, the Company was not in the knowledge
of any actual or potential major negative influence
from any suppliers on commercial ethnics,
environmental protection and labor measures.
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(2)  Product Responsibility (Important Issue 9)

The Company is committed to providing
outstanding customer experience and ensuring that
the products and services by the Company are
lawful, effective and safe.

Because of the business nature of the Company,
the Company possesses lots of information
about enterprises and individual customers and
attaches great importance to protecting customer
information security in compliance with the “Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other Laws and regulations, by means
of the following measures:

a. Enhance customer’s self-protection awareness
and avoid information revealing from the
source. At the same time of business
publication and processing, we properly
conduct warning of information security so
that customers clearly understand the harm
of information security revealing, how to
strengthen information protection, identify the
authenticity of inductive information, know
about information theft method and how to
deal with information revealing, etc.; in this
way, customers can build adequate precaution
awareness to avoid individual information
revealing in their daily life. For example, we
adopt measures like: remind customers to
take with them cancelled contracts, receipts
and certificates printed with the Company’s
seals and do not throw away so that people
with ulterior motive will not have access
to them and risk hazard will not form; for
unapproved customer’s business application
documents, we will return related documents
from customers or timely destroy them upon
their requirements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Strengthen internal management to formulate
long-effect mechanism. On one hand,
establish improved customer information
management mechanism, clearly regulate the
collection, utilization and storage management
of customers’ information and set limitation
on operator’s access to information and
contents according to authorization and
roles in the business system, for example:
customer manager only has access to the
related information of customers over whom
he is authorized to manage; middle and back
front personnel proceed with desensitization
of related management information of no risk
such as customer’s phone number; properly
keep customer individual data and forbid
showing it to unrelated personnel randomly;
particularly individual credit system, set
up special position of credit search, one
person for one position and record each
borrowing track with regards to the borrowing
authorization and scope strictly regulated in
file borrowing and reading.

Enhance position management, strictly identify
positions involving customer information and
secrets and forbid unrelated personnel contact
the confidential information. Strictly regulate
resigned staff’'s handing-over of files involving
customer information and demand them to
sign “Resigned Staff Confidentiality Promise
Letter”.
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REHERERHRE

Enhance monitoring and accountability,
conduct irregular review on the standardization
of customer file keeping and reading as well
as detect and rectify hazards and loopholes
in customer information management work
without delay. Any “inside men” acquisition
of customer information and file illegally and
selling individual information to lawbreakers
will be severely punished and reported to
judicial authority once detected (according to
the Amendment to the Criminal Law of the
People’s Republic of China (VIl), any revealing
or illegally selling individual information
and files by internal employees in finance
and other industries shall be sentenced
to imprisonment or penalty). Practically
eliminate the phenomenon of non-compliance
with regulation and continuity of prohibited
misconduct so as to block loopholes of
leakage of confidential information by means
of monitoring and accountability.

Strengthen customers information security and
confidentiality management with technological
approach.

First, management of confidential computers
and confidentiality revealing information
system. Confidential information must be
stored and treated in computers or information
system. Confidential computers shall be
registered for record and labeled while
confidential information system shall meet the
requirement of different level protection, both
of which are strictly forbidden to connect the
Internet and other public information networks.
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Second, medium use and keeping.
Confidential mobile storage medium storing
confidential information must not be used in
non-confidential computers or non-confidential
systems; use of non-confidential mobile
storage medium to store and treat confidential
information is forbidden; If no protective
measures complying with requirements are
taken, it is strictly prohibited to exchange
information between secret involving
computers or secret involving information
systems and the internet or other public
information networks. Connecting mobile and
individual’s medium or electronic device with
storage function to confidential computers
or confidential information system is strictly
prohibited.

Third, we have established internal network,
external network and non-military region
segregation on the Internet level of business
system by means of security devices so as
to realize secure and controllable visit of
the Internet; we also have set up intrusion
inspection, loophole screening and log
auditing on the application level to ensure
stable operation of each system and
avoid customer’s information being lost
and changed while establishing improved
information security system to ensure that
the daily customer behavior is secure and
compliant.
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In 2016, the Company was not in the
knowledge of any violation of regulation, rule
and voluntary rules including but not limited
to products and services, market promotion
(including advertisements, promotion and
sponsorship) and property rights (including
intellectual property rights) in terms of
providing and using the Company’s products
and services or any event of significant
influence on the Company.

In 2016, the Company timely revealed
information regarding related products and
services, group strategy, investment and
consultancy, etc. on Internet and WeChat
public account. The public opinion monitoring
of mainland media and research on targeted
markets by the Company shows positive
attitude and feedback to us.

(3) Corporate Governance and Anti-corruption

(Important Issue 10)

The Company strictly complies with laws and
regulations including the “Company Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. It is committed to
maintaining high-level corporate governance,
makes decision and deployment through each
professional committee and related professional
committees and special work teams under
operation level and establishes related mechanism
and system centering around human resources
management, financial resources management,
technological resource management, information
resource management, enterprise cultural building
and risk control system with the aim of formulating
common behavioral guidance for staff, giving
instructions on daily work performance and
meeting the requirement of safety, efficiency, green
and harmony of enterprise operation in aspects of
system, resources and personnel. Please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report in the Annual
Report of 2016 of the Company for details of our
corporate governance.
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The Company adopts zero tolerance principle in
anti-corruption and vocational ethnics constraint,
formulates related regulations and decision
procedures and strictly standardize employee’s
behavior by providing vocational ethnics training
and signing “Integrity Building Promise Letter” with
them when they are on board.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has not
incurred any lawsuit regarding the Company or staff
embezzlement and corruption.

Community (Important Issue 11)

Since establishment, the Company has regarded SMEs
and disadvantaged groups as service objectives,
stayed committed to public welfare activities, performed
corporate social responsibilities and made great
contribution in aspects of alleviating disasters, helping
the disabled and elderly and supporting education,
which is to say, we assist others with action and
promote the spreading of positive energy in the society
with our own efforts.

In the beginning of 2016, in order to make families in
poverty-stricken region to feel social caring in winter and
help children there have a warm winter, the Company
carried our public interest donation activity themed
“Old Clothes with Deep Affection”, with each business
group and branch donating 3,643 clothes to 19 receiver
institutions.
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We have actively responded to the call of Chongging
Municipality Education Development Fund to participate
in the “Dream Comes True in Golden Autumn”, an
education assistance activity of Chongqging, by donating
RMB100,000 to realize dreams of poverty-stricken
new college students; moreover, in order to give each
child a happy childhood, the Company donated 16,000
children’s wear to poverty-stricken and stay-at-home
children in Zhong County, Fengdu County, Wulong
County and other poor counties in Chongging on
Children’s Day of 2016.

In January 2017, in the 6th China Public Welfare Festival
in Beijing, the Company Financial was awarded 2016
“China Public Welfare Practice Award” with its many
years of continuous investment in social responsibility
and public welfare project fields.

In the future, the Company will continue to explore an
inclusive financial road featured its own characteristics,
try our best to build a full brand inclusive financial
institution and serve more groups with a heart of awe,
craftsmanship and kindness.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

REPORT OF DIRECTORS EEgRE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the EFeELRARRREEAEEEHE2016
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 F12A31B IEFEREAREEZT B R

December 2016. o
CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL PEIERREZREBE
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on 13 March 2013 KRR ZMR2013F3 138 & A B 5% i}
as a company with limited liability. The Company’s H-shares (the LB BRD B BR A F) e AR &) B HAR IR 1D

“Shares”) were listed on the Stock Exchange on 19 June 2014. (IR ])R2014F6 198 £ B 2 T £
o
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEEK

The scope of business of the Company as reflected on the AAREEPRIKEHRE RN ETREE
business license includes investment business, investment B REEBRIEELRHR
management and investment advisory.

The Group mainly offers diversified and comprehensive financial REBXZFEBERER NEBER BB
services to serve the financing and business needs of SMEs and e eRRE EAEELRERES

microenterprises under several business lines such as credit X¥BBBErATEMP/NILERES
guarantee, small loans, internet finance, financial factoring, capital bR E S RARG AR 2PN EZE
management and financing leases in China. WREREBFEZ-

RESULTS E

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 NEFEHZE2016F12A31 B ILFER ¥4
are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on BN AREF225MAHIERRK
page 225 of this report.
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ESEHG

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group as at 31 December 2016
and a discussion on the Group’s future business development
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Business Overview” and
“Prospects” under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report respectively. Descriptions of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided
in this Report of the Board of Directors on pages 184 to 185.
Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2016 can be found in this report of the Board of Directors on
pages 186. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Financial Highlights on pages 7 to 13 of this report. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, important relationships with its stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations are contained and
available in this Report of the Board of Directors on page 197,
page 153 and page 198, respectively. The above discussions
constitute part of this report of the Board of Directors.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the dividend payment of RMBO0.04 per
Share (2015: RMB5 cents per Share) to the Shareholders with
ratio of around 80%. It is expected that the dividend payment
will be despatched to the Shareholders before 19 July 2017. The
final dividend is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”)

The final dividend is the final dividend for the financial year ended
31 December 2016, which is based on the Company’s actual
distributable profit as at 28 February 2017. The reason and details
on the basis of its actual distributable profit as at 28 February
2017 are set out and available in the paragraph headed
“Distributable Reserves” on page 180 of this report of the Board
of Directors.
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TAX RELIEF (H SHAREHOLDERS) BEE%E (HRERR)
Non-resident enterprise Shareholders (ERLERR

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, effective R IK2008F1 A1B £ (PEARKER
on 1 January 2008, and other related provision of implementation, Bl {ZEMETE) MABEBEGED  HE
the Company shall withhold the enterprise income tax at the rate HIHAR A R B e 3EE R ERE - KA A
of 10% for non-resident enterprise, Shareholders whose name ER10%M B ERIDRBUCENMER -
appear on the register of H Shareholders.

Non-resident individual Shareholders EREBEARR

Pursuant to the Circular (Guo Shui Han No. [2011] 348) issued R 95 BB R B0 75 B B A Bk [2011]3485%
by the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company 1&g ARAIZBAIEERHBEABRERINN
shall withhold and pay the non-resident personal income tax IR REARMEH  BIEIEEREHREA
for the non-resident H shareholders. Non-resident individual J% 3R B 8 B 2R B e [ 25 2B 9 A Ui 17 s e AP
Shareholders are entitled to enjoy relevant preferential tax Bl BB MEPIERKEZENRTE =X
treatment provided that the countries in which they reside in have B e =

entered into double taxation treaties with the PRC and there are

relevant provisions of taxation arrangement between China and

Hong Kong and Macau.

Where the countries in which non-resident individual H Y e e B AT KA1 0% R R 89 175 3 B Y
Shareholders reside have entered into taxation treaties with the FERHBRBEARE AATRRE GEER
PRC and the tax rates stipulated therein are lower than 10%, the MBEAZZ BB EFBEEINE) (BIX
Company will apply on behalf of these individual Shareholders to MR R NE2015F F60RMETE A
seek entitlement of relevant treatment under the taxation treaties HEEZXBERABZFBENERD -
according to the requirements of the Administrative Measures for

Non-resident Taxpayers to Benefit from the Taxation Treaties (No.

60 of the Announcement of the State Administration of Taxation

for 2015.

For Hong Kong residents, Macau residents and non-resident HEEBEER BRABRKHEMEFRHIT L
individual H Shareholders who are residents of the countries or 10% 1 2 13 32 19 B K A0 3 (= 19 9F /& RHIR
regions that have entered into taxation treaties with the PRC with AR AR EIR10%HEERINA A
the tax rate stipulated at 10%, the Company shall withhold the NGRS

personal income tax at the rate of 10%.
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For those non-residential individual H Shareholders who are
residents of the countries or regions that have entered into
taxation treaties with the PRC stipulating tax rates higher than
10% but lower than 20%, the Company shall withhold the
personal income tax at the applicable tax rates stipulated in the
relevant taxation treaties.

For those non-residential individual H Shareholders who are
residents of the countries or regions that have entered into
taxation treaties with the PRC stipulating tax rate at 20%, who are
residents of the countries or regions that have not entered into
any taxation treaties, or otherwise, the Company shall withhold
the personal income tax at the rate of 20%.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
last five financial years are set out on page 7 of this report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The estimated net proceeds from initial public offering along with
the partial exercise of the over-allotment options amounted to
approximately RMB1,438.6 million, which were applied in the
manners set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 June
2014, of which approximately 70% of the funds were used to
increase the capital base of our micro and small loan business,
approximately 20% were used to increase the capital base of our
credit guarantee business and approximately 10% were used for
product development and working capital for the year ended 31
December 2016.
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MAJOR BANKING PARTNERS/SUPPLIERS FEAERT HED

The five major banking partners of the Group each provided AEBNAEKREGERITD AIRHEBRME
54.8% of the bank financing we guaranteed. The largest banking REVERTTRRE B54.8% mAAERITIRME
partner accounted for 18.5% of the total financing the Group AAEBEERAOMEBEH18.5% °
guaranteed.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group does not have AERAEENEBETEED AEFTETES
major suppliers. e

MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEF

Our customers primarily include SMEs, micro-enterprises and AEEREPEZRERPHMEERBEAR
individuals. For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue F-REE2016F12831B It FEE BB
derived from our five largest customers accounted for less than AREPHBAGEFEERFASFHA
30% of our total net fee and interest income. 9 EE BIHE 7A30% ©

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any BMEEESARSEANBEZHE AR (E
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own BEEMA)EMEREARRARESEITRAS%
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any NWERNEZHORERARNEERARZFES

interests in the Group’s five largest customers. s o
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ME BERRZRE

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the HE2016F12H3HIEFERN AR
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December TEENYE BEERSEEHFBIRN
2016 are set out in note 20 to the financial statements. B 75 2R = M9 520 o

SHARE CAPITAL g 2%

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during BHE2016F12H3 B IEFERN  AARR
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out on pages 229 to R BB FFIBH N A REF2298 £2308
230 of the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” in the M BHRER (AR EEREFHEK] -
financial statements in this report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on pages 229 to 230 in the
“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” of this report and
in note 33 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As a holding company, the Company’s actual profit is generated
from the dividend of its subsidiaries. Due to the time needed for
the preparation of financial statements by the subsidiaries, the
actual distributable profit for 2016 was unable to be distributed
to the Company before 31 December 2016, the balance of the
actual distributable profit of the Company as at 31 December
2016 was negative. The subsidiaries have distributed their profit
for 2016 and undistributed profit for the previous years in January
to February 2017, respectively.

According to actual conditions of the Company and its needs
arising from its coordinated sustainable development in the future,
the Board recommended to distribute the final dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2016 to the Shareholders
based on the actual distributable profit as at 28 February 2017.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.
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DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 8 December 2014, the resolution on the public issue of
domestic corporate bonds in the PRC with an aggregate principal
amount of not exceeding RMB3.0 billion, and the authorization
to handle the matters in relation to it were considered and
approved at the fourth extraordinary general meeting in 2014.
After deduction of issue expenses, the Company intends to apply
the proceeds from the issue of the domestic corporate bonds
to provide entrusted loans to the subsidiaries, repay borrowings
from financial institutions and replenish the working capital of the
Company, which improve the capital structure of the Company.

The details of the fourth extraordinary general meeting in 2014
were disclosed in the circular, notice, supplemental notice and
announcement on the voting results dated 22 October 2014, 21
November 2014 and 8 December 2014 respectively.

On 10 June 2015, the Company commenced the issuance of
the first tranche of corporate bonds of an aggregate amount
of RMB1.5 billion (the “First Tranche of Bonds”) on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with a term of five years from the
date of issuance. The First Tranche of Bonds was issued to both
online public investors and offline institutional investors and was
completed on 12 June 2015. The pre-determined issuance size
for online public investors accounted for 2% of the total issue size
of the First Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMB0.03 billion, and actual
issue size was RMB0.002753 billion, accounting for 0.18% of the
total issue size of the First Tranche of Bonds; the pre-determined
issuance size for offline institutional investors accounted for 98%
of the total issue size of the First Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMB1.47
billion and the actual issue size was RMB1.497247 billion,
accounting for 99.82% of the total issue size of the First Tranche
of Bonds. The coupon rate was 6.10%. On 7 July 2015, the First
Tranche of Bonds were listed for trading on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The First Tranche of Bonds, being approved by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission, are first of its kind in
public issuance conducted by a small loan company in the PRC,
which provided a strong support to the business development of
the Company.
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The details of the First Tranche of Bonds were disclosed in the
issurance announcement, the coupon rate announcement, the
issurance results announcement and the listing announcement
dated 8 June 2015, 9 June 2015, 12 June 2015 and 7 July 2015,
respectively.

On 3 November 2015, the Company commenced the issuance of
the second tranche of corporate bonds of an aggregate amount
of RMBO0.9 billion (the “Second Tranche of Bonds”) on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with a term of four years from the date
of issuance. The Second Tranche of Bonds was issued to both
online public investors and offline institutional investors and was
completed on 5 November 2015. The pre-determined issuance
size for online public investors accounted for 1.111111% of the
total issue size of the Second Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMBO0.01
billion, and actual issue size was RMB0.00065 billion, accounting
for 0.000722% of the total issue size of the Second Tranche of
Bonds; the pre-determined issuance size for offline institutional
investors accounted for 98.888889% of the total issue size of the
Second Tranche of Bonds, i.e. RMBO0.89 billion and the actual
issue size was RMBO0.89935 billion, accounting for 0.999278% of
the total issue size of the Second Tranche of Bonds. The coupon
rate was 5.60%. On 2 December 2015, the Second Tranche of
Bonds were listed for trading on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

The details of the Second Tranche of Bonds were disclosed in the
issurance announcement, the coupon rate announcement, the
issurance results announcement and the listing announcement
dated 30 October 2015, 3 November 2015, 6 November 2015
and 1 December 2015, respectively.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did not
enter into any equity-linked agreements.
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Report of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ PERMITTED
INDEMNITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors
and the supervisors of the Company (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the
Company). The Company has arranged appropriate directors’,
supervisors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors, supervisors and officers of the Group.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

On 27 May 2015, the 2014 annual general meeting of the
Company considered and approved the proposal on the grant
of bonus in the form of shares in open market to the senior and
middle to senior management of the Company under the share
incentive scheme (the “Scheme”), a medium and long-term
incentive scheme to increase in share by the senior and middle
to senior management with incentive fund base of the portion of
year-end performance-related remuneration of the participants.

The scope of participants includes the senior management
and middle to senior management of the Company or its
subsidiaries or branches upon the implementation of the
Scheme. Independent non-executive Directors, supervisors and
Shareholders holding 5% or more of the equity interests in the
Company and their associates are excluded from the scope of
participants under the Scheme. The list of participants and the
proportion of allocation shall be determined by the Board or its
authorised institution and reviewed by the supervisors of the
Company. The source of shares of the Scheme is the issued
public shares of the Company in the H shares market, and
such shares are acquired through dealings in the open market.
The source of funds is the incentive fund accumulated in the
Company by the participants (comprised of the portion of year-
end performance-related remuneration of the participants).
Participants of the Scheme can elect to contribute 40% to 100%
of their annual performance related remuneration to the share
incentive fund and the total amount of funds under the Scheme
during its validity period shall not exceed the total share incentive
fund contributed by the participants.
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In 2015, the Scheme was gradually implemented in accordance
with the relevant procedures. 5,738,623 H shares were acquired
from the market.

As at the date of this report, the Scheme holds 5,340,076 shares
of H shares of the company, part of the Scheme participants had
sold a total of 398,547 H shares in July and August 2016.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Our risk management committee is the highest decision-making
organisation on risk management, fully responsible for risk
management of the Group. Our internal control departments
including risk management and internal control and audit as well
as other departments and business department form a system
of pre-, during and post-incident risk management and internal
control.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
identified our actual risks including credit risk, market risk,
operational risk, liquidity risk, of which credit risk is our major risk.
Besides, this report does not constitute a recommendation or an
advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company and
investors are advised to make their own judgment or consult their
own investment advisors before making any investment in the
securities of the Company.

Credit Risk Management

In the light of the characteristics of credit risk, the Company
shifted gradually the way of risk assessment from single business
project to that on product and business model, and formulated
admission criteria, investigation standard, credit standard,
operation procedure, post-loan management and method of
payment call for each product. The Company made amendment
and improvement to policies and operation standard on admission
and investigation of guarantee, loan, factoring and leasing,
specific operation requirements and management requirement of
post-guarantee and loan to ensure the suitability and feasibility of
the policies.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAR

R20156%  ZIBHBRBAWERF
SEEER Rl RABTSRET
5,738,623 HA% ©

HEAREBH KNHEFEEHARQFH
% B% 19 £5,340,0760% © #8955 &1 2 HEE R
2016F7 A -8 A T HE398,547H% °

[ B

ARFAREEZESEREREENR
BARKE EEAEAKENEARERE -
AR wE R E R RIEER SRR S &
FIEE Efb B RE R FT - XA B0FT — TR T
BEFH FTMERNEREERANE

EHIEE -

HZE2016F12A31B L FE - ARIE# 5
CHEENEEERREEEARE ™
SR BRIERR  RBMRRE  EPEH
FEREATHENEZRR - I NiRE
A AR E AR R FEHEL A E
BEEBER - REECREARRRESZA
EETHE S ZRREBRNER

EREARER

ARBSTEERRARORE - WEHEEES
HEMRARFGEESRASERD HEBERN
MERFEEE HEEERSE T EA
RE FHERE RERE BRERE B
BEEMELIDE XEAFEHER F
E-RE HESEBHNEARAETE
ARBREERLRRERNEEEREFNE
R ESRAMIRE IR EEITE M T E - A
TRELE AN R IR AR



Report of the Board of Directors

Market Risk Management

The Company formulated price management measures on the
difference between medium-sized business and small and micro
business line according to the characteristics of market risk. For
medium-sized business, the Company set the basic business
fee through classification management of customers by business
type after taking into consideration regional competition, size of
single business, business cost and level of risk protection, and
granted adjustable authorization to managers of various levels for
marketing purpose.

Operational Risk Management

The Company prevented the operational risk from the origin
through strict management of authorization and implementation
of installation of two persons, dual position and double duties
for key positions, and established a system of normalized check
and reporting and feedback and improvement mechanism of risk
incident, which effectively prevented the operational risk.

Liquidity Risk Management

“Liquidity safety” is the first management objective for our
Planned Finance Department, which is responsible for overall
management of our liquidity risk. Each subsidiary is required
to compile a daily sheet of monetary liquidity to submit to the
Planned Finance Department. Our Planned Finance Department
flexibly adjusts the size and structure of the balance sheet by
monitoring various liquidity risk limits and cash flow. This is to
ensure to maintain sufficient cash reserve to meet liquidity needs
in the short and long term and guarantee our liquidity safety.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Profit distribution

Based on the actual distributable profit as at 28 February 2017,
the Board resolved to make a distribution of RMBO0.04 per Share
to the Shareholders. The distribution plan will be submitted for
shareholders’ consideration at the forthcoming AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The first session of the Board comprised fifteen Directors,
including two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
and Mr. Cui Weilan, eight non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tu
Jianhua, Mr. Duan Xiaohua, Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, Ms. Liu Tingrong,
Ms. Wang Fangfei, Mr. Feng Yongxiang, Mr. Zhou Xinyu and Mr,
Liu Bolin, and five independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Bai Qinxian, Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, Mr. Qian Shizheng, Mr. Ng
Leung Sing and Mr. Yuan Xiaobin.

As the term of office of the first session of the Board expired on
12 March 2016, the second session of the Board was elected
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2016. The
appointment of the second session of the Board became effective
on 13 March 2016.

The second session of the Board comprised a total of fifteen
Directors, including three executive Directors, seven non-
executive Directors and five independent non-executive Directors:
the executive Directors are Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman), Mr.
Wang Dayong (Vice Chairman) and Mr. Cui Weilan; the non-
executive Directors are Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Duan Xiaohua, Ms.
Liu Jiaoyang, Ms. Liu Tingrong, Ms. Wang Fangfei, Mr. Feng
Yongxiang and Mr. Liu Bolin; the independent non-executive
Directors are Mr. Bai Qinxian, Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, Mr. Qian
Shizheng, Mr. Ng Leung Sing and Mr. Yuan Xiaobin.
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The first session of the Board of Supervisors comprised three FEREEER -—ARESHEN BEMM
supervisors, including two Shareholder representative supervisors, BRRRRES ShAZTHOVFEERESB
namely Mr. Li Ruping and Mr. Zhou Daoxue, and one employee BEAE R—EBRIRKRESHERELE
representative supervisor, Mr. Chen Zhonghua.

As the term of office of the first session of the Board of ARE—EEFE 2 EHMN2016543H12
Supervisors expired on 12 March 2016, the second session of HEWM £ _EEFEER20165F3HA3H
the Board of Supervisors was elected in the extraordinary general BHOGEHRRERASER F_EESS
meeting held on 3 March 2016. The appointment of the second 2B R20165F3 13 £ & -

session of the Board of Supervisors became effective on 13

March 2016.

The second session of the Board of Supervisors comprised a total FIEEEEH-REEEN  BEMAR
of three supervisors, including two Shareholder representative BEREXEER—E2BRIRKRESZT RER
supervisors and one employee representative supervisor: REEATNFEE (XRE) RFBERL LT

the Shareholder representative supervisors are Mr. Li Ruping BIRREEARPELL-
(Chairman) and Ms. Qin Yong, the employee representative
supervisor is Mr. Chen Zhonghua.

Details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management HZE2016F12A31B L FERBH 2 ARE

of the Group are set out in the section headed “Directors, AfzES ESRaREEEMNFEE
Supervisors and Senior Management” of this report for the year BER ARG EF EERaRERE]
ended 31 December 2016 and as at the date of this report. —ffio

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF BYFHTEESNBLMER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the B ETARAEIIME AAaE WEE
Company has received the annual confirmation from each of B IENITE S g BB M E I A F

the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their EHERH UREEEEILIIENITESY
independence, and considered all of the independent non- BB AL

executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company on 17 February
2014 for a term of three years commencing from 19 June 2014
(the Listing Date of the Company), subject to termination in
accordance with their respective terms. The service agreements
may be renewed in accordance with our articles of association
and the applicable laws, rules or regulations.

Each independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment on 17 February 2014 for an initial term of three
years commencing from 19 June 2014 (the Listing Date of the
Company).

The newly-appointed Directors and supervisors entered into new
appointment letters and service contract with the Company on 13
March 2016.

None of the Directors or the supervisors has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS, TRANSACTIONS OR
ARRANGEMENTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or the supervisors or any entity connected
with them has any material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract, transaction or arrangement of significance to
the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its holding
companies, any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Except as disclosed in this report, during the year, none of the
Directors, the controlling Shareholders of the Company and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an
interest in a business which causes or may cause any significant
competition with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS EEAMRE

No contracts concerning the management and administration of HZE2016F12A31H L FE  HEFT 7 sk
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company GHREEREBBALG 2 HEMEESMHD
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December EBHNEERITHAR -

2016.

REMUNERATION POLICY ¥ B BUR

Under the remuneration policy of the Group, the Nomination BERNEEFHMEE R HERN TE
and Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as F EERafEEENTHEER 1B
salaries paid by comparable companies, tenure, commitment, HEWEZEEHEZRNEZBERER
responsibilities and performance (as the case may be) of our AN He E5 EERafERE
Directors, supervisors and the senior management, in assessing WA -HBRAE BERBEARER (RER
the amount of remuneration payable to our Directors, supervisors mE)&E-e

and the senior management.

The Company implemented the grant of bonus in the form RARFEHEFREERAEBRBARMS
of shares in open market to the senior and middle to senior EEREFAEHESNSEEFERER
management of the Company under the share incentive scheme, - FFBEHRAREFE183H ¢

the details are set out on pages 183 of this report.

PENSION SCHEME RIKETE

The Group is required to participate in pension schemes AEBEESLEPEABATRFEENEE
organised by the respective municipal governments of the PRC RBEE 2R AEEHEGSFATRHEER
whereby the Group is required to pay annual contributions for BHEERRE BEZRRIETRBIEBEIMN
the PRC based employees at certain rate of the standard wages ERFREBEETENE THOEM R L
determined by the relevant authorities in the PRC during the MEEZRRIN EREERKEF T EAR
year. The Group has no other material obligation for payment SEEEMEATEA -AEERKSFE
of retirement benefits to the PRC based employees beyond the LB R EImEMIFES -

annual contributions described above. The details of the Group’s

retirement benefits scheme are set out in note 5 to the financial

statements.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in note 7 and note 8 to the
financial statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” in this report, there was no change to
any of the information required to be disclosed in relation to any
Directors and supervisors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and
(9) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since 1 January 2016.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required,
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO;
or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules were as follows:
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() RAEQXFHOER

Approximate

Approximate

percentage percentage
in relevant in total
class of share  share capital
Name of Class of Nature of No. of HEERS A
Shareholder Position  share interests shares held Bilz FoY i
REAMR B IR 43 5 BRHE FERGEE BAES BAES
(Shares) (%) (%)° (%)
Tu Jianhua Director Domestic Share Interests of controlled 1,497,458,628 43.66 32.55
REBEO X WE R corporation/others (Long position)
SEEEEs/ (HF#8)
Hity
Wan Fangfei® Director ~ Domestic Share Interests of controlled 231,632,653 6.75 5.03
TF5Ee 3 NER corporation (Long position)
RErEESR (#78)
Zhang Guoxiang® Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner/ 298,038,709 8.69 6.48
REIFO S WE R Interests of controlled  (Long position)
corporation (4F%8)
ExkaAN/
REEEES
H Shares Beneficial owner 585,971 0.05 0.01
HE% EREAA (Long position)
(i)
Wang Dayong® Director ~ Domestic Share Beneficial owner 2,058,742 0.06 0.04
TKREW o WE R EZBEBA (Long position)
(5F#8)
H Shares Beneficial owner 360,443 0.03 0.008
HI% ExEAA (Long position)
(4F%8)
Cui Weilan® Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner 2,068,742 0.06 0.04
EREY ] NE K ERBEBA (Long position)
(1F#8)
H Share Beneficial owner 648,005 0.06 0.01
HI% ExBEAA (Long position)
(178)
Liu Jiaoyang Director Domestic Share Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
2515 - NE K EREAA (Long position)
(iF#8)
Liu Bolin® Director Domestic Share Interests of controlled 120,000,000 3.50 2.61
EERR X NE K corporation (Long position)
XErEESR (HF#8)

Annual Report 2016
—E-NEEERE

191



Report of the Board of Directors

ESEHG

Approximate

Approximate

percentage percentage

in relevant in total

class of share  share capital

Name of Class of Nature of No. of EEBERS BB

Shareholder Position  share interests shares held Bhlz By

RER AR B R 43 5l BEME FERGEE BHAED BAED

(Shares) (&) (%)° (%)@

Li Ruping Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 2,205,795 0.06 0.05
ESURE BEx WE R ExBEA (Long position)
(178)

Chen Zhonghua Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
B Ex NE /K EREAA (Long position)
(#78)

Qin Yong Supervisor Domestic Share Beneficial owner 588,212 0.02 0.01
=B Ex WE R EnEEA (Long position)
(#12)
Notes: Bfat -

Mr. Tu Jianhua directly holds 98% of the equity interest of
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), which directly
holds 98% of the equity interest of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Loncin Holdings”). Mr. Tu Jianhua also directly holds 2% of
the remaining equity interest of Loncin Holdings.

Accordingly, Mr. Tu Jianhua is deemed to be interested in the
1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares held by Loncin Holdings.
Based on the voting arrangement with Chongqging Huitai
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Huitai”), Mr. Tu Jianhua is deemed to be
able to exercise the voting rights of the 295,269,848 Domestic
Shares held by Huitai.

Ms. Wang Fangfei directly holds 55% of the equity interest
of Chongging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chongqing
Jiulong”), which directly holds 231,532,653 Domestic shares.
Accordingly, Ms. Wang Fangfei is deemed to be interested in
the 231,532,653 Domestic Shares held by Chongging Jiulong.

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang directly holds approximately 66.4% of
the equity interest of Huitai, which directly holds 295,269,848
Domestic Shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang is deemed to be interested in the 295,269,848
Domestic Shares held by Huitai. Mr. Zhang Guoxiang also
directly holds 2,768,861 Domestic Shares of the Company.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROARAR

REELELERFEREEEARD
A ([EEEE])MNI8%MAHE M iE
EEEAERSEREERARQA
(TRESIERR ) B98% I HE - REEESE
ENERFAREZERNBR T2%K
e

At REELERRERRSE
B H B #91,202,188,780/% R & B
BERZ REREEERKESR
RAE ([BR])WEELH R
EEEWRERENTEEREARN
295,269,848k M & IR K I =& -

ITHEFRLTEERBRBEENLER
EHEBRAB ([EENE])HN55%
BiE MEENEREEEEALAR
7]231,532,653 W E MR- B Ik - T
FREUTHWEECEENLEFEN
231,532,653 N AP A RER ©

KBEELEEERAZRZOY
66.4%RE MERNEEFT AR
A 7)295,269,8480% M & B% o A Ut
REELEERBERERFAENY
295,269,848k W & ik h #% B #
moRBEHEAENEERAARR
2,768,861 W& B -
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4.  Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, Mr. Wang Dayong and Mr. Cui Weilan
acquired the H Shares through share incentive scheme.

5. Mr. Liu Bolin directly holds 75% equity interest of Sichuan
Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd., which directly holds 120,000,000
Domestic Shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Bolin is
deemed to be interested in 120,000,000 Domestic Shares held
by Sichuan Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd.

6. As at 31 December 2016, the issued Domestic Shares and
the H Shares of the Company were 3,430,000,000 Shares and
1,170,000,000 Shares, respectively.

7. As at 31 December 2016, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of
the Company in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of SFO) which are required (i) to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (ii) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Interests in associated corporations

None of the Directors, supervisors or the chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or supervisors or any of their respective

associates was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any

right to acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any

other body corporate, or had exercised any such right.

(ii)

ESEHH

4 RERSL TABAERERMS
5 AR TR E BB
AFHBRMR S -

5. R RAcEEERANEIIABEEE
BERRQ B H75%A% 4 - i 18 )1l 54
HMEBRABANEEFEARQR
120,000,000% A & % © A 1t - 28 TR
WEERDNAEEEERQAE
A #9120,000,0000% A & % 7 5 A 4E

5o

6 HM2016F12A31H AR A B #
77 A & f%3,430,000,000/% R HK
1,170,000,000f% °

7+ HR2016F12A31H AR alHH
4,600,000,0000% B % 77 f% 15 °

Br b3 ¥ 8 & SN 2016512 431
H BEANREE EERESTTH
AEBRARASKEAEHEZE (TER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the persons (not being a Director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) or corporations
having interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO and who were directly and/or
indirectly deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company are listed as

FTERRRRORABERKRE 2 #ERS
5978 )

MR20165F 124318 + AR A 2 &7 3 4R
BN AR EBES KRGO EXVED
FoR3IDEAMAR A R AT TR 2
mHAB  HEARBESFRAEGOE
3B BEBETF2ECRMAZERR AR
SR AVER T B R AT AT IE R TR
REIRERGREZAMENRAZEE
REERSEEREFS%HA L EE
AT (WEARBES - BEERETETHA
Bk ARMNEHE M T

follows:

Approximate Approximate

percentage percentage

in relevant in total

class of share share capital

No. of EEERG BB

Name of Shareholder Class of share  Nature of interests shares held Bz By

RER AR R4 & Al Rt HFERGEE BREDH BREDL

(share) (f2) (%)% (%)

Loncin Holdings® Domestic Share  Beneficial owner/others 1,497,458,628 43.66 32.55
BEIERO NE K BERBAAN/Ei (Long position)
(#12)

Loncin Group®® Domestic Share  Interests of controlled 1,497,458,628 43.66 32.55
BEEEERO NE K corporation/others (Long position)
XHEEERHA (#12)

Huitai Domestic Share  Beneficial owner 295,269,848 8.61 6.42
E% NE K EHEBA (Long position)
(#12)

Chongging Jiulon Domestic Share  Beneficial owner 231,632,653 6.75 5.03
EENE NE K EREAA (Long position)
(#12)

Wang Mingyue Domestic Share  Beneficial owner 209,824,593 7.87 5.87
I A NER EREAA (Long position)
(#12)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA
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Notes:

1. Loncin Holdings directly holds 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares of
the Company. Based on the voting arrangement with Huitai, Loncin
Holdings is deemed to be able to exercise the voting rights of the
295,269,848 Domestic Shares held by Huitai.

2. Loncin Group directly holds 98% of the equity interest of Loncin
Holdings, which directly holds 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares of
the Company. Accordingly, under the SFO, Loncin Group is deemed
to be interested in the 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares held by
Loncin Holdings. Based on the voting arrangement with Huitai,
Loncin Group is deemed to be able to exercise the voting rights of
the 295,269,848 Domestic Shares held by Huitai.

3. The 1,472,458,628 Shares held by Loncin Group and Loncin
Holdings are of the same interest and duplicated each other.

4. As at 31 December 2016, the issued Domestic Shares and the H
Shares were 3,430,000,000 Shares and 1,170,000,000 Shares,
respectively.

5. As at 31 December 2016, there were 4,600,000,000 Shares of the
Company in issue.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

5,738,623 H Shares were acquired in the open market under the
Scheme (for which the Company paid HK$6,697,620.82 in total
including intermediate fees), and totally 398,547 H Shares were
sold by a part of participants of the Scheme in July and August
2016. For the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no
other purchase, sale or redemption of any listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

As of the date of this report, participants of the Share Incentive
Scheme hold an aggregate of 5,340,076 H Shares acquired in the
open market.

ESEHH

Hra:
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NE R
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1,202,188,7808% A& B% - A It © R IK 75 %
REEGD EEEEWRIEERESER
¥ H 11,202,188,7808% M & % # B 4
moRBHERNRERHE BESBERR
{ERESITTIF E 2356 295,269,848 W&
BRIE A -

3. BESENEEIENRZ1,497,458,6280% A
BERGH MR — i WHARE k-

4. R2016F12A31H AR FRBEEHITRNE
f£3,430,000,000/% K& HA1,170,000,000
A% o

5 R2016F12A31H AR A XA
4,600,000,0000% & 3517 B 17

BA LEFIEERAQT LHES

BRIBRIBET I A MISEE 75,738,6230%
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the relevant laws of the PRC that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of this report on page 198, none of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries other
than the Group, nor was there any contract of significance
between the Group and the controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries other than the Group in relation to provision of
services.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The details of contracts of significance entered into between the
Company and controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries have
been disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction” in
this report on page 198.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Our controlling Shareholders (including Mr. Tu Jianhua, Loncin
Group, Loncin Holdings, Huitai and Mr. Zhang Guoxiang) issued
a non-competition undertaking on 17 February 2014 in favor of
the Group (the “Non-Competition Undertaking”). Pursuant
to the Non-competition Undertaking, each of the controlling
Shareholders has irrevocably undertaken that it would not and will
procure that its associates (except any members of the Group)
would not, directly or indirectly, or as principal or agent either
on their own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any
person, firm or company, among other things, carry on, engage,
participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to
or otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition
with the business of any member of the Group from time to time
(the “Restricted Business”).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance
by them and their associates with the Non-Competition
Undertaking.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Non-
Competition Undertaking and assessed whether the controlling
Shareholders have abided by the Non-Competition Undertaking.
The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the
controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the Non-
Competition Undertaking during the year ended 31 December
2016.

COMPANY’S ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES,
SOCIAL ANDGOVERNANCE RESPONSIBILITY
AND PERFORMANCE

The Group strives for the long-term sustainable development of
our business and the regions where our businesses are located.
The Group has been actively performing our environmental, social
and governance responsibilities and conducting our business
in a socially-responsible way while creating monetary value
for our Shareholders. The Company strictly complies with the
requirements of Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Reporting Guides issued by the Stock Exchange, whereby
the Company is committed to incorporating the sustainable
development principle into our corporate development strategies
and daily operation and management and acting as a responsible
corporate citizen. In 2016, the Company provided our staff with
a premium development platform and safe working environment.
We protect the environment, treasure the natural resources and
spare no efforts in reducing the impact of our operation on the
environment. We value our customers and suppliers, and provide
premium product and service and continuously optimize the
management of our suppliers.

Pursuant to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company
prepared the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”,
which is set out from page 157 to page 174 of this report.

ESEHH

RN E) B A AR AR R B S R
%/\LTT %7¥Kuﬁmﬁzrﬁﬁnua°

B IERMTEFER T F A R ME
B AR 3R A BB SF T 5 T AR o B AL FEIAT
BEERR HZE2016F12A31BLFE
122 1% A% R 0 4 8 o N SR o

ARNE
e

REBER HEREREML

REEBOREERAREEBIE R
MEREFEER - AESE—EHEBEETER
E HEREREM EABRRAIELEE
EEMNRK TUHETEARTENTRE
EEB -RMEBRSERERIM CGRE -1t g
RERMEIES) BEX BRG] FHE
BEESBACEREEBNBAELCEE
B HAEETHNLELAR - 2016F  &MA
ETIRBEFHERFTENZE2NIIER
B RMEERE BREEAR SHREE
EHRENFE  RMNERTPNEER -
R WA EMMRE - 0T Bk S EH
EREMER-

ARABIRE EWABMSE -+ /ST
(RE -2 RERRE)  ERNARESF
157TE 2 FE1748

Annual Report 2016
“E-AEFERS

197



Report of the Board of Directors

ESEHG

COMPANY’S COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is able to comply with relevant requirements of laws,
regulations, rules and provisions of the Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules and SFO in Hong Kong, the Company Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( {(FRE AREMERARIE) ),

the Basic Norms of Enterprise Internal control ( {13 (X 2B 4% 4l &
AHRE) ), Interim Measures for the Administration of Financing
Guarantee Companies ( (BMEUERADNERGTHE) ),
Guiding opinions of China Banking Regulatory Commission and
People’s Bank of China on pilot projects of small loan companies

((HFEREFETEEEEEZES PRARKRTERNEER
NalABMIEEE R) ), Guidance on Promoting the Healthy

Development of Internet Finance ( ([P B # B B 48 & mo i i 22
BHIEEZ R ) )in China etc., including information disclosure,
corporate governance and standard industry operation, etc..
The Group has adopted the Model Code in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Guarantee provided by a subsidiary for a loan of a
shareholder of another subsidiary

On 10 October 2016, Shaanxi Branch of Hanhua Guarantee
Corporation Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as “Hanhua Guarantee Shaanxi
Branch”), entered into a loan guarantee and entrustment
contract with Xi'an Tiexing Industrial & Trading Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as “Xi’an Tiexing Industrial & Trading”),
so as to provide guarantee for a loan of Xi'an Tiexing
Industrial & Trading from Bank of Xi’an, Chengbei Sub-
branch.

The details of the contract are as follows:

Date: 10 October 2016

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Connected relationship between contracting parties:

(@) Hanhua Guarantee Shaanxi Branch (as trustee)

(b) Xi’an Tiexing Industrial & Trading (as principal)

Hanhua Guarantee Shaanxi Branch is a branch of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Xi'an Tiexing Industrial & Trading is a shareholder of Xi’an
Microfinance Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company.
Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Hanhua
Guarantee Shaanxi Branch and Xi’an Tiexing Industrial &
Trading are connected persons of the Company.

Guarantee Fee: The ratio of guarantee fees is in reasonable
range. The Company has received the guarantee fees
totaling RMB371,405.83, which were calculated upon
negotiation in line with market trends.

Purpose: Normal business of the Company.

Guarantee provided by a subsidiary for a loan of a
director’s parents.

On 4 February 2015, Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company (hereinafter referred
to as “Sichuan Hanhua”), entered into a loan guarantee and
entrustment contract (hereinafter referred to as “Entrustment
Contract”) with Liu Daiyuan and Yi Sha, so as to provide
guarantee for a loan of Liu Daiyuan and Yi Sha amounting
to RMB5 million from Bank of Tianjin, Chengdu Branch
(hereinafter referred to as “Bank of Tianjin”).

The details of the Entrustment Contract are as follows:

Date: 4 February 2015
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Connected relationship between the contracting parties:

(@) Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. (as
trustee)

(b) Liu Daiyuan and Yi Sha (as principal)

Sichuan Hanhua is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanhua
Guarantee Corporation Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Liu Daiyuan and Yi Sha are father and mother of Mr. Liu
Bolin, a director of the Company, respectively.

Guarantee Fee: The ratio of guarantee fees is 2.50% per
annum. The guarantee fees totaled RMB125,000, which
were calculated upon negotiation in line with market trends.

Purpose: Normal business of the Company.

The guarantee was expired on 4 February 2016, so the
Company has been released from the guarantee.

Rental collected from a connected company

On 8 December 2016, Hanhua Guarantee Corporation
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Hanhua Guarantee”), a
subsidiary of the Company, re-signed the Lease Contract
for Block A of Wealth Center (for enterprises) (hereinafter
referred to as “Lease Contract”) with USUM Investment
Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “USUM Group”),
by which Hanhua Guarantee shall rent a self-owned property
to USUM Group with a lease term of 12 months from 10
December 2016 to 11 December 2017. The original lease
contract signed by both parties on 10 December 2014
became invalid.
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The details of the Lease Contract are as follows:

Date: 8 December 2016

Connected relationship between contracting parties:

(@) Hanhua Guarantee Corporation Limited (as lessor)

(b) USUM Investment Group Co., Ltd. (as lessee)

Hanhua Guarantee is a subsidiary of the Company.

Loncin Holdings, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
is one of the shareholders of USUM Group, and holds
46.775% of the equity interest of USUM Group. According to
the Listing Rules, Loncin Holdings holds 30% of the equity
interest of USUM Group, so USUM Group is a connected
party of the Company.

Consideration: The right to use the property owned by
Hanhua Guarantee at Room 1-8, 33/F, Block A, Wealth
Center, No.2 Caifu Avenue, Yubei District, Chongqing.

Purpose: Collecting rentals by making full use of the
property of the Company.

As the applicable ratio(s) of the transactions under the
Contract for providing guarantee, the Entrustment Contract
and the Lease Contract are below the thresholds stipulated
in Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules, they are exempted
from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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All material related party transactions as disclosed in note 38 to
the financial statements did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement, independent
shareholders’ approval or annual reporting requirements under the
Listing Rules. In particular, transactions under category (a) were
provided under service contracts of relevant management, and
transactions under category (b) on other revenue and guarantee
income are either transactions with persons connected with
insignificant subsidiaries (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, or transactions where all applicable percentage ratio
(other than profit ratio) were less than 0.1%, and the remaining
transactions under category (b) do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMBO0.91
million.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
and external auditors the accounting principles and policies
adopted by the Group and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its Shareholders in an enlightened
and open manner. As at the date of this report, the Board
currently comprises three executive Directors, seven non-
executive Directors and five independent non-executive Directors.
The Board has adopted the Code Provisions as its corporate
governance code.
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Report of the Board of Directors

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Directors confirmed that the Company has maintained
the required public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the selection
of auditors for 2017 of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board of

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.”
Zhang Guoxiang

Chairman of the Board

27 March 2017

* For identification purpose only

ESEHH

ZFENRARERE

RBARRARLMEERFINENRE
EEZMA NARERH EFHALRT
—HAER EMRRMERLNDRFRE -

B BUED

EERSIMEHTE EBZEZ2016F12
AS1BEEFENGEATRE -

RERGHDERFARNBRTHRE
BEAS BT LHAENRRESES
81T o 45 IR S A5 2 F120174F [ X BT A
ARERERDERITOREATAE L&
2o

REESHm
BESEROGERAA
EFSLE

ek

201753 H27H

*ERES

Annual Report 2016
—E-AEEERE

203



204

Report of the Board of Supervisors

ESEHRE

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2016, pursuant to the requirements set out in the Company
Law and the Articles of Association, the board of supervisors
of the Company (the “Board of Supervisors”) has attentively
performed its duties and proactively carried out supervision on
the financial activities, internal control, risk management, lawful
operation as well as the duty performance of the Board and the
senior management of the Company, thus effectively contributing
to the optimization of the Company’s governance and to the
healthy and sustainable development of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF THE MAJOR WORKS OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

1. The Board of Supervisors convened meetings of the Board
of Supervisors pursuant to laws and regulations. In 2016,
the Board of Supervisors convened 2 regular meetings and
2 extraordinary meetings in which the Board of Supervisors
summarized its work throughout the year, elected at
expiration of office terms by-election, reviewed the interim
report, and attended 2 general meetings and 12 Board
meetings. The Board of Supervisors has supervised the
general meetings and Board meetings with regard to the
legality, compliance and the procedure of voting thereof. The
Board of Supervisors has also supervised the performance of
duties by the Board and senior management.

2. The Board of Supervisors endeavored in conducting
proper finance supervision. By focusing on the compilation,
verification and disclosure of regular reports, the Board
of Supervisors communicated with external auditors and
auditors on a regular basis, strengthened the analysis of
major issues that may affect the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the financial reports, timely followed up and
got knowledge of the changes of regulatory requirements,
and provided opinions and suggestions. In accordance with
relevant requirements, the Board of Supervisors conducted
supervision on the selection and appointment of external
auditors and auditors, capital management of the Company,
and the management of insiders of inside information.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

3. The Board of Supervisors substantially participated in internal
control supervision. The Board of Supervisors regularly
debriefed special reports on the work of internal control and
compliance, key findings and rectification in internal audit
and prevention and control over non-compliance cases, and
strengthened supervision on the internal control formulation
and assessment work.

4. The Board of Supervisors strengthened risk management
supervision. It paid attention to the major risks faced by the
industry and debriefed special reports with regard to the
work of risk management and liquidity risk management and
provided timely opinions and suggestions.

INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON RELEVANT MATTERS OF THE
COMPANY

Lawful Operation

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the business activities
of the Company complied with the Company Law and the Articles
of Association, the internal control system was improved, and
the decision making procedures were lawful and valid. None of
the Directors or senior management of the Company was found
to have violated the relevant laws, regulations or the Articles of
Association or harmed the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

Authenticity of Financial Report

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016 were prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs
and were audited by KPMG in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing. The auditor issued standard unqualified
audit report.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

ESEHRE

Use of Proceeds

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the application of
proceeds for specific projects was consistent with the uses as
stated in the Prospectus dated 3 June 2014.

Acquisition and Investment of Assets by the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
undertook two acquisitions. The Company acquired 3.33%
minority interest of its subsidiary Heilongjiang Hanhua Internet
Small-Loan Co., Ltd. through its wholly-owned subsidiary
Chongging Hanhua Asset Management Co., Ltd. Following
the acquisition, Heilongjiang Hanhua Internet Small-Loan Co.,
Ltd. became the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The
Company also acquired 1% minority interest of its subsidiary
Chongqing Changjiang Financial Factoring Co., Ltd. After the
acquisition, the Company held 91% equity interests of Chongging
Changjiang Financial Factoring Co., Ltd..

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
established five wholly-owned subsidiaries by investment,
including Shenzhen Hanhua Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. and
Chongaing Damei Infrastructure Development Co., Ltd.. It also
invested in Chongging Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. in which it holds
30% of equity interest. The company primarily engages in small-
loans, consultation, internet service and banking sectors.

Internal Control

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
continued to strengthen and optimize its internal control, and
the Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to the “Report on
Assessment of Internal Control for 2016”.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors
ESERE

Implementation of Resolutions Passed at the General BERERAEREBHTER
Meeting(s)

The Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to the reports EEeUWEZTS2016FNREIKREREE
and proposals submitted by the Board to the general meetings ENSERENMREZEEZ HREAK
in 2016, and having inspected the execution of the resolutions BRFENRITBERET TES REES
of general meetings, concluded that the Board had duly CRERAT ITRERSHNEBRE-
implemented the relevant resolutions passed at the general

meeting(s).

Opinions on Performance Assessment of Directors, HEAQATES EES SHREEAEEN
Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company 185

During the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors, HZE2016F12A31BLFERN EF &
supervisors and senior management were diligent in duly CRREBABDHRE BRABHER
carrying out their duties and were evaluated as qualified in the FIE o

performance assessment.

By order of the Board of Supervisors EEEGm

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. BESEROGERAT
Mr. Li Ruping EE2TE

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors FMEEE

24 March 2017 201753 A24H
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Independent auditor’s report

B AR E R

e

Independent auditor’s report to the Shareholders of Hanhua
Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 225 to 380, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent auditor’s report

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the People’s Republic of China, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent auditor’s report

B AR E R

Assessing impairment of loans and receivables and provisions for guarantee losses

AEERRERRENREEFENEREEERGS

Refer to note 14, 15, 16, 17 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on

page 248, 249, 250, 251, 252, 253 and 269.

B2HE MU BmAM 14, 15, 16, 17M27LA K 28248, 249, 250, 251, 252, 253 2698 # & &5

The Key Audit Matter
BAEENSE

Impairments of loans and advances to customers,
trade and other receivables, finance lease receivables
and receivables for factoring business (together
as “loans and receivables”) and the provisions for
guarantee losses are both the subjective areas due
to the level of judgement applied by management in
determining allowances and provisions.

B AR BN e W R B At R RO - JE WK R AE & RN
JE W AR 3B R IR (%18 R B SR N R R IR ) B E EH A1
REFEE B TP R E R E I -

From the Group’s perspective, the loans and
receivables portfolios and guarantees which give rise
to the greatest uncertainty are typically those where
impairment losses or provisions are derived from
collective assessment models.
HRNERERG  EHRTE B R ER IR BB E
REEEBECRHAEARATHEETHNEBLEKBAEAS
{12 B B RE R (B 2R 4 B B R N R R IR R AR AR -

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPUNMAESZER

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of loans
and receivables and provisions for guarantee losses
included the following:
RTEERREUFEREMNEREEEEHES  HMNT
T REER R

e assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of loans and receivables
and guarantees, the credit grading process and
the measurement of individual impairment losses
and provisions for guarantee losses. For the key
underlying systems used for the processing of
transactions in above process, we utilised our
information technology specialists to assess the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of a selection of relevant automated controls within
these systems. We also assessed the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the
key internal controls over these underlying systems,
including controls over access to these systems and
controls over data and change management;
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Independent auditor’s report

B AR

Assessing impairment of loans and receivables and provisions for guarantee losses

FEERRERRENREEFENEREEERGS

The determination of the collective impairment
losses and provisions for guarantee losses is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the
Group’s internal credit risk management strategy. The
Group’s collective impairment losses and provisions
for guarantee losses are derived from estimates
including the Group’s historical losses for loans and
receivables, the loss emergence period (i.e. the time
lapse between the occurrence of the event causing
eventual default to the actual recording of a loss) and
other adjustment factors.
HeRAEOREEBENERBEEGEESNBER
AIRE FERBERIINSZBERENMEESEANITNEAR
REREE EEEERRERFANERRES TR
SRR EEEMEREEERS SO T KEREIE
Bt GUEMFERESEENELERREKHIER
KE-FEEICH (AR EHREZEEBENEHNELINE
BRBEEENNRKERRE) REMFAERE-

comparing the total balances of the loan grading
report and guarantee list, which contain information
used by management to assess impairment losses
and provisions for guarantee losses, with the general
ledger and comparing individual loan and guarantee
information, on a sample basis, with the underlying
loan and guarantee agreements and other related
documentation to assess the presentation of the
information in the loan grading report and in the
guarantee list;
HEREBERNTEREEBN S RRERARENR
REHEREREEEFESOER SRR EARTHN
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Independent auditor’s report

B AR

Assessing impairment of loans and receivables and provisions for guarantee losses

FEERRENGEN R EEENERBRERS

Individual impairment losses and provisions for
guarantee losses are estimated by management once
objective evidence of impairment becomes apparent.
Management exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the
financial situation of the borrower, collateral valuation,
the seniority of the claim and the existence and
cooperativeness of other creditors. Enforceability,
timing and means of realisation of the collateral
has a significant impact on collateral valuation and,
therefore, the amount of impairment losses and
provisions for guarantee losses as at the reporting
date.
EEREBBERAERREWFIBANERELE THE
- B EREGRA BRGNS AR EEREM
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EREEEGSR EEESERERARZ ELRE
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HWHNEREEEBSNEZRE-

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROARAR

evaluating the validity of the models used and
assumptions adopted in management’s calculation
of the collective impairment losses and provisions
for guarantee losses by critically assessing input
parameters involving subjective judgement, seeking
collaborative evidence from external sources and
comparing historical losses against the Group’s
other internal records and our prior year records.
As part of these procedures, we challenged the
Group’s revisions to estimates and input parameters,
the consistency of judgement applied in the use of
economic factors, the loss emergence period and
the observation period for historical default rates
and loss rates. We compared the economic factors
used in the models to market information to assess
whether they were aligned with market and economic
development. We also assessed the emergence
period by tracing the lifecycle of overdue accounts
from the specific credit event to downgrading the
accounts to non-performing loans and receivables
and guarantees. Having considered the above, we
performed re-calculations to assess the amount
of collective impairment losses and provisions for
guarantee losses;
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Independent auditor’s report

B AR

Assessing impairment of loans and receivables and provisions for guarantee losses

FEERRERRENREEFENEREHEERGS

We identified impairment of loans and receivables
and the provisions for guarantee losses as a key
audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty and
management judgement involved and because of their
significance to the financial results of the Group.
BMEERRERFENREEENERBEEES
R AR ER IR BN E TR & WK IE &) R (E 2
BMERFBELEEBSOBEFAENETHEE LAY
REEREHE RASEHEEENSERKREELS
EXE-

assessing the individual impairment losses and
provisions for guarantee losses by selecting a risk-
based sample for credit review. We analysed the
loan and guarantee portfolio by industry sector to
select samples for credit review in industries more
vulnerable to the current economic situation. We also
selected further samples for credit reviews from loans
classified as “Special Mention” or “Substandard”
and guarantees identified as “at high risk of default”
based on the loan grading report and the guarantee
list; and
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Independent auditor’s report

B M XA

Assessing impairment of loans and receivables and provisions for guarantee losses

FEERRERRENREEENERBEEES

e performing credit review procedures for the sample
of loans and receivables and guarantees selected
as mentioned above, which included reviewing the
customers’ financial information, researching market
information about customers’ businesses and
evaluating management’s assessment of the value
of any collateral held, assessing the forecast cash
flows for non-performing loans and receivables and
guarantees, challenging the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans, evaluating the timing and means of
realisation of collateral and considering other sources
of repayment asserted by management.

o HMEEIRMNERNEUKRBBMEROEARNITEE
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Independent auditor’s report

B AR

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments

AEERMIANQIAEE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 254 and 255.
ELRA T SR M 194 M SE254 265 B M) & 5T UK »

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HRETEE EFETPMAEHEZEE

The Group’s financial instruments at 31 December Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of financial

2016 comprised listed and unlisted available-for-sale instruments included the following:

equity securities and wealth management products HFESBM T EM AR EBEMBBEOERTRZFPBEEUNU

issued by commercial banks. TERF:

BEEEMN20165F12A31EM ST ARE EMMIE L

MHAIHHERSEFAREERITEITNIENER o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key

At 31 December 2016 the fair value of the Group’s internal controls over the valuation, independent
financial instruments was RMB333.5 million of which price verification, front office/back office
RMB145.2 million, Nil and RMB188.4 million were reconciliations and valuation model approval for
classified under the fair value hierarchy as level 1, 2 financial instruments;

and 3 financial instruments respectively. o FEEEFEHMGE BUEKRE AReEERS

Al
H2016F12A31H ESEEMTANAREER/A B T A {E AR T 2 4L A0 B /0 19 BB 42 ) B0 AR AT AE AT
R¥3335B& T HY DBAFE —EBMHR FE_EHM A R
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Independent auditor’s report

B M XA

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments

HEERTIANAAREE

The valuation of the Group’s financial instrument is e assessing the fair values of level 1 financial

based on a combination of market data and valuation instruments, on sample basis, by comparing the fair
models which often require a considerable number values applied by the Group with publicly available
of inputs. Many of these inputs are obtained from market data;

readily available data for liquid markets. Where such o ZEEIEA BB EEEEXANALBEEAR
observable data is not readily available, as in the case AERNMSEE FEANEEEBRE —EAHN
of level 3 financial instruments, estimates need to be eI AMGE:

developed which can involve significant management

judgement.
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Assessing the fair value of financial instruments

AEERMIANQIAEE

B AR

The Group has developed its own models to value
certain level 3 financial instruments, which also
involves significant management judgement.

ESN - EE.E%\T%EW%E%&%@IEE@%T Eke)
HERE EhEPRERENERHE-

We have identified assessing the fair value of financial
instruments as a key audit matter because of the
degree of complexity involved in valuing certain
financial instruments and because of the degree of
judgement exercised by management in determining
the inputs used in the valuation models.
HRESR T AR EBENTE D REMNRIE  URE
BERERAERNZ2EK I RERBHENREE
BPASHERIARABENTEINABRES
I8 o

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the valuation models used by the
Group to value certain level 3 financial instruments
and to perform, on a sample basis, independent
valuations of level 3 financial instruments and
compare these valuations with the Group’s
valuations. This included comparing the Group’s
valuation models with our knowledge of current and
emerging practice, testing inputs to the fair value
calculations and establishing our own valuation
models to perform revaluations;
MARFABEESROIE  HBERMRTEES
EHRENE—BREB T AMERANMGERZRL
R AEREANER FHAABEBRE=E&K
e TRETEIEE THRMNEESERE
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SENGERREZRMEENGETEETHE
A EENBASEULBREERETEN

st

i

assessing whether the financial statement
disclosures appropriately reflected the Group’s
exposure to financial instrument valuation risk with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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B AR E R

Consolidation of structured entities

BB ER

Refer to note 42 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 235, 236 and

237.
E2E BRI 420 2 5235, 236 K237TEH K &

\\\

The Key Audit Matter
HAEESSE

Structured entities are generally created to achieve
a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoing activities. The Group may
acquire or retain an ownership interest in a structured
entity through issuing an asset-backed security.
EBECIRBBEERERARMAHEN B OMRTIL
FRIZEY) WHBENHENRRERERESD SEEE A4
BABTEEXHESF UBAREIRBERNHES
FAEEBEEEP=ZAER -

In determining whether a structured entity is required
to be consolidated by the Group, management is
required to consider the power the Group is able
to exercise over the activities of the entity and the
Group’s exposure to and ability to influence the its
own returns from the entity. In certain circumstances
the Group may be required to consolidate a structured
entity even though it has no equity interest therein.
§=.?¥IJ%ﬁ$;E<@EKJEEZH%%%MEL%W\ EEE O
HER EREREZRESEYAB L IBEREY
BEAEBEN LA&@%E RMERYEELCERBOEIM
TEATEERNIEE - E%Mﬁl T BEEEAMEE
EELEIRTITEZRE AR LURFTEZRHERE
EEBEANAEEEE O EE -

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAR

FTHUR o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EESPUNMESZER

Our audit procedures to assess the consolidation of

structured entities included the following:
HABaHARBLLEIBEENETETHE
7 :

B IELA T 12

making enquiries of management and inspecting
documents relating to the judgement process over
whether a structured entity is consolidated or not to
assess whether the Group has a robust process in
this regard;
RAAMEEENRECHREEREEHABLEIERES
ABHEERNHEERBENXT UFEEEER
LRI HREES TE:

selecting significant structured entities of each

key product type and performing the following

procedures for each structured entity selected:

EREEXBIZEQREPEENEBICERBIE T

TTEE R

— inspecting the related contracts, internal
establishment documents and information
disclosed to the investors to understand the
purpose of the establishment of the structured
entity and the involvement the Group has with the
structured entity and to assess management’s
judgement over whether the Group has the ability
to exercise power over the structured entity;

- T EHEAAE R WER XA R AR E H KRR
R AIBERABLEIENRIENURESEY

EECEFEN2EREE THEEEEENESE

M.T%MI%“ EREAED A



Independent auditor’s report

Consolidation of structured entities
OB ERE

B AR

The factors which management needs to consider
when determining whether a structured entity should
be consolidated or not are not purely quantitative and
need to be considered collectively.

BEYEHRTDEZGEBEEEBAASHEEITAA
AHEER EREFEZRNARLIIFRTEAENL

VEBEAEE-

As at 31 December 2016, the amount of assets
held by structured entities which the Group had
consolidated was RMB 1,269.1 million.
R2016F12A31H - MAEEEEHEENEBILE
BHNEERBEAARK1 260188

We identified the consolidation of structured entities
as a key audit matter because it involves significant
management judgement to determine whether a
structured entity is required to be consolidated by the
Group or not and because the impact of consolidating
a structured entity on the consolidated statement of
financial position could be significant.
HREEHEBLELIEMASSEENEHEEIRE
ENEREBHEALAREHEBLLIREESHTE
RRKREFEFREREARN  TARMIE & &I E
RBERAERETER

— reviewing the risk and reward structure of
the structured entity including any capital or
return guarantee, provision of liquidity support,
commission paid and distribution of the returns to
assess management’s judgement as to exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from the Group’s
involvement in such entity;

- FHEBLCIRYRARERMOEBR BREE
RELCTFRTHEANEMERSHERSELS
ER RHEBMEIFOTHE A2 Mk
WOoRE UHHEEERESEER2EEBE
BNREBESmMESNEERBCEBNRARKD
S RE BT B0 w12 P ER) HE

— reviewing management’s analyses of the
structured entity including qualitative analyses
and calculations of the magnitude and variability
associated with the Group’s economic interests
in the structured entity to assess management’s
judgement over the Group’s ability to influence its
own returns from the structured entity;

- EHEBREHEBLEIBOSN BREEUESNT
UERESEHEEABLELEIBNLCENROILLE
MAZPUENAE UTEEEERNEEETE
HIR BB X 88 n] & B a0 88 h HIEf

— assessing management’s judgement over whether
the structured entity should be consolidated or
not;

- HEEEENRSAHEBICIRMIENHIE

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to structured entities
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

EREHMBREPHEEBCIBNEERER

ENAMEEEERIMNEERZK-
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Independent auditor’s report

B M XA

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

HifzE 8

EATEFHRMEEAE K80
EEERETEENRHES EFEE
A G B RETMB MR R -

BPEEHYBRRERNBTELTE
BEEHMERS RMAGTHEMERERE
A NEEFSER
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Independent auditor’s report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

B AR

ESUSOHMBRRNEL

ERFIEEZHERREB GRS MR

mH) (BB % %:@; 1) E’U%ﬁm&%/a
(CRTUER) MBEBEZERERE I B ®
FOFHEBRALRE  WHRE IT4E
HENER A EIES LAEE OB ®RET
BFHEBRERNER MG ERNER -

BHAGYBRERE EFRAETHES
EHRELER) RERFEKLLE A
MEIE (WER) - I;Eﬁﬁ%ii‘“’i“‘**fﬁ““'

RBECFHBEHEEBETEE KIL
@M SR EEMBENEE
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B M XA

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

BB SHUBRREANEL

BANERREVBHREREBERED N FAE
MR RERERNERERENSE
ReE - AHABSENBRNETRS - It
HEERDRBIRRBE  BRULASN - FAIH
WENAAEREAMA R - LA AR
TR HEAEMATEEHEEL
REME-

BEREFZTSKFHRE BLTERE
BB (EFARBER) RITHFER—
BEREHFAERBEER -HERAIEHF
BRREREY WRAERHEREF
[ERERAETESHPBRREMRESE
HAEEAR  ABERRERETERN -

IR (BB B EL) AITEFNBEE
R PE R BRI SRR R AR
FIEF - HAPIBEITT AT TIE:

o HBIMFE AN EEKFEREHNE
BB REREREAR  RTMNE
MR AR F A S LR - IR
A BEENBAIER ERERE
AR R ER - NS RE S R
B fRE BEER ERBLSZE
RABES 2 £ ReEH IR BRI
BYMBERERNAR SR AREER
=) S ERC RS GHEDN = E 0N



Independent auditor’s report

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

B AR

BB A ABIES - ARS
MEFERF - EEMLIFEHES
NEEGIAREHRER -
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B M XA

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Tat Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2017

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAR
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOHERR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016F12 4318 [t FE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (JA A ER#EFIIR)

2016 2015
20164 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥Fr AREFT
Guarantee and consulting BREGRABEA
fee income 759,041 766,943
Re-guarantee expenses BERER (3,671) (1,905)
Net guarantee and consulting EREZERAEFEA
__feeincome 755370 765,038
Interest and handling fee income FEBERFEBIRA 1,113,081 1,212,810
Interest and commission expenses HE R FEE S L (388,705) (225,864)
Net interest and handling fee income # 8 R F#EEFMA 724,376 986,946
Net fee and interest income FFHEERIBRA 2 1,479,746 1,751,984
Other revenue H g A 3 34,753 33,981
Reversal for guarantee losses wREREEEHES 27 39,741 110,917
Impairment losses BEEREERKX 4 (372,915) (515,525)
Operating expenses giE 5(a) (802,697) (893,433)
Net foreign exchange gain e 5 = 1,052 40
Other net losses EfihE 18 H 5 5(b) (2,481) (1,669)
Share of profits of associate B A D ERERN
K& W 638 54
Share of losses of joint venture HEEDEERN
wEARE (3) @)
Profit before taxation B A0 R E 377,834 486,347
Income tax Frig i 6 (94,347) (134,182)
Profit for the year A E 283,487 352,165
Attributable to: EERN:
Shareholders of the company VNN 23 241,710 302,960
Non-controlling interests FEE )1 HE = 41,777 49,205
Profit for the year A 283,487 352,165
Earnings per share R E
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXNWE (2HENL
BARET) 11 0.05 0.07

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial 233 E £3808 FrE M X i pk 7% S I 75 3
statements. FH)— &
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g rrrEgE 229



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SOt EE R EMRSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 © & £2016F 12 4318 [t F &
(Expressed in RMB) (JAAR¥5I7R)

2016 2015
20164 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &t AR®Fr AREFT
Profit for the year F=FE 283,487 352,165
Other comprehensive income Hitma W= (BRBER
for the year (after tax and EHEH > ERER)
reclassification adjustments)
ltem that may be reclassified ARERHRSEZEESN
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Available-for-sale financial assets: At HE S FHEE
net movement in the fair NAEEE
value reserve 10 (10,367) 588
Exchange differences on translation & /& 5MNi B A &
of financial statements of R AEN =8
overseas subsidiaries (3,028) -
Total comprehensive income mEWBEAE
for the year 270,092 352,753
Attributable to: BER:
Shareholders of the company FiNNET 3 228,315 303,548
Non-controlling interests JEPE 1 HE = 41,777 49,205
Total comprehensive income HEWREER
for the year 270,092 352,753

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial
statements.

226 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016F12 4318 [t FE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (JA A ER#EFIIR)

31 December 31 December
12A31H 12A31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥ T AR For

Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents BEEe 12 3,512,005 2,803,885
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES 13 1,051,941 1,400,061
Trade and other receivables JE U K H b E U SR IE 14 1,551,514 1,262,238
Receivables for factoring business i W iR 3 3018 15 594,604 217,953
Loans and advances to customers W E K KRB 16 7,625,407 7,137,771
Finance lease receivables JE U B E A B FRIA 17 279,244 69,718
Available-for-sale financial assets AT ECREE 19 333,521 106,886
Repossessed assets BEEE 248,480 94,802
Property, plant and equipment e 20 434,483 432,658
Intangible assets mEEE 21 6,234 4,227
Interest in associates RERERE -BEPE 22 985,462 60,054
Interest in joint ventures EHRERE-620% 23 19,995 9,998
Goodwill EES 24 11,190 11,190
Deferred tax assets EIEFTIS A E 32(b) 428,669 349,607
Total assets EEHAG 17,082,749 13,961,048

Liabilities =R
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 25 1,205,905 300,000

Financial assets sold under ENDEERERE

repurchase agreement 26 1,168,306 1,388,477
Deferred income RIHETEES 639,374 385,766
Provisions for guarantee losses BEREEEHS 27 350,596 390,337
Customer pledged deposits FARZES 28 17,191 27,097
Accruals and other payables FEET R Bt JE - 5RIR 29 2,381,352 1,498,059
Current tax liabilities EHMSHEE 32(a) 185,637 143,612
Debts securities issued JEHE 75 30 3,655,265 2,382,243
Total liabilities 8&EE5 9,603,626 6,515,591
NET ASSETS FEE 7,479,123 7,445,457

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial 233 E £3808 FrE M X i pk 7% S I 75 3
statements. FH)— &

Annual Report 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

SO AR R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 © & £2016F 12 4318 [t F &

(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (A A R EEFIR)

31 December

31 December

12831H 12H31H
2016 2015
2016 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
K1 it AR T ARMFor

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARKREE 33
Share capital fi&% A 4,600,000 4,600,000
Reserves Gk 2,240,881 2,186,346

Total equity attributable to RARRREGRAEE

shareholders of the company 6,840,881 6,786,346
Non-controlling interests FEHMERES 0 84 638,242 659,111
TOTAL EQUITY EEAaE 7,479,123 7,445,457

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 KEEZGI A RKENR2017F3A278 T
March 2017. o

Name: Zhang Guoxiang Name: Ren Weidong (Company stamp)
Position: Chairman of the Board Position: Chief Financial Officer
REIH ERE RAHIE

EFRTE BEREABE

SE233H E380 A FIH MY sE A % F W 15 3
RE)—H#B D

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EOtRRER BT X

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ¢ & £2016F12 A31H It F &
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (JA A ER#EFIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the company

ARARESEARE
Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange Surplus General  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
ARER -HER G RRER

Bx  E#ERE  EA0R FEEE RHLR BE  AAERA it &t ait
RMBOO  RMB'000  RMBUO)  RMBUOGO ~ RMB'000  RMBUO)  RMBY00  RMB'000  RMBUOO  RMB000
ARETE ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETZ ABETZ ARKETR ARETZ ARETZ ARETZ

Note 33(c) Note 33(d)fi] Note 33(d)fii) Note 33(d)fy) Note 33(c)fiii) Note 33(d)fiv) Note 34
A3 33(c)  HaE 33l At B3] K asfelf) A asfalfi) A 33iv) VGED
Balance at 1 January 2016: 0165181ANSE 4600000 1271109 346590 - B3 27793 238051 6786346 G501 7,445,457
Changes in equity for 2016: M6EHHEZEE:
Profit for the year FHE - - - - - - 241,110 241,710 M,117 283,487
Other comprehensive income EigalsE - - (10,367) (3,028) - - - (13,305) - (13,305)
Total comprehensive income GRMEA - - (10,367) (3,028) - - 24,110 228,315 o1 270,092
Equity-settled share-based payment DEREENRHEN - - 56,405 - - - - 56,405 - 56,405
Purchase equity interest from BRI R R
non-controlling interests - (185) - - - - - (185) (13,552) (13,737)
Appropriation to surplus reserve RPBBAE - - - - 29,481 - (29,481) - - -
Appropriation to general reserve RE-REREE - - - - - 12,679 (12,679) - - -
Cash dividends paid to the equity HARARREM ZRERE
shareholders of the company - - - - - - (230,0000  (230,000) - (230,000)
Cash dividends paid to REEHEER T 2B RE

non-controlling interests - - - - - - -

(40,004 (49,0%4)

Balance at 31 December 2016 2016512831 BN BHE 4,600,000 1,270,924 392,628 (3,028) 82,784 289,972 207,601 6,840,881 638,242 7479123

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial 233 E 380 H Pkl s % & 8 5 4
statements. FH)— &

Annual Report 2016
e rrrEgs 229



230

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BOtRRERZ R (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12 8318 It F &

(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (A A R EEFIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the company

FRERESE NER
Non-
Share Share Capital Surplus General Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve eamings Subtotal interests equity
—fRER FEsIE  RRER
BE  BROEE  EARE BHLR f#E  AOEFE gt i ait
AMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBO0OO  ARMBOOO  RMB0OO  ARMB00O0  AMB000  AMB00O0  RMB000
ANRETFT ANREFT AREFT ARETT AREFIT ARETT AREFT AREFTT AREFI
Note 33(c)  Note 33(a)j) Note 33(di) Note 33(c)iij) Note 33(d|iv) Note 34
Wit 33c) M 33(a)) HiaE 830 B 33 M 33 M 34
Balance at 1 January 2015 201581 A1BMHE 4,600,000 1,275,348 264,879 - 215,510 510,177 6,865,914 710,507 7,576,421
Changes in equity for 2015: 015F HEERED:
Profit for the year Ezilh - - - - - 302,960 302,960 49,205 352,165
Other comprehensive income Ehgaka - - 588 - - - 588 - 588
Total comprehensive income Galimast - - 588 - - 302,960 303,548 49,205 352,753
Equity-settled share-based payment b /8 & 5 #1373 2 ff - - 81,123 - - - 81,123 - 81,123
Purchase equity interest from BRI M A
non-controlling interests - (4,239) - - - - (4,239) (61,761) (66,000)
Acquisition of subsidiary KB AR - - - - - - - 2,460 2,460
Capital injection in subsidiaries from [t BRI JEE S4BT E
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 3,500 3,500
Appropriation to surplus reserve RRBHAE - - - 53,303 - (53,303) - - -
Appropriation to general reserve RE-fRERER - - - - 61,783 (61,783) - - -
Cash dividends paid to the equity ~ EIARRBEEZFzELRE
shareholders of the company - - - - - (460,000) (460,000) - (460,000)
Cash dividends paid to MR REI A BERE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - (44,800) (44,800)
Balance at 31 December 2015 2015512431 B 0% E 4,600,000 1,271,109 346,590 53,303 277,293 238,061 6,786,346 659,111 7,445,457

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial
statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BMESERGAERAR

55233 £ 380 AT 8L M X 8 Ak 5% 5 B 75 ¥

RE)—H#B D



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016F12 4318 [t FE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (JA A ER#EFIIR)

2016 2015
20164 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B &t AR® T AR For
Operating activities RESEE
Cash generated from/ EEBEEL (ER)

(used in) operations IR & 12(b) 163,706 (620,415)
PRC income tax paid SENEEIIECE N (129,319) (172,789)
Net cash generated from/ BESEEEES, (FEA)

(used in) operating activities Rep®w 34,387  (793,204)
Investing activities RETH
Proceeds from sale of property, g IEI W BB &

plant and equipment BB IR 746 132
Proceeds from sale of investments Y [E14% & F7 15 3018 135,122 146,000
Dividends received from other W B H Ath 4% 8 9 41

investments 3,435 -
Payments for the purchase of SHBEME - BE R

property, plant and equipment BEREMIERBEE

and other non-current assets P Q| (74,653) (77,030)
Purchase of equity interests of B FE 4 I 14 o Uk B

subsidiaries from non- Bt /8 A R 2 A O

controlling interests RIE (13,737) (66,000)
Payments on investment in HEWB AR IR FRIE

subsidiary - (5,470)
Payments on investment in AR E RN R IR

associates (924,770) (60,000)
Payments on investment in REEEDLESTNRIEA

joint venture (10,000) (10,000)
Payments on other investments T HMIEE N RIE (369,068) (94,261)
Net cash used in investing RETZHEARSFE

activities (1,252,925) (166,629)

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial 233 E £3808 FrE M X i pk 7% S I 75 3
statements. FH)— &
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

BOERERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 © & £2016F 12 4318 [t F &
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (A A R EEFIR)

2016 2015
20164 20154
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
b &t ARE T ARETFT
Financing activities FETEH
Proceeds from capital injection 3% & W B B9 38 &
Proceeds from non- FEEHIMRRNTE
controlling interests - 3,500
Proceeds from new borrowings SERKMIRE 1,148,932 1,721,000
Proceeds from financial assets E ﬁ ElfE < B & E W T
sold under repurchase BR&e
agreement 1,155,480 1,960,955
Proceeds from the issuance of BITESFAEHRIE
debt securities 1,269,156 2,380,800
Proceeds from other HMEREHRINE
financing activities 599,375 814,180
Repayment of borrowings BEEFRASZINONRSE (243,027) (2,236,607)
Interest paid BEEEFIEZNNER S (349,565) (151,538)
Dividends paid to equity MARF BRI FAERE
shareholders of the company (230,000) (460,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling M FEAE S 1 R S AT Y
interests BB (49,094) (44,800)
Repurchase of assets with EEELOEEES HA
repurchase agreement B& (1,375,651) (2,754,924)
Net cash generated from EETHEENREFE
financing activities 1,925,606 1,232,566
Net increase in cash and BB NFEE
cash equivalents 707,068 272,733
Cash and cash equivalents 1A1BE¥ES
at 1 January 2,803,885 2,531,112
Effect of foreign exchange IEEZBETE
rate changes 1,052 40
Cash and cash equivalents 12A31AERES
at 31 December 12(a) 3,512,005 2,803,885

F 233 E3B0FHBLM 2 AKX B M 5 %
xR — B -

The notes on pages 233 to 380 form part of these financial
statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T TLIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the group.
Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

1 EXRSFHEER

(a)

BREH

ZEVBHRRECREMBERE
B BREERN ([FEMBHRE
EHRE HGEHBEREES
e rg ([HEEMAE])
78 45 &0 P8 A O 18 B & 8 B
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SHERERE BELARE
FHRRIMEE D BEBI R BT AR
E-AMBHRENTTEEEHAS
RBABRABE S LRI
R B AR AR B PR
BEREABREN T

ERGHMASERMZERA
B 765 R 5% B T A Rl FT AR B R
FROFIE RERT BB M ME
R - PHRE1(CIR M T RARE B IR
378 55 e 22 R i 28 2O SR [ B 7S
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ¢ (X E 3

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprise the company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and
the group’s interest in associates and a joint venture.

The financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for available-for-sale financial assets
(see Note 1(j)) that are stated at their fair value and
liabilities from guarantees (see Note 1(q)(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 40.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (k3 &

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The
group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent

that there is no evidence of impairment.

BA TSR AR B AL

SAMEN GAARETTIIR)

1 EXSEEE (&)

(c)

(d)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R Y &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (F&

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

BRXES

BRrigsh AN RE T ITIIR)

1 EXSHERE (&)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
company, and in respect of which the group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statements of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
holders/shareholders of the company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statements
of financial position in accordance with Notes 1(j)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (Fr X E R BTN HUARE T LI R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ERSHHE (F)
(CONTINUED)

(d) FERRARFEHIEER

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Changes in the group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(j))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(m)(i)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X & S A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in
the group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see Notes
1(f) and (m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (Fr X E R AFTEIN HUARE T LI R)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the group’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

(f)

In all other cases, when the company ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in statement of profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see Note 1(j)).

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(m)(i)), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any noncontrolling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (k3 &

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see Note 1(m) (ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 1(m)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour
and borrowing costs (see Note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X & S A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSFEE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (9) WE - BERZE (&)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items M- -BEREBEEREETERRA
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated A AR - bR TR R &R
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over BE (B ) BUAEGEPERA
their estimated useful lives as follows: FrEWT

Estimated useful lives
&5t v 55 A S BR

Buildings held for use BEY 30-35 years 30-35%F
Motor vehicles B 5 years 5%
Office and other equipment WA R E AR 5 years 5%
Leasehold improvements HEWERR N 1-5 years 1-5%F
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment % - BENIEEEE SIH
have different useful lives, the cost is allocated on a WA AEFRAR - AIZIEE &5
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is MERARBIEEBEEESR &5
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset MoRTE-BENTAFHK
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. FHEBE (B ) BFELEZ-

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (hy BREE (BERIM)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see Note 1(m)(ii).
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the

Expenditure on internally generated

period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T TLIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

1 EXSEERE (F)

(h BEEE (BERMD) (&)

A RFEHARNER G EN#HE
DREENG A AEFHAER
EERTABER - U TARAER
FHMELEENHERRAH
FEAETTHESE - M ET A2 AR
(I

Estimated useful lives

fl &t AT 2 A F R

BRI

Software

2-10 years 2-10%F

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (F&

1

BRXES

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

()

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by group under leases which
transfer to the group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

(1) Financial instruments

()

Recognition and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the statements of financial position when the group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T TLIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(#)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) €@ITH (&)
(i) Recognition and measurement of financial assets () ZTEEERE EH R
and liabilities (Continued) it= (&)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are ERERN SRHEER
measured initially at fair value, plus, for instruments EHMBEAUNRABES
not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, E-HRUARBETER
any directly attributable transaction costs. HEHFAZHEZNERM

BEXTRAE HEARS
ERERAEHES S
REMBRNEREERES
BEE HEAXZERGA

IR ER e -

Financial assets and financial liabilities are cREEREREBED AU

categorised as follows: THER

e Loans and receivables o EFREUFIE
Loans and receivables are non-derivative ER R ERGRIALIEE
financial assets held by the group with fixed or TEETISHR A WmE
determinable recoverable amounts that are not o] Uk & 58 [ E =X Al #E TE
quoted in an active market, other than MAREEFENIEITE

TRMEE ARERE
TIETEEREES

D RERREWFIE
(a) those that the group intends to sell (a) DEABERXZH
immediately or in the near-term, which will BRENTESRLE
be classified as held for trading; - BN S Bl sk
e A Er S F
BE:
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Recognition and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

(b) those that the group, upon initial
recognition, designates as at fair value
through profit or loss or as available-for-
sale; or

(c) those where the group may not
recover substantially all of its initial
investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as
available-for-sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are stated at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated
upon initial recognition as available-for-sale
and other financial assets are not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T TLIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(#)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) () &I A (&)
(i) Recognition and measurement of financial assets () ZTEEERE EH R
and liabilities (Continued) it= (&)
e Available-for-sale financial assets e MHHESMEE
(Continued) (%)
Subsequent to initial recognition, available- AP EemEETR
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair WRENA LEBEE
value, without any deduction for transaction E BTHBREREE
costs that may occur on sale and changes ZEMEERIREEE
therein, except for impairment losses and MR SERARAELEE
foreign exchange gains and losses from TREEARAAEBEE
monetary financial assets, are recognised BB RIS B K
directly in other comprehensive income. When BRI BB R A INEE B
an investment is derecognised, the cumulative M REER KK E R
gain or loss in other comprehensive income is ZREIN AR EMEES
reclassified to statement of profit or loss. W R R o IR E

IRIEFRER R E R EHAM
A RERYERN 25
MELBErEeEHHE
ZgHER-

e Other financial liabilities e HMemBE
Financial liabilities other than the financial WAREETEAES
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are B AEHERN S
classified as other financial liabilities. BEMIIM SR B ER

PEAHEMSREE
Subsequent to initial recognition, other REHERE  Hid
financial liabilities are measured at amortised MEEEAERRNEZE
cost using the effective interest method. REBERN ARG E -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X & S A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets other
than those at fair value through profit or loss
are reviewed by the group at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is provided.
Objective evidence of impairment in the financial
asset represents events that occur after the initial
recognition of the financial asset and have impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the asset,
which can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence includes the following loss
event:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it is becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— disappearance of an active market for financial
assets because of financial difficulties;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T TLIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

° Loans and receivables

The group uses two methods of assessing
impairment losses: those assessed individually
and those assessed on a collective basis.

Individual assessment

Loans and receivables, which are
considered individually significant, are
assessed individually for impairment. If
there is objective evidence of impairment
of loans and receivables, the amount
of loss is measured as the excess of
its carrying amount over the present
value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. The impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Individual assessment (Continued)

Cash flows relating to short-term loans
and receivables are not discounted
when assessing impairment loss if the
difference between the estimated future
cash flows and its present value is
immaterial.

The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised loan or receivable reflects
the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BRXE BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ERESEHE (£)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i) &I A (&)

(i) ZEEERE (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

e Loans and receivables (Continued) o EXRIMEWHIA
(&)
- Collective assessment #HE R
Loans and receivables which are AEBHNEES
assessed collectively for impairment BAEAMRER

include individually assessed loans and
receivables with no objective evidence
of impairment on an individual basis,
and homogeneous groups of loans and
receivables which are not considered
individually significant and not assessed
individually. Loans and receivables
are grouped for similar credit risk
characteristics for collective assessment.
The objective evidence of impairment
mainly includes that, though it is unable
to identify the decrease of cash flow of
each individual asset, after collective
assessment based on observable data,
there is observable evidence indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flow from a
group of financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (&

1

BRXES

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

e |Loans and receivables (Continued)

Collective assessment (Continued)

The group periodically reviews and
assesses the impaired loans and
receivables for any subsequent changes
to the estimated recoverable amounts
and the resulted changes in the
provisions for impairment losses.

If, in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through the statement of profit
or loss. The reversal shall not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset that
exceeds the amortised cost at the date of
the reversal had the impairment not been
recognised.

When the group determines that a
loan has no reasonable prospect of
recovery after the group has completed
all the necessary legal or other claim
proceedings, the loan is written off
against its provisions for impairment
losses upon necessary approval.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BRXE BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to the statement of profit
or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss
that is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale
equity securities are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif) ~ Fair value measurement

If there is an active market for a financial asset
or financial liability, the quoted price in the active
market without adjusting for transaction costs that
may be incurred upon future disposal or settlement
is used to establish the fair value of the financial
asset or financial liability. For a financial asset held
or a financial liability to be assumed, the quoted
price is the current bid price. For a financial asset
to be acquired or a financial liability assumed,
it is the current asking price. The quoted prices
from an active market are prices that are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, broker,
industry group or pricing service agency, and
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

If no active market exists for a financial instrument,
a valuation technique is used to establish the
fair value. Valuation techniques include using
recent arm’s length market transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties; reference to the
current fair value of another instrument that is
substantially the same; discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models. Where
discounted cash flow technique is used, future
cash flows are estimated based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is the
prevailing market rate applicable for instrument with
similar terms and conditions at the end of each
reporting period. Where other pricing models are
used, inputs are based on market data at the end
of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

(iif) ~ Fair value measurement (Continued)

(iv)

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset and
financial liability, the group considers all factors
including, but not limited to, risk-free interest rate,
credit risk, foreign exchange rate and market
volatility, that are likely to affect the fair value of the
financial asset and financial liability.

The group obtains market data from the same
market where the financial instrument was
originated or purchased.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities

Financial assets (or a part of a financial asset or
group of financial assets) are derecognised when
the financial assets meet one of the following
conditions:

—  the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire; or

— the group transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets or where substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset are
neither retained nor transferred, the control
over that asset is relinquished.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E S A FT1EIN HUARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets and financial

(v)

liabilities (Continued)

If the group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, but retains control, the
group continues to recognise the financial asset
and relevant liability to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

The financial liability (or part of it) is derecognised
only when the underlying present obligation (or
part of it) specified in the contracts is discharged,
cancelled or expired. An agreement between
the group and an existing lender to replace the
original financial liability with a new financial liability
with substantially different terms, or a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and recognition of a
new financial liability. The difference between the
carrying amount of the derecognised financial
liability and the consideration paid is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position when the group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and the transactions are intended to be settled on
a net basis, or by realising the asset and settling
the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BRXE BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

(k)

U]

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting or hedge the net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

()

(1)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the group about one or more
of the loss events in Note 1(j)(ii). When any such
evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with Note 1(d) and Note 1(e). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with Note 1(m)(ii).

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  Property, plant and equipment;
- Intangible assets; and
- Goodwill
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available
for use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BRXE BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(#)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) (m) keRMEERE (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued) (i) HmEEREE (&)
- Reversals of impairment losses — BEREREXNHERE
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an HREBUINNEE -
impairment loss is reversed if there has been MAREBEETRE S
a favourable change in the estimates used EMEFTRERNNE
to determine the recoverable amount. An b R AERE & ER
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not BEXETUAER- B
reversed. BHEERBEBITT
EEY G
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to ZEOENEREERDT
the asset’s carrying amount that would have HBBEBRETTIREER
been determined had no impairment loss BEEXEATZEER
been recognised in prior years. Reversals ERAMRmMEE &
of impairment losses are credited to the Bl 1) & R E B R
statement of profit or loss in the year in which REBEEMNFE AN
the reversals are recognised. ANE BB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Employee benefits

()

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
defined contribution the group makes pursuant
to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have
joined defined contributions for the employees,
such as basic pension scheme, housing fund,
basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
injury insurance and maternity insurance.
The group makes contributions to the above
mentioned schemes at the applicable rates based
on the amounts stipulated by the government
organisation. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Employee benefits (Continued)

()

Share-based payments

The fair value of share awards granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
Pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the awards were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the awards, the total estimated fair value of the
awards is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the awards will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
awards that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of awards that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E S A FT1EIN HUARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) -~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BRXE BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credit, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (Fr X E R BTN HUARE T LI R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within liabilities from guarantees. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the guarantees
not been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with the
group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the statement of profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with Note 1(g)()) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in liabilities from
guarantees in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Provisions for guarantee losses

When determining the amounts to be recognised
in respect of liabilities arising from the guarantee
business, management estimates the provisions
based on prior experience and default history of
the business. It is possible that the prior experience
and default history is not indicative of future loss on
the guarantees issued. Any increase or decrease in
the provisions would affect the statement of profit
or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(1)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (Fr X E R BTN HUARE T LI R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the

statement of profit or loss as follows:

()

()

Guarantee and consulting fee income

Guarantee income is recognised when guarantee
contracts have been made whereby the related
guarantee obligation has been accepted, the
economic benefits associated with the guarantee
contracts will probably flow in, and the amount
of revenue associated with guarantee contracts
can be measured reliably. Guarantee income
is determined based on the total agreed fee in
the guarantee contracts and is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss over the period
of guarantee. The group receives consulting fee
income in relation to guarantee services in full at
inception and records it as unearned income before
amortising it throughout the period of guarantee.

Interest and handling fee income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. The group receives
handling fee income from loan services in full at
inception and records it as unearned income before
amortising it throughout the contractual period of
the loan.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iif) - Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
group for providing guarantee services to SMEs
under certain criteria are recognised as income
in the statement of profit or loss upon receiving
such grants. Grants that compensate the group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the assets and consequently
are effectively recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Borrowing costs

t)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are physical assets or property
rights obtained by the group from debtors, warrantors
or third parties following the enforcement of its
creditor’s rights. The initial cost of repossessed
assets is measured at the lower of the net carrying
amount of loans and advances and the fair value of
the assets less costs to sell on the acquisition date.
Repossessed assets are not depreciated or amortized.
The impairment losses of initial measurement and
subsequent revaluation are charged to the profit or loss.

1 EXRSEEE (&)

(s) EREH

®)
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BE(REEVAKBERERH
LA BT E I AARRE R
E)ERENEREBR BENMER
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RELEMERLSUHER -

EEATHMERERCDERE
Ko R B B B A E A {5 A iR A
&P BB EE B E KR
WE ERERRBRERLC-E
HEBENEIEMNEEZDTEE
AfERREREESENRERE
BT IERTERE ERERE
FHIFILERE-

BEEEE

BEEBERARERBHAITE
BANBNERERA ERA
HE=ZTRONENEENE
- BEEENTIRKATIAE
RARBROREFEREERD
BEREZKWERHNEEERD
BEREAE -KEEETRR
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Annual Report 2016
—E-AEEERE

273



Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the group;

(i) has significant influence over the group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member);

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
party;

274 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSTEE(#)
(CONTINUED)
(u) Related parties (Continued) (v) BEEEH (&)
(b) An entity is related to the group if any of the (o) WMT{EABANEERES

following conditions applies: (Continued) Bt (48)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) TEEHEASENEARE
for the benefit of employees of either the HEEBNEENES
group or an entity related to the group; Fl 25 3% 3 KO R KB 5T

EE

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by (Vi) 32 (a)H & A 25 il Bk
a person identified in (a); EHIR

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (viiy Z@()FBEAERTE
influence over the entity or is a member of the B 2 sk(a)(i)F @A
key management personnel of the entity (or of BREE(IDEHR
a parent of the entity). AREREEAE-

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) BEESEMBEEMNT
which it is a part, provides key management Al B A Bl M 4N & [ ok
personnel services to the group or to the AEBMYARIREE
group’s parent. ZEBABRS -

Close members of the family of a person are those —HRATHAREERZEER
family members who may be expected to influence, or SHEHAIZEZATHZZA
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the FENREKE -

entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME

The principal activities of the group are the provision of
credit guarantee and related consulting services, loans to
customers and agency services in the PRC. Net fee and
interest income represents net guarantee and consulting
fee income and net interest and handling fee income. The
amount of each significant category of net fee and interest
income recognised is as follows:

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME

2 BRFHEERNBBA(F)

(CONTINUED)
2016 2015
20165F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Guarantee and consulting EREZHAERA
fee income
Financing guarantee and BEEREBHERA
consulting fee income 724,706 751,564
Performance guarantee and BROEREFEABRA
consulting fee income 33,710 14,456
Litigation guarantee and FARERRBRDERA
consulting fee income 625 923
759,041 766,943
Less: Re-guarantee expenses B BERER (3,671) (1,905)
Net guarantee and consulting BERERZAEFVRA
fee income 755,370 765,038
Interest and handling fee income FERFHEBWRAKH:
arising from:
— Loans and advances to customers —EHRE R RET 962,590 1,117,898
- Factoring business —RIPER 56,487 12,440
- Cash at banks —RITEXK 50,745 49,267
- Restricted bank deposits —FHERRES 16,870 21,626
- Finance lease receivables —RMEREEN 13,602 3,471
— Internet financing business — RN BT 12,787 8,108
1,113,081 1,212,810
Interest and commission expenses ¥/ E R FEEBEXHEKH :
arising from:
- Debts securities issued —ERES (190,667) (61,307)
— Financial assets sold under —BEFXENBERMEE
repurchase agreements (80,043) (104,537)
- Borrowings from non-bank —FERITEEEE
institutions (66,488) (14,529)
— Commission paid to agents -~ FHEERAeTH (42,258) (21,885)
- Borrowings from banks —RITEE (9,249) (23,606)
(388,705) (225,864)
Net interest and handling fee FMERFEEFRA
income 724,376 986,946
Net fee and interest income BFEERIEWA 1,479,746 1,751,984
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME
(CONTINUED)

The group’s customer base is diversified and has no
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the
group’s net fee and interest income during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015. Details of concentrations of
credit risk are set out in Note 36(a).

Further details regarding the group’s principal activities are
disclosed in Note 35.

FFREERABRA (&)

AEEHRES TENEEER  RE
£2016%F ;k2015F12A31H IEFE
MAERSHBBASEBEFFEERT
BRAONMEF -EHAEFREFEER
B 51 51 A MY 5136(a) ©

EBRASEEZEBHNFIBHINNK
5335 °

3 OTHER REVENUE H A
2016 2015
201645 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARETFT
Government grants X 5 6 B 15,619 26,373
Rentals income from property EEBHEMNHES WA
sub-leases 7,161 3,362
Gain on disposal of available- REAHEE
for-sale financial assets EmMBEEMN KD 5,121 -
Dividend income from AHEESREEN
available-for-sale financial assets f& B A 3,436 -
Others HAtb 3,416 4,246
34,753 33,081

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 4 FEERKX
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT ARETF T
Trade and other receivables JE W R EL b JE W R IR
(Note 14(b)) (Kiat14()) 213,724 376,241
Loans and advances to customers R ER KB
(Note 16(f)) (Hat16(1)) 149,141 138,864
Receivables for factoring business JE W AR 28 5Kk
(Note 15(b)) (Htit15m)) 7,220 420
Financial lease receivables JE Wt & A B R
(Note 17) (K1at17) 2,830 -
372,915 515,525
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 %A1 A E

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: B A EE bk :

(a) Operating expenses: (a) EEXZH:
2016 2015
20165F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Staff costs 8 T % if
— Salaries, wages, bonuses —I& #e 2URK
and other benefits HAv & 7w 301,960 306,154
— Contributions to retirement —EEZRRE
schemes 66,688 64,182
- Equity-settled share-based — AR EEER
payment expenses BHZHAX 56,403 81,123
— Termination Benefits —BHREN 680 -
Operating lease charges FELELHEEER
in respect of buildings 88,780 90,474
Travel expenses EZiRE 56,459 62,017
Depreciation expenses WEEH 42,028 30,201
Tax and surcharges e KT 32,229 81,844
Office expenses /N =4 31,989 30,962
Meeting fee gEE 14,165 14,678
Entertainment expenses EFCSEEEE 13,091 15,607
Advertising expenses EEB 10,995 13,183
Auditors’ remuneration EirE 5,930 5,600
Amortisation expenses BiEBA 1,848 1,362
Others Hi 79,452 96,046
802,697 893,433

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: (Continueq)

5 BATFE (&)

BATAN B : (&)

(b) Other net losses: (b) HMFEHEE:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FTT AR For
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of LEWE - -BER
property, plant REFEK (W)
and equipment 109 (101)
Others Eih 2,372 1,770
2,481 1,669
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 SHERRDPHIEN
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) EHFERRPHHIERE:
or loss represents:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR For
Current tax (Note 32(a)) EHFREH (HiF32a)
Provision for PRC income tax REFTIRAEH
for the year 171,344 168,188
Deferred tax (Note 32(b)) ELEFTBR (A 7#32(0))
Origination and reversal of TR ME A KB
temporary differences (76,997) (34,006)
94,347 134,182
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 SOHfEBRRTPAEHR (F)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) HWERAREAENEHRER
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HENABENAG K
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Profit before taxation 753 A A 377,834 486,347
Notional tax on profit before BREEMETER
taxation calculated at the rates FRi5
applicable in the jurisdictions (H7E)
concerned (Note) 21,504 67,096
Effect of non-deductible expenses A #3032 H B 51 75 57 & 1,485 1,733
Effect of unused tax losses not TRAIFARBIERNTE
recognised 70,148 65,353
Effect on deferred tax balances BFEVRBERERLT
at 1 January resulting from FISBiEERE
a change in tax rate 1,210 -
Actual income tax expense e EBRAR 94,347 134,182
Note: HaE -
Except for Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua BREMEERIROERAR  EEHE
Assets Management Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit BEEBEARAR  EEMMHE|E
Co., Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., Xi’an ERBREEART  MWIBHEREE
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd., Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit RBERAR BXMHENEERE
Co., Ltd., Guiyang Nanming District Hanhua Micro-credit Co., RAF EAEMBENEERFRA
Ltd., Beiing Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd., Sichuan AEETEARBENEERER
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. and Horgos Huiwei Venture AR IR BEREREER AR
Capital Co., Ltd., the company and its subsidiaries are subject mBENEERBRAGIRERR
to PRC income tax rate of 25%. BRI EREERATIAIN B
EREWBRRIRB25% P EATEH

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd., Chongqging Hanhua Assets
Management Co., Ltd., Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit Co.,
Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd., Guiyang
Nanming District Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd., and Xi'an
Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. are qualified enterprises located
in the Western Region and are therefore entitled to preferential
tax rate of 15% during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.

Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. is qualified enterprises
located in the Western Region and is therefore entitled
to preferential tax rate of 15% during the years ended 31
December 2016.

Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. is a qualified enterprise
located in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and is
therefore entitled to preferential tax rate of 9% for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

6 ESHBEZRTHIEN (&)

(b) ZERRERAENREHER

HEFRBENAGER: (&)

Hrat - (&

BERRBROBRAR EEPEE
EERBRAR EEMHENEE
FERSTAR MW BHERMEER
BERAR-EETMEARDEEE
FERARRATTHEEERE
RARAREEBAHAERBESR
K% BmREIZE20169F k20159
12AMALFEZBEEBE15% -

msmENEERERARANEA
HBAMEBRBEENLE AmMRE
F2016F12A31ALLFEZHER
FE15% °

MEMBHENBEFERAANAFTE
BritkErEHRKEERE  Bil
R B 220164 &2015F12A31H &
FEZHEEEREI% -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd. is a qualified
software enterprise since May 12, 2014, and is therefore
entitled to exempt from PRC income tax in the first and the
second years from the first— profitable year, and be subject to a
50% reduction in PRC income tax for the third year to the fifth
year. Such tax exemption and reduction shall be implemented
upon registration and filing with the tax authorities.

Horgos Huiwei Venture Capital Co., Ltd. is a qualified
enterprise located in Horgos since January 26, 2016, and is
therefore entitled to exempt from PRC income tax in the first to
the fifth years from the first— profitable year, and be subject to a
50% reduction in PRC income tax for the sixth year to the tenth
year. Such tax exemption and reduction shall be implemented
upon registration and filing with the tax authorities.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION 7 ESTEEEHM

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) EEMEEHFHIZBEBELQRIEH
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BIMNU K ARF (BBREEF=EE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BB BE_FOETBEOT

Directors) Regulation are as follows :

Salaries
allowances
and Share-
Director’s benefits Discretionary based 2016
fees in kind bonuses Sub-total payment Total
101914 NEREE 2016
EE HER %e N BRBRA EEAG

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBETR  ARBFZ ARETT ARETZ  AREFT  ARET%

Chairman £l
Zhang Guoxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2016)  REI# (#201653F13REZ(T) - 2,436 1,776 4,212 37,427 41,639
Executive directors BnEzE
Cui Weilen (Appointed on 13 March 2016) EBE (R01653513AKEH) - 2,106 1,486 3,592 2,352 5,944
Wang Dayong (Appointed on March 132016) T AE (#2016F3F13REZ(T) - 1,506 1,110 2,616 2,352 4,968
Non-executive directors FHTEZ
Tu Jianhua (Appointed on 13 March 2016) BRE (R016E3A13BERT) - - - - - -
Duan Xiaohua (Appointed on 13 March 2016)  BEZ (12016535 13REZ () - - - - - -
Liu Jiaoyang (Appointed on 13 March 2016)  ZI%5#5 (20163 A 13 EZ(T) - 186 10 206 - 296
Liu Tingrong (Appointed on 13 March 2016) BEL (R201653R13REZ ) - - - - - -
Wang Fangfel (Appointed on 13 March 2016) T % % (R2016£3F13REZ(T) - - - - - -
Feng Yongxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2016) ¢k (12016437138 BZ(T) - - - - - -
Liu Bolin (Appointed on 13 March 2016) 2EFH (R016E3713AEZT) - - - - - -
Zhou Xinyu (Resigned on 12 March 2016) BT (R2016E3A12BF ) - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUkHTEE - 17 - 171 - 17
Bai Qinxian (Appointed on 13 March 2016) Eiﬁt (2016537138 BZ () - 17 - 171 - 17
Deng Zhaoyu (Appointed on 13 March 2016) RS (2016437138 BZ(T) - 17 - 171 - 17
Qian Shizheng (Appointed on 13 March 2016) iﬂﬂﬁ( (201656138 BZ () - 17 - 171 - 17
Ng Leung Sing (Appointed on 13 March 2016) R Z £ (1201656 F13REZ () - 17 - 1 - 17
Yuan Xiaobin (Appointed on 13 March 2016) R/ (R2016E6 5 13REZT) - 17 - 17 - 17
Supervisor Bz
Li Ruping (Appointed on 13 March 2016) FMT (R01653F130REH) - 783 3t 1,004 2,442 3,536
Chen Zhonghua (Appointed on 13 March 2016)  EH % (12016437138 BZ{T) - 205 214 509 - 509
Qin Yong (Appointed on 13 March 2016) £ (RO01653A 130 BE) - 160 75 25 - 25
- 8,327 5,082 13,409 44,573 57,982
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B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o

(BXES

7 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

BN BAARE T TIIR)

7 ESVESHFMN(F)

Salaries
allowances
and Share-
Director's benefits  Discretionary based 2015
fees in kind bonuses Sub-total payment Total
M 2R DEREED 2015
EZE AR #e NGt Rz EEast
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000
AREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFX
Chairman £
Zhang Guoxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2013)  REI# (1201353 F13REZR(T) - 2,409 1,776 4,185 50,368 54,553
Executive directors FHTEZ
Lin Feng (Resigned on 17 March 2015) i (R2015F3R17HER) - 362 - 362 4,551 4,913
Cui Weilan (Appointed on 27 May 2015) ERE (R01555A27AEZT) - 2,001 1,486 3,487 3,164 6,651
Non-executive directors F47ES
Tu Jianhua (Appointed on 13 March 2013) BRE (R013E3A13BEZRA) - - - - - -
Duan Xiaohua (Appointed on 17 June 2013) BEZ (01356 A17THEZT) - - - - - -
Liu Jiaoyang (Appointed on 13 March 2013) 2|84 (#2013E3F13REZ ) - 189 219 408 - 408
Liu Tingrong (Appointed on 13 March 2013) BIES (R013E3A13ARZT) - - - - - -
Wang Fangfei (Appointed on 13 March 2013)  T# % (2013535 13REZ(T) - - - - - -
Feng Yongxiang (Appointed on 13 March 2013) & 7]<¥¥ (201353 A 130 BZfT) - - - - - -
Zhou Xinyu (Appointed on 17 June 2013) BT (R201356A17HEZ ) - - - - - -
Liu Bolin (Appointed on 17 June 2013) %‘J BR (M201356A17TREZ ) - - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUkyE:
Bai Qinxian (Appointed on 13 March 2013) A (2013537130 EZ ) - 163 - 163 - 163
Deng Zhaoyu (Appointed on 13 March 2013) R (11201353 A13B EZ(T) - 163 - 163 - 163
Qian Shizheng (Appointed on 17 June 2013) SR (201356 A17TBEZ () - 163 - 163 - 163
Ng Leung Sing (Appointed on 17 June 2013)  R=E (201356 A17B EZ () - 163 - 163 - 163
Yuan Xiaobin (Appointed on 17 June 2013) MY (R2013E6 A17TREZRAT) - 163 - 163 - 163
Supervisor gz
Zhou Daoxue (Appointed on 13 March 2013) B2 (R2018F3F13REZ ) - - - - - -
Chen Zhonghua (Appointed on 13 March 2013)  BEH (182013537138 EZ{T) - 208 421 725 - 725
Li Ruping (Appointed on 13 March 2013) ST (W001353513AHEE) - 788 311 1,099 3,286 4,385
- 6,862 4,219 11,081 61,369 72,450

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

There were no amounts paid during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 to the directors in connection
with their retirement from employment or compensation for
loss of office with the group, or inducement to join. There
was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2015: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
Note 7.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two
(2015: three) individuals are as follows:

EENESHMN (&)

AEBRE E20164 K2015F 128
SIALEFERMESE RN
B (B sk N BR B2 - MEL £2016F &
2015F12 A1 AL FEBBEERE
3 [F) B P E A B8 =2 Bk -

REFMAL

hAAEEHMALH  EFR=%5(2015
FWMZ)BARBEE BENES
R FE7IRE -

FISARR & (20154 « =& ) B A B 5 B
BEHFIMT -

2016 2015

2016 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Frx AREFoT

Salaries and other emoluments T & F1E b 37 B 2,817 4,166

Discretionary bonuses ®2e 1,879 2,400
Equity settled share-based payment — LARR#E 45 & AR 15

expenses BEBMEREY 3,793 9,629

8,489 16,195
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8 EBeFMAL (&)
(CONTINUED)
The emoluments of the two (2015: three) individuals with the AR HEMALROIEFE =ZF)H
highest emoluments are within the following bands: T manT
2016 2015
20165F 20154
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A# A&
RMB
AR
Nil — 6,000,000 #£-6,000,000 2 2
6,000,000 - 6,500,000 6,000,000-6,500,000 -
No emoluments are paid or payable to these individuals REE2016%F K2015%F 12 A31H 1k
as an inducement to join or upon joining the group or as FE AEBRAZEATZFEIKR
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31 o Bl B3k 47 (5 =X b0 BE 2R R -
December 2016 and 2015.
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9 XATKRREMLER

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the company includes a profit of RMB248.4 million (2015:
profit of RMB683.0 million) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the company (see Note 33(a)).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income

10 Hitim & W

(a) EtFEEWRBEZHONRBE

&

2016 2015
20165 20155
Before- Net-of- Before- Net-of-
taxamount  Tax benefit taxamount  taxamount  Taxbeneft  tax amount
RAgE RHEks NRHEEHE RasE FEkE MBRREHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
Note 32(b) Note 32(b)
ABEFE AEEFr AREFrZ AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Wit 32(e) Wi 3op)
Available-for-sale financial assets: RNESRHEE:
net movement in fair value reserve MEERYFE (12,432) 2,065 (10,367) 784 (196) 588
Exchange differences BERHNELRHBERRD
on translation of ERiER
financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries (3,028) - (3,028) - - -
Other comprehensive income EthEAlE (15,460) 2,065 (13,395) 784 (196) 588

(b) Components of other comprehensive income,

(b) EXN D ERBENHEMES W E

including reclassification adjustments i)
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FTT AR For
Available-for-sale financial assets: AT EEMEE:
Changes in fair value recognised RFE R
during the year NIAEEE (10,367) 588
Net movement in the fair value KEREMiRE WS
reserve during the year recognised R RAEE
in other comprehensive income T (10,367) 588
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

11 EARNING PER SHARE 11 BRIz

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
company and the weighted average of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

EXRGEREEREATNERBRA
REEBEARRFNE RS ET
BEB e IEF A E

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR T
Profit attributable to the equity SEENANRKRESN
shareholders of the company FERE(ARETFT)
(RMB’000) 241,710 302,960
Weighted average number of ordinary W12 HA31HHE
shares in issue for the purpose of basic BEITEER
earnings per share (RMB’000) hnieE 19 8
(AE#®FT) 4,600,000 4,600,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) ARG
(ARE¥T) 0.05 0.07

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

() EEROMEFIIH

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FT AR T

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1A1HBEEITEBK 4,600,000 4,600,000

Effect of new issues MBETHEE - -
Weighted average number of P12 8318 @B

ordinary shares at 31 December hnAEF g & 4,600,000 4,600,000

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, and
therefore, diluted earnings per share are the same as
the basic earnings per share.

290 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 E¥ES
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) EESEIE:
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Cash in hand EFRE 101 111
Cash at banks RITF N 3,511,904 2,803,774
Cash and cash equivalents in the aHRENERD

consolidated cash flow statements =~ ¥ &% 3,512,005 2,803,885
The group’s provision of guarantee and loan to AEBTEPRELEMEFEED
customer services in the PRC are conducted in RMB. BEREETREUAARKET
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the ARBEIWIATEHLBHE -
remittance of RMB out of the PRC is subject to the 15 A RS TE A BB INE A B
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange 5 78 40 9 48 BA ZINME B 1R A J2

control promulgated by the PRC government. SEFRFTIAMR o
At 31 December 2016, cash at banks deposited in 72016F12 A31H + RITFEHF
related parties was amounted to RMB933.4 million (31 B ARMI33.48 & 7t (2015%F
December 2015: RMB41.1 million). 12A31BARBMNABET)F

HRAA BB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 E¥ES ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BiAIREEALSEIBHMANE
used in operations: P LGE R
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFoT
Profit before taxation 5t AT A 377,834 486,347
Adjustments for: K
Impairment losses BEERERX 372,915 515,525
Reversal for guarantee losses EOEREEEHRS (39,741) (110,917)
Depreciation and amortisation EMEHER 43,876 31,563
Loss/(gain) on sale of property, BEVE BE X
plant and equipment HEBK (W) 109 (101)
Interest expenses s SE st 346,447 232,293
Share of profits of associate D EERE
& W = (638) (54)
Share of losses of joint venture HEEPERERDY
(3-8-EN 3 2
Equity-settled share-based payment Bkﬁgﬁﬁﬁéiiﬁﬁﬂxﬁﬁii1ﬁ 56,403 81,123
Foreign exchange gain P& 5 U 2= (1,052) (40)
Dividend income from other HMZmERREBA
investments (3,435) -
Gain on sale of other investments B E/ED Wi (5,121) -
Changes in working capital LEESE
Decrease in restricted Tﬁﬁ%{% B R
bank deposits 348,120 724,404
Increase in loans and advances BRRE R R B FIE N
to customers (643,072) (1,358,058)
Increase in trade and other JFE LS e L A UK
receivables FRIEIE AN (1,220,562) (1,521,217)
Decrease in customer pledged T ARE © 185 >
deposits (9,906) (8)
Increase in accruals and other JEET Ko Eo At B A
payables FRIEIE AN 541,526 298,723
Cash generated from/(used in) ETEBEL, ()
operations "IE & 163,706 (620,415)
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BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

13 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 13 FHERRES
All restricted bank deposits represent the deposits at FIEGFHERRESRIBERITHATE X
banks according to the requirements from banks or related HEABFNRE AEERERITER
government regulations for the credit guarantees that the M8 =7 IRHEEAERNETRNER
group provides to third parties for their borrowing from TR
banks.
14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 FEUW R H fih FE W FK IR
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FTT AR For
Receivables for default payments R B (A FE14(a))

(Note 14(a)) 1,373,059 1,142,999
Trade receivables (Note 14(a)) FEWBR TR (H7at14(a)) 8,614 4,816
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W AR

(Note 14(b)) (Htat14m)) (743,758) (652,285)

637,915 495,530

Interest receivables JE WA B 153,556 115,936

Receivables for assets disposal JEUR & FE X 598,000 500,000
Other prepayments, deposits and HEMTENAHE -BE Rk

other receivables H ) i Y kI8 162,043 150,772

1,551,514 1,262,238

As at 31 December 2016, except for deposits of RMB28.7 MR2016F12A31H K€ AR

million (2015: RMB30.3 million), all of the remaining trade 28.7H & T (R2015F12A318 A A

and other receivables are expected to be recovered or R¥30.38& L) /N HFrAE EI R

recognised as expense within one year. Eh JE BGRIETERT I — F UKL [0 3k 7
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B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis:

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing of all
trade receivables is within one year.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of receivables for default payments, based on
the invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts,

14 BRRHEMEWRRE(F)

(a) FRiR DT

R EHIR - A e WRR H BR
BRE—FIAR-

R|BEHR REBEZFZAMEH
BRI BB R B ERN R
BT :

is as follows:
31 December 31 December
12H31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Within 1 year —FLA 376,949 512,170
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —E 4 418,517 377,627
Over 2 years but less than 3 years —E=F 363,199 158,715
Over 3 years but less than 4 years —ENF 129,934 89,244
Over 4 years but less than 5 years mMERF 84,460 5,243
1,373,059 1,142,999
Less: allowance for doubtful debts AR (743,758) (652,285)
629,301 490,714

Receivables that were not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record
with the group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 FEUR K H ftb B RRIR (4F)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables: (b) FEUWFRIERE :
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and FEURR SR & FE IR B & R
receivables for default payments are recorded using an BEEAUFEIKELEE BRIEAE
allowance account unless the group is satisfied that EREKEEERENKEE
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the WM-EZBAT BERERKX
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables 1 B 106 B LA B R % B W (R A A
and receivables for default payments directly (see Note Az (5 M E%1G) i) ©
1()(i)).
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts LA A #E E20164 &20154F12
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, AB1BLFENRERERGED
including both specific and collective loss components, (BREENREGEXRBMD) :
is as follows:
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFTT ARETF T
At 1 January m1A18 652,285 449,154
Impairment loss recognised in the REFEBERRERL
consolidated statement of BEBMERK
profit and loss (Note 4) (Hiit4) 213,724 376,241
Disposals during the year FRNEE (117,030) (180,064)
Recoveries el B 4% 8 389 14,480
Write-off IR A% 85 (5,610) (7,526)
At 31 December ®12A31H 743,758 652,285
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B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables: (Continued)

At 31 December 2016, the group’s receivables for
default payments of RMB1,373.1 million (2015:
RMB1,143.0 million) were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables were
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB743.8
million (2015: RMB652.3 million) were made at 31

December 2016.

15 RECEIVABLES FOR FACTORING BUSINESS

14 Bl R E b EUFIR (&)

(b) EBUWRERIE: (&)

B2016F12831H  AEEHF A
R#1,373.18 &7t (R2015%
12A81A A AR®1,143.08 8
70D KRR E R E R E A
B o {8 B R B FE W kI8 S I B
BRENER MEEEELT
M NBEHERE W EE F 31K
B E YR IE © A It - B 220164
12A31BER ARK743.88 8
7L (201512 A31B B AR
652.38 &0 ) K (& Bl AR 4 -

15 BUWRER

31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20165F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AREFT
Receivables for factoring business FEUAR B R (7 2%15(a)
(Note 15(a)) 602,244 218,373
Less: allowance for doubtful debts % (B :215(0)
(Note 15(b)) (7,640) (420)
594,604 217,953

(a) Ageing analysis:

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing of all
receivables for factoring business is within 1 year.
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BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

15 RECEIVABLES FOR FACTORING BUSINESS 15 ERRER (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of receivables for factoring/on (b) EWRERNEEREBEIEXKX:
business:
Impairment losses in respect of receivables for factoring JEURIERHNEEREBIUE
business are recorded using an allowance account ERRS BRIERNEERABKE
unless the group is satisfied that recovery of the amount BEEAFEBEORSEN T&ZER
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written T BEREBLABEZERELK
off against receivables for factoring business directly RIBFZEE (B85 ()(i)) °

(see Note 1(j)(ii)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts LA A #E E20164 &20154F12
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, AB1BLFENRERERGED
including both specific and collective loss components, (BREENREGEXRBMD) :
is as follows:
31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETF T
At 1 January M1 H1H 420 -
Impairment loss recognised in the REFEBERRERL
consolidated statement of profit BEERBEEX
and loss (Note 4) (Hiit4) 7,220 420
At 31 December ®12A31H 7,640 420

Annual Report 2016
—zrrrEgs 297



298

Notes to the Financial Statements

B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUAREFLIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(a) Analysed by nature

16 BHRERR B

(@) EMEEDH

31 December 31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AR Fr

Micro-lending NREEER 3,929,547 5,284,938

Retail loans BMAER 2,376,815 1,515,470

Personal consumption loans BAHBEEER 1,668,666 -

Loans to individual business proprietor A& L F & 39,643 669,684

Gross loans and advances to customers E R E N B KA EE 8,014,671 7,470,092
Less: Allowances for impairment losses & : & 2R (B

— Individually assessed — &R EH 1% (56,222) (28,005)

— Collectively assessed —HEFR (333,042) (304,316)

Total allowances for impairment losses  BRURMBA®A® (389,264) (332,821)

Net loans and advances to customers BRER MBI FEE 7,625,407 7,137,771

Loans and advances to customers included loans under

repurchase agreements, amounting to RMB1,021.8
million (2015: RMB1,355.7 million) as at 31 December

2016 (See Note 26).

Loans and advances to customers included loans of

RMB1,460 million arising from the consolidation of

structured entities which issued micro loan backed

securities to institutional investors by the group as at 31
December 2016 (31 December 2015: nil) (Note 42).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

16 BHRERRBR (&)

(b) Analysed by industry sector (b) TITEDW

31 December 2016
2016%F12831H

31 December 2015
2015%F12H31H

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥For % ARMFT %
Wholesale and retail HEEMTEE 2,252,544 35.50% 2,839,998 38.02%
Manufacturing RS 1,138,989 17.95% 1,290,342 17.27%
Real estate =i E 1,124,426 17.71% 1,128,652 15.11%
Construction B 804,429 12.68% 834,295 11.17%
Leasing and HEMBERSE
commercial services 369,346 5.82% 336,890 4.51%
Others Hib 656,271 10.34% 1,039,915 13.92%
Micro-lending and AN ETEI= T
loans to individuals A TITEmFER
business proprietor 6,346,005 100.00% 7,470,092 100.00%
Personal consumption BABEER
loans 1,668,666 -
Gross loans and BREZK
advances to customers ERAEER 8,014,671 100.00% 7,470,092 100.00%
Less: Allowances B B ROR E %
for impairment
losses (389,264) (332,321)
Net loans and advances  EWMER K
to customers BT 7,625,407 7,137,771
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B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Analysed by type of collateral

16 BHRERRBR (&)

(c) REFREEIM

31 December

31 December

12A31H 12H31H

2016 2015

2016 20154

RMB’000 RMB 000

AR TFT AREFor

Guaranteed loans RBEEXR 3,713,188 3,113,603

Unsecured loans MmIERE K 2,385,421 2,174,362

Secured loans HERER 1,916,062 2,182,127
Gross loans and BRERNRBFERE

advances to customers 8,014,671 7,470,092

Less: Allowances for B B RO E %S
impairment losses

- Individually assessed — 1 Bl 5T 42 (56,222) (28,005)

— Collectively assessed —HAaFHE (333,042) (304,316)

Total allowances for impairment losses SFURBAEMER (389,264) (332,321)

Net loans and advances to customers 2 E 2 & 2 %58 7,625,407 7,137,771
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Overdue loans analysed by overdue period

16 BHRERRBR (&)

(d) EEBBERNEHBRD AN

31 December 31 December
12A31H 12H31H
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Overdue within 3 months (inclusive)  # #A31E A LA A
(3@ A) 173,075 210,271
Overdue more than 3 months to 1 B3 A =6 1E A
6 months (inclusive) (&61EA) 197,164 122,521
Overdue more than 6 months to w EI6ME A =14
one year (inclusive) E16) 121,134 126,813
Overdue more than one year wEF LA 114,835 62,382
606,208 521,987

Overdue loans represent loans, of which the whole or
part of the principal or interest were overdue for one day
or more.

EAMEREREEMAMO A HF
BB RN EMER -
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B R ¥R R Y

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERRBRK (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances (e) BHERRBRIZASHEE
for impairment losses FEAFRXIRET

At 31 December 2016

20165127318
Impaired loans and advances
BHEEHREH
Loans and
advances
for which for which for which

allowances allowances allowances
are collectively are collectively are individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
REARFR HEERE HAEREE
HEREERN RAAHR RERAR
ERRBH iFHE it At At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT AREFT ARBFT ARBFT

Micro-lending IMECEER 3,829,570 18,839 81,138 99,977 3,929,547
Retail Loans BAER 2,221,542 139,119 16,154 155,273 2,376,815
Personal consumption loans BEABEET 1,668,666 - - - 1,668,666
Loans to individual business proprietors B LHFEH 33,977 5,666 - 5,666 39,643
Gross loans and advances to customers ZHERRBHEE 7,753,755 163,624 97,292 260,916 8,014,671
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 1§ : B ZURE£/E (195,856) (137,186) (56,222) (193,408) (389,264)
Net loans and advances to customers ~ EWEF R BT FE 7,557,899 26,438 41,070 67,508 7,625,407
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BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERRBRK (F)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances (e) BHERRBRIZASHEH
for impairment losses (Continued) FEARIROT (&)

At 31 December 2015

R2015%F12/31R
Impaired loans and advances
BREERRER
Loans and
advances
for which for which for which
allowances allowances allowances

are collectively  are collectively are individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total

RAaHA HREER EREER

TR EEEE BEAAR BREMA
ERRBR HE it it ait
AMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANEEFT ANREFIT ANEEFT  AREFRL ANEEFT

Micro-lending Mt EER 5,198,096 32,500 53,442 85,042 5,284,938
Retail Loans BAER 1,389,423 111,747 14,300 126,047 1,515,470
Loans to individual business proprietors EE LA EH 654,176 15,508 - 15,508 669,684
Gross loans and advances to customers % E 7 R B F A% 7,242,595 159,755 67,742 207,497 7,470,092
Less: Allowances for impairment losses 3 : EFUREEE (178,589) (125,727) (28,005) (153,732) (332,321)
Net loans and advances to customers N EFH L BFFE 7,064,006 34,028 39,737 73,765 7,137,771
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(ff Movements of allowances for impairment losses

16 BHRERRBR (&)

(H BHERRBIBREEFEZD

At 31 December 2016

20165125310
Impaired loans and advances
EREERRERN
Allowance for
loans
and advances
which are which are which are
collectively collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
RARHR HABEE HABERE
FHEERRY  RAANR  REASR
LENEE G i bt 4t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETR ARETFT
As at 1 January W A1R 178,589 125,727 28,005 153,732 332,321
Charge for the year (Note 4) RERR (H#4) 17,267 103,657 28,217 131,874 149,14
Write-offs TEGH - (106,580) - (106,580) (106,580)
Recoveries KEBREERRER - 14,382 - 14,382 14,382
As at 31 December "12A31H 195,856 137,186 56,222 193,408 389,264

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(ff) Movements of allowances for impairment losses

BA RS R AR B AL

16 BHRERRBR (&)

( BHRERRBREEEFEZD

(Continued) (#&)
At 31 December 2015
2015512431
Impaired loans and advances
BHEEFRER
Allowance for
loans
and advances
which are which are which are
collectively collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
RESHE HREER ERBEER
TEREREER BREAL REAAR
ERREH B BRG NGt aEr
AMB'000 RAMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT
As at 1 January R1A1H 147,463 93,247 48,145 141,392 288,855
Charge for the year (Note 4) REER (34 31,126 96,512 11,206 107,738 138,864
Write-offs REGH - 65,759) - (65,759) (65,759)
Disposals RE - - (31,366) (31,366) (31,366)
Recoveries KEBREERRBH - 1,721 - 1,721 1,721
As at 31 December W12A31H 178,589 125,727 28,005 153,732 332,321
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HUAAREFTHIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(g) Analysed by credit quality

16 BHRERRBR (&)

() REEEENIMIIRME

31 December

31 December

12H31H 12H31H
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥Fr AREFor
Gross balance of loans and BN E R R B R A5
advances to customers
Neither past due nor impaired K8 B R (E 7,387,698 6,933,107
Overdue but not impaired BRI E 366,057 309,488
Impaired 2 E 260,916 227,497
... 8014671 7,470,092
Less: Allowances for B BERER RSN
impairment losses
Neither past due nor impaired REERBE (172,725) (149,625)
Overdue but not impaired BB RRE (23,131) (28,964)
Impaired 2R E (193,408) (153,732)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (389,264)  (332,321)
Net balance FER
Neither past due nor impaired R HR R RV E 7,214,973 6,783,482
Overdue but not impaired B 38 B R R E 342,926 280,524
Impaired 2 E 67,508 73,765
7,625,407 7,137,771

306 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 17 EWREHRER

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

N2016F 20154

12H31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AREFT

Finance lease receivables Rl B ERER 324,183 85,633

Less: unearned finance lease income Ji : A E IR L& W (42,109) (15,915)
Present value of minimum finance REMERE WA

lease receivables 282,074 69,718

Less: allowance for impairment losses & : Jil (& 2 (2,830) -

Net balance ekl 279,244 69,718
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B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

17 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 17 B MERER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Finance lease receivables, unearned finance lease income FEWRERER AEERERZM
and minimum finance lease receivables analysed by EEMEHAEWRRERGINHE S
remaining period are listed as follows: #
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
#2016F12A31H F2015%12431R
Unearned Minimum Unearned Minimum
Finance finance finance Finance finance finance
lease lease lease lease lease lease
receivables income  receivables receivables income receivables
EymE AER BERE FE Yt & AER RERE
HEX MmE WS HEWH HER BEMNE &Yk

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000
ARBFR ARBTH ARETR ARETL ARETT  ARETT

Less than 1 year ik 99,649 (12,944) 86,705 19,163 (3,561) 15,602
1 year to 2 years 1EBIE 93,801 (12,184) 81,617 17,784 (3,305) 14,479
2 years to 3 years 2EEIF 56,063 (7,282) 48,781 17,142 (3,186) 13,956
3 years to 5 years 3EESHE 74,670 (9,699) 64,971 31,544 (5,863) 25,681
324,183 (42,109) 282,074 85,633 (15,915) 69,718

Less: allowance for BREEE
impairment losses (2,830) -
279,244 69,718

308 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 BB ARMNRE

TEREIWMBARBEEBEAE
BOXRE EEXARELETERE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the result, assets or liabilities of the

group. HIKI B A R A RS
Equity interest held by the group
AEEEANRAER
Place and date of At At Particulars of paid
incorporation/ 31 December 31 December in capital as at Principal
establishment 2016 2015 31 December 2016 activity
R20165 #2015 R2016512A318
#®m/HiI  12A31H 124318 BEREANFE TEER
Chongging Hanhua Assets Chongging 100.00% 100.00% 500,746 Assets
Management Co., Ltd. 29 May 2007 management
(EERELEERERAA) EE2007F5A29A BEER
Chongging Hanhua Chongging 86.00% 86.00% 532,250 SME lending
Micro-credit Co., Ltd. 25 September 2008 FNBEER
(EETHENEERERAMLLF) EE2008F9A25R
Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Chengdu 61.43% 61.43% 467,449 SME lending
Co., Ltd. 19 May 2009 FNREER
(R BENEERERAF) X #200995A19R
Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd Chongging 100.00% 100.00% 3,761,627 Financial guarantee
(HEERRHBERAF) 19 August 2009 MBER
EE200968A19H
Sichuan Small & Chengdu 100.00% 100.00% 200,000 Assets
Medium-sized Assets 21 October 2010 management
Management Co., Ltd. M #R201010A21 R BEEE
(O EEERERAA)
Tianjin Hanhua Micro-credit Tianjin 100.00% 100.00% 150,000 SME lending
Co., Ltd. 29 June 2011 RNREER
(REBENEEFRERAA) X#201156A298
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X & 5 A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 Y B ARMNIRE (&)

Equity interest held by the group

AEEREHREER
Place and date of At At Particulars of paid
incorporation/ 31 December 31 December in capital as at Principal
establishment 2016 2015 31 December 2016 activity
R20165F 120155 R20165F12A31R
#M/KY  12R31R 12A31H BEREARNFE TEER

Shenyang Financial and Shenyang 100.00% 100.00% 305,212 SME lending
Commercial Development 30 September 2011 FNEEER
District Hanhua Technology 152011597308
Micro-credit Co., Ltd.

(tHERBERERBENR
NEEFEBRAT)

Beijing Hanhua Credit Beijing 100.00% 100.00% 5,000 Investment consulting
Management Co., Ltd. 15 March 2012 RERT
(ARBEERERERAA) 72012634150

Chongging Huiwei Investment Chongging 100.00% 100.00% 100,000  Investment consulting
Co., Ltd. 7 January 2013 RE®A
(EEEMBREBRRR) HE2013F1A7H

Beijing Hanhua Internet Beijing- 100.00% 100.00% 120,000 Technical
Technology Co., Ltd. 11 October 2013 consulting and
(ERHEBERRBERAA) £ 72013F10A11H technical service

Bl 8 R BT R 7%

Guiyang Nanming District Guiyang- 100.00% 100.00% 100,000 SME lending
Hanhua Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. 10 April 2014 FNEER
EGTHARSE NEERERAF)  EH2014F48108

Chongging Changjiang Chongging- 91.00% 90.00% 273,200 Financial
Financial Factoring Co., Ltd. 1 July 2014 Factoring
(BEERISRRBERRA) EE2014F7A1R LRRE

Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Nanning 66.67% 66.67% 100,000 SME lending
(BEMRENEERERLA) 8 December 2011 FNEER

BE2011E12A8H

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROFERAA
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T TLIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 BB ARMNIRE (&)

Equity interest held by the group

AEEREHREER

Place and date of At At Particulars of paid
incorporation/ 31 December 31 December in capital as at Principal
establishment 2016 2015 31 December 2016 activity

R2016F 20156 ®2016%12A31H
#Mm/ Ky  12R831R 12A31R BEREARNFE TEER
Hanhua Internet Financing Services Shenzhen 100.00% 100.00% 60,000 Internet Financing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 2 March 2015 BEEeR

(HEERABRRE RN BRAT) FY2015F3A82R

Beijing Hanhua Management Beijing 100.00% 100.00% 5,000 Management
Consulting Co., Ltd. 20 July 2015 consulting
(ERBEEREABRAA) It 7201587 A20R EEHA

Nanjing Hanhua Technology Nanjing- 60.00% 60.00% 90,000 SME lending
Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. 29 October 2014 RNREER

(ARmHERE/)EERERAA) I ®2014F10 7298

Hanhua Capital Investment Beijing 65.00% 65.00% 6,500 Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 25 December 2014 consulting
(BEETREEREBRAA) It F2014F12 258 REHN

Shenzhen Hanhua Micro-credit. Shenzhen 100.00% - 300,000 SME lending
Co., Ltd. 20 January 2016 RNEEER
(R BE ) EERERAF) 4120161208

All of the above subsidiaries are companies with limited FT A -t B 88 & B1 39 70 mp B 1l B 4

liability incorporated and operated in the PRC. The English ENAERETAR -SHEBARMRE

translation of the names of these companies is for reference NEZEH2ZE-ZEMBRAMNIER

only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese. HBRBAR R

The non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries of the group ANE B MY BB A R Y D BUAR BR RE a B

are set out in Note 34. 7134 °
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

19 AIHHESHEE

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT AREFor
Available-for-sale equity instrument  A] it & H B A

— Listed — k™ 145,165 -
- Unlisted —JEm 153,296 91,116
Wealth management products (Note) IR BAE & (#1:E) 35,060 15,770
333,521 106,886

Note: HBiat:

The types of structured entities that the group does not consolidate
but in which it holds an interest include entities set up for wealth
management products issued by banks. The nature and purpose
of these structured entities are to generate fees from managing
assets on behalf of third party investors. These vehicles are
financed through the issue of units to investors. The variable interest
from these structured entities are not significant thus we do not
consolidate these structured entities. The maximum loss exposure of
interests held by the group is the same as the carrying amount.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

AREERBBEEFERE MR MRE
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

20 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

20 ME- -BERKRE

Buildings Office and
held for Motor Other Leasehold  Construction
own use vehicles equipment improvements in process Total
BAR BENE
BN EQRE Rt R BRI ERIE a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ANREFT  AREFr  AREFr  AREFT  AREFT
Cost; R
At 1 January 2015 R201551A18 300,048 26,374 41,485 63,741 44,855 476,503
Additions RHEM 1,322 2,831 10,101 12,236 50,006 76,496
Transfers in/(out) g1/ (8H) 45,455 - 2922 - (48,377) -
Transfers to intangible assets ERZANEE - - - - (346) (346)
Disposals RE - (303) (284) - - (587)
At 31 December 2015 and R2015512A31A K
1 January 2016 2016F151A 346,825 28,902 54,224 75,977 46,138 552,066
Additions RHEM 336 202 5,516 13,369 27,267 46,690
Transfers in/(out) g1/ (8H) 18,377 919 - - (19,296) -
Transfers to intangible assets ERZANEE - - - - (1,982) (1,982)
Disposals EE - (692) (1,858) - - (2,550)
At 31 December 2016 ®2016512531A 365,538 29,331 57,882 89,346 52,127 594,224
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:
At 1 January 2015 #2015F1 418 (21,974) (13,985) (17,799) (86,011) - (89,763)
Charge for the year REGR (4,109) (3,818) (8,209) (14,065) - (30,201)
Written back on disposals REEMD - 282 274 - - 556
At 31 December 2015 and R2015512A31A K
1 January 2016 20165181 (26,083) (17,521) (25,728) (50,076) - (119,408)
Charge for the year REHR (12,524) (3,329) (11,394) (14,787) - (42,028)
Written back on disposals REEMD - 482 1,213 - - 1,695
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12831R (38,607) (20,362) (35,909) (62,863) - (159,741)
Net book value: EHFE
At 31 December 2016 120165125310 326,931 8,969 21,973 24,483 52,127 434,483
At 31 December 2015 R20156128318 320,742 11,381 28,496 25,901 46,138 432,658
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B R ¥R R Y &

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21 BEEE

RE £20169F N2015%F12A31H I1E
FE AEBNMEEFEERSIF-

All intangible assets of the group are software during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥For ARMFor
Cost 5N
At the beginning of the year REA] 8,301 7,421
Additions AREIEN 3,855 880
Atthe end of theyear ~  ®&%x = 12156 8,301
Less: Accumulated amortisation & : BT &
At the beginning of the year NG (4,074) (2,712)
Charge for the year REER (1,848) (1,362)
Atthe end of theyear R®&%xX (5,922) (4,074)
Net book value BRI EEE
At the end of the year RER 6,234 4,007
At the beginning of the year RED 4,227 4,709

31 4 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEIN  AUARE T TLIIR)

22 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 22 REBRERE-HELHE
The following list contains only the particulars of material TREHINEEHRLELENFF:
associates:

Proportion of ownership interest

=144
Particulars
Form of Place of  of issuedand  Group’s Held Held
business incorporation paidup effective by the by a Principal
Name of associate structure and business capital interest company subsidiary activity
£EER
BELERR ABER TEREY TN BR EERER BEER TEER
RMB'000
AREFT
Shandong Financial Assets Incorporated Jinan 200,000 30% 30% - Financial asset
Exchange Co., Ltd. BAERAA E@  ordinary shares trading services
(LREHEERSPOERAT) Liak TREERHRHE
Chongaing Fumin Bank Co., Ltd. Incorporated Chongaing 3,000,000 30% 30% - Banking
(EEERBRITRHERLDR) BRHEBRAF ZE  ordinary shares BITE
All of the above associates are accounted for using the AEBE A MR RAER
equity method in the consolidated financial statements. ERE -
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X & 5 A FT1EIN HUARE T LIIR)

22 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

22 RBRERE-BELHE

(#&)
The summarized financial information of the associates are AR ErENEETHEEREN
disclosed below: T

Chongging Fumin

Shandong Financial
Assets Exchange

Bank Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd
EEERBTR®A LWREMEERZH D
BRAF BERAT
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016% 20154 20164 2015%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ANREFT ARETFT AREFT
Gross amount of the associate & MEMNEELHE
Total assets BELE 7,432,471 - 738,740 212,448
Total liabilities BEEE (4,430,671) - (538,234) (12,268)
Net assets BEE 3,001,800 - 200,506 200,180
Revenue WA 35,086 - 22,063 12,910
Post-tax profit or loss HEFE,/ BB 1,800 - 326 180
Reconciled to the group’s rEEHBE X
interest in the associate RERAGTX
Gross amount of net assets HECENTEE
of the associate 3,001,800 - 200,506 200,180
Group's effective interest AEEERFR 30% - 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets AEERBRELAIEEL
of the associate FEEMNE 900,540 - 60,152 60,054
Carrying amount in the HEEPEN
consolidated financial statements & &M EEEE 900,540 - 60,152 60,054

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

23 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:

23 REPRERE-SELE

R AREBNEA GHRE PR AR
FEREMASDERENEXEN M
—F :

Proportion of ownership interest

BRELA
Particulars
Form of Place of  of issuedand  Group’s Held Held
business incorporation paidup effective by the by a Principal
Name of joint venture structure and business capital interest company subsidiary activity
&9

RELELRE Eik-fed TELES kx  BREER EEER BEER TEER

ARMB000

NEBTFT
Chongaing gongkang Enterprise Incorporated Chongaing 20,000 50% - 50% Management
Management Co., Ltd. BHERRE EE  ordinary shares consulting
(ERARCEERERARA) LRk EEEH
Chengdu chenkang Enterprise Incorporated Chengdu 60,000 50% - 50% Management
Management Co., Ltd. RABRAA #  ordinary shares consulting
(KBRECEERBERAA) LaER EBEH

The above joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

NEEELEERMHRRTEAER
EEE
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

24 GOODWILL

24 HE

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
20165F 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT AREFor
Cost AR
At the beginning of the year REH] 11,190 -
Additions NGRSl - 11,190
Attheend of theyear RW&X 7 1190 11,190
Accumulated impairment losses: R EERBEBIREY
At the beginning of the year BEREERK - -
Impairment loss R EERBEBIRNEN - -
Attheendoftheyear = RW&x = 7 190 11,190
Carrying amount REE
At the end of the year REXR 11,190 11,190
At the beginning of the year RED 11,190 -

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) o (BRXE B AT HUAARE FLIR)

24 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

On 6 February 2015, Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology
Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company,
acquired 100% equity interests of Beijing Beiniu Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Beiniu”) from its former shareholders at
an aggregate consideration of RMB1.5 million. Following the
completion of the transaction on 6 February 2015, Beijing
Beiniu became a wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing Hanhua
Internet Technology Co., Ltd.. The excess of the aggregate
consideration over the net fair value of the Beijing Beiniu’s
identifiable net assets measured as at the acquisition date,
amounting to RMB1.47 million was recognized as goodwill
by Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Co., Ltd..

On 31 August 2015, Hanhua Internet Financing Services
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Hanhua Internet”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the company, acquired 95% equity interests of
Zhongli Insurance Sales Co., Ltd. (“Zhongli Insurance”) from
its former shareholders at an aggregate consideration of
RMB56.5 million. Following the completion of the transaction
on 31 August 2015, Zhongli Insurance became a 95% non-
wholly owned subsidiary of Hanhua Internet. The excess
of the aggregate consideration over the net fair value of
Zhongli Insurance’s identifiable net assets measured as at
the acquisition date, amounting to RMB9.72 million was
recognized as goodwill by Hanhua Internet.

The goodwill is subject to annual impairment testing. The
company makes provision for impairment if necessary. The
recoverable amount of the CGU using cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts approved by management
covering a five-year period. The discount rate used reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

Based on the result of the impairment testing, no impairment
losses on goodwill have been recognised for the year.

24 BHE (HF)

2015F 2860 B ER K (AR A
2EMBAR)BIEFRBEFRBREE
FIREEZGE  XEIERBE4100%
Wl IHEHEAARKISEER
JT H2015F2A6H B R B 4K A
IRBEMENE2EMBRR HEE
eIt R B4 AR FEEAAEE
BREFEEIATAE L At RH
HEEKHMBEERARERAPE-

P2015F8A31H  MER B (A
NAEZEMBE Q) HE PR FIRE R K
REIREEERS EPFRR
5%y A% - 8 = 5 B A U R R AR
REE AR ARKS6.58 8L 52015
F8A31H R H FIR I K A8 & 5 B
HemMETENB AR R
PARBOAHBEFEEAABESR
REFEEILT2ABIL AYELH
HERREE-

BEYRHERAT - RRERS £
BERLRER  SHERERE - AKE
N BRESRELET] RRAFHNIER
3R 7 T BE 5 S R T B [ gk 1 37 3R K
AHEA RS-

AERBEAAER AFEHEREL
AE
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25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The interest-bearing borrowings were repayable as follows:

25

BN BAARE T TIIR)

FFEMEM

i

BRERREE

31 December

LRI RHIR AT AT

31 December

2016 2015

20164 20154

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR FT AREFT

Within 1 year or on demand EREEIIFUARN 61,000 219,000
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FE2F 1,973 81,000
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F EBF 1,142,932 -
1,205,905 300,000

The interest-bearing borrowings were secured as follows:

_‘;

ERRERT AT :

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Bank loans (Note (j)) B (M)
— Unsecured —ﬂﬁ?{% 144,905 139,000
— Secured by properties of —REE Y EEA
the Group (Note (i) (Hiate) 61,000 81,000
205,905 220,000
Other loans (Note (ii}) H &R (B L))
- Unsecured —mER 1,000,000 80,000
1,205,905 300,000

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X &

25 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

26

Notes:

(i)

(i)

All of the group’s bank loans are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the group was to breach the covenants,
the loans would become payable on demand. The group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 36(c). At 31 December 2016, none of covenants relating
to the bank loans had been breached.

The bank loans are secured by the group’s buildings held
for own use. The aggregate carrying value of the secured
properties amounted to RMB191.0 million (2015: RMB198.0
million) as at 31 December 2016.

Other loans bear interest at 6.5% per annum, are unsecured
and are repayable 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER
REPURCHASE AGREEMENT

BA TSR AR B AL

SAMEN GAARETTIIR)

25 FFEMER (&)

Hrat

(i)

(i)

(i)

EREBENRITERABETES
MBI INERAR - HAKERE

ROE BERAREGREREE-X
SETHEERABR - AEEHR
FHERREENEZFBHRET
36(c) ° 2016412 8310 iz
HIER -

RITEFRHAEEZEMER R
2016512 A31H « EIFY A R E
BEAAR191.06 &L (2015F12
A31EAARM198.088 L)

HMEXNFEEERN66% BEE
RI B &KIEAN2020F12A31H #

26 EHOBEMEE

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR FT
Benefit rights of loans and BHERRB R R
advances to customers 1,168,306 1,388,477

Details of the carrying values of underlying assets of financial

assets under repurchased agreement are set out in Note
16(a).

BEHOEEREENEBEEREE
HBENME16() °
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B T ¥R R Y o

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

27 PROVISIONS FOR GUARANTEE LOSSES 27 ERAREEES

322

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T ARETFT
Provisions for guarantee losses BREEEEGED
(Note 27(a)) (Haz27(@)) 350,596 390,337
350,596 390,337

(a) Provisions for guarantee losses

(a) EREEEHES

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

20164 20154

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR AREFT

At the beginning of the year F4 390,337 501,254
Charge for the year KEER 287,866 328,264
Transfers out ! (327,607) (439,181)
At the end of the year FR 350,596 390,337

28 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Customer pledged deposits refer to deposits received from
customers as collateral security of the credit guarantee
issued by the group. These deposits are interest-free, and
will be returned to customers after the guarantee contracts
expire.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

28 FAREE

FAREFEEERAZTPKRHRES -
VAYE AN SR B4R AR (R ) FE AR K4
HERERES UHRERSQRE

mERERP -
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BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (B E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LIIR)

29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 29 FERt R E M RO
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
2016 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Accrued staff cost JRE {1 ek T 38 M
— Salaries, wages, bonuses and —IT& e EMK
other benefits H 48 7 85,737 89,824
Interest payables FETF B 75,625 82,609
Other interest-bearing liabilities HMEr8a®& (M)

(Notes) 1,763,555 914,180
Other payables E b S B 373,104 234,276
Financial liabilities measured at REHEKAGTEERARE

amortised cost 2,298,021 1,320,889
Value-added tax and other EERREMHEME

surcharges payable 4,693 19,074
Withholding individual income tax TEHFE X & A P15 5

payable 3,816 -
Receipts in advance TR RIR 74,822 158,096
Total Xl 2,381,352 1,498,059
Notes: Kz
()  During the years ended 31 December 2016, RMB1,121.6 () HREZE2016F12A31 B HFE - K&

million of loans and advances (31 December 2015: RMB614.2 B AREI121.6BETNERE
million) were transferred to independent third parties by the BEBUME=7 (R2015612A4
group. However, the group still provides guarantee for the 318 AR¥6142887T) cEARA
default payments of the principles and interests of the loans EEEELSZEEETREJREAARIEK
and advances transferred. As the transfer did not meet the HHER ZRXHGTMEERAER
requirement for the derecognition of financial assets, the loans IEHERGEH  AEA R ET A
and advances were not derecognised from the consolidated ZHBNEFERAT WK EHE
financial statements and the amount of proceeds received by ERIEAREMBEINR

the group was recorded as other payables.

Annual Report 2016
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B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (KX E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

29 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)~ Other payables of the group at 31 December 2016 included
interests of limited liability partners of RMB641.5 million in
the partnerships which were consolidated by the group (31

December 2015: RMB300.0 million).

30 DEBTS SECURITIES ISSUED

29 EEtREMENRE (&)

Wit (&

(i)

31 December

R20165F12A31H  AEEHMAE
PEEAHNERGBALEAEZED
¥ EZEMETARE64I5EET
(R2015F12A318 : AR %300.0
BET) e

30 EfESH

31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥ T AREFoT
Fixed rate corporate bonds 202046 A B #ir
maturing in June 2020 EMERAIE ] 1,491,380 1,489,183
Fixed rate corporate bonds 201911 H 21 HiAY
maturing in November 2019 & E F &R AE (i) 894,730 893,060
Assets backed securities JERERREE
payable-senior tranches TRES (i) 1,269,155 -
At the end of the year RER 3,655,265 2,382,243

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA
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BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (Fr X E R BTN HUARE T LI R)

30 DEBTS SECURITIES ISSUED (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Fixed rate corporate bonds with nominal value RMB1,500
million and a tenure of five years were issued on 10 June
2015. The coupon rate is 6.10% per annum. The group has an
option to increase the coupon rate for the remaining duration
at the end of the third year. After the group announce whether
to increase the coupon rate, the investors have an option to
redeem all or part of the debts held at the nominal amounts.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of corporate bonds
amounted to RMB1,521.9 million.

Fixed rate corporate bonds with nominal value RMB900 million
and a tenure of four years were issued on 3 November 2015.
The coupon rate is 5.60% per annum. The group has an option
to increase the coupon rate for the remaining duration at the
end of the second year. After the group announce whether
to increase the coupon rate, the Investors have an option to
redeem all or part of the debts held at the nominal amounts.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of corporate bonds
amounted to RMB901.3 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, RMB1,460.0 million
of micro loans were transferred to structured entities. After
that, the structured entities issue asset-backed securities
(“the Products”) to investors, while the group acquired all
the interests of subordinated tranches of the Products and
provided guarantee against the investors that acquired the
senior tranches. As the group has retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of these transferred micro loans, which did
not qualify for the derecognition of financial assets, the group
continued to recognise the transferred micro loans and the net
proceeds amounting to RMB1,269.2 million received by the
group was booked as assets backed securities payable.

30 BNES (&)

Bat

(i)

(i)

(i)

NRAER2015F6 A 108 AT
BAARK15008 B0 EFHR
BSFH ARG -BHFEZEFMNER
6.10% ' N5 B A RN A& 517 & 5
ME=ZFFREANEHFRELHRD
ZEMR-AEARFEHES FHAE
ENEREEENA LR KREESR
EBEFENES 2RI NIREAE
ER=F =¥ NS

R20165E12A310  BENAREE
BARMEA 521 9HE T

N A R2015F 11 A3H AR 1T
“EE A ANREE0E B L EHHR
BAFHARIE-BFEZEFNEAR
5.60% ' A5 B A 1 AN 75 17 4 HR
ME_FFREANEHFERELHRD
FEMER-ERRARBHEST LAZ
EMNEREEENAEE KEESR
EBEFENES 2RI DIREAE
ER=—F =¥ NS

R20165E12 8318 EHNAREBE
BARKEIOIIHET-

REZE2016F12A31HILFE - A&
E i ARE1,460.08 B TH/NEE
FEEREERCTE -BHERLEE
BRAREERTEAEXRER ([E
wml)  ANAEEFEZEREBR
EMEDIAR BB ESTIEFISD R
BER-BRAEERE THE)EE
FHET2MABMBRE - EES
BETHBEIEERNES B
SEHEBETEERBERTHALLE
E KBS ARE,269.28&E T
ERATEENEEIRFESFPI R
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B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X & 5 A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTION

Chongqging Huitai Company Limited (“Huitai”) was
established as the group’s vehicle for implementing a share-
based incentive scheme (the “Share Incentive Scheme”)
to provide share incentive to the senior management of
the group. On 20 June 2013 (the “Grant Date”), details of
the Share Incentive Scheme were finalised under which
15 directors, supervisors and senior management of the
company (the “Grantees”) were granted entitlement to shares
of the company through their equity interests in Huitai (the
“share awards”) at a discounted price. The share awards
would vest in installments on a monthly basis over the 8-year
service period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2020.
When a Grantee terminates his/her employment with the
group, any unvested portion of benefits will be reallocated to
the remaining Grantees in proportion to their then respective
interests in Huitai.

Huitai held 7.88% of the equity interests of the company
on the Grant Date for the purpose of the Share Incentive
Scheme and did not carry out any other business.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

31 UERAENRO M

ERZEHFREARAA([ER]DRE
BERRREANBEERIRODAE
BREECRIBEERRODZ2EAT
MR RAEE R E R AR B 5T
B (TAR#E BBy ET &) M E FIRK 7 &Y
BEER AT - AR RE DB T &l
fE2013F6 A208 ([ EFH]) #
EARNBIMIGZESRS BEENgE
(MEEER]) UITIERERESRD
REEMEERERARANRKRMD -8
2013%181H £2020%12831H -
&R B S FE 5% 8 F MR A 5 HiRER
MER BB RBEARNEER  ZX
B R AREBES W B ERE S B HeR
HEHRERERNIFRENZE -
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BA TSR AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LI R)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 31 LUEEREENRO XN (&)
TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (a) BTFEBEMNGRRREHOULT
follows: Fr 5l

Number of
Instruments Vesting conditions

RIOHE  TREKH

Awards granted to directors and
SUPEervisors:

RTEERESENRMG:
—on 20 June 2013 193,918,615 Every month from 1 January 2013 to
— 201396 H20H 31 December 2020

#£2013F1 A1 B E2020F12 A1 B W F @
AimE ] ESEENR D

Awards granted to employees:
BTEERNRND
—on 20 June 2013 76,351,233 Every month from 1 January 2013 to
— 201346 H20H 31 December 2020
#2013F1 A1H £2020F 12 A31 AW F A
F o B AT 15 A E B AR 17

Total share awards granted 270,269,848
BT RGO EE
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigsN HUAAREFTHIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

31

URESEENRG N (&)

(b) BB BY BB M P19 1T RE A0

prices of share awards are as follows: T
31 December 2016
2016%12H831H
Weighted
average Number of
exercise price shares
FHITHEE HE=E
RMB
AR
Outstanding at the beginning of FHEITEIN
the year 0.42 270,269,848
Granted during the year KEET - -
Exercised during the year NEFTHE - -
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ FRE/TFESD 0.42 270,269,848
Exercisable at the end of the year FERAIITHE 0.42 135,134,924

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (k3 &

BA RS R AR B AL

SBEMEN GAARETTIIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 31 LUEEREENRO XN (&)

TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

(c) RIZHEHQRAEERRBRR

(c) Fair value of share awards and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
awards granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share awards granted. The company accounts
for the Share Incentives Scheme on the basis of the
pool of shares granted rather than treating the individual
Grantee as the unit of account. The fair value of the total
pool of shares is measured at the Grant Date with the
non-vesting condition effectively ignored for valuation
purposes. Subsequent forfeitures and reallocations
would have no effect on the accounting treatment
and the measurement of share awards granted to
management. The estimate of the fair value of the share

AN &) LA AR 1) B i JE ER Y
fRBHALEBEESEZEETHRKND

HENAAEBERE AR AT
HEREAEEETSER
B G H AR BB 8
MAENEB B RERE
TEHZE - RESB T E A
ARABEEXTHF =2 BE#E
ITEENHRENZE BITEEMS, -
ETBRBEBEENEBB Y RBER
AEER ZHABERRERED
R EERESHESRBEER
Eﬂﬁ{-_t,\/kﬁ'ﬁ-rﬂxttmﬁ*ﬁ

awards granted is measured based on a Cox-Ross-

Rubinstein Binomial Pricing model. The contractual life CRENMOREEHEELE

of the share awards is used as an input into this model. %L BN QAR EBEGES
Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
RAVEIT A - IR HAERN A
FRIEQ[ULEE B — A2 H -

Share awards

granted on
20 June 2013
20136 H20H
=T B AR 10 HA
Fair value at measurement date (RMB) RETEHBNAAER (AKEK) 1.77
Share price (RMB) RITRE (ARK) 2.26
Exercise price (RMB) TREER (ARK) 0.53
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted IESERPEIES
average volatility used in the modelling ( LA Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
under Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial RAFTERMMEF I EERT)
Pricing model) 64.3%
Option life (expressed as weighted average HiRERY B
life used in the modelling under Cox-Ross- ( ACox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
Rubinstein Binomial Pricing model) RAFTIE AR IE T REAEX ) 7.53 years®F
Expected dividend yield TEET AR F 1.3%
Risk-free interest rate mREREANE (RBINEESERE)
(based on Exchange Fund Notes) 1.45%
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (KX E B A ATigIN HAAREFTHIR)

31 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

31 UERAENRO M (&)

(c) Fair value of share awards and assumptions (c) RITHIENQAABERREBR

330

(Continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share awards), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share awards were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share awards grants.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LI R)

32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 HREHMBERARNFBHR
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements in current taxation in the (a) BNEARIIER SRR KRN
consolidated statement of financial position are gEMT
as follows:
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AR TFoT

Balance of income tax payable  F¥E FriS i er%a

at the beginning of the year 143,612 148,213
Provision for income tax on the 4 RI% &t & 49 5%

estimated taxable profit FriS&RETIE M)

for the year (Note 6(a)) FriSBi &R (#i6(a) 171,344 168,188
Income tax paid during the year AN B A FT1E T (129,319) (172,789)

Balance of income tax payable 4 K XX AT 15 7 4 &
at the end of the year 185,637 143,612

Annual Report 2016
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigsN HUAAREFTHIR)

32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

32 HRNEHUBRRRNTESB

(&

)

(b) ERAEZEFSHEERSE

& :

REBRN A OB BN R FERR A
BIEFRSREE (AE)EHEAR

position and the movements during the year are as FEEFHNMT
follows:
Deferred tax assets Deferred tax Liabilities
BRFEHEE BEFERAE
Fair value
Fair value adjustments
Provisions  adjustments on
Provisions for on available- available-
for guarantee for-sale for-sale
impairment Accrued  losses and financial financial
losses staff cost accruals assets Total assets Total Net
Rk THLE L
EERME Bt REEREER EREEN SREEND
Deferred tax arising from: BEREELR: BAEE BIHM ARER ArEEED At DAEEEH &it F¥
AMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000
ANEETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2015 201551818 160,219 1,712 143,801 6 315,797 - - 315,797
Recognised to the consolidated REFERRER

statement of profit or loss (Hi6e)

(Note 6/2)) 84,309 (11,708) (38,595) - 34,006 - - 34,006
Charged to reserves (Note 10/3)) STARES (HE10e) - - - (65) (65) (131) (131) (196)
At 31 December 2015 and R2016% 124318 R

1 January 2016 2016%1A1H 244,528 4 105,206 - 349,738 (131) (131) 349,607
Recognised to the consolidated REFBRRER

statement of profit or loss (H6e)

(Note 6(3)) 82,906 106 (6,015) - 76,997 - - 76,997
Charged to reserves (Note 10/2)) SARES (Hi10e) - - - 2,098 2,008 (33) (33) 2,065
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 327,434 110 99,191 2,098 428,833 (164) (164) 428,669

332 BESEROERAF
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEIN  AUARE T LIIR)

32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 BREHUBMRRRNAEB

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) RERNELEFBHEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note BB 1) TR &
1(0), the group and the company have not recognised RARA BT KA e E 1] 78 B 8§
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses RESTHARENEBEBERNR
of RMB892.8 million (2015: RMB635.1 million) at 31 RIEFHAE A EE RARQ A
December 2016, as it is not probable that future taxable W EFH20165F12 831 B 8 £ 5t
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be AENEEA/ARKE288E
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The T (20156 B AR®635.18 8
tax losses will expire in five years since initial occurrence TL) ERIBLE TS BB E - IRIFIR
under current tax legislation. A AIRNBEEREFE

AR R PAZE I R BSF H I A K
AR R PE TR A o
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B RS ¥R R B &

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X & 5 A FT#EIN HUARE T LIIR)

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing of
each component of the group’s consolidated equity
is set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity. Details of the changes in the company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:

The company

Share Share
capital premium
RA& R EE

RMB 000 RMB 000
NEEFT  AEEFI
Note 33(c) ~ Note 33(d)lj)

33 BEX-REERKRE

Capital
reserve

N |
AMB'000
ANREFT
Note 33l

(a)

A

EREEZE

AEBFVNRFEREHBE OGS
REMBREIINE RS
BEPHR -ANBFIEDIARH
FNEFRNEHFIREII W
T

KAF
Surplus General Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
-RER
BHOE EE  AERER fit

AMBO00  AMBUO0O  RMBO00  AMBO00
RETT  ANRETT ARRTT ARETZ

Note 33l Note 33

Bassn W) WESN  MESIN)  HEss)

Balance at 1 January 2015 2015F1 A1AMERE 4,600,000 1,091,555 265,073 - - (284,128 5,672,500
Changes in equity for 2015: 2015805 %8
Profit for the year and total FRERGAKEEE

comprehensive income - - - - - 683,041 683,041
Appropriation to surplus reserve  FEREHATE - - - 53,303 - (53,303) -
Equity-settled share-based DEREENRHZE

payment - - 81,123 - - - 81,123
Cash dividends paid to the equity FIZARAFREL R 2

shareholders of the company B £K & - - - - - (460,000) (460,000)
Balance at 31 December 2015 20155128318 &

and 1 January 2016: 2016F1A1AMEE: 4,600,000 1,091,555 346,196 53,303 - (114,390) 5,976,664
Changes in equity for 2016: 201689 %8
Profit for the year and total AR RGalEEE

comprehensive income - - - - - 248,392 248,392
Appropriation to surplus reserve  ERBHATE - - - 20,481 - (29,481) -
Equity-settled share-based DEREEMRH XM

payment - - 56,405 - - - 56,405
Cash dividends paid to the equity FAR ABERER 2

shareholders of the company B2k & - - - - - (230,000 (230,000)
Balance at 31 December 2016 2016512531 R {18258 4,600,000 1,091,555 402,601 82,784 - (125,479) 6,051,461

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEN  AUARE T LI R)

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Dividends

In accordance with the resolution of the Company’s
board of directors meeting on 27 March 2017, the
proposed dividends appropriations for the year ended
31 December 2016 are as follows:

— Declare cash dividends to all shareholders of
RMB184.0 million representing RMB0.40 per 10
shares before tax.

The profit appropriation resolution mentioned above has
yet to be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

In accordance with the resolution of the Shareholders’
meeting held on 16 May 2016, the dividends
appropriations for the year ended 31 December 2015
are as follows:

— Declare cash dividends to all shareholders of
RMB230.0 million representing RMB0.50 per 10
shares before tax.

Share capital

The share capital were issued and fully paid.

33 EX-fERKRE (&)

(b)

(c)

KRS

AR NGB R2017E3A27TE €&
EEFERIB ARR2016F ERK
MoBE =W T :

- ME2ERRKZERSBE

F10A% Ik A R #¥0.407T (i
Ar) - HEF ARBE1.8418TT -

FRAFE S BT R AREARE
P Rt o

KRN FIR2016FE5 A16 0 IR &
AEEHEZEB  KNQF2015
FERAMDEHERMT

- ME2ERRKERSBE

F108% Ik A R #¥0.507T (i
Ar) - HEFARE23(E T

AR

P15 2 BT IR -
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) o (X E 5 A FT1EIN HUARE T LIIR)

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference

between the par value of the shares of the

company and capital proceeds received from the

issuance of the shares of the company.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly comprises the following:

the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies in
Note 1(j)(i);

the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in
Note 1(n).

(i) Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve represents statutory
surplus reserve fund. The company is required
to appropriate 10% of its net profit as
determined under the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises and other relevant
requirements issued by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC after making good prior year’s
accumulated loss, to the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve fund balance
reaches 50% of its registered capital.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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33 EX -ERKRE (&)

(d) REHEERBE®

()

(ii)

K175 18

i s EREARRRPDEE
EZEIT AR B R SRR
ZTEH) Z 5

BARLTE

>

A

BEANEBRETIIRE:

— RWEHRMAFHAH
HESRMEENRRE
BERRFTFEE A
AR A () ()T E &
APREEIE

- EREMFINAER
REE RO B SIS P ER A
VE R BURFERH [F A
RAEER LM RER
PR BEH AR
BE#BMD -

(i) BEFLNTE

— BRAEERETEHSKHA
e -RBEARNFEE
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33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) General reserve

v)

Pursuant to relevant regulations, the company
and its subsidiaries engaged in credit guarantee
business are required to set aside a general reserve
through appropriations of profit after tax according
to 10% of its profit after tax as determined under
the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprise
and other relevant requirements issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC after making good
prior year’'s accumulated loss to cover potential
losses against their assets.

While subsidiaries engaged in SME lending
business are required to set aside a general reserve
through appropriations of profit after tax according
to a certain provision ratio of the ending balance
of gross risk-bearing assets to cover potential
losses against their assets. In principal, the general
reserve balance should not be lower than 1.5% of
the ending balance of gross risk-bearing assets.

Exchange reserve

Foreign exchange differences arising from activities
of Huiwei HongKong Holding Limited and Hanhua
HongKong Holdings Limited (accounted in HK
dollars) are recognised as “exchange reserve”
in the shareholder’s equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

33 EX-fERKRE (&)

(d) REHEREN (&)

(iv)

v)

—RE R E
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BB AR R R BUE &
—REBRES SEAWH
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33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management

33 EX -ERKRE (&)

(e) EXEE

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for equity shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurate with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher equity holder/shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions.

There were no changes in the group’s approach
to capital management during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Particularly for guarantee and credit loan operation,
the group monitors regularly the residual balance of
outstanding guarantees or/and credit loans for single
customers and multiples of the total outstanding
guarantees or/and credit loans in relation to paid-
in/share capital of companies in the group engaging
guarantee or/and credit loan business respectively, so
as to keep the capital risk within an acceptable limit.
The decision to manage the share capital of companies
in the group to meet the needs of developing guarantee
or/and credit loans business rests with the directors.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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34 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 34 FEEHIMEES
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20165F 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T AR T
Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. P9JI|#ZE/NEERGR A 7 302,844 306,955
Xi'an Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. FEZmBE/NBERERA 150,350 150,942
Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit BEEMHENEER 86,857 91,991
Co., Ltd. EREMLAF
Others Hh, 98,191 109,223
638,242 659,111
35 SEGMENT REPORTING 35 DEHE
The group manages its business by business lines. In a AEBERBEBGQETERER -
manner consistent with the way in which information is AEEMKE D ILBERNI RXE
reported internally to the group’s most senior executive BE—HMARAYH ELRIHREE
management for the purposes of resource allocation and BEERBAEIAEEEREENRDE
performance assessment, the group defines reporting MEERILFES BHE  NEELL
segments based on the following operating segments: ?%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ*’“ WET TIWMED
Guarantee and Entrusted loan business ERRETEREK
This segment represents the provision of a range of ZoEREFRE— RO EREAE
guarantee and related consulting services to customers and B AR R A /N ERE— RS
the provision of a range of entrusted loan and services to NEXERERS EREEEER
the small and medium sized enterprises. These guarantee BER - BAOERREFAER - FBHAR
services include financial guarantee, performance guarantee BERFBRETERERP &?a%gﬁf)’\%;
and litigation guarantee. The consulting services include PREBEE  NEEH &R
debt financing, internal control and risk management related RS AR TS

consulting services to the guarantee and entrusted loan
customers.
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340

This segment represents the provision of a range of loan
and services to the small sized and micro enterprises (“SME
enterprises”), the owners of SME enterprises and individuals.

Factoring business

This segment represents the provision of a range of financing
services to the small and medium sized enterprises by

35 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 35 oHHmE (&)
SME lending PHREEEREL

ZoE NI ([MUZE]) -
NI EMESALTBARBEER X
HEP TR -

RIBHEK

%0 EB BB R ERE AFTR YRR
AR N EERE RN E

receiving the account receivables transferred from the BR 7 °
lenders as collaterals.
Internet financing business ODHEeRmER

This segment represents the provision of a range of financial
intermediary services and assets information services to
small and medium sized enterprises and individual in the
internet platforms.

ZoEmR N EMEARE — R
EHBETreemP I RBELEERER
AR 7 o

Leasing Business HEXEK

This segment represents the provision of a range of finance ZoMAEPIEE—RIIGBERE
lease, operating lease and related consulting services to KERERABEERRE -
customers.

Others Hi %%

This segment represents the aggregation of other non-
significant business lines and the operational results of the
headquarters.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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35 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 35 D EFHE (&)
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) 7HBRAE - BERERE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance ABTHESEIBOEERR
and allocating resources between segments, the EREER AEEEEE®T
group’s senior executive management monitors the HENBENE DI EE BE
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each ReafE EEEEMNRBERD
reportable segment on the following bases: T~
Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets DHMEERZHEBR D EMFA
and current assets with the exception of deferred tax EEREE BREEEERRDE
assets. Segment liabilities include all liabilities managed E-BIEEELEMEMEE-
directly by the segments. DEBEREMERS DI EE
EENEE-

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable DEEERR RSB D HBEE
segments with reference to revenue generated B IR S B FEENE
by those segments and the expenses incurred by A BEREsHNEELE AN
those segments or which otherwise arise from the mEMBHEEEMERRNFHE:
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to NHBEZEFHE -

those segments.

Internal charges and transfer prices are determined with D EB 2 BN EB U E T R E B
reference to market rates and have been reflected in the HL2WWISHN EEE W E R
performance of each segment. EEDEHIERIRA -

Changes in disclosure of segment results and assets HEREHHEE BENEGRR
and liabilities in the current year: BEHAEE MR

The group has added a new business segment — RAEEBERR S I HEHRKEF
Leasing business and disclosed this business segment EN—ERNEESE - HEE
in the segments report. Compared to the prior years, o BB R 7 AR L - 3T B
the current segment structure better reflects current BARNEMRE T REEE S
management model of the group. The comparative MEEERER Bt 8 Z=20154F
figures for the ended 31 December 2015 have been 12A31BEFENLREEDE
restated accordingly. it e
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35 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Information regarding the group’s reportable segments

as provided to the group’s most senior executive

management for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance for the year is set

out below:

35 DEERE (&)

(@ 2WMAB - BEERKE(F)

HEBAERFEFADREERLFESD
MEZ RETAEEHEEED
DEHEHINWT

Year ended 31 December 2016

BE2016512A3ALEE
Guarantee
and
Entrusted Internet
Loan SME Factoring Financing Leasing
Business Lending Business Business Business Others Total
ERR MidE EHE
ZAENER EREHR RE£E SRER HEEH Bt &it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFZ
Net quarantee and consulting ~ ERREHEFMA

fee income 755,370 - - - - - 755,370
Net interest and handling MERFEE

fee income/(expense) FWA/ (i) 316,009 459,900 74,484 8,103 20,401 (154,611) 724,376
Reportable segment income/ A EMA/ (1)

(expense) 1,071,469 459,900 74,484 8,103 20,401 (154,611) 1,479,746
Other net income EARE 20,724 2,913 6 2,283 - 6,981 32,907
Reversal for guarantee losses ~ EEERBEERES 39,7H - - - - - 39,741
Impairment losses EERMERL (207,302) (63,334) (9,449) - (2,830) - (372,915)
Operating expenses gELY (406008)  (167,239) (145100 (23,159 (826  (190,964) (802,697
Net foreign exchange (gainyloss [ 534/ (B8) - - - - - 1,052 1,052
Reportable segment profit/losses) 2 &5% a1 #I7,/ (18%)

before taxation 428,626 232,240 50,531 (12,766) 16,745 (337,542) 377,834

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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35 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 35 DEEmE (&)

THAE - BEERAE (F)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (a)

At 31 December 2016

#2016%12831A
Guarantee
and
Entrusted Internet
Loan SME Factoring Financing Leasing
Business Lending Business Business Business Others Total
BRR MitE E%A
ERERER EXER  REXR SRER HEXH %% At
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL AREFT AREFT AREFT  ARETT  ARETT  ARKETR
Segment assets PHEE 8,895,656 5,416,895 684,989 90,883 304,055 1,261,602 16,654,080
Segment liabilities AHEE 3,379,530 3,125,427 428,769 6,707 36,543 2,626,650 9,603,626
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35 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

35 2 MMmE (&)

(@ 2WMAB - BEERKE(F)

Year ended 31 December 2015

HIF2015F12A318IEER
Guarantee
and
Entrusted Internet
Loan SME Factoring Financing Leasing
Business Lending Business Business Business Others Total
BRR  MGE IBA
ZASREH  ERRE RE¥R 2RER HERR  HMXR aif
AMB 000 AMB000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000
ANEBFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETn
Net guarantee and consuting R EHABFMA

fee income 764,990 - 48 - - - 765,038
Net interest and handing fee KSR TEE

income/(expense) FUA/ () 374,056 605,615 44,990 6,704 3,488 (47,907) 986,946
Reportable segment income/ 23/ (X i)

(expense) 1,139,046 605,615 45,038 6,704 3,488 (47,907) 1,751,984
Other net income EHRASE 22,386 3,027 - 5,934 - 1,017 32,364
Reversal for quarantee losses ~ EEEREEEES 10917 - - - - - 110917
Impairment losses EERBEX (431,754) (79,702) (4,069) - - - (615,525)
Operating expenses EETH (436,663) (194,343) (19,597) (13,561) (352) (228,917) (893,433)
Net foreign exchange (gainyloss [ 534/ (58) - - - - - 40 40
Reportable segment profit/ AEBMFE/ (BX)

(losses) before taxation 403,932 334,597 21,372 (923) 3,136 (275,767) 486,347

At 31 December 2015
2015512 431H
Guarantee
and
Entrusted Internet
Loan SME Factoring Financing Leasing
Business Lending Business Business Business Others Total
RRR Mit% ERA
R ENER ENER REBXHE  EREHK REXH Eit %% aif
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000
NEBFT  AEETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AEEFT  ARETn
Segment assets PHEE 7,749,560 5,000,749 386,792 195,434 84,073 194,833 13,611,441
Segment liabilities AHEE 2,813,900 1,199,430 65,145 12,085 8,138 2,416,943 6,515,591

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BMESERGAERAR



Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS R AR B AL

(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) » (BR X E BB FTIEIN  AUARE T LIIR)

35 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment assets

35 DEERE (&)

(b) ZBWEEMNFEG

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
2016 20154
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets DEEE 16,654,080 13,611,441
Deferred tax assets EEMSMEE 428,669 349,607
Consolidated total assets BEA 17,082,749 13,961,048

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risks arises in
the normal course of the group’s business.

The group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practice used by the group to
manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from a customer’s inability or
unwillingness to meet its financial obligations to make
timely payments under loans the group guaranteed or
provided. Credit risk is primarily attributable to unexpired
guarantee issued by the group and the loan business of
the group, loans and advances to customers and trade
and other receivables.

36
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the net carrying amount of each type of financial assets
as at the end of the reporting periods. Except for the
guarantee as disclosed below, the group has no credit
risk arising from any other guarantee.

Credit risk arising from guarantee business

The group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from guarantee business. The group manages
credit risk at every stage of the risk management
system, including pre-approval, review and credit
approval and post-transaction monitoring processes.
The Group conducts customer acceptance and due
diligence by business department and risk management
department during the pre-approval process. A
transaction may be subject to the review and approval
of credit approval officer, regional risk committee,
deputy chairman and chairman depending on the
transaction size.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post-
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects,
including but not limited to customers’ product markets,
operating income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from
operating activities to detect potential risks. The group
takes proactive preventive actions based on the risk
analysis and design contingency plans accordingly.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 MBEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (£&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) ERERK (&)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business
(Continued)

When a certain number of clients undertake the same
business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected
by the same economic changes. Concentration of credit
risk reflects the sensitivity of the group’s operating
results to specific industries or geographical locations.
As the group mainly operates its businesses in the PRC,
there exists a certain level of geographical concentration
risk for its guarantee and loan portfolios in that it
might be affected by changes in the PRC economic
conditions.

EREBELENWERARR (Z)

EETHENEPETHRNE
BmE - B AR R A0 3 3R 7 B =%
HITXEAMRUNEEBRET b
MBI N BZE R —KER
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AEEBT2ETELEERR B
BEREERAES B AE—FEHN
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business
(Continued)

The guarantees issued and outstanding are analysed by
type as follows:

36 MKREBEEREMIAND
REE (&)

(@) ERER (&)

EREZEENEARAMR (&)

ERHBEZEBEINAOT

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154

12831H 12A32H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETF T

Traditional financing guarantees BHREEER 8,925,161 11,718,986
Bond guarantees BEHEER 20,250,000 5,065,000
Financing guarantees  B&E®EH®X 29175161 16,783,986
Re-guarantee (Note) BER () (10,000,000) -
Subtotal NEE 19,175,161 16,783,986
Performance guarantees B 89 ¥E IR 10,947,027 8,585,382
Litigation guarantees FEAFELR 508,741 613,391
Maximum amount guarantee IR EE 30,630,929 25,982,759
Less: customer pledged deposits ~ J& : F ARE S (17,191) (27,097)
Net guarantee exposure FERE R 30,613,738 25,955,662

Note: As at 31 December 2016, RMB9,950.0 million of bonds
financing guarantees and RMB50.0 million of traditional
financing guarantees provided by the group have been
re-guaranteed to other Re-guarantee company.

Biat: H2016412831H K&
ERENEFERARE
9,950.0/F & T M {E 5t gb & &
RARES0.0BETC BIE

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business

(Continueq)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of

guarantees by industry at 31 December 2016 and 2015

36 PHKEAREEREMIANA
REE (&)

ERER (&)

EREBELENEARAMR (&)

A2016% K2015E 12 A31H %

TRE D ERAEAENRKE
RRRET :

is as follows:
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
M2016F12831H ®2015F 12 A431H
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AREFT % ARETFT %
Construction BEX 10,603,792 26.09% 6,254,419 24.07%
Funds performance guarantee ~ RAE S IER 8,255,165 20.32% 7,375,673 28.39%
Household Goods e 6,797,854 16.73% 2,007,943 7.73%
Public investment and NEFEEER
management 6,105,000 15.03% 925,000 3.56%
Commercial services EHE 3,920,577 9.65% 3,637,765 14.00%
Manufacturing and processing &% 2,460,641 6.06% 3,446,440 13.26%
Public management and NHEEREL S
social organization 809,900 1.99% 839,700 3.23%
Service industry i 488,801 1.20% 601,150 2.31%
Energy B 483,767 1.19% 171,399 0.66%
Telecommunications, computer {5 B &1l iR 75 %
services and software 430,417 1.06% 152,190 0.59%
Agriculture B 77,841 0.19% 296,848 1.14%
Agricultural processing industry £ & il T 47,644 0.12% 53,750 0.21%
Others Hit 149,530 0.37% 220,482 0.85%
Subtotal of guarantee ERDE 40,630,929 100.00% 25,982,759 100.00%
Re-guarantee BER (10,000,000) -
Maximum amount guarantee EREREH 30,630,929 25,982,759
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

36 VHEAREEREMIANA
REE (&)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EREMK (&)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business

The group adopts the same pre-approval, review and
credit approval risk management system for credit risk
arising from micro-lending business. During the post-
transaction monitoring process, the group conducts a
visit of customers within one month after disbursement
of loans, and conducts on-site inspection on a semi-
annual basis. The review focuses on the use of loans,
the financial and operational conditions of the borrowers
or the progress of projects and status of the collateral.

The group adopts a loan risk classification approach
to manage its loan portfolio risk. Loans are generally
classified as normal, special mention, substandard,
doubtful and loss according to their levels of risk.
Substandard, doubtful and loss loans are considered
to be impaired loans and advances. They are classified
as such when one or more events demonstrate
that there is objective evidence of a loss event. The
impairment loss is assessed collectively or individually
as appropriate.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 BEKEMEERSMIANAD
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REME (F)
(CONTINUED)

() ERER (&)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business

(Continued)

The core definitions of the five categories of loans and

EXEBHNERARAR (&)

hEERRBRNETEEEHT

advances are set out below: QDT :

Normal: Borrowers can honour the terms of FEfE ERANGENETER
their loans. There is no reason to BERHERERER
doubt their ability to repay principal KEABEREEE
and interest in full on a timely basis. B

Special Borrowers are currently able to service BAEE: BEBRABAARE

Mention: their loans and interest, although ERBERAE BHRFHE
repayment may be adversely affected — LR EEEAT
by specific factors. MEEnHEE-

Substandard: Borrowers’ ability to service their loans REE: BRANERENLR
is in question and they cannot rely HEME BETEK
entirely on normal business revenues FHERRAREREE
to repay principal and interest. Losses BRARE  BME T
may ensue even when collateral or ARAER BgEE
guarantees are invoked. B —EBXe

Doubtful: Borrowers cannot repay principal and G321 ERAELEEERS
interest in full and significant losses RARE AR H TR A
will need to be recognised even when mAER BETEEE
collateral or guarantees are invoked. B RIB K -

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot BRE: ERDUTAAEEES

be recovered or only a small portion of
them can be recovered after taking all
possible measures or resorting to all
necessary legal procedures.

— L BREREER
2% RBANRE AR
CIRE= AN A EIR R

,T/'\ °
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 MBEREEREMIAND

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business
(Continueq)

The group has established relevant mechanisms to
apply tiered management of credit risks, and set limits
to acceptable risks for different individual or group
counterparties, different industries and geographical
regions. The group monitors the risk status of these
customers regularly and reviews their risk positions at
least on a quarterly basis.

In accordance with accounting policies and regulations,
if there is objective evidence that indicates the cash flow
for a particular loan is expected to decrease, and the
amount can be estimated, the loan is recorded as an
impaired loan and the impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

The group’s policy requires regular review of the quality
of individually significant financial assets. For assets
for which an allowance for impairment loss is provided
individually, the amount is determined by an evaluation
of the incurred loss at reporting date on a case-by-
case basis. In making such assessments, the group
considers the value of collateral held and expected
future cash flows from the asset.

Impairment allowances are provided for the following
portfolios according to historical data, experience
and statistical techniques: (i) those consisting of
homogeneous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (i) those where losses that
have been incurred but have not yet been individually
identified with any specific asset within the portfolio.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE(£&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) ERREK (&)
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business
(Continueq)

Other credit risks

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluation
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and advances
to customers and trade and other receivables are set
out in Note 16 and Note 14, respectively.

Interest rate risk

The group is principally engaged in the provision
of credit guarantee, lending and related consulting
services to SME enterprises in the PRC. lIts interest
rate risk arises primarily from deposits with banks,
loans and advances to customers and interest-bearing
borrowings.

36 EBREEREMIAND

REE (&)

(a)

(b)

ERERE (&)

EXEBHNERARAR (&)

H At (= /5 )7 B

M R B YRR F - AN
SEERBEERBAGE TER
R HEPEITERTEAE
ERHEE RE AR - E A
HEBREBEEP MBS
BB AR R ERTTE MR sk (WA A

4k,
gE ) °

REBEMAZBEBNERRBR
LA B2 JE WA B ELAth FE UK THEE A 1
ERARBIE - T ERES
B 1614 ©

FEE®

AEEE2NFEEEREER
R NEE KR M AR R
R ARBOF XEREER
BRITER BRERRBREK
B
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 XEREEREMIAND

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued) (b) RGP (&)

() Interest rate profile () FERREEL

The following tables details the interest rate profile REBREARBRFREE
of the group’s and the company’s assets and & EmF =R SR e
liabilities as at the end of the year: I

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

20165 20154
12H31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARET T

Fixed interest rate (@] 7 F1) =&
Financial assets TREE
— Cash and cash equivalents —E¥ES 1,058,299 730,293
— Restricted bank deposits —GFHERRES 681,947 1,184,006
- Loans and advances to customers —BEWMERNBR 7,625,407 7,137,771
- Receivable for factoring business —EURIE R 594,604 217,953
- Finance lease receivable — B mERER 279,244 69,718
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10,239,501 9,339,741
Financial liabilities THAE
— Interest-bearing borrowings —FFEEX (1,001,973) (200,000)
— Financial assets sold under —EXOEcMEE
repurchase agreement (1,168,306) (1,388,477)
— Debts securities issued — B ES (3,655,265) (2,382,243)
— Other payables —H b e 3B (1,346,594) (814,180)
s (172,138) (4,784,900)
Net F A 3,067,363 4,554,841

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 REREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Interest rate risk (Continued) (b) FEER (&)
() Interest rate profile (Continued) () FEREBL (E)

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
128318 12 A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ABRET T

Variable interest rate FENF X
Financial assets EMEE
— Cash and cash equivalents —HEEe 2,453,605 2,073,481
— Restricted bank deposits —FHERRES 369,994 216,055
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,823,599 2,289,536
Financial liabilities EHBE
— Interest-bearing borrowings —FTEMER (203,932) (100,000)
Net FE 2,619,667 2,189,536
Fixed rate financial liabilities as a EFRELREE
percentage of total financial liabilities ~ (h#E & RABEMNA D 97.24% 97.95%
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a
general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
increased the group’s profit before taxation for the
next 12 months by approximately RMB13.1 million
(2015: RMB10.9 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the
group at the end of the reporting period.

(c) Liquidity risk

Management regularly monitors the group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA
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36 PHEAREEREMIANA
REE (&)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

B PR ()

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c)

The following tables provide an analysis of financial

assets and liabilities of the group into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining periods to repayment
at the end of the year:

RER AEEBZSREENS
BAEEREABERGIBE ST

(I

At 31 December 2016

#2016%12A31R
Between
three Between
months one
Repayable Within and one yearand  More than
Indefinite  on demand three months year five years five years Total
ERE EREER =BAR =@AZ-F -FZIf RENE &it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFLE AREFL AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFZ
Financial assets THEE
Cash and cash equivalents EHEe - 246,19 295,811 - 800,000 - 3,512,005
Restrioted bank deposits BlERRES - 369994 118400 562,528 1,019 - 1,051,941
Trade and other receivables FEU R E R U1 TR - 1,255,621 251,497 4,175 35,743 - 1,547,086
Recelvables for factoring business [EWAE 32 - 16,177 374,482 203,945 - - 594,604
Loans and advances to customers ZMER R B 304,177 102,214 2,111,643 4,233,614 868,837 4,922 7,625,407
Available-for-sale financial assets A1 EL B EE 298,461 35,060 - - - - 333,521
Finance lease receivables EURERER - - 20,499 65,337 193,408 - 279,244
Total At 602,638 4,195,260 3,172,332 5,069,599 1,899,007 4922 14,943,758
Financial liabilities SHEE
Customer pledged deposits FARES - 10,380 500 1,886 4,425 - 17,191
Interest-bearing borrowings STEREH - - - 61,000 1,144,905 - 1,205,905
Financial assets sold under ENRESREE
repurchase agreement - - 344,187 489,144 334,975 - 1,168,306
Debts securities issued R EH - - - - 3,655,265 - 3,655,265
Accruals and other payables Jest R A 3R - - 838,281 755,240 63,000 641,500 2,298,021
Total &t - 10,380 1,182,968 1,307,270 5,202,570 641,500 8,344,688
Net FE 602,638 4,184,880 1,989,364 3,762,329 (3,3083,563) (636,578) 6,599,070
Guarantee issued RENREER
Maximum amount guaranteed” R FR &8 - 21,156 1,817,250 11,411,587 1,121,745 9,630,000 30,613,738
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 BBKEMEERSMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (F)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REVMERBR (&)

At 31 December 2015
#2015512731H7

Between
three Between
Within months one
Repayable three and one yearand  More than
Indefinite  on demand months year five years five years Total
ERE EREE ZERR ZfAZ-£ -£ZIf BENE EH

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
ANEEFr  AREFT  AREFr  AREFr  AREFT AREFIT AREFI

Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents L3-%3 - 1,920,622 248,019 635,344 - - 2,803,885
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES - 216,055 286,013 895,280 2713 - 1,400,061
Trade and other receivables PR R 2t R MR - 503,018 656,666 63,647 30,270 - 1,253,601
Recelvables for factoring business ~ [EUT/RE5E - - 79217 138,736 - - 217,953
Loans and advances to customers ~ ZEZRET 286,947 41352 1903432 4,486,132 419,908 - 71877
Available-for-sale financial assets A HESBEE 91,116 15,770 - - - - 106,386
Finance lease receivables EhBERER - - 4421 11,181 54,116 - 69,718
Total &t 378,063 2,696,717 3,177,768 6,230,320 507,007 - 12,989,875
Financial liabilities tRAE
Customer pledged deposits BEARES - 11,614 5,449 7,412 2,622 - 27,007
Interest-bearing borrowings GEER - - 49,000 170,000 81,000 - 300,000
Financial assets sold ELEESREAE

under repurchase agreement - - 189,392 839,085 360,000 - 1,388,477
Debts securities issued EfES - - - - 238243 - 238243
Accruals and other payables Bt REMERTE - - 664,789 421,200 34900 200,000 1,320,889
Total i - 11,614 908,630 1,437,697 2,860,765 200,000 5,418,706
Net FE 378,063 2,685,103 2,269,138 4,792,623 (2,353,758) (200,000) 7,571,169
Guarantee issued RENHEER
Maximum amount guaranteed* EREREE - 93701 2264869 14026362 5674010 3,896,730 25,955,662
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 XEREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RENEREBE (&)

*  The maximum amount guaranteed represents the total * WATEBEPEYN BEREREHE
amount of liability less the amount of customer pledged EREINERESEREFAR
deposits should all customers default. Since a significant B o ARBREMN M IERTEE
portion of guarantee is expected to expire without being TEHRERBTEERS WA
called upon, the maximum liabilities do not represent BN ERESELPRREHR
expected future cash outflows. RREMLE -

The following tables show the remaining contractual REBRARRNTRWEBHRIIE

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the MESHBERATENESRIR

group’s and the company’s non-derivative financial enE (BERARAMNEFTEN
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted ME WRZZHFEAIRRE

cash flows (including interest payments computed using HRMBITRERFENFE) M

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at Fler B BIR AR Bk

the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the M&FHEINT

group and the company can be required to pay:

2016 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

M6ERTRNERRERE
Between

three Between
Within months one year Carrying
Repayable three and one and five More than amount at
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total 31 December
M2A318
BRA ENfE ZfiAn =fRE-§ -EZIf AERE &it BHEE

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARBFR  AREFZ  ARETZ  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFZ

Customer pledged deposits FARER - 10,380 500 1,886 4,425 - 17,191 17,191
Interest-bearing borrowings SREH - - 17,2711 112936 1,344,582 - 1474789 1,205,905
Financial assets sold ElEECREE

under repurchase

agreement - - 348,335 503,546 374,335 - 1226216 1,168,306
Debts securities issued RS - - 26,403 463,887 3,875,512 - 4,365,802 3,655,265
Accurals and other payables  fE5t R EMER B - - 845,301 766,721 88,977 G47AT1 2348470 2,298,021
Total ait - 10,380 1,287,810  1,848976 5,687,831 47471 9,432,468 8,344,688
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(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in RMB'000 unless otherwise indicated) ® (X E B A ATigsN HUAAREFTHIR)

36 VHEAREEREMIANA
REE (&)

(c) REMEERR (AF)

2015 Contractual undiscounted cash flow

WEERFRNGRARERE
Between

three Between
Within months one year Carrying
Repayable three and one and five More than amount at
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total 31 December
M2A318
BRA BENEE AR ZfERE-F£ -%ZIf RENE &t KEEE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 AMB000 RMB000
NEEFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT AEMFr ARETT  ARETT  AREFR
Customer pledged deposits ~— FARES - 11,614 5,449 7412 2,622 - 27,007 27,097
Interest-bearing borrowings STRER - - 54,190 180,143 85,513 - 319,846 300,000

Financial assets sold under ELEBESREE

repurchase agreement - - 191,813 876,257 377,035 - 1,445,106 1,388,477
Debts securities issued EfES - - - 146,400 2,930,700 - 3,077,100 2,382,243
Accurals and other payables Bzt R E A (T 5B - - 695,987 421,069 60,642 226,583 1,404,281 1,320,889
Total ait - 11,614 947,439 1,631,281 3,456,512 226,583 6,273,429 5,418,706

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

e |level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

e |level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

a
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(CONTINUED)

()

36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 36 XEREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(d) Fair values measurement (Continued) (d AARAEEFE (&)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BLAALBHEIENZHE
value (Continued) EREE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NRBEBR (&
The group has a team headed by the finance REEHRE —SERMBKER
manager performing valuations for the financial FEEEK BEMeRT
instruments, including the unlisted available-for- A (BEFLmAHEER
sale equity securities. The team reports directly to RFEH)ETHE - ZE K
the chief financial officer and the audit committee. BEMUWGRERETZE
A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair eRE-FERANEBEFE
value measurement is prepared by the team at BB o2 EERSE A
each interim and annual reporting date, and is BREPERFERSE B
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. wE WAV BBERRR
Discussion of the valuation process and results with - E B EBIE R4
the chief financial officer and the audit committee REFHYBBERETZ
is held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting BEETMAF AR
dates. HFHRHRF -
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 categorised into
R2016F12A31AZ AABEHERER
Fair value at
31 December
2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
H20165
1283182
AREER F1BR $F2BR HEIBM
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT
Recurring fair value measurement EEM A REEFE
Financial assets: PREE:
Available-for-sale equity instrument:  AI gt HEER T A
- Listed —Fm 145,165 145,165 - -
- Unlisted —J¥Em 153,296 - - 153,296
Wealth management products BEEM 35,060 - - 35,060

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

BA RS R AR B AL

BRXERAMIEN UARETTIIR)

36 HKEBREEREMIAND
REE (&)

(d) RAEEE (&)

() HEARIEEGTENTHE
EREE(#&)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 categorised into
R2015F12A31BZ R A BENEREER

Fair value at
31 December

2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

20155
12A31H

ZR

REE F1ER F2EH FIBH

RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTEL  ARBTT  ARBTT  ARKTT

Recurring fair value measurement SE#AABENE

Financial assets: SRAE:
Available-for-sale equity instrument: ~ FIftHEERE T A:
- Unlisted kLT

Wealth management products BHER

91,116 - - 91,116
16,770 - - 16,770

The movement during the year in the balance of
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

EOEMAABETBREBRENE
BT -

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

20165 20159

12A31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FTT AREFIT

At 1 January M A1E 106,886 157,841

Payment for purchases BE 457,050 94,261

Net unrealised gains or losses FAREGRA WRERR (12,432) 784
recognised in the comprehensive & & 33 Ut 25 5 &5 18 % 58

income during the year
Proceeds from sales BB (363,148) (146,000)
At 31 December 124318 188,356 106,886
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36 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(d) Fair values measurement (Continued)

()

(1)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, there were no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Valuation of financial instruments with significant
unobservable inputs

Financial instruments valued with significant
unobservable inputs are primarily Wealth
management products. These financial instruments
are valued using cash flow discount model.
The models incorporate various non-observable
assumptions such as discount rate and market rate
volatilities.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of financial instrument valued with significant
unobservable inputs were immaterial, and the
effects of changes in significant unobservable
assumptions to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions were also immaterial.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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37 COMMITMENTS 37 EiE
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (a) M2016F12A31H X KRN EF
December 2016 not provided for in the financial BHRERPRRWERKIEREN
statements were as follows: T
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARETF T
Commitments in respect of BERIME -HEMKE
purchase of property,
plant and equipment
— Contracted for —RESR 1,038 7,839
(b) At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum (b) M2016F12H31H ' RERT
lease payments under non-cancellable BENEREKEEREESE K
operating leases of properties are payable as EEEZTNARRRERER
follows: HMT :
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR T
Within 1 year (inclusive) —FARN(E—F) 87,371 77,858
After 1 year but within —FUE=ZFR(E=ZF) 66,086 117,958
3 years (inclusive)
Over 3 years =FHNE 2,456 9,755
Total A&t 155,913 205,571
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37 COMMITMENTS 37 &EIE

(b) At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum (b) R2016F12A318 ' RIFEFT
lease payments under non-cancellable BENERELEREREEE K
operating leases of properties are payable as EEEXTHRRREEER
follows: (Continued) BT : (&)
The group is the lessee in respect of a number of AEEABRBREHEERZE
properties held under operating leases. The leases WERNATBA -BBRAEH K
typically run for an initial period of 1-5 years, at the end B—ERF VWAIRERBPRE
of which period all terms are renegotiated. None of the MEMMBGRR - BEBFEIA
leases include contingent rentals. e

38 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 EXNEABLIRS

(a) Transactions with key management personnel (a) HEREEBAESZENXRS
remuneration

Years ended 31 December
BE12B31BLLEE

2016 2015
20165F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR FT
Key management personnel BEEEABH B
remuneration (Note (i) (H&te)) 78,870 98,956

Notes: Biat -

()  Remuneration for key management personnel of the iy ZAEENBEREEEASFHE
group includes amounts paid to the company’s directors FERMETRENIN TARRQA]
as disclosed in Note 7 and the highest paid employees as EENEBELRWESHEEN&
disclosed in Note 8. SEMAL

(i)  All the balances with key management personnel are iy FIEHEBEREAENESHRNAE
disclosed in relevant notes of this section. £ 48 [ B 5 A 4 2R o
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38 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b) Transactions with related parties other than key

(c)

management personnel

38 EXEBAIRS

(b) ERBREAGREIE A B LAIMEY B Bk

FZENXS

Years ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETFT

Guarantee income ERKA 371 113

Interest income A B WA - 738

Acquisition of equity interests in U BEFft B & 7 IR AE

subsidiaries 3,200 49,500

Additions of other receivables 8 A 4t e W SRR 620 -
Repayment of loans and EEL - E /I E= T

advances to customers - (7,000)

Additions of other payables 8 H 4t JE S 5RIB (2,073) (334)

Receipt of other payables B B A 3B 334 -

Providing guarantee (Note (i) HIMNELR (B73E0)) 30,000 5,000

Releasing guarantee MR R E IR (5,000) (17,000)

Other revenue H At Y A 5,942 2,820

Notes:

() At 31 December 2016 and 2015 the outstanding
guarantee provided to related parties are RMB30.0
million, and RMB5.0 million, respectively. The balances

of other transactions with related parties are disclosed in

relevant notes of this section.

Applicability of the Listing Rules related to

connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of guarantee
income and other revenue above constitute connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. However three transactions are exempt from the
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold under

Rule 14A.76(1).

(c)

wat

()  M2016% }20165F12/331A -
RETREBTNERED RS
AR#30.08&T AR¥%5.0
BET ARABBIOEMRS
A R0 7 1 AR B Y R P AR

FHRAUTRAERZNBEAM

LIl RAEE 5 22 5 B B R AR
HMUW A T LR A E14A
ERREEMBAERS -AMA
R LR HERHFR14A.76(1)F
MEEBAE FTARER ET
RAB1AASZE R EEE o
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39 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

39 B QA BMR T

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
20164 20154
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents HEEe 101,368 160,531
Trade and other receivables JE U K H b JE USSR IE 13,838 233,904
Loans and advances to customers BWERNBR 1,188,000 1,188,000
Interest in associate REARRIEIRE B b3 914,417 60,054
Investments in subsidiaries RHRERE -WBE QA 7,236,724 6,790,249
Property, plant and equipment Y R KR 5,443 3,055
Intangible assets mVEE 1,147 1,749
Repossessed assets BEEE 206 -
Totalassets = #®®% = 9461,143 8437542
Liabilities a1&
Accruals and other payables FE ST N H b JE S FRIE 1,023,572 78,635
Debts securities issued N ESH 2,386,110 2,382,243
Total liabilites ~~~~~ #®&®& 3400682 2460878
NET ASSETS EEFE 6,051,461 5,976,664
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR #E
Share capital fi& 75 4,600,000 4,600,000
Reserves i 1,451,461 1,376,664
TOTAL EQUITY EEE5 6,051,461 5,976,664

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

LEE i E MR ER2017F3/27

on 27 March 2017. H 5

Name: Zhang Guoxiang Name: Ren Weidong (Company stamp)
Position: Chairman of the Board Position: Chief Financial Officer

iR B TAHKR A A HE
EFTE BEEMEE

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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40 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Note 31 and Note 36 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of

share awards granted to directors, supervisors and senior

management of the company and financial instruments.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment of receivables, loans and advances
and available-for-sale financial assets

The group reviews portfolios of receivables, loans
and advances and available-for-sale financial assets
periodically to assess whether any impairment losses
exist and the amount of impairment losses if there
is any indication of impairment. Objective evidence
for impairment includes observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows for receivables, loans and advances
and available-for-sale financial assets. It also includes
observable data indicating adverse changes in the
repayment status of the debtors, or change in national
or local economic conditions that causes the default in
payment.

The impairment loss for receivables and loans and
advances that is individually assessed for impairment
is the net decrease in the estimated discounted future
cash flow of the assets. When the financial assets are
collectively assessed for impairment, the estimate is
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the financial assets.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the
relevant observable data that reflect current economic
conditions and the judgement based on management’s
historical experience. Management reviews the
methodology and assumptions used in estimating future
cash flows regularly to reduce any difference between
loss estimates and actual loss.

40 B AR i3

M1 R36EE THEBER TARRE
E EFELSENRMDBERESRMT

A

ARBENBEREERBEE-

H A REEMRFTOEZRIROT

(a)

BWRE BRERRBRR
AHEESRmEERE

REETEHBEZEWFTIR BN
ERkBREAHELESRE
B AR S RBREAEER
BEK  AKRE R EEDREDR
A EREERERARS
HoRETERBEERUEREH
BERTEWR  BERERLR
REAHEESBEENTET K
RIR 2 IR AT 8 AR E o b

ARMEFTMR KR AN EH 3k
B0 5K sl 75 A IR R IR B B
BEHHRER

18 51) ¥ 17 3 (B B JE W k0B~ 3R
EXRBRNEERBERRARE
EEFRRRASREREBEHORD
FHE-AERIBRENERE
E - NRERZEREEAAE
UERRRSHBHEENBER
BERMET - BEBBERR
1% ] i B 3R B A28 AR 0 B AT B BR
BELREEERBELRIELD
HEmMHAE - ERESTHER
BEFREREREN T ERRK
R AREEBERLERER
ZHEREERE -
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40 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of receivables, loans and advances
and available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The objective evidence of impairment for available-for-
sale financial assets includes significant or continual
decline in fair value of investments. When deciding
whether there is significant or continual decline in fair
value, the group will consider the historical fluctuation
records of market and debtors’ credit condition,
financial position and performance of related industry.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of long-lived assets as described in Note
1(m). The carrying amounts of long-lived assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and the value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of the level
of revenue and amount of operating costs. Changes
in these estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying value of the assets and could result in
additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment
in future periods.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRAA

40 SEFH B R fhEr (&)

(a)

(b)

BWRE BRERRBRK
THREESREERE (&A)

AL ESREENEBRER
BEERREAREBENEANRFR
BTH - BETAABEREGH
REARSAFETHRE ALEE
EREMISBENREREBEAD
15 FAR L ~ B B A e AR B 7T 5
HRIR

RUPEERME

WEEPRBIRALEENE
EE e [E - Bl 5% & B Pl AEAR
A DRE] - WARERM 1 (m)FTE
EHRRBEERBENGTBRE
REERBEBL - RALENE
EEETHEZ AFEAKE
CHEEGEAREE WA KE
SEENERE  AEEBESR
ZAEeE-AJHESELEA
AEEREEEAREEEGR
RREREMBENRSE -
BETEEEMARBERENE
BR EEEEMEFAKRES
REMRERE W BRI K
FREBEXAELEZHE K
SEFAMBHRETRNER
BREENREGEREFENRRE
Bl BT R IR S AR Bl K S R
ANEfl & - LARE 7E AT U (B BB A
SR  ZE M NE Y
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40 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are depreciated and amortised using the straight-
line method over their useful lives after taking into
account estimated residual value. The useful lives and
residual value are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives are determined based
on historical experience of similar assets and the
estimated technical changes. If there is an indication
that there has been a change in the factors used to
determine the depreciation, the rate of depreciation is
revised.

Provisions for guarantee losses

The group makes reasonable estimate on costs required
to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts
when the group computes the provisions of guarantee
losses. Such estimation is made based on the available
information as at the balance sheet date and is
determined by the group’s practical experience, taking
into consideration of industry information and market
data.

40 SEFHE R fhE (&)

(c)

(d)

TER#HE

AEBEZEEBME BWELRME
rEREEMNMGRER B
HAERF R ERAHRTE
A B o AR B E HIEB TR AT
EREHREE ORE KA
BERS AT ENHEXAR -
A E A FEHRARRREY
FIRE E R B ERR LA
il 24 5 1 FEE © fin B 8 1R R AR
NEEMENREZZEEE (LAY
BB RETHE -

EREEERES

AEBERFEREREEEES
B AKBEHETERS RAER
BEENRAIEH AR M- B
BEFDREBEREEANASE
BT EASENERER I
ERTEGEERMESHERE

ﬁ::o
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40 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(e) Tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The group carefully evaluates the tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislation. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
tax losses not yet used and temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of the Financial Statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments, and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2016 and which have not been adopted in the Financial
Statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

41 REBZE2016F12A31BHLLEE

C B 5 R AR IERT - #
HARBENEERE (F)

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

LA B Bk A8

B 46 B & 5T HI A R

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

BEBERETR (EF]) HEREX BEER

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets

for unrealised losses

BB B ERFE129F (155]) iR AR B EREFELEREE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

BB WG ERFEIN, M TA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BB HEERFE155  REEF & RAEA

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment:

1 January 2017
201751 A1H

1 January 2017

20171 H1H

1 January 2018
201841 H1H

1 January 2018
201851 H1H

1 January 2018

Classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

BB B ERE29 (185]) A B BE AR -
UEnBEHRD NG DB R E

HKFRS 16, Leases
BEAMBHELRFEI6H HE

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards.

201841 H18

1 January 2019
201951 A1H

RE B IEE F R E UL FER] R 2RI
BRI EERY B REEAR DL ER
HRNEZE - 25 AEECHA D
EHIRE T E AR A G SRR
EREAFE BHBHTZENE—
BT X o i AR B R
SERCERFfh - BN SR B R N E B R
WAE—THE THRNRERZF
R ELER A MRS RAETA&ZF
AR E RARBHTR] E B BRITDER
ARRAAEER T EREEZFT
@
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39
for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments and
the classification of financial liabilities. Expected impacts of
the new requirements on the group’s financial statements are
as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) and (8) fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI) as follows:

The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit
or loss.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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BEENDENGE ©MEERE
METEMEHEEEIATHOMRE -
A—AHH BEEVBREEFHRP
HREMTAMBERMZ LERALR
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41 REZ2016F12831HLLEE
EEMENERERVIERT
ERARBENBESE (F)

41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

ERMBHREERNFER ERMTA
(&)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (Continued) (a) ?ERFE

BREETR ERERRAM

For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL
regardless of the entity’s business model. The only
exception is if the equity security is not held for trading
and the entity irrevocably elects to designate that
security as FVTOCI. If an equity security is designated
as FVTOCI then only dividend income on that security
will be recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and
impairments on that security will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling.

Based on the preliminary assessment, the group
expects that its financial assets currently measured
at amortised cost will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.

BEBEAIERDOBESARRE
BFfEAEEHH A ABR-HR
BRI MBAMESTHR £
B O] 72 1) 9 HE R B 1 A SR S o 3
BREEESBRUAABER
BRI AR MR KW
R—EHED TAREE/ART
EBEFEAZFHAAHMEAW
a0 A RAE S YA A] PARERR

EERET - HENE %E?Eﬂ/ﬁ%
BEREREE S WS AT
LEJEI

RV ZFHE AEEEFEE
FIABRRAGHENEREER
RAEBM GRS ERIFIRIEK
HARER B AT D BMETE -
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

41 REBZE2016F12A31BHLLEFE

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR

B M8 B 5 R £ IS RT ~ #i
HEARBENEERE (&)

THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement (Continued)

With respect to the group’s financial assets currently
classified as “available-for-sale”, these are investments
in equity securities which the group may classify as
either FVTPL or irrevocably elect to designate as
FVTOCI (without recycling) on transition to HKFRS 9.
The group has not yet decided whether it will irrevocably
designate these investments as FVTOCI or classify
them as FVTPL. Either classification would give rise to a
change in accounting policy as the current accounting
policy for available-for-sale equity investments is to
recognise fair value changes in other comprehensive
income until disposal or impairment, when gains or
losses are recycled to profit or loss in accordance with
the group’s policies set out in notes 1(j). This change in
policy will have no impact on the group’s net assets and
total comprehensive income but will impact on reported
performance amounts such as profit and earnings per

share.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair
value change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL
that is attributable to changes of that financial liability’s
own credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or loss). The
group currently does not have any financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL and therefore this new requirement
may not have any impact on the group on adoption of

HKFRS 9.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event to
occur before an impairment loss is recognised. Instead,
an entity is required to recognise and measure expected
credit losses as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on the
asset and the facts and circumstances. This new
impairment model may result in an earlier recognition
of credit losses on the group’s loans and advances to
customers, trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivables and receivables for factoring business.
However, a more detailed analysis is required to
determine the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for

recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS

15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,

Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from

construction contracts. The group is currently assessing the
impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial statements.
Based on the preliminary assessment, the group has

identified the following areas which are likely to be affected:

41 REBZE2016F12A31BHLLEE

C M8 B & R £ RIS RT - #
HARBENEERE (F)

ERMBHREERNFER ERMTA
(&)

(b) ®WE

BBV BHRELERERER T8
HERBRXIERBERTEES
FTAERIFEIRHH [ BB AEIEK
R -FIREERBAELT
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(@) Timing of revenue recognition

BRXES

BN BAARE T TIIR)

41 REZ2016F12831HLLFEE
EEMENERERNIERT
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ERVMBH/EENFEIGH RAF
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(a)

The group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 1(r). Currently, revenue arising from the provision
of services is recognised over time, whereas revenue
from the sale of goods is generally recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the
customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations
in which control of the promised good or service is

regarded as being transferred over time:

()  When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s

performance, as the entity performs;

(i) When the entity’s performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example work in progress) that the

customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced;

(i) When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.
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41 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 41 REBZE2016F12A31HLLEFEE
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EREMEERERVIEE -
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR RARBENEELE (F)
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers ERAMEREEAEISHE  FERE

(Continued) FERMWA (&)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued) (a) WMARERZEE (&)
If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fi & AVER & “%ﬁ@)ﬁ?\%ﬁé
fall into any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 ERZE=ZEER WREES
the entity recognises revenue for the sale of that good VB HmEELE 1555'? CERERE
or service at a single point in time, being when control — e E R (BT EER)
has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership LI E B Yok IR 7% MR UL A o T
is only one of the indicators that will be considered in BERREER EZEANE
determining when the transfer of control occurs. EEHEEREERBEZEENE

F—IEEE

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward AR ERER R EHERIEES § 8
approach to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control BT T%E/ja‘ﬁii}“ —BAREEER
approach, it is possible that once the group adopts TS B T S 2E BB 155K - Bt
HKFRS 15 some of the group’s contract manufacturing REBSRTAEHMS B ALK
and residential property development activities that are MR REEMTEWED
currently recognised at a point in time may meet the KB R RETRME BB SRS
HKFRS 15 criteria for revenue recognition over time. AR E15TEFE R A % A AT
This will depend on the terms of the sales contract and RIELE - EHIAREESGR 2
the enforceability of any specific performance clauses & F RN A [R] o A] 58 I S 1T B9 (]
in that contract, which may vary depending on the BERBOGKRR  ERESEH
jurisdiction in which the contract would be enforced. It THERERTRAEEZR A%
is also possible that for the remainder of the group’s B & 42T 30 IR AR
contracts the point in time when revenue is recognised 5 %ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁffﬁﬁiﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ
may be earlier or later than under the current accounting KRB IRAI R
policy. However, further analysis is required to determine ETBEBEetHRE EJJ = E =3
whether this change in accounting policy may have a HEMBFEYHREBHEE®RS
material impact on the amounts reported in any given CHBEARENAFE—FH
financial reporting period. ik
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42

43

44

CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITY

The group has consolidated structured entities which issued
micro loan backed securities of RMB1,460 million (“the
Products”) to institutional investors. The group acquired all
the interests of the subordinated tranches of the Products
and the group provided financial guarantee against the
investors that acquired the senior tranches.

The relevant activities of the structured entities are directed
by means of contractual arrangement and the entity has
been designed so that voting or similar rights are not
the dominant factor in deciding who has control. These
structured entities are consolidated as the group is exposed
or has the right to variable returns from its involvement with
these entities and has the ability to affect its returns through
its power over the entity.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to current year’s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in
2016.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

According to the resolution of the Company’s board of
directors meeting on 27 March 2017, the details of dividends
appropriation is set out in Note 33(b).
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